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Welcome to Mitie
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are the UK’ leading
facilities management and
professional services company,
providing a range of services
to a large, diverse, blue-chip
client base. Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.
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Exceptional,
every day
for our

customers

Our customers range
from banks and retailers,
to hospitals, schools and
government entities.

We have an order book
of £4.1bn and a pipeline
of opportunities of
£10.2bn.

@ Read more on PG (2

Exceptional,
every day
for our

environment

In 2010, we committed
to reduce our emissions
intensity by 35% by
2020. We are proud to
have achieved this target
a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate,
restricting business
travel and improving
fleet efficiency.

(® Read more on PG 32-33

Exceptional,
every day
for our

employees

Qur 52,500 employees

go the extra mile for our
colleagues and clients

to deliver basics brilliantly.
We are driven by our vision
of "The Exceptional,
Every Day' and our values.
We are One Mitie.

(® Read more on PG 34-37
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Financial highlights

Financial hlghllghts (for the year ended 31 March 2019)

£2.2bn

Revenue'
FY 17/18: £2.06n)

6.8,

Basic earnings before other
items per share'?
{FY 17118: 15.2p)

£140.7m

Net debt (at period end)’
(FY 17/18: €193.5mm)

£4| bn

Secured order book'

£88.2m

Operating profit before other items'?
FY 17/18: £83.2m)

4.0,

Dividends per share
(FY 17/18: 40p)

£302.0m

Net debt {daily average)
(FY (7/18: €286.1m)

£10.26n

Pipeline of opportunities

(FY 1718: £4.2bn) (FY 17118: N/A)
Financial sumwmary

FY 18/19 FY 1718

Before Before
£m unless otherwise speaified other itgms? Total  other items? Total
Revenue' 2,2214 22214 20306 20306
Qperating profit’ 88.2 50.2 832 11
Operating profit margin' 4.0% 2.3% 4.1% 0i%
Profit/(loss) before tax' 744 36.4 6.7 (154)
Profitiloss) for the year 63.7 30.9 612 (260
Basic earningsi{loss) per share 16.8p' B.ép 152p* 6)p
Full-year total dividend per share 4.0p 40p

FY 18/1%9 FY 1718

Cash generated from/{used in) operations 47.5 (k)]
Perind end net dept? 140.7 1935
Order book! 4,147.3 41860

Revenue up 94% to £2.2bn (FY 17/18 £2.0bn)
with organic growth a1 5.5% reflecting strong
performance from top strategic accounts
Operating profit before gther items up

6.0% to £88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m)
Qperating profit up to £50.2m

(FY 17118, £L.Im)

Final dividend recommendation of 2.67p,
makmg the total full-year dindend of

4.0p per share (FY 17/18: 4.0p)

Leverage multiple reduced to 1.33x net debt/
EBITDA (FY 17/18: | 98x, covenant <3x) with
penod end net debt further improved to
£140.7m (FY 17/E8: £193.5m)

Core businesses performing strangly

Project Helix Jargely complete with exat
run-rate savings of c. £45m; Project Forte
(Phase Il of Mitie's transformation)

now faunched with primary focus on
Engineering Services

Order boak from continuing operations
stable at £4,1bn with pipeline growing to
£10.2bn on the back of inclusion onto the
Crown Commeroal Services Framework
Net Promater Score up 22 points to

+12 (FY 17/18: -10)

Employee engagement up {2 ppts to 45%
Paying our suppliers faster (50 supplier
payment days down from 58 days in FY 17/8)

.

.

Y

Reconciliation of the Graup's performance
measures to its statuiory results is provided in the
Appendix - Akermative Performance Measures.

1. From continuing opératians.

1 Othec:vhamsdi’reasﬁ‘escrbedinNoteﬂothe
- Tmancial

3.Note 26tothe kdated financial
for analysis of net debt.

Delivering the exceptional through a range of services

Revenue' FY 18/19

Engineering
Services

£905.7m

(FY 17/18; £886.3m)

£536.5m

(FY [7/18: £432.0m)

Cleaning &
Professional Environmentat
Services Services

£131.4m

Y 1708: £131.2m)

£404.4m

[ r] Mitie Group plc | Annual Repart and Accounts 2019

(EY 17/18: £384.1m)

Care &
Custody Catering

£107.3m

(FY 17118, £599em)

£136.1m

(FY 17118, £1374rm)
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At a glance

Cha:rman's staternent
Business model

Market review

Chief Executive’s

strategic review

Key performance
indicators

Operating review
Finance review
Stakeholder engagement
Non-financial information
Statement

Secial value

Qur people

Principal risks and uncertainties
Viabifity statement

customers

We are investing in Connected Workspace
technalogy to enable us to offer added value
1o our customers, Mprove operational
efficiency and reduce refiance on manual
labour. Our open source platform allows

us to integrate multiple systems and data
sources, perform advanced data analytics
and deliver solutions through easy-to-use

customer interfaces.

Our nationwide flexible offering combined
with the smart use of technology remains
attractive, With a focus on key drivers -
customer, people, cost and techrology —
we are helping to shape next generation

facilities management.

@ Read more on PG |13

5

Integrated facilities

6m

daily data readings

© - T management

contracts with
Connected Workspace
component won in

Fy 1819
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At a glance

Group
information

Our vision

Our purpose

What we do

The Exceptional, Every Day.

Our expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our customers be exceptional, every day.

We are the UK's leading facilities management (FM) and professional services
company employing 52,500 people. YWe manage and mairtain some of the
nation'’s most recognised landmarks and work with a wide range of blue-chip
private and public sector dients. We have scale and nationwide reach as well
as breadth and depth of fadiities management services, which we deliver in
a flexible, tailored proposition through self-delivery or strategic partnerships.

We work in partnership with our dients to grow customer lifetime value
by offering technology-backed solutions where our Connected Workspace
technology is a true differentiator. We are ambitious for the fiture of the
FM industry, our austomers and our employees.

We deliver the exceptional through a range of services

Engineering
Services (ES)

Mitie Engineering Services
delivers techrical and building
maintenance services and
specialist services in heating,
cooling, Wghting, water
treatment, and building
controls. The division carries
out project works, including
roofing and painting works.

@ Read more on FG 16-17

Security Professional Cleaning &
Services (PS) Environmental

The Security division comprises Professional Services is Mitie's H

Security Management, Front of cansultancy services division, serwc_es (CES)

House, Document Management, which includes Connected The Cleaning & Environmerstal

and the employee vetting Workspace solutions, Services division affers

business, Procius. international, Sustainabiltty, commerciat and technical
Waste Management, deaning, as well as specialist
Risk Management and services such as landscaping
Occuprer Services. and healthcare services.

@ Read mgre on PG 17-18

04 Mitie Group pic | Annual Report and Accounts 201%
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Customer type Forward order book
£m FY tahy £m FY 18/19
@ Government 700.3 @ Lessthan | year 1,259
FY 18/19 @ Non-government 15211 FY 1811y @ More than | year 2,895.4
Total secured
Revenue
from continuing revenue.for
operations OQI'Itil’II:III‘Ig
operations
£m FY 17/18 £m Fr 17hs
@ Government 6204 @ Less than | year 11216
FY 1718 @ Non-government 14102 FY 17/18 @ More than | year 30644
Revenue Total secured
from continuing revenue for
t continung
operations operations
£m FY 1811?
@ Engineenng Services 905.7
FY 18/19 @ Security 536.5
Revenue @ Professional Services 131.4
H from continuing
Care & Catering operations @ CEs 404.4
Custody by division @ Care & Custody 107.3
The Care & Custody division The Catering division @ Catering 136.1
provides a range of services comprses: Gather & Gather
1o vulnerable adults in secure our workplace catering
erranments. including brand; and Creativevents,
managing immigration removal our specialist ndoor
centres and detention and and outdoor event
escorting services on behalf catering business. £m FY 1708
of the Home Office, as well as -
forensic medical examiner and @ Engineenng Services 8863
custody support services for FY 17118 @ Security 4320
police forces across England Reverue @ Professional Services 1312
and Wales. from contirumg
operations @ Cts 3641
@ Read more on PG 20 @ Read more on PG 20-2 by division @ Care & Custody 599
@ Catering 137.1
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Chairman's statement

Shaping Mitie
for the future

£2.2n

Revenue from continuing
operations
(FY 17/18. £2.0bn)

88.2.,

Operating profit before other
items from cantinuing operations'
(FY 17/18. £83.2m)

4.0,

Dividends per share
(FY 17/18: 40p}

1. Reconciliation of operating profit
before other items 1o the statutory
accounts is provided in the Appendix —
Alternative Performance Measures on
pages 163 1o 165.

06 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

GG

We want to drive a

change from today’s mostly
reactive approach to a
preventive approach using
data and technology.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Dear Mitie shareholder,

| am pleased to report on the progress of Mrie's second year

of transformation. It has been a year of delivery and change —
operational, financial and cultural — in a competitive facilities management
market with a challenging industry badkdrop.

FM industry overview and changing customer demands
Last year | referenced the dermise of Carillion, one of our major
competitors, The outsourcing sector has remained in the spotlight

with Imterserve — another major competitor — going into pre-pack
administration, following which Interserve's lenders acquired its
operating subsidiaries. Despite the ongoing challenges for the industry,

1 still believe that the medium-term outlook for your company s
positive. On the one hand, there is significant opportunity for ncreased
outsourcing penetration of the facilities management industry, On the
ather hand, we expect consolidation in the market to continue over the
next couple of years, as the ndustry addresses some of its fundamental
strategic and financial challenges.

i

Qutsourcing remnains a low-margin industry. In this environment,
technology and scale remain two of Mitie's most significant differentiators.
Creating a technology-enabled business can fundamenrtally change the
economics of the industry. We will continue to focus our technology
programme on three key areas: transforming our internal technology
infrastructure to build a more cost-efficient organisation: investing in
service delivery technologies to improve the customer experience and
cost-to-serve; and finally, creating new services and products which add
significant new value for our customers.

As a consequence, we believe that the economics of facilities
management is shifting from a low-margin, labour-based model to a
more sustainable technology-driven approach. Customer priorities

are beginning to evolve as a result of the challenges facing the industry,
the impact of technology and new employee workplace expectations,
While cost efficiency and the guality of service delivery remain front
and centre for our customers, they are increasingly also focusing on
employee wellbeing, sustainability and better use of their buildings.
“These sofier benefits are becoming important in attracting and retaining



the best people and enabling them to be as productive as possible.
At Mitie, we therefore continue to drive adoption of our Connected
Workspace offering, which is focused on products and services that
improve the performance of buildings, and the wellbeing of their
occupants. for the benefit of our customers.

Strategy

Owr strategy is based on four piliars — customer, people. cost and
technology — and is designed to grow customer lifetime value through
technology-based solutions. We are focusing on those business lines
where we can secure market-leading positions to ensure long-term
sustainable growth. Qur vision is to deliver The Exceptional, Every Day.
ht is clear to me that by the end of year two in our transformation
journey, we have made progress.

During FY 18/19 we simplified and strengthened the Mitie portfolic

by selling our Pest Control and Social Housing businesses and acquiring
a security business, Vision Security Group (VSG). The acquisition of
V5G boosts our already strong position in the UK security market.

We have ernbedded technology into the heart of our offering. Examples
include our Connected Workspace technology. our MiTec centre in
Belfast, our global securtty operations centre {GSOC) in Northargton
and our service operations centre (SOC) in Bracknell. We are
showcasing our technology solutons in our Shard headquarters.

We want to drive a change in the facilities management industry from
today's mostly reactive approach to a preventive approach using data
and technology to optimise the performance of a customer’s estate

and enhance the wellbeing of their people.

During the year, we continued to prioritise customer service, which

is reflected in a very encouraging 22-point increase in Net Promoter
Score (NPS) to +12 pomnts. This i testament to all the hard work from
the teams on the ground and at account management level. However,
we will not be complacent about the result: we have more te da, so
we will continue to listen to our customers and act on their feedback.

Our people are our most critical asset. Without their commitmerit
and hard work, the Group would not have progressed as far in its
transformation journey during the first two chaflenging years.

We are committed 1o creating a 'Great Place to Work”. During the
year, employee engagement improved to 45% from 33% last year —

a remarkable achievemant given the ongoing transformation and scale
of change within the Group. Along with my fellow Board members,

I personally partidipated in our ‘back to the floor’ initiative to meet
mare of our colieagues, listen to their experiences and celebrate
excepticnal performance.

‘We have continued 10 focus on rigorous cost controt under our

Project Helix programme. By the end of March 2019, we had reached
our target exit run-rate savings — annualised reductions to the cost

base ~ of ¢.£45m per annum, through various cost saving initiatives across
HR, Procurement, Property, Finance, iT and Engineering Services. We
now expect to launch a new cost saving initiative programme in FY 19/20.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board has reviewed governance m readiness for the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018, which applies to accounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2019. Given the extent of change at Mitie over
the last two years, we as a Board wish to engage proactively with our
stakeholders. In FY 18/19, the Board established a format for regular
engagement with shareholders and for supporting Mitie’s workforce
during transformation. Through regular updates from the Executive
Leadership Team, the Board also remains abreast of developments
with customers, suppliers, banks, noteholders and other stakeholders.

We will continue to develop dialogue between the Board and

all stakeholders to ensure a mutual understanding of views on
governance and to promaode discussion of the Group's performance.
Along with a number of Non-Executive Directors, | have directly
engaged with institutional shareholders with a cumulative holding

of 63% of Mitie's issued share capital. Discussion covered a range

of governance matters including Mitie’s cuhture and cuttural
transformation, as well as Board support lor the executve team

In line wrth the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the Financial
Reporting Council's guidance on board effectiveness. Mitie appointed
fennifer Duvalier as the Group's designated Non-Executive Director to
oversee Board engagement with our workforce. Jennifer champions the
voice of Mitie ernployees at Board discussions and participates directly in
our employee engagement initiatives.

Board composition

The Nomination Committee regularly reviews Board composition
and considers rmatters such as skills and diversity. During the year.
the Board adopted an inclusion policy, seting objectives in terms of
diversity and inclusion.

In July 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board and Roger Yates
succeeded hum as Senior Independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board, with Mary Reilly assuming the role of
Chair of the Audit Committee.

Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August
2018. fennifer Duvaker succeeded him as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee.

{ would like to thank Larry, Mark and Jack for thewr service to Mitie.

Results and dividends

| am pleased to report that revenue growth from continuing operations
during the year was strong at 94% to £2.2bn (FY |7/18: £2.0bn),
boosted by the acquisition of the security firm VSG. Operating profit
from continuing operations before cther rtems also grew by 6.0% to
£88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m) with Engineering Services, Security and
Care & Custody all delivering good growth.

The Board has recommended a final dvidend of 2.67p. taking total
dividends for the year to 4.0p. We expect to hold the dividend flat
at least until transformation s complete, when we will review the
dividend policy.

Outlook

While change can be unsettling, it can also be rewarding, and these

are exciting times for your Compary. The strength of our strategy,
management, scale, technology offering and, of course, the dedication of
our people. really set us apart. We will continue to build upon the progress
achieved over the first two years of transformation, strengthening our
position as the UK's leading faokbes management organisation.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our many stakeholders, and
all Mrtie employees, including the VSG colleagues wha joined us recently,
for their dedication and commitment 1o the Compary, and for going the
extra mile. And finally, | would also like to thank you. our sharehaiders,
for your cortinued support.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 07
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Business model

Creating value
for all our stakeholders

Our vision
The Exceptional, Every Day.

@ Read more on PG |

Our purpose

Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.

@® Readmoreon PG 11

Our values
* We are One Mitie.

* We are built on
integrity and trust.

* We go the extra mile.

* Our diversity makes
us stronger,

* Qur customers' business,
is our business.

(® Read more on PG 35

®
Diligence
and design

Mobilisation
and running
operations

>

What wedo  We start by engaging with a new We lock to mobilise our
or existing client to understand contraces in the most
its needs or any changes to efficient way. Once in
requirements. We design a bespoke operatian, we are continually
solution using our expertise, looking for opportunities
knowledge and Connected to remove cost, expand
Warkspace technalogy. our offering where it would
be of benefit to customers
and become a valued
strategic partner.
The Mitie We have created a One Mitie Scale
approach approach in everything we do to The scale of our operations '
deliver a seamless, unrivalled service. allows us to self-deliver
most services, induding
some specialist services.
We ako pariner wath
third parties to deliver
additional specialist services.
Delivered We offer abreadth of services
through our underpinned by broad expertise,
business aflexible bespoke approach
and proprietary market-leading Engineering  Security
technology. Services
Guided by  Our four strategic pillars ~ customer,
our strategy people, cost and technalogy -
underpin our strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic Customer: putting
ﬂmﬁd‘:‘mm nology offer customers at the
53 Thator 1o ensure heart of what we do
long-term sustainable growth, delivery Buiiding market-leading
of our vision of “The Exceptional, positions in higher growth
Every Day’ and creation of value for segments and increasing
all cur stakeholders. customer NPS,

08 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Insights to
drive value

Using our proprietary technology, data analysis and open source data

>

lake, as well as tradibonal methods, we collate information on customers’

buildings and assets and the wellbeing of their employees. We convert
data and feedback into actionzble recommendations for our clients.

Recognising that every customer is different, our appreach is tailored
to customers’ unigque needs and is designed to deliver continual
improvements throughout the life of the contract.

Creating value for
all our stakeholders

Customers

We aim to move from being just another service provider
to bang a trusted partner for our customners. helping
them create high-performance work environments by
optimising utiksation of their buildings and improving the
wellbeing and performance of their people.

+12

Net Promoter Score (an improvement
of 22 ponts from -10in FY |7/18)

Shareholders

‘We are a business in turnaround with strong
management, an excellent customer base and a
dear strategy. We are committed 1o strong financial
management and the creation of shareholder value.

8.6p

Basic earnings per share
{improved from loss of Z.6p in FY 17/18)

Employees

We are creating a great working environmest and
learning and devefopment opportundies for our
employees. We empower our people and recognise

>

Nationwide Expertise Technology
reach We are a partner OCur technology suite
Qur natiorwide reach trusted for our includes Connected
allows us to service expertise and Workplace, MiTec,
large clients with for putting our service operations
presence all over customers at the centre (SOC) and
the UK, heart of our business. global securtty
operations centre
(GSOC).
Professional Cleaning & Care & Catering
Services Environmental Custody
Services
People: our Cost: strong Technology:
single most balance sheet technology
important and cost control solutions and
resource Strengthening Connected
Creating a ‘Great our balancing sheet Workspace
Place to Work' for and maintaining Embedding technology
our employees. cost disciphne to nto the heart of
remain competrtive. our offering .

great work,

52,500

employees

Social value: communities, environment,
people, innovation and regional business
Through the Mrue Foundation we provide opportunities
for learning and employment. Ready2Work scheme;
employer engagement days; Think Differently
programme; and schoal, academy and college events.

151 Mitie colleagues

volunteered to assist in a range of
educational and community events

I Suppliers

We are committed to ensurning a responsible supply
chain. We work with all suppliers to ensure adherence
to our Code of Conduct, including Modern Slavery and
Hurman Trafficking, Safety and Sustainabibity objectives,
and our Mrtie vetting standards,

We procured from

7,500

suppliers in FY 18/9

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 09
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Market review

A world of
opportunity

We are focused on improving our customers'
experience and embedding technology-driven
solutions in our offering.

Key market drivers How we are responding

Facilities
management
industry

®®
GIC)

The UK has a large and established outsourced
facilties management (FM) market. Overall it is
forecast to grow at moderate levels (.2%) as the
market continues to mave slowly fram insourcing to
outsourcing, Despite recent industry turbulence, we
are not seeing any marked trends for insourcing. FM
outsourcing penetration ranges from ¢.55% for
catering to ¢.90% for cleaning. The relative share of
contract types (single service ¢.55%, bundle/integrated
FM ¢.45%) has remained relatwvaly stable Customers’
primary focus continues to be on cost, efliciency and
service quality, but with an increasing focus on
technology and employee wellbeing. Turbulence in the
sector has highlighted the need for a more informed
approach to pricing and risk transfer, Scrutiny into
public sector outsourcing has remained high.

We are the UK's largest FM company and we are
transforming the industry by continuing to focus on
delvering an outstanding service and customer
experience, generating cost efficency. creating an
erviconment where our people can thrive and investing

in technology. Our Connected Workspace technology
differentistes us from our competition. We are generating
data-driven insights and enabkng deasions that improve
eflicency and our cost-to-serve, as well as create new
services and products for our customers.

Read more in the CEQ's strategic review on pages |1 to 13
Read about princpal rsks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

UK
economy

®®

According to the Office for National Statsstics (OINS),
in 2018 UK GDF grew 1.4%. slower than 1.8%in 2017,
ONS reported that the Consumer Prices index (CPl)
12-month rate was 2.1% in Decernber 2018. ONS
revised down real GDP growth in 2019 from 1.6% to
1.2%, against the backdrop of considerable uncertainty
over the next steps in the Brexit process As Brexit
uncertaimy subsides, and productivity growth
gradually improves, ONS expects GDP growth to pick
up to 1.4% in 2020 and to 1.6% a year thereafter as the
small margin of spare capacity is absorbed. The
unemployment rate is expected to rise marginally to
4.1% n 2019 as output falls below potential.

Outsourdng is typically shielded from economic cycles,
benefiting from an increased customer cost-autting
focus during econemic slowdowns, and from enntract
expansion in economic upturns, Our national footprint.
scale of operations and llexible proposition remain
campeling. while cur Connected Workspace technology
serves as a clear differentiator.

We have assessed potential Brexit impacts under a range of
scenarios. We expect the main impacts in wage and food
price inflation and labour and parts shortages, all of which
we are addressing through cantingency planning and
working cosely with our supply chain.

Read about principal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

Customer
expectations

®@®

Although cost, efficiency and service quality continue
1o be priorities for customers, employee wellbeing and
technology are gaining further traction. Customers
are increasingly looking to improve the working
ervironment, employee satisfaction and welibeing of
their employees. Flexible workspace solutions, effiaent
use of their estate and operational insights supported
by real-time data provide an opportunity for
customers to improve the performance and weflbeing
of their people and functioning of their buildings.

We are investing in Connected Workspace technology
o reduce our cost-to-serve and create new products
and services that add signulicant value for our customers,
Qur open source technology platform allows us to
Integrate multiple systems and data sources, perform
advanced data analytics and deliver better services for
our custemers. We will cantinue reshaping our business
1o be the leader i next generation FM.

Read mare in the CEO's strategic review on pages |l to 13
Read about prindipal risks and uncertainties on pages 368 to 46

Legislation

®O
BIC)

UK employers must comply wath legal and regulatory
requirements in areas such as taxation, the National
Mirimum Wage (NMW) and the National Living
Wage (NLW), the Apprenticeship Levy, workplace
pensions and the Modern Slavery Act.

The majority of Mitie front-line employees are within
the NLW category. The NLW for workers aged

25 and aver increased by 4.9% from £7.83 10 £3.20
from April 2019.

Tha Apprerticeship Levy is required from UK
employers to fund new apprenticeships and ss
charged at a rate of 0.5% of an employer's payroll.

By law all employers must offer a workplace pension
scheme 1o eligible employees.

10 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The majortty of our existing contracts already contan

a change-of-law clause which ailows us to pass on related
cost increases, helping us to protect our margins. We
are utibsing the Apprenticeship Levy for front-line staff
training ard development. We are also moving beyond a
‘Tabour-plus’ model towards more value-added services
and embedding more technology in our operations.

Pressure on margins is likely to cortinue as labour costs
increase driven by legislation and CP! inflation.

‘We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY
1819 and utiised £1 2m.

Read about prinapal nsks and uncertaintes on pages 38 10 46




Chief Executive’s strategic review

Strengthening the business,

in a challenging market

Qur vision

The Exceptional, Every Day” It's a combination of expertise, care and
insights, backed by the latest technology and data, to create an offering
that goes beyond traditional FM. To our people we promise a place to
work where they can thrive and be the best every day. To our customers
we promise to be a trusted partner. creating exceptional environments for
clients and colleagues, as well as adding value. Everything we do is backed
by our core values, which oversee how we behave a5 a responsible
corporate ctizen, and as individuals.

Our purpose

Achieving The Exceptional, Every Day’ doesn't happen by chance.

And we want our customers to be exceptional too, We start by doing the
basics brilliantly. tailoring solutions that anticpate and meet our customers’
needs. We are aware that technology 1s changing our world, and we are
using it to change FM. Through Connected Workspace we provide
data-driven solutions, embedding technology seamlessly into everything we
do. The insights gained allow s 1o offer customers a new tevel of flexibility
and conitrol, helping them become exceptional at what they do best.

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create a "Great Place to Work’ for
our employees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain
cost discipfine to remaln competlcive

Technotogy: embed technology into the heart of
our offering

& ®®

GG

Our vision is to deliver

‘The Exceptional, Every Day’
for our customers, people
and other stakeholders.

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Dear Mitie shareholder,

} am pleasad to report on our progress in my second full year as

CEO of Mrtie Group plc. Two years into our transformation journey

we are already seeng the benefits of our strategy to focus on our larger
businesses and strategic accounts where our technology offer is a true
differentiator to ensure long-term sustainable growth, delivery of cur
vision of The Excepticnal. Every Day’ and creation of value for all our
stakeholders through our four strategic pillars of customer, people, cost
and technology.

Ower FY 18/19 we sharpened the focus by continuing to invest in
customer service and technology and by changes to our portlofio
of businesses. This has enabled us to grow revenue and profits.

We see our larger businesses and strategic clients as offering the best
opportunities for growth and margin expansion as we deepen our
capabilties and relationships. These are also areas where we are best
able to deploy technology.

Project Helix has provided solid foundations for Mitie's future

growth, enabling investrments in our people, customer and technology.
With the foundations now buitt, we are now moving to Project Forte,
which is focused primarily on driving simplicity and efficiency in
Engneering Services. Together with our focus on strategic accounts

and larger businesses, we should see improvement in the Group's profits.

At the same time, we are making good progress in strengthening our
balance sheet.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 ]
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Chief Executive’s strategic review continued

Business performance

It has been another challenging year with the FM sector remaining firmly
inthe spotlight. Despite this, we grew our revenues and top strategic
accounts, reduced our period end net debt and qualified for Phases | and
Il of the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework
thereby positioning ourselves 16 win more government work.

Revenue from continuing operations was 9.4% up on the previous year,
at £2.2bn, with arganic growth at 5.5%. Operating profit before other
tems from continung operations increased to £88.2m from £83.2m in
FY 17/18. Operating profit for FY 18/19 was up to £50.2m from £l.Ima
year earher and basic earnings per share were 8.6p, from 2 ioss of 7.6p m
FY 17/18. Basic earnings per share before other items from continuing
operations were 16.8p (FY 17/18: 15.2p).

The fixed-term order book from continuing operations was broadly flat
at £4.)bn, benefiting from VSG's order book and significant contract wins
towards the end of the year. Following the successful reorgarusation of
our sales tearn and the introduction of strategic account managers, we
have seen a steady flow of wins and retentions. The pipeline of £10.2bn
includes significant opportunities on the CCS Framework.

Our balarice sheet health remains a key focus. We are committed to
further reducing customer invoice discourtting, normalising creditor days,
asking clierits for farer payment terms, streamlining our billing processes
and defivering faster cash collection. Our efforts have seen a dechine in
average daily net debt in H2 18/19 10 £286.5m from £3174m m HI 18/19
as we resoled working capital impacts following the outsourcing of
transactional processing to India in earty FY 18/[9. Overall, average dally
net debt for FY 8/19 was £15.9m higher than prior year at £302.0m.
Our medium-term objective is to continue to reduce the average daily
net debt. The period end net debt was £140.7m versus £193.5m a year
earlier as we make continuing improvements to the cash collection
cycle; the net debt position ako includes proceeds from two disposal
transactions effected during FY 18/19. Ve are operating comfortably
within debt covenants with period end net debt te EBITDA of 1.33x.

Focusing our business

In FY 18/19, we also focused our business by selling our Pest Control and
Socal Housing businesses and acquirng the Vision Security Group (VSG).
The first two transactions simplified our aperations; they aiso provided
funds to strengthen the balance sheet and accelerate partial repayment
of the defiat under the Group's defined benefit pension scheme. The
V5G acquistion strengthens our position as one of the UK's largest
providers of security services 1o businesses.

Customer focus

Listening to clients is essential as we focus on delivering services that our
custorners need, By taking on board feedback from last year's customer
survey and continuing to Invest in customer service, we have secured

an impressive improvernent in our NPS score, which increased from
-10to +12in FY 18/19. A follow-up programme for account directors
will ensure we improve our score further still, helping us to win and
retain more business.

Mrtie’s success rests on growing our largest strategic accounts and
deepening our relationship with them. it was pleasing to see that
these accounts grew revenues by B% in FY 18/19, which demonstrates
that our biggest chents are trusting us with more of their business.

We have recently secured a place on several key government
frameworks, giving us an opportunity to becormne a strategic partner for
the UK government in outsourced FM, defence, securtty and custody.

@

A great place to work

Supporting our people to be the best they can be is one of our core
objectives, We do more than just provide the tools required for the job;
we are making Mitie a great place to work through various initiatives.

QOuwr online People Hub, supported by SAP SuccessFactors, is a single
point of access for anything HR-related. The recently launched Learning
Hub offers a doud-based pool of 2,500 instructor-led courses.

Mitie Exceptionals is a diverse employee consulting group which liaises
with our Non-Executive Director, Jennifer Duvalier, on the interests
of the wider workforce. In April 2018, we launched Upload, a people
survey providing the opportunity to feedback on working with Mitie.
‘We launched a "You Said, We Did' campaign to address employees’
feedback throughout the year. It was therefore very encouraging to
see that the ernployee engagement score went up to 45% from 33%
in the prior year.

In addition, we were the only FM company 10 be recognsed by two
prestigious awarding bodies. Ve were certified a 2019 Top Employer
by the Top Employer Institute Certification Programme. And we came
I7th on the inclusive Top 50 UK Employers kist for pramoting diversity
and inclusion. ,

Our strategy
in action

Ouwr strategy is to focus on

Customer: build market-leading
positions in higher growth segments
and increase customer NPS

)

People: create a ‘Great Place
to Work’ for our employees

Achievements
* We launched People Hub and Leaming

our larger businesses and Achievements
strategic accounts where our . ?Ps:;ewmc Im"m ’;‘iw oy
. * Top

tEChr'Obgy offer isatrue * Mitie qualified as a supplier on Crown
differentiator to ensure dCoéwe:l;al Se:’:s Framewark far FM,

. elence b SErvices
long'tem sustainable growth, KPIs: Organic revenue growth, operating profit
delivery of our vision of margin before ather items, order book, NPS
The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for

all cur stakeholders.

£10.2bn

pipeline of opportunities

12 Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Hub platforms
* Employee engagement increased to 45%
¢ Jennifer Ouvalier oversees Board
engagement with the workforce

KPIs: Staff turnover, employee engagement.
all infury frequency rate

459

employee engagement




Cost discipline

In June 2017 our cost programme, Project Helix, was launched to
kickstart Mitie's transformation. Two years on, we have largely
achieved our aims, exiting FY 18/19 with run-rate cost savings of
<.£45m, We started by delayering and removing central management
heads both at Group level and within the divisions. We standardised
and centralised our T, HR and Finance functions. For IT and Finance
we akso offshored the majerity of back-office processes. In HR, we
introduced SAP SuccessFactors to manage all people-related matters,
as well as temporary and permanent hiring solutions,

The final elements of this project wilt continue throughout FY 19720,
with expected run-rate cost benefits — these are annual cost savings to
the cost base following the finalisation of currently running programmes
at the end of Project Helix ~ of c.£50m by March 2020.

The next phase of transformation is Project Forte, aimed at changing
the processes and technology underpinning our largest division,
Enginsering Services.

Project Forte will include a full roll-out of the "Chck’ dynamic
scheduling and deployment system and implementing a new case
management and billing application. R will result in improved engineer
productivity and back-office efficiencies. Project Forte will also include
further Group-wide organisational consolidation and additional cost
reductions by autornating manual and paper-based processes and
mugration of our accounting system to a Mitie-wide SAP solution.

It 8 a two-year programme with estimated gross run-rate cost
benefits of .£30m by March 2021 and associated one-off cost of
change of c.£30m.

Technology at our core

Mitee's use of technology sets us apart from the competition and s at
the core of customer satisfaction and retention success. Qur dients
need and expect high-performance facilities that not only provide

the right work environment but operate efficiently and support their
sustainability agenda. Our skilled resources, nationwide reach and
experience of managing different types of facilities give us unparalleled
capabites to help chents achieve these objectives.

For example, our Connected Workspace sohstions include a
sophisticated service operations centre (SOC) that provides remote
ronitoring of buildings and facilities. SOC uses advanced algorrthrms
to detect anomalies and trigger corrective actiens prior to an asset
failing, We are also able to reduce energy consumption for buildings,
plant and equipment. We call this 'Monitoring as a Serwce' and it is the
core of our predictive maintenance offering,

Other fast-growing technology applications include our MiTec centre,
Fire & Security systerns and our global security operations centre.
Qur approach 1sn't just transforming clients’ organisations, it 1§
transforming Mitie and ¢onsolidating our position as the UK's leader
in FM.,

Outlook

We expect to continue to grow revenue organically at 3%-4% n the
medium term, For FY 1920 we expect operating profit to grow at
mid-single digits — with revenue growth and cost savings partially offset
by the dilutive effect of the FY 18/19 comract renewals and continued
reinvestment in our business. Project Forte and focus on strategic
accounts and larger businesses should drive operating profit margin

in the medium term to our target of 4.5%-5.5%.

Looking ahead

Mitie’s transformation continues at pace. Qur strength is supported

by great customers and loyal staff. Through our use of technology and
expertise, we are leading the field, transforening cur operations and

how we interact with our clients. Change has been challenging at times,
but our progress and performance to date are encouraging. Revenue

is growing, Project Helix has allowed us to lay sold foundations for the
business and in addition to wins across the business, the CCS Framework
presents a considerable opportunity. Mitie is in a strong position for
future growth and we look forward to the year ahead.

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
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Cost: strengthen cur batance
sheet and maintain cost discipline
to remain competitive

Achievements

* Project Helx kargely complete n HR, [T,
Finance, Procurement and ather (CES and
property estate)

* £Y 18/19 in-year benefits of ¢.£38m, with exit
run-rate benefits of c.£45m

KPIs: aperating profit margin before ather items,

net debt/EBITDA ratio and average daily net debt

£45m

gross FY 18/19 exit run-rate benefits

Technology: embed technology
into the heart of our offering

Achievements

* Growang revenue stream in Security

* Technology solutions through MiTec, GSOC,
Fire & Security systems in Security

* Connected Workspace embedded in five
new large IFM contracts

* Ml dashboards live in Heafthcare dlierts (CES)
KPIs: Organic revenue growth, order book, NPS

12

new CW projects in FY 18/19

Focusing our business

Achievements

* Pest Control business' sold to leverage
subcontractor expertise

* Soocal Housing business' sold to exit
a low-growth low-margin sector

* VSG? acquired to boost owr positon in
the security market

* Disposals smplify Mrtie Group and
strengthen the balance sheet

I Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements on
discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiares.

2 Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
on acquisiions.

3

successful transactions
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Key performance indicators

Monitoring
our progress

Our KPIs are measures we use

to assess the Group's progress
against our strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic
accounts where our technology
offer is a true differentiator to
ensure long-term sustainable
growth, delivery of our vision

of The Exceptional, Every Day'
and creation of value for all

our stakeholders.

The health and safety of cur people is the highest priority
for us as a business. We are constantly striving to develop
a zero-harm workplace. Coordinated by Mitie's Quality,
Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE) teamn, our
LiveSafe programme was launched in December 2018,
This hughlights the importance of workplace safety and
was developed out of the need 1o constantly improve
QHSE performance across the business. This year we are
intraducing a non-financial QHSE XPI to our reporting—
all injury frequency rate.

Our strategic pillars

C : butld market-leadi in higher

sV

growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' for
our employees

B D@

Cost: strengthen our bai sheet and maintai
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technalogy: embed technology into che heart of
our offering
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Organic revenue growth (%)

D ipti

Reverue growth reflects the health of our arder book. our ability to upsell and
cross-sell, the pipeline of patential opportunities, our win and retention rates and
our broader reputation in the sector. Crganic revenue growth is growth on a
comparable basis before any impact from acquisitions and excluding discontinued
operations. Reconcilation of revenue excluding the impact from the VSG
acquisition to the statutory accounts is provided in Appendix — Alternative
Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165.

FY 1819 £222m

FY B9 (euchdiog VSG) £2.M2m imsc %

Y 8 amm P W";‘"u,"n' o
How we did it Quticok

Organic revenue grew by 5.5X despte  Our plan 1s to achieve 3%-4%
a challenging market environment, due to organic revenue growth in the
new wins and focusing on adding more redium term,

value and services to our top customers.

W continue 1o Invest in customer service

and technology to drive customer retention

and win rates. Revenue growth of 94% from

continuing operations induded the impact

{rom the acquisition of V5G.

Operating profit margin
befare other items (%)

®©

The UK FM industry is 2 mature and highly compettive market. Profitability on
contracts improves as we enhance the efliciency of our operations throughout
the life of the contract. Reconciliation of operating profit before other items
from continuing operations o statutory accounts is pravided in Appendix —
Aftarnative Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165,

Fy 1819 4.0% Io
bpts
Fy 17718 4.1% from
previous year
How we did it Outlook

The aperating profit margin before other For FY 19720 we expect operating
ftems reduced shghtly to 4.0% over the year  profit 1o grow at mid-single digits
as the dilutive impact from the acquisrttion — with revenue growth and cost
of VSG was mitigated through continyed savings partially offset by the
strong performance within our larger dilutive effect of the FY 1819
contracts and realised cost savings fromour  contract renewals and continued
transformation programme. We irvestad reinvestment in our business.
back into customer service, our technology  Project Forte and focus on
capability and stafl incentive schemes. strategic accounts and lrger
businesses should drive operating
profit margin in the medium term

ta our target of 4.5%-5.5%.
Order book (£m)

Description

The reported order book inciudes only secured fbeed-term contragted work
and excludes variable work, such as catering point-of-sale. See Note 3 to the
consodated financial staternents for analysis of the forward order book,

FY 1819 £4,147m |
FY 17/ 4|
18 £4.1B6m dec
previous year
How we didit Outlook

QOur order book for continuing operations  In FY 18719, we were successful in
dedined by 1%. Contract wins and the qualifying as a supplier on Phases !

benefit from the acquision of VSG offset.  and tof the Crown Commerdial

the defivery of revenue under long-term Services Faalities Managermnent

contracts. M Framework. We
will be focusing on this area as
significant wins would materially
nprove our arder position.



Net debt/EBITDA ratio (x)

Description

®

Pericd end net debt/EBITDA ratio or leverage ratio is one of the two debt

covenarts used to assess our financial position. For the leverage covenant the
ratio of net debt to EBITDA should be no more than 3x. The other covenant
rabo i interest cover (ratio of EBITDA 10 net finance 0osts to be no less than 4x).

Average daily net debt (£m)

Description

®

Our balance sheet health 1s of paramount importance to the long-term
sustanability of our business. Average daly net debt reflects working caprtal

and bill-to-collect management.

FY 1819 £33x FY 1819 £302m

FY N8 198 065" FY 1718 £286m £|6"‘
improvement from deterioration from
previcus year previous year

How we did it Outlook Howwe did it Outlook

Qur period end net debt decreased by We expect to continve to reduce Our average daily net debt increased Proactive management will be an

£52.8m to £140.7m as we benefited from our perod end net debt/EBITDA carmpared to the prior year's level The ongoing theme. Over the medum

net proceeds from dispasals and focused ratuo whilst afso reducing increase in K| to £3174m was due to term, we aim to cantinue to

on accelerating our order 1o cash cycle. off-balance sheet financing. temporary working capital issues related reduce average daily net debt.

We continue to operate comfortably
wrthin our debt covenants.

See Mote 26 to the consolidated financial
statements for analysss of net debt.

to outsourcing of transactional processing,
This was reversed in H2 resulting in lower
average daily net debt in the H2 period at
£286.5m. Overall. average daily net debt
for FY 18/19 was £15.9m higher than prior
year at £302.0m.

Staff turnover (%)

Description

®

‘We measure the number of employees leaving us voluniarily over a 12-month

period aganst our overalt headoount.

Employee engagement (%)

Description

@

The survey asks colleagues at Mitie how they feel about working with the
organsaton, and what improvernents could be made. This is followed by
the “You Said, Ve Did’ campaign to demonstrate actions undertaken in

response to feedback,

FY 18A% 19.7% 2 9 FY Bis 45% I 2
FY 7n8 16.8% * < PpLs FY 17118 3% LA

increase from increase from

previous year previous year
How we did it Outlook How we did it QOutlook
In FY 1819, we launched People Hub, a ‘We will continue to utilise 2B% of emplayees {exduding VSG The annual survey is a vital too!
one-stop-shop for everything related to technology to support our colleagues) completed the Upload survey in raising ermployee engagement,
the ernployee lifecycle. and Learrung Hub, people processes, In FY 18/19. and the engagement score was 45%, up but it is not the only one. Senior
an onfine portal through which employees  we appointed a head of resourcing from 33% the year before. management meet employees
€an access courses related to their career,  to Create an industry-leading talent thraughout the year at roadshow
as well as health and wellbeing, We have and resourang function to attract, conferences across the UK and
been embedding new behaviours following  recruit, develop and retain the members of the Group Leadership

the rall-out of new values i FY 17/18.

best people at all levels.

Team go *back to the floor’ to
engage with front-line colleagues.

Net Promoter Score (index)

Description

NPS is a measure for gauging the customer’s overall satisfaction with a compary’s
product or service and the customer’s layalty to the brand.

All injury frequency rate .
(per million manhours worked)

Description

@

Safety of our employees 1s of paramount importance. We have established
systerns and governance processes 1o measure our performance. Cur injury rate
is  key measure to monitor our progress towards zero harm and includes all

injury severities from first aid to fatality.

FY 18119 +12 FY 18/19 309
PY 17118 -10 22P°""5 Fy 1718 358 I35"
increase from reduction from
previcus year previous year
How we did it Qutlook How we did it Outlook
InFY 18/19 we reached a wider and deeper  This is a core focus for us Over the past year we have changed Continued efforts to further
section of our customer base, capturing and we will be enhancing our reporting systemn (Q3) and categarisation reduce injuries is at the forefront
0%+ of cur revenue, ina more exdensve  CRM programme, customer of incidents allowing for increased focus of the LiveSafe programme,

CRM programme. Our NPS improved asa
result of conunued twestment in customer
service and our One Mitie approach.

communications and engagement.

and anatysis of accidents and incidents,
Through the promotion of our LiveSafe
programme and campaign promoting the
proactive reporting of hazard observations
and near misses we are seeing a shift from
reactive to proactive safety performance

striving towards a zero-harm
workplace. Additionally we
will continue to develop our
Occupational Health strategy.
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Operating review

Our divisional
performance

Engineering

Services

im FY 18119 FY 17/i8  Change, %
Revenyue 905.7 8863 22
Qperating profit before

other items 58.7 54.1 85
Operating margin before

other jtems, % LE1 & 0.4 ppt
Order book 1,802.7 20392 (116
Performance highlights

* Good growth of operating profit before other riems driven by
a strang performance in the major accounts

* Encouraging improvements in engneer productivity

* Phase | of Engineening Services transformation under
Project Helix completed

* Engineering Services transformation is moving into Project Forte

Operational performance

Engineering Services had another year of good operating profit

growth driven by a strong performance in the major accounts.

The business focused on reducing layers and tnareasing spans of

cortrol, whilst cortinuing to invest in customer service and techniology
to enhance the quality and efficiency of the service we provide. We
have also listened to and acted upon customer feedback. We are dearly
seeing the impact of our investment into service with our divisional

NPS up 30 points year-on-year.

Ancther area of focus was the productivity of our engineers where we
have seen encouraging improvements in utilisation with a 7% increase in
productivity, a 3% (c.£3m) reduction in core subcontractor spend and a
subsequent increase in profitability. This increased preductmty has been
partiy driven by a 20% reduction in travel time which has in turn allowed
us to reduce the backlag in jobs by 20% and therefore provide a better
service to our customers. Additional year-on-year indirect cost reductions
induded a 12% (c.£2m) dearease in vehicle costs and a 4% (¢.£0.Im}
drop in staff travel expenses. We have created a data hub which

allows benchmarking, best practice and standardisation to enable

these improvements,

We also took steps to reduce complexity in our business, On the
customer front we actively focused on revenue quality by serwng our top
clients better. We made a decision to nc longer pursue smaller and less
profitable opportunities and to proactively exit low-margn contracts.
‘With regard to the supply chain, we reduced our supplier base by 25%
by migrating to fewer strategic pariners, enabling meaningful economies
of scale. There is further opportunity in these areas.
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Under Project Helox, we have now completed Phase | of the Engineenng
Services transformation. This inctuded the roll-aut of PDAs to our
engineers and related traming the intreduction of a dashboard enabling
better performance management of all organisational levels inchuding
engineers; and launching our Click pilot (automated engineer scheduling
and deployment tool). We also introduced incentive schemes for engineers
10 aim for first-ume-fix and greater efficiencies

The next phase of transformation for Engreering Serwces is grouped
under Project Forte and will include changes to the culture, processes and
technology underpinning the business. This will include the scheduling and
deployment system roll-out and a new case management and billing
application. The objective is to drwve further improvemets for our
customers and our staff by using technology to imprave productivity

and service delivery.

The programme will also include Group-wide initiatrves aimed at
organisational consolidation and further cost reductions by automating
manual and paper-based processes. Project Forte is expected to run
for approximately two years with associated cost of implementation
of c.£30m and estimated exit gross run-rate benefits of c.£30m by
March 2021, « )

in FY 18/19 Mitie Property Management's roofing and pairting businesses
were integrated :nto Engineering Services followmng the sale of the Social
Housing business in Novemnber 2018, Incorperating these two business
units into the ES projects business broadened the overall offering under
the projects umbrella and boosted cross-selling opportunities across Mitie.
It also allowed the sales teams 10 share leads and be proactve in capturing
opportunities with customers. Overall, this combination is starting to gain
traction in the market and is helping to make Mitie known as a one-stop
projects business,

From the start of FY 19/20 several business units of the current
Professional Servces dvision will be incorporated into an enlarged
Engineering Services division. These include Connected Workspace,
International Services, Occupier Services and Sustainability. The logic
behind the rmave is that these services are closely aligned to our largest
integrated accounts where engineering services are central to our offer.
‘We will therefore be able to improve and broaden our customer product
offering in a manner that more closely aligns with our customers’ needs,
To fadilitate these changes we have strengthened the Engineering Services
feadership team with senior appointments in mobile engineenng. strategic
accounts and critical infrastructure.

Engineering Services revenue comprises fixed contract work and variable
work. During the year we broadened the capability of cur commercial
team by setting up a new dedicated sales team focused on winring more
variable and project-based wark with our existing and potential clients.
The arder bock dedined 11.6% to £1.802.7m in the year as the unwinding
of existing contracts excaeded new wins and renewals underpinned by
more disciplined bidding.

‘We extended a number of contracts, induding a five-year contract
worth €17m with Gatwick Airport and a two-year extension with
Vodafone. We won new business as part of integrated FM contracts with
amajor UK retaiter; a major infrastructure company, Connect Group and
Yarkshire Building Society We alse won several single service contracts.
including a contract with construction firm Willmott Dixon 1o provide
mechanical and etectrical services for Bournemouth University.

‘We also enhanced our focus on the government sector enabling us to
qualify as a supplier of M&E services on the CCS Framework which offers
UK-wde facilies management opportunities across numerous pubhc
sector entities.



Financial performance

Revenue from continuing operations in the Engineering Services division
was up 2.2% 1o £305.7m (FY 17/18: £886.3rm), with growth in top accournts
and related project work offsetting the impact of contracts lost during
the prior year and a slower year in terms of contract wins. The top 50
Engineering Services contracts continued to deliver good growth in
both volumes and profitability on the back of project and variable work
volurnes with revenue growth of 8% and 70 basis points improvement
n gross profit margin. Our projects business, which indudes fire
protection, painting and rocfing, as well as project work within top
accounts, grew its revenue by 4% and saw operating profit margin
expansion of 80 basis points

Operating profit for continuing operations before other items increased
8.5% to £58.7m (FY {7118 £54.1m). This was due 10 a combination of
strong performance in cur largest accounts, exit from low-margin
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme, partly
offset by the impact of contracts lost in the prior year and incremental
irwvestments into improving service levels.

Outlook

As we deepen our relationships with our largest customers we are
increasingly seeing the demand for a broader service offering which
includes the use of predictive maintenance technology, improved facilities
performance management information and more energy efficiency from
assets and buildings. By combining several existing Mrtie businesses from
the Professional Services dwision into one enlarged Engineering Services
division, we will be able to meet these demands better, The market for
Engineenng Services remains fragmented but is still showing modest
growth. We are optimistic about our future performance as we broaden
our offering, particularty focusing on technology, and as we embark on a
transformation of the business through Project Forte that will improve
the customer experience whilst reducing our cost-to-serve.

Security

£m FY 18/19 FY 17718  Change, %
Revenue 5316.5 14320 242
Cperating profit before

other tems 30.7 275 1.6
Operating margm before

ather items, % 57 64 (07 ppt
Order book 2718 6408 516

Performance highlights

* Strong year with a good performance across all business
units together with 3 positive contribution from the acquistion
of V5G

Significant progress made in integrating VSG following its
acquisition in October 2018

Technalogy solutions playing a greater role in contributing to
the overall profit growth

Operational performance

Security enjoyed another strong year with a good performance across

all its major business units, together with a postve contribution from

the acquisition of V5G in October 2018. The largest part of our security
business 1s manned puarding where we saw good growth across all regions
as we continue to develop our presence in the retail, logistics and critical
security environment sectors,

The VSG acquisition strengthened the position of Mitie’s Security business
as one of the leading providers of integrated and risk-based security
services in the UK. The combination offers opportunities to accelerate
the growth of Mitie's premium systems and technology-erabled and
inteligence-led security solutions.

Significant progress has already been made in integrating V3G, afignung both
cperations and technology capabilities. We have consolidated operations
imo our new global security operations centre (GSOC), a single hub,
located in Northampton. It will serve as a centre for intelligence and
security industry experts with qutting-edge software tools to capture,
translate, geclocate and alert to any major global incidents. This will
become a hub for development of our intelligence cell and house our
interactive customer control centre where we undertake live CCTV
monitoring. In addrtion, we are employing mnaovative and unique methods
of collating actual incidents and crime reports overiaid with national cnme
statistics 10 dynamically risk-rate mdividual locations to drive the efficient
deployment of security resources for our customer sites.

Quwr industry-leading 24/7 communications and technology centre MiTec will
be retained as our primary alarm recerng centre (ARC) responsible for
defivering a wide range of remote services induding CCTV, intruder, fire,
access contrel and lone worker monitoring and dedicated dient helpdesks.
We are akso creating a secondary ARC location at cur Northampton
GSOC 10 provide MiTec with added resilence. We wall continue to focus
on the growth of our Fire & Security Systems business as one of the leading
prowiders of life safety solutions and innovative security systems in the UK.
Through the integration of V5G's systerns tearmn, we have expanded our
geographial footprint, ncreased cur techmcal expertise levels and
strengthened our operational model which is enabtling us to deliver
larger-scale projects and contracts for chents.

Mitie is a significant Front of House service prowder through our
Signature business. There are opportunities for growth, especially in
major city conurbations and in particular the premium and London-centric
corporaie market.
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Operating review continued

Mitie's employee vetting business. Procius, continues to hotd a strong
position in the awation ndustry whilst we are also seeing traction
within commercial sectors. The focus here is on developing further
technology-led solutions o automate, facilitate and speed up

vetung processes,

In Docurnent Management we continue to grow our customer

base, attracting high-end law firms and corporate diertts by offenng
technology-enabled document management and documenit processing
outsourdng among other services. Through recent wins, we are
expanding to include the delivery of aur services to dients’ regional offices.

The divisional NPS score improved by 1S points as we expand and
enhance our offer and embed rmore technology solutions in our
services. The secured order book before the impact from the V5G
acquisition was up by 19%, with the unwinding of contracts nnore than
offset by significant contract wins and successful retenders, We won a
three-year contract with a multinational retai group and extended a
contract with Springfields for a further three years. We also had a strong
for retaining clients, induding two contract extensions for travel
clients, Strathdyde Partnership for Transport (a further five years) and
Eurostar {for two years). We successfully extended a contract with Belffast
Gty Airport and won 2 high-profile contruct rom the CCS Framework.
The total secured order book benefited from the acquisition of VSG and
grew overall by 51.6% to £971.5m.

Financial performance

The Securty division delivered a strong financial performance, with
goodorgankgrowwtogeﬂ\erwiﬂ\aposiﬁvecowbmbnfmmme
VSG acquistion, Organic revenue grew by 5.8%, and overall revenue,
including VSG. grew 24.2% to £536.5m (FY 17/18: £432.0rm). Manned
guarding, technology solutions induding vetting services, and Document
Management all delivered good growth following new sales wins

and higher volumes of project and variable work. Front of House
perforrnance was impacted by loss of key contracts inthe prior year,

Operating profit before other iterns increased 11.6% to £30.7m
(FY 17/18: £27.5m) driven by contract wins and operational efficiency
inrtiatives as well as a positive contribution from V5G's performance.

V3G enjoyed a very encouraging start under Mitie's ownership. After taking
over a business which was trading at close to break-even, we are seeing a
faster improvernent i margins than orginally planned at the intial integration
stage, VSG's gross mangin increased from 5% pre-takeover to 8% over its
first trading period under Mitie's ownership.

Technology-selutions are increasingly contributing to the overall revenue
growth of the division and now account for 13% (FY 17/18: 12%) of the
revenue {excluding VSG), driven by growth in Frre & Security Systems,
MiTec and vetting, MiTec is benefiting from the Detention & Escorting
Services contract, won by the Care & Custody division in December 2017,
whille vetting s moving into the corporate space on top of its strong
position in aviation.

The division finished the year with good momentum following successful
contract wins towards the end of FY' 18/19.

Outlook

The overall security market remains fragmented and manned guarding
rernains competitive and highly commoditised. In this context, Mitie's
ability to provide a broader range of services gives a competitive
advantage when bidding for and winning business. Retention is then
enhanced through appiication of technology. We will continue o derive
benefits from the VSG acquisttion where the performance of major
contracts will continue to benefit from ongoing price renegotiations,
reducing revenue leakage, walking away from substandard arrangements
and re-abgning the cost base.
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Professional

Services

&m FYi80%  EY17N8  Change.%
Revenue 1314 1312 0.2
Operating profit before

other items 56 546 o0
Operating morgin before

other items, % 43 43 00 ppt
Order book 869 1449 (40.0)
Performance highlights

» Divisional revenue performance was impacted by the ext
from two loss-making international contracts and renewed
focus on internal projects 1o support Mitie key accounts
The Waste Management business retained two significant
contracts and won the first phase of a sigmficant contract
with NHS improvernent

Sustainability delivered a stable performance for the year

The International business focused on re-balancing its
portiolio towards higher-margin work

Operational performance

Whilst the Professional Services division showed a izt trading performance
year-on-year. it recorded a high-profite win with NHS Improvement for
Waste Management and it repositioned several of the other operating
units to focus on driving overall Mitie performance by supporting key
accounts. The benefits of these activties fakl autside the division.

The Waste Managernent business retained two significant contracts during
the year with a pharmaceuticats comparny and the UK branch of a global
consumer goods company, both for 2 further two years. Contract wins
during FYY 182 included Bidfood, a commerciat real estate services
corpany and the first phase of a significant contract with NHS
Impravement, won from the CCS Framework, which was maobiised

in October 2018,

The Sustainability business, inchuding Energy. had a slow start to the

year but gained momenturn on the back of project work. The Water
business was fully integrated during the year into the Sustainability business,
which now encompasses all key utiiities, enabling it 1o build a broader
proposition for our customers.

The International business focused on re-balancing its portiolio towards
higher-margin work and, as a consequence, we proactively exited two
loss-making international contracts, At the same time, Mitie secured a
facilities managernent and property services contract with Ahlsell - a
hardware retailer - to rmanage and maintain all #s stores in Norway.
The order book dedined 40% as contract wins and renewals only partly
offset the delivery of contracts.

Financial performance

Professional Services, excluding the International business, delivered
revenue growth in FY 18/19. However, the overall divisional performance
was impacted by the reduction in revenue as we exited loss-making
contracts in the International business. Overall revenue for the division
was flat at £1314m (FY 17718 £131.2m), Waste grew strongly by 14%,
induding the new NHS Improvement contract. Sustanability delivered

a stable performance for the yean

At the operating profit level, we benefited from exiting the loss-making
international contracts, good cost disciphne across the division and
re-balanding our actwvities to target higher-margn work, Profitability
was partly held back by a renewed focus on projects to support key
Mitie strategic accounts and investments into Connected Workspace.
Operating profit before other tems was £5,6m (FY 17A8: £5.6m),



Qutlook

Our Connected Workspace solutions are increasingly being focused

on monitoring the critical ervironments of our largest clients, where

we provide maintenance and engineering sohutions. Given the close iink
between the dient solutions required within our Engineering business,
and several elements of the Professional Services division, we are
embedding Connected Workspace, Ocoupier Services, International

and Sustanabilty under Engineering Services from April 2019. We see
this as an opportunity to enhance and Improve our core engineering
offering by using technology to monitor critical assets, thereby allowing

us to deliver a proactive service. We also see the opportunity to improve
the quality of information that customers receive to manage their facilities
and their assets.

As part of these changes, Waste Management is moving to Cleaning &
Ervironmental Services, and Risk Advisory Services is transferring into
the Securrty division.

Cleaning &

Environmental

Services

Im FY 18/1% FY 1718 Change %
Revenue 404.4 384.1 53
Operating profit before

ather items 17.5 196 (a7
Operating margin before

other iterns, % 43 51 (08)ppe
Order book 663.1 6563 10

Performance highlights

* The dwision delivered good revenue growthina
highly-competitive market environment; however, profits
were negatively impacted by the dilutive effect of contracts
won in prior years

Cn 30 September 2018, we sold the Mitie Pest Control
business unit to Rentokil Initial plc and entered into a
preferred supplier partnerstup covering a range of services

Operational performance

On 30 September 2018, we sold the Mrbe Pest Control business unit
to Rentokil Initial ple and entered into a preferred supplier partnership
covering a range of services, These services will be provided as part

of an integrated facilities management offering to Mitie's wide range of
customers. The transaction enables us to continue to provide specialist
services to our dients whilst focusing on our core competencies.

Cleaning & Environmental Services (CES) delfivered good revenue growth
from continuing operations in a highly-competitive market environment
where outsourang remains a compeliing option for clients. Margins stil
remain low. However, the dwision was negatively impacted by historical
contracts with low margin. Offsetiing this were cost savings arsing from
various delayering exercises to rernove managerial roles

In addition to our core Cleaning business, there are two significant
stand-alone business units wrthin the CES divison. Our Landscape

business 15 a specialist service where we enjoy a balanced mix of fixed

and pay-as-you-g0 work throughout the year. This ensures a broadly stable
performance with further upside during harsh winters. Mitie Healthcare
provides a mult-service offering looking after a broad portfolio of NHS
clients and has recently introduced a range of technology features to its
offer, including dynarmic performance dashboards, electronic meal ordering
and the trialling of an intefligent autornated portering system.

The dvsion was successful i retaining a number of large chents as well
as winning new clients partly as a consequence of a much improved NPS
score, up 26 points year-on-year. The CES order book for continuing
operations was up 1% to £663.1m. We extended our services with
Epsom & St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust for deaning and with
Whitbread for landscaping, We also won a five-year landscaping contract
with NHS/South Western Ambulance. Towards the end of FY 18/19, the
division was successful in securing an extension to its 10-year partnership
with St George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust unti 2030,
which is worth £150m and covers a range of services including cleaning.
patient catering and fadilities helpdesk services: the extension will also
indude waste management duties at one of the sites. At the same time,
we have also taken steps to reduce the margin drag of new contracts by
imtroducing tghter bidding discipline. As a consequence, growth in the near
term will be slower.

Financial performance

CES revenues for continuing aperations grew by 53% to £404.4m
{FY 17/18: £384.1m) driven by the impact of prior year contract wins.
However, operating profit for continuing operations before other rems
was down 107% to £17.5m (FY 17/18: £19.6m) due to unfavourable
contract mix versus last year, only partly offset by savings from Project
Helix. Within the division, Healthcare grew strongly on the back of
the prior year wins, however, first-year mobilisabon factors impacted
profitability; this has now been addressed. Landscapes delivered a
strong performance despite a particularly mild winter, with operating
profit protected by a well-balanced portfolio of work, which hedges
pay-as-you-go with fixed-price contracts.

Outlook

QOwver the next couple of years we expect steady growth in our Healthcare
and Landscapes businesses. Cleaning is not expected to grow as we work
on improving mangins through disciplined bidding and re-balancing of the
contract base.
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Operating review continued

Care &
Custody

£m FY 1819 FY(#18 _ Change.%
Revenue 1073 589 794

Operating profit before

other ftemns 39 19 105.3

Qperuting margin before

other items, % X 32 04 ppt
Order book 596.6 6701 (L)
Performance highlights

+ Excellent year following the successful mabihsation and
commencement of operations for the Detention & Escorting
Services (D&E) Home Office contract and a strong delivery
from existing contracts

The division conlnues to expand its offering as it diversifies
imo adjacent areas to complement its core capabilities

Operational performance

The Care & Custody division had an excellent year, having almaost
doubled in size on the back of the successful mobifisation and
commencement of operations for the seeable D&E contract won in
December 2017. in addition, the division benefited from strong delivery
of existing contracts with pofice forces, custody support and Ferensic
Medkal Examiner (FME) services. The D&E contract, the largest ever
contract for the division, reinfarces our role as the largest suppler of
immigration detention services to the UK Government.

H is also allowing us 1o expand and gain expertise in areas adjacent to

the core immigration detention and movement services. During the y=ar,
we wort an electronic tagging of offenders contract in Northern Ireland.
This opportunty is an ertry point into electronic monitoring within the
crnminal justice system in cther parts of the UK, where we are able to
leverage Mitie Seaurity's MiTec facility. Other wins included the
Nottinghamshire FME services contract.

The arder book declined 11% to £596.6m as the unwinding of long-term
contracts was only partially offset by contract wins and renewals,

Following an announcement in November 2018 the Home Office
unexpectedly dosed Campsfield IRC, which was managed by Mite.
The contract expiced in early 2019.

Financial performance

Care & Custody’s revenues grew by 79.1% to £107.3m (FY 17/18: £599m}
following the win and successful mobilisation of the D&E contract and
good growth from existing contracts. Cperating profit before other items
increased by 105.3% to £39m (FY 1748; £1.9m) drven by performance of
the D&E contract and other contracts won in the prior year and includes
the expensing of 4 net £3.3m of mabilisation costs for the D&E contract.
Arnounts related to these mobilisation activities were paid by the customer
and will be released from deferred income over the term of the contract,

Outlook

As the division grows its core competendes and expands into adjacent
services, the pipeline has expanded tc include large apportunities such as
the latest cyde of Prisoner Escort and Court Services contracts {PECS4).
These are long-term cyclical opportunities with lengthy bidding lead times.
Qur dierts are UK Government departments which are increasingly
evaluating bids against surety of delvery, sustainability and quality of
outcomes, all of which play well to Care & Custody’s proposition. In a
competitive market place, Care & Custody is well positioned to win
contracts because we are growing in scale, enjoy a sobid reputation with
our public sector commissioners and dients, and continue to expand our
offering as we diversify nto adjacent areas (such as custodial movemnents)
10 complernent our core capabiities.
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Catering

m Fy 18719 FY 17/18  Change %
Reverue 136.4 1371 ©n
Operating profit before

other items 52 56 ()]
Operating margin before

other items. % 33 4.1 (0.3 ppt
Order book 265 347 (216

Performance highlights
« The division delivered broadly flat performance at the
revenue level and a decline at the operating profit level

+ Growth in Gather & Gather was offset by weaker results
in external events and venues through Creativevents

* Gather & Gather's differentiated wellbeing and sustainability-
focused offer continues to gain traction in the market

Operational performance

Our Gather & Gather brand s a niche player in the catering sector

with a well-articulated and differentiated offer which continues to gain
traction. During FY' 18/19, we saw further increases in the adogption of
our welibeinged food congepts and consumer technology solutions.
We also launched The Gathered Table —a unique collabaration between
culinary, technology and sustainability experts to hélp fuel the continued
development of Gather & Gather's innovative offer. The Gathered Table
delivers pop-ups, menu content, training and diient appearances to amplify
Gather & Gather's influence on the health, productivity and engagement
of the customers we serve every day.

Ouring the year, Gather & Gather also qualified onto the London
University Purchasing Consortium (LUPC), the largest higher education
purchasing consortium in the UK. As a consequence, we won a significant
£10m 3+2-year contract with Edinburgh College — our first on the
framework and our first in the further and higher education sector.

This provides an opportunity to transform the catering experience

for students and staff by bringing a contemporary approach to focd,
service and consumer technology.



Gather & Gather also secured other significant new wins in the year,
including Dropbox. We were also successful in securing the opportunity to
roll out a new café concept across some of Primark’s UK and Ireland retail
estate. The division also won work for Yorkshire Bulding Sccety and a
major UK retaller as part of new or expanded integrated FM contracts

The secured order book for the division decined 23.6% to £26.5m.
The secured order book only indudes fixed contract work, while ¢ 6%
of the dwvisional revenue in FY 18/19 came from point-of-sale contracts
and vanable work.

Financial performance

In FY 18/19, the Catering division delivered broadly flat revenue at
£136.1m (FY 17/18: £137.1m) with improved momentum in H2 largely
offsetting the cortraction n HI, The core Gather & Gather workplace
offering grew revenue and operating profit whilst the overall divisional
performance was held back by weaker results in external events and
venwes through Creativevents. Against an inflationary backdrop, gross
profit was stable as we partally mutigated food price inflabion, reduced
the use of consumables and disposables — reducing the overall cost to

the business and improving our environmental footprint — and improved
labour management discipline. Overall, operating profit before other items
declined by 7.1% to £5.2m (FY 17118, £5.6m) due to weaker performance
in Creativevents,

Outlook

Whilst the catering sector remains under pressure from food pnce

and labour inflation, the market offers opportunity for a well-respected
brand such as Gather & Gather. Clients increasingly seek to enhance their
catering facilities as key contributors to their talent attraction and retention
strategies, by mproving the custormer expenence, improving wellbeing and
increasing sustairability, Gather & Gather has continued to demonstrate its
ability to anticipate and satisfy these demands as the industry changes.

In this context, we expect a good year from Catering in FY 19/20 onthe
back of the anmualisation of significant recent wins with 90% of revenue
already secured. The Gather & Gather brand continues to offer a
distinctive quality aternatrve to the large corporate caterers who
dominate the mass market.

Corporate overheads

Corporate overheads represent the costs of running the Group function
and include costs for the commaerdal, financial, marketing, legal and HR
teamns. Corporate overheads have increased as we continue to invest

in the foundations to deliver: 'The Exceptional, Every Day", leadership

in the Connected Workspace; and accelerated growth. We also
reinstated certain staff incentive schemes in FY 18/19 after suspending
them for two years during the early stages of the Mitie turnaround.

The mam investments were into our commercial capability, upweighting
our marketing, and strengthening our technology underpin, Corporate
overheads increased by 74% to £334m (FY |7/18. £31.1m).

Public sector

Given the significant opportunities available in the public sector. we
have recently set up a new public sector centre of excellence. This team
will be responsible for assisting in any public sector work across Mitie
as well as owning the overall relationshup with the UK Government.
During the year, we qualified as a suppler on Phase | of the Crown
Commercal Service (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework, which will
allow departments, as well as Phase Il. which will allow us to bid for
defence facilities management as well as for security services and
technical security contracts. Qualification as a supplier on the CC5
Framework has added large opportuniies to our pipeline. We have
established a new public sector sales team who will coordinate bids
from across the divisions into these key public sector accounts.

Discontinued operations

Below are the resutts of discontinued operations up to the date of disposal.

Pest Control

£m FY 18/19 FY |7/|18  Change, %
Revenue 1L.9 223 nm
Operating profit before

other items 2.4 26 nm
Operating morgin before

other temns, % 20.2 1.7 85 ppt

On 30 September 2018, Mitie completed the sale of the entire issued
share caprtal of Mitie Pest Control Limited to Rentokil Initial ple.

Mrtie separately entered into a preferred supplier partnership with
Rertokd initial plc, covering a range of services (including pest services)
to be provided as part of integrated facilities management offerings to
Mitie's wide range of customers,

Pest Control reported revenues of £11 9m (FY (7/18: £22.3m) and
its operating profit before other items was £2.4m (FY 17/18: £2.6m).
Pest Control was previously part of the Cleaning & Environmental
Services division.

Social Housing

£m FY 18119 FY 1718  Change. %
Revenue 89.1 1508 nm
Operating profit before

other tems 1.6 s nm
Operating margin before

other items, % 1.8 25 07 ppt

In November 2018, the Group sold the Sacial Housing business to
Mears Group plc. The Social Housing business was prewviously part

of the Property Management division, together with the roofing and
painting business units, which have been integrated into the Engineering
Services dwvision.

The consideration comprised an intial payment of £22.5m, which was
paid in cash at completion. No fair value was recognised on the further
contingent consideration of up to £12 5m, payable in cash after two
years post cornpletion which 15 subject to the achievement of certain
performance milestones. The Group has retained habilrties for a number
of legacy contracts in the Sociat Housing business

In FY 18/19 the Sodial Housing business reported revenues of £8%9.1m
(FY 17/18 £150.8m) and operating profit before other rtems of £1.6m
{FY 17/18: £3.8m).
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Finance review

Finance review

Whilst we have accomplished a great deal during this second year of
our transformation, there remains more to do as we continue our
journey towards a One Mitie way of delivering our products and
services. Following the centralisation of our core support functions last
year, the majority of the transactional activity for IT and Finance is now
being undertaken offshore by global process experts and we have
introduced new systems across the business, including recruitment
platforms for temporary and permanent staff

Our revenues and profits are growing, both at a headline level, and
also on an organic basis excluding the impact of M&A. We have started
to focus our businass through the acquistion of VSG by our Security
divsion and the sale of cur Pest Control and Social Housing businesses.

We have again made progress in reducing our leverage and
strengthening our balance sheet with further reductions in off-balance
sheet finance, improved supplier payment performance and proceeds
from Qur disposals programme, Going forward, we expect to cominue
to reduce leverage.

Following the transfer of our finance transactional processing to Genpact
(2 business process outsourcing provider, operating out of Kolkata, indha)
n April 2018 we have now intiated a broader finance moderrusation
programme. The initial Genpact move entailed a lift-and-shift approach
which caused issues in the first few months due to the multiplicity of
processes used across Mrie. These ssues have now been largely
resolved and we have turned our attention to ongomg improvement

in the function through our finance modernisation programme. This 1s
focused on finance process simplification and standardisation, cleansing
our master data and upgradmg finance systems and tools across the
business with a view to paying our suppliers quicker, reducing our
processing costs through automation and further accelerating our
order-to-cash cycle.
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We are continuing to
simplify our business and
de-lever our balance sheet.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit from continuing

operations are set out below:

m FY 18719 FY 17/18  Change, %
Revenue 22214 20306 94
Operating profit before other tems 88.2 832 6.0
Other items (38.0) (82.1) nm
Operating profit 50.2 Ll nm

reverwe {rom continuing operations was €2,221 4m compared
with £2,030.6m in FY17/18, The Group reported an operating profit
before other items from continuing operations of £88.2m (FY 17/18.

£83.2m).

Reported balance sheet

£m FY 18/1% FY 17118  Change. £m
Goodwilf and intangble assets 3445 3479 (34)
Property, plant and equipment 29.0 3346 (4.6)
Workang caprtal balances Q2169)  (192) (187)
Net debt (140.7) {1935 528
Retirement benefit kabikities (63.8) (568) (7.0}
Deferred tax 358 359 .1
COther net (labilities)/assets ©.3) 71 )
Total net Nabilities (12.4) 240) 118

The Group is reporting net labilities at 31 March 2019 of £12.4m

(FY 17/18; £24.0m). with an improvement in net debt, offset by a
larger negative working caprtal balance and an increase in retirement,
benefit liabilities.



New accounting standards

The Group adopted IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ in F'Y 17/18, as previously described in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2018,

IFRS ¢

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments’ became effective for the Group

starting | April 2018 and replaced the requirements of IAS 39

‘Financial instruments recognition and measurement’. The main changes
introduced by the new standard are new dassification and measurement
requiremnents for certain financial assets, a new Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the
hedge accounting medel, and amendments to disclosures. The Group
elected, from | April 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting
guidance in JAS 39

With respect 1o loss allowances for trade recevables, IFRS 9 replaced
the ‘incurred loss’ model in 1AS 39 with an ECL model. The Group.
from | April 2018, measures loss aliowances for trade receivables and
accrued income at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit kosses
using both quantitative and qualitative information and anatyus based
on the Group's historical experience and forward-looking information.
The Group has determined that the transition to IFRS 2 resutted in an
additional loss allowance for trade receivables and acoued income as
at | April 2018 of £2.5m and gave rise to a tax credit of £04m. The
additional loss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to operung
retained earrings at | April 2018 and therefore, the prior year
comparative information s not restated.

Future accounting standards - IFRS 16

IFRS 15 ‘Leases’ became effective for the Group from | April 2019

and replaces the requirernent of IAS 17 ‘Leases’. An asset representing
the Group's right as a lessee to use a leased itern, and a liability for
future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited
exemptions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs
of leases will be recognised in the consolidated income statement split
between depredation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the
lease liability. This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under
IAS 17, but substantrvely different to the accounting for operating leases
{under which no lease asset or lease liability was recognised, and rentals
payable were charged to the consolidated income statementon a
straight-line basis).

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March
2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between
nitand £3m, Operating profit is expected to ncrease by between
£24m and £29m as the operating lease rentals payable which were
previcusly induded in operating profit are excuded, with this increase
being offset by additional depreciation of between £22m and £24m as the
right-of-use assets are depreciated. In addition, cperating cash flows are
expected to increase by between £24m and £29m as repayment of the
lease Habilities is redassified as cash used in financing activities and net
debt will increase by between £8lm and £86m.

Alternative Performance Measures (APM)

The Group presents rts key financial analysis as the resulis of continuing
operations before other items as the Directors believe this is most
useful for users of the financial staterents in helping to provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on. the Group's finanaal
performance Accordingly, the Group separately reports the
impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes,
acquisition and disposal costs (induding the write-off and amortisation
of acquisition related intangible assets) as ‘other items’. Read more on
pages 163 to 165.

Divisional breakdown of financial performance

Reverwe, £m FY 1819 FY 1718 Change, %
Engineering Services 905.7 8863 22
Security 5345 4320 242
Professional Services 131.4 312 02
Cleaning & Environmental Services 404.4 384.01 53
Care & Custody 107.3 599 7ol
Catering 136.1 137.1 ©.7)
Total 2,221.4 20306 94

The Group's revenue increased in the year, from £2,030.6m to

£2,221 4m. This was principally due to a significant contract win in

Care & Custody. the acquisition of VSG in Security and good underlying
growth in our Engineering Services strategic accounts and in Security
and Cleaning. Organic revenue growth was 5.5%.

Operating profit before other items. £m FY 18/1% FY 1718 Change, %

Engineering Services 58.7 54.1 a5
Security 30.7 25 ti6
Professional Services 5.6 546 00
Cleaning & Environmental Services 175 196 (10.7)
Care & Custody 39 19 1053
Catering 52 56 1)
Corporate centre (334) @Eun 74
Total 88.2 832 60

Operating profit before other iterns ncreased by 6.0% in the year from
£83.2m to £88.2m, reflecting good growth n strategic accounts and
projects in Engineering. the significant contract wan in Care & Custody.
strong underlying growth in Security in addition to the impact of the
acqusition of VSG, partly offset by ongoing investment in customer
service and the reinstatemant of staff incentives.

Other items

&m FY 18H% FY 17/18
Restructure costs {15.1) {47.0)
Acquisition and disposal related costs {6.7) 84
Gain on bargain purchase of VSG 8.8 -
Penston scheme Section 75 debt {20.0) -
Imparrment of goodwall - 27
Other @0 40
Total other items before tax {38.0) B21}
Tax credit on other items 74 100
Other items after tax (30.8) 21}

Disappointingly, other nems before tax remain high at a charge of
£38.0m, albeit significantly lower than last year (FY 17/18: £82.1m).
The main components are restructure costs and a provision for the
Section 75 debt on the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK)
Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). The tax credit on
these other items was £74m (FY 17/18: £10.0m).

Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect taxes to ensure that it
pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst respecting
the applicable tax legislation. where appropnate utiising any legslative
reiiefs available. The strategy is reviewed regularly and 1s endorsed by
the Board.
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Finance review continued

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £529.3m in the year ended 31 March 2019 {FY 17/18: £481.2m).
This comprised £534.3m (FY 17/18: £492.8m} of indirect taxes including
business rates, VAT and payrcll taxes paid and collected less a £4.7m

{FY 17/18: £11.6m) refund of UK corporation tax. The tax refund was
due 10 the utilisation of kosses resulting from the accounting adjustments
in earher years' accounts. As Mitie’s business is primarily based in the UK,
the effective tax rate should track the UK statutory tax rate.

There was a tax charge of £6.4m (FY 17/18. £1.1m) on the profit before
tax of £364m {FY 17/i8. loss before tax £15.4m).

Discontinued operations

During the year, Mitie sold its Soaal Housing business to Mears Group plc,

with the sale completing on 30 November 2018, As a result, the business
is classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019. This
business formed part of the Property Management dision. Following
this sale, the roofing and painting businesses of the former Property
Management division were integrated into the projects business of
Engineering Services.

In addition, Mite disposed of its Pest Corttrol business (previousty
included in the Cleaning & Environmental Services division) to Rentokil
Intial plc, with the sale completing on 30 September 2018. This s also
coensequently classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019.

Discontinued operations contributed a profit after tax before other
items of £3.1m (FY 17A8: £5.6m). Other termns before tax were a charge
of £6.0m (FY 17/18: £i5.8m) and included a gain on disposal of Pest
Control of £27.6m, a loss on disposal of the Social Housing business of
£1).7m and a £20.5m charge for various remediation and rectification
liabilities associated with the Social Housing business. The tax credit on
cther items was £3.8m (FY 17/18: €0.7m).

Dividends

The full-year dividend is 4.0p per share (FY 17/18: 40p per share).
comprising an interim dondend of 1.33p per share and a final dividend
recommended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets of £344.5m (FY 17/18: £3479m) were
held on the balance sheet at 3| March 2019. The small reduction can
be explained by a reduction in poodwill due to disposals of the Social
Housing and Pest Control businesses during the year, largely offset by
an increase in intangible assets from the recognition of a customer
relationships intangible asset on the acquisition of VSG and additional
internaily generated intangible assets from software development to
enharce customer experience.

Cash flow

The Group continued te strengthen its balance sheet during the year,
assisted by two business disposals. LHilisation of non-recourse invoice
discounting was reduced slightly duning the year, while supplier payment
performance was improved, :

Overall operating cash inflow, before movemnents in working caprtal
was £32.5m (FY 17/18: £67.2m). This ncludes defined benefit pension
contributions of £11.6m (FY 17/18: £4.7m). Cash generated from
operations during the year was €47.5m (FY 17/18: £79m used in
operations) including a working capital inflow of £8.0m (FY 17/18-
outflow of £75.1m). The working capital movement is explained in
more detail below.

24 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

After paying interest of £124m (FY ¥7/18: £i3.5m) and receiving
corporation tax refunds of £4.7m (FY 17/18: £11.6m), net cash inflow
from operatng activities was £39.8m (FY |7/18: outflow of £9.8m).
Capital expenditure reduced by £1.5m compared to the prior year to
£23.3m (FY 17/18; £24.8m), while the business generated £43.5m from
the proceeds of disposals net of acquisttions. Dividends of £144m were
paid in the year (FY |7/18: £4.8m).

Overall this resutted in a reduchion of the Group's net detn of £52.8m
(FY 17/18: £46.3m increase) 10 £140.7m (FY 17/18: £193.5m).

Working capital

Working capital movements resulted in an inflow for the year of £8.0m.
The complex process of autsourcing transactional processing activities
n April 2018 caysed trade and other receivable balances to increase.,
resulting in a working capital outflow of £34.0m in the first half. The
situation has now been addressed. Working capital reduced by £42.0m
in the second half of the year.

Whilst the Group has been focused on improving its working capital
cycle it has alse considered its responsibifities to the supply chan by being
fair in respect of payment performance. Supplier paymeril terms were
reduced by eight days over the full year, with the improvement taking
place skewed to the second half. This was partially achieved by unilaterally
reducing payment terms for a number of our suppliers meaning that they
have now reduced their need for supply chain finance. Consequently, the
use of the supply chain finance facility reduced by £25.1m. The working
capital outflow associated with this reduction in payment terms was
offset by an increase in provisions of £25.5m. These provisions
predorminantly relate to the now disposed Social Housing business.

Along with other ME&A related working capital balances, they are
expected to result in a cash outflow of ¢. £40m over the next two years.

The Group also marginally reduced its utilisation of non-recourse
austorner invoice discounting by £3.lm to £73.2m (FY 17/18: £76.3my).
The invoice discounting facilities are non-recourse and are therefore
netted off aganst trade and other receivables within the balance sheet.

Net debt

Net debt s the aggregation of the Group’s borrowings net of cash

in hand. The Group's net debt reduced by £52.8m to £140.7m as at

31 March 2019 (FY 17/18; £193.5m). After a poor start to the year
following the outsourding of finance transactional processing,

Q4 showed positive pragress on our journey to reduce the volatility

of working capital. Average daily net debt in Q4 was £3Im lower than
the same period last year with average daily borrowings of £278m

(Q4 17/18: £309m). This improved position was largely achieved through
a combination of business disposal proceeds and mproved customer
cash collection performance, at the same time as paying our suppliers
more quickly, The net debt position benefited from disposal proceeds,
net of acquisitions and acquisition and disposal related costs, of £405m.

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2019. the Group had £466.5m of committed funding
arrangements {(FY [7/18; £466.5m). The £275m multi-currency Revolving
Credt Facility (RCF) matures in July 2021. The £191.5m of US Private
Placement notes are spread over three maturities: December 2019
£40.0m; December 2022 £121.5m; and Decernber 2024 £30.0m.

Mrtie's two key covenant ratios are leverage (ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA to be no move than 3 times) and interest cover
(ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance costs to be ro less than

4 times). As at 31 March 2019, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.33x for leverage and B.8x for interest cover.



The principal financial covenant ratios (leverage and interest cover)

for our committed funding arrangements are tested every six months.
Following an amendment agreed on 29 March 2019, all future covenant
cakulations will be on an IFRS 15 basis. The covenants continue to
exclude the future wmpact of IFRS lé.

As 15 usual for corporate facilities, the definition of key metrics in Mitie's
finance agreements is somewhat different to its reported numbers and
this is outlined in the 1able below. This table shows that Mitie remains
comfortably within its covenant requirements. In this instance, the prior
year comparatives are not prowded, a5 while Mrtie had adopted IFRS 15
in FY 17/18, its covenant reporting at that time remained on a pre-IFRS
15 basis, making comparison unhelpful. .

m FY 18/19
Operating profit before other items

- continuing operations 882

- discomtinued operations 40
Total 92.2
Add: depreciation & amorusation 208
Headline EBITDA 1130
Deduct: covenant adjustments . @n
Consolidated EBITDA {a) 105.9
Futl-year effect of acquisitions & disposals (23)
Adjusted consolidated EBITDA ®) 103.6
Net finance costs 138
Less: covenant adjustments (1.7
Ceonsolidated net finance costs (<) (4]
Interest cover {ratio of (a) to {¢)
must exceed 4.0x) 8.8x
Net debt 1407
Impact of hedge accounting & upfront fees [£1)]
Consolidated total net borrowings (d) 131.7
Leverage (ratio of (¢) to (b} must
not exceed 3.0x) 1.33x

Mrtie’s intention is to consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. In addrtion to its committed funding,
the Group utilises ancillary facilities, including invoice discounting of
£732m (FY |718; £76.3m). The Group's trade creditors include
armounts due to UK suppliers which make use of supply chan finance
arranged by Mitie of £200m (FY 17/18: £45.1m),

Retirement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension liability at 31 March 2019 for the Mitie
Group scheme was £61.4m (FY 17/18: £54.8m). The increase in the
deficit is principally due to a 20bps decrease in the discount rate driven
by reductions in corporate bond rates since 31 March 2018, The latest
valuation of the Mitie Group scheme as at 31 March 2017, indicated an
actuarial deficit of £74.0m (31 March 2014: £6.0m), largely due to a fall in
discount rates since 2014. The Group has agreed a deficit recovery plan
with the Trustee for further payments totalling £64.8m in instalments.
until 31 March 2025.

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined benefit
pension schemes under Admitted Body arrangements as well as to other
arrangernents in respect of certain employees who have transferred

to the Group under TUPE. As at 31 March 2019, Mitie's net defined
pension liability in respect of these schemes, which it s committed to
funding, amounted to £2.4m (FY 17/18: £2.0m).

in addition, the Group also participates in four industry multi-employer
defined benefit pension schemes, including the Plumbing Scheme.
These schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes,
either because the assets and kabilities cannot be apportioned among
employers or the amounts involved are not significant. Contributions to
these schemes for FY 19720 are expected to be approximately £0./m.
The Group is exposed to Section 75 employer debts in respect of two
of these schemes. These liabilities crystallise when the Group ceases

1o have any active employees in the schemes. In the last few months,
the Group received a Section 75 demand in respect of the Plumbing
Scheme for £20.0m. This has been provided for in full.

Paul Woolf
Chuef Financial Officer
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Stakeholder engagement

Building constructive
relationships

Building constructive relationships
with our key stakeholders is
critical to our business. We are
focused on long-term success
and creating sustainable value

in the broadest sense.

Links to policies

Business areas considered to have the highest
risk of bribery and corrupticn are public
procuremerit, gifts and hospitality, overseas
aperations and oversight of subcontractors.
The risk is managed by several policies and
training courses which are available to
employees through the process repository
{BMS) and our new HR online Learning Hub.

Tha policies include:

* One code (code of conduct);
* Ethical business practice policy,

* Business expenses &
entertaining procedure; -

* Modern slavery;
* Whistleblowing process; and

* Anti-bribery and
anti-corruption
e-learning module,
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Customers

Mitie works with private and public sector (the UK
Government} clients. Through understanding our
customers' needs we can offer value-added,
innovative and cost effective solutions and

bulld enduring relationships.

OO ®

Shareholders, banks,
noteholders and media

We proactively engage with shareholders, banks,
noteholders and journalists on an ongoing basis.

SISIOL0)

Employees

Mitie currently employs 52,500 employees.
Qur success is underpinned by the way
we lead and engage with our people.

DO

Communities
and environment

Our employees touch the lives
of others every day.

@
Suppliers

We work closely with our suppliers
to ensure a responsible supply chain.

©®




Our strategic pillars

Customer: buitd market-leading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work'
for aur employees

Cost: strengehen our balance sheet and
maintain cost discipline to remain competitive

Technology: embed technology into the heart
of our offering
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* Ongoing management of customer relationships « Customer satisfaction; = 8% revenue growth from top accounts
by senior leadership; * Financal positon; in FY 18/19,
* Government is a regulator and often a customer * Reputation and brand; « Customer retention improved to 64%,
for Mitie. so engagement ensures Mitie can help * Performance and eflicency; * 250 customers surveyed in the NPS "
n shaping new polioes, regulations and standards; * Quality and value for money; survey. &
* NPS programme:; « Technology, research and innovation; = NPS improved 22 pointsto +12; and E
» Customer experience programmes; + Sustanability performance: » feedback from unsuccessful contract bwds g
+ Partiapation in industry forums and events, « Gowernance and transparency; is analysed to improve our win rates. S
+ Customer communications: = Vision and values:
* Website and social media platforms; and * Soaal values; and
+ Meetngs and briefings. + People and cutture.
* Annual Report and Accounts; * Finandal performance; * Bi-annwal roadshows:
* Annual General Meeting + Transformation and Project Helox: = Corporate governance and Environment.
* lnvestor and News & Insights sections of the corporate + Governance and transparency, Social and Governance (ESG)-focused
website Mitie.com; * Sustainability performance; meetings with institutonal investors;
+ Results presertations and post-resutts roadshows; + People and cutture; » CEC and divisionat Managing
+ Stock exchange announcements and press releases; « Contracts, new products, Drrectors regubarly give mterviews to
+ Website and social media platforms; and technology: innovatian; and anunﬂ:g:rofpgb!iczbr;n:df ‘) 2
. i i i i . i « Operating profit im rom £1.Im g
Regular and ad hoc enquiries, calls, meetings and interviews. Reputational impact. inFYI?IlSp’t:t’_SO.gminFY 1819 and g
= Total dividend of 4.0p for FY 18/19 §
* HR core standards set the framework for * Health, safety and ervironment « Allinury frequency rate %
emplayee engagement, performance; decreased 135%: S
+ Onboarding and induction training and Learning Hub; + Reputation; * Employee engagement increased to &
+ Annual employee engagement survey; * Empioyee development: 45% from 33%in FY 17/18;
* "You Said, We Did" campaign; * Talent pipeline and retertion; * Supporting women in STEM rofes;
« MiNet, internal communications and social media platforms; + Career opportunies; = Mitie Exceptionals is a group of volurtesrs
+ Townhall meetings and annual roadshow by = Diversity and inclusion; and across the Group who act as ambassadors
semor management: » Remuneration arid reward. for our values and behaviours; and
» 'Grill Phil' channel to engage directly with the CEO; * Jennifer Duvalier, Non-Executive Director,
+ ‘Back to the floor' sessions for Group Leadership Team; has been designated to oversee Board
+ Recognition and reward programmes; and engagement with the workforce.
* Annual indivdual performance reviews,
+ Employee volunteering; * Future talent pipehne, * Ready2Work;
+ The Mdie Foundation; * Local operauonal impact; and + Employer engagement days;
« Mite.com and social media platforms; + Health, safety and + Think Diffecently programme;
* Local community events; andt environmert performance. « Schoal, academy and college events;
+ Electric fleet wision. = Reduction in fuel and energy
consumption;
+ Raduction in carbon emissions; and
« Focus on key social value areas where
we can make a real contribution,
* Supplier conferences and workshops; * Responsible procurement; + Mitie encouwrages suppliers to work
+ Global supplier portal and notices to suppliers; ¢ Trust and ethics; collaboratively to ensure continual
+ Mtie.com; = Prompt paymertt code: and improvermnent in operations and to
« Annual Report and Accounts; and + Operational improvement. defver mutual benefit
» The Mitie foundation. * The trade creditor payment days

decreased from 58 daysin FY |7/18
10 50 days in FY 18/19; and

= We reduced the use of the supply
chain finance facilty by £25m compared
wFY 17418,
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Non-financial information statement

Non-financial
information statement

In accordance with Sections 414CA and
414CB of the Companies Act 2006, which
outline requirerments for non-financial
reporting, the table below is intended to
provide our stakeholders with the content
they need to understand our development,
performance, position and the impact of
our activities with regards to specified

non-financial matters.

We conunually look for ways to make Mitie 2 responsible business and
we actively engage with our stakeholders to improve our impact. in FY
{8/19, we commissioned a comprehensive summary of our social value
activity and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals. We also became the first major UK FM provider

to launch an electric vehide fleet. We introduced a range of inftiatives to
further benefit our employees and made commitments in areas where
we can <ontribute real benefit to improve social value and environmental
impact within the communities we work in,

We use 3 vanety of 100ls 10 track and measure our performance
against strategic objectives. Qur business mode! encompasses the
non-financial value created for qur stakeholders from our resources,
human capital, expertise and relationships. Through our business
model we dekver value for our employees, suppliers, communities,
sharehaolders and customers.

Reporting requirement

Relevant policies'

Annual Report page reference

Envi ronmental Sustainabiity policy Stakehclder engagement pages 26 to 27
matters Procurement policy Social value pages 29 to 33
Employees One code: our code of conduct Chief Executive’s strategic review pages || to 13
People. policy Stakeholder engagement pages 2610 27
ndusion policy Qur peaple pages 34 to 37
Health and safety policy Social value pages 2% to 33
Ethical business practice policy
Sustairability policy
Quality policy

Social matters

Sustairability policy

Chief Executive’s strategic review pages || to 13
Socal vaiue pages 29 to 33
Stakehotder engagernernt pages 2610 17

Human rights

One code: our code of conduct

"Ethical business practice policy

Social value pages 29 to 33

Anti-bribery
and anti-corruption

One code: our code of conduct
Ethical business practice policy

E-learning module available for employees

through the process repository (BMS)
and Learning Hub .

Social value pages 29 to 33
Qur people pages 34 to 37
Stakeholder engagement pages 26to 27

Business model

Business model pages 08 10 09

Non-financial KPls

KPls pages 14 1o IS

Principal risks

Prncipal risks and uncertainties pages 38 to 46
Viability staternent pages 47 to 48

Audit Committee report pages 62 to 67

The Board pages 59 to 60

| Policies, statements and codes are available at www.mitie.com

~
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Social value

Delivering
soclal value

People, products and services are integral to
the delivery of long-term sustainable solutions
both within Mitie and for our customers.

We have been reflecting on our sustanabiity performance over
the past decade, as well as looking forward to further reducing
our environmental impact and enhancing social vaiue activity

in the decade to come.

Key to this is our Sustainability Working Group and internal
governance structure, which was realigned to better drive our strategy
and represent our dwverse business in FY 16/17. The Sustainability
Working Group is headed by Jo Davis, Group HR Director and
executive sponsor for Sustainability. Two years an, the group now
includes a cross-funcuonal cohort of subject matter experts, who
specialise in a wide range of areas, including environmental impact,
supply chain and people management.

In FY 19/20 the remit for the Sustanability Working Group wall

be broadened to encompass the Group's social value agenda,

The Sustainability Working Group will report directly to the Board
to ensure that Mitie's social value and sustainability commitments
for 2030 have the appropriate resource and focus.

Social value in action

As a responsible corporate citizen caring for both people and planet,
we commissioned a comprehensive summary of our sodial value activity
and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations (UN) Sustanable
Development Goals (SDGs).

In FY 19/20 we will set our 2030 targets and focus on some key themes

where we feel Mitie can contribute real benefit to improve social value
and environmental impact within the communities it works in.

Senior members of the Executive
Leadership Team have individual
responsibility in five significant areas:

I Promoting skills
* and employment;

Supporting the growth of
responsible regional businesses;

Creating healthier, safer and
more resilient communities;

Protecting and improving
our environment; and

Promoting
social innovation.

oA W

By FY 19/20, we pledge to...

Increase apprenticeships by over

100

Reduce our emissions intensity by

35«

(from FY 0910 base)

Increase the number of women
entering STEM roles by

20+

People through our
Ready2Work programme

450

Mitie’s spend under our supplier
management framework to be

20«

Electric vehicles within our small
vans and car fleet should be at least

20%

Become a Living Wage Foundation
Recognised Service Provider

Remove all consumer single use plastic
from our Gather & Gather business

Launch 'Mitie Girls Can', a female-onfy
technical apprenticeship programme

to assist with encouraging more women
into STEM roles

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Social value continued

Promoting skills
+ and employment

Aligning to our strategic pillars:

Apprenticeships

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme m FY 18/19

and currently have §60 apprentices working acrass our portfolic of
contracts. They are engaged on a range of technical apprenticeships

in engineering and catering, as well as professional apprenticeships in [T,
HR and managerment development. All Mitie apprentices benefit from
permanent empicymert contracts and are fully embedded in business
activities to maximise learning.

How we dlign to SDGs:

Learning Hub
Qur Cloud-based Learning Hub 1s an online portal through which

emnployees can access online developrnent material relevant (o their role,

mandatory training, induction, a wealth of self-selected development
material, as well as health and wellbeing modules. it means that all our
people have access to quality education at a time and place that suits
them.

Springboard

Gather & Gather Managing Director. Alhster Richards, sits on the board
of Springboard UK, a subsidiary of the Springboard Charity, which seeks
to relieve poverty and unemployment by developing the potential of
disadvartaged young people. At our Springboard Takeover Days we give
cookery demonstrat:ons and talks about the benefits of working in the
hospitality industry, we also mentor those showing particular promise.

704

of candidaces receive a job offer
following Ready2Work programme

Mitie Foundation

The Mitie Foundation has worked on a number of initiatives during
FY 18/19. designed to create work expenence opportunities to those
with barriers to employrent.

The Ready2Work prograrmme consists of a pre-platement week,
followed by seven weeks' work expenence. The programme provides
valuable work experience to the long-term unemployed. On average,
aver 70% of candidates recenve a job offer at the end, In the past year
our six Ready2Work programmes helped around 60 long-term
unemployed people imo work

We also supported 12 employer engagement days; these workshops
benefited around 360 disadvantaged people with low self-canfidence.
a disabifity, refugee status, a criminal record or mental heaith issues.
As a rule, these events are attended on average by 16 employers and
30 candidates, who face 3 Dragon's Den/Apprentice-style challenge.

Our ‘Think Differently’ programme was developed to support
candidates with learning disabilties/neurcdiversity and those who have
experienced mental liness. In FY 18/19 we held six disability awareness
waorkshops which resulted i 24 candidates being offered four weeks'
work placemnents with Mitie, our clients or suppliers.
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Supporting the growth of
« responsible regional businesses

Aligning to our strategic pillars:

SO

We understand our business impacts the planet and its finite resources
Improving our efficiency is therefore essential to creating a more
sustainable business.

How we align to SDGs:

Our transformation strategy was designed to improve efficiency, with
an associated reduction in resources, through better technalogy and
innovation, and smarter processes. In FY 18/19 we achieved large paper
savings as we digitised records. The saving continues to increase due

to our investment in IT.

The move to regional office hubs and improving our peaple’s ability
to work remotely also support waste reduction. Our use of Skype
for Business and Microsoft Teams has helped improve processes
and reduce business travel and associated emissions,

58.1%

reduction in total waste
generation since FY 09/10
(Mitie estate)

Reducing supply chain impact

It is vital to understand our supply chain impact in order to ensure

a responsible supply chain. In FY 18/19 we undertook a resource use
assessment by supplier category and spend. We will continue to work
to ensure all supplers adhere to aur Code of Canduct. including our
™Meodern Slavery and Human Trafficking statement. We alse vet alt
suppliers to ensure that our Safety and Sustainability objectives and
our vetting standards are met.

120 suppliers were invited to take part in our socal auditing exercise
in FY 1819. The programme induded collaborating with other

. organisations, training some of our preferred suppliers, and writing

a joint case study with the Home Office to demonstrate best practice.

We will continue to work with preferred suppliers to measure impacts
and understand our Scope 3 (indirect) carbon emissions.

Some achievements on our sustainability journey...
= We cormnpleted a Consumer Single Use Plastic (CSUP) plan and
will continue to work to elimnate our plastic footprint.

Gather & Gather was one of the first major contract caterers in the
UK to announce the remaval of plastic straws. In May 2018, we signed
up to #thelaststraw campaign and banned single-use plastic straws in
all 276 outlets. We have eliminated plastic water bottles at cur Shard
offices arvd continue to run 'keep cup’ promations. as well as praviding
ceramic cups and plates and metal cutlery.

Where applicable, our Government contracts support the 25-year
gnvironment plan target of eliminating all CSUP on therr estate by
2020. Care & Custody completed a CSIUP elimination plan and has
stopped procurement of plastic products which could be easily
eliminated or substituted with non-plastic materials,

We achieved Gold Medal recognition fram Ecovadis, putting our
organusation in the top 5% of those evaluated.

Gather & Gather has retained the maximum three-star award from
the Sustainable Restaurant Association in recognition of achievernents
in Sodiety, Enwironment and Sourcing.

Y



Creating healthier, safer
+ and more resilient communities

How we afign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

B

Mitie's people are our strength, which 1s why wellbeng 15 a vital
component of our employee value proposition. In FY 18/19, we launched
a new wellbeing working group to utilise the expertse of our in-house
wellbeing and occupational health specialists.

As part of the annual Mental Mealth Awareness Week, in May 2018
we focused on stress in the workplace and how best to deal with it
We have also conducted awareness initiatives on workplace
mindfuiness and psychological wellbeing, nutrition and physical activity.
Thirteen mental health first aid workshops were also held across the
UK. As part of our learning and development transformation, we are
m the process of launching e-learming packages on wellbeing and career
development to ensure our people are equipped with the knowledge
and tools to support their future ambitions,

Through Gather & Gather, we support Public Health England's

nutrion mitiatives, including chiddhood obesity and calorie, sugar and salt
reduction programmes. We akso back Government recommendations
that free sugars should make up no more than 5% of energy intake each
day. and limiung daily salt intake to no more than 6g. We strive to assist
guests in achieving these healthy targets through recipe reformulation,
product sourcing and menu development.

Gather & Gather also runs the Live Well scheme, designed to help
our customers’ employees and our colleagues make informed food
choices to support wellbeing. Using specialised Saffron software,
detailed nutritional labels can be produced for each recipe. Live
Well-branded leaflets, cards and posters on topics such as portion
control, snacking and eating five-a-day ensure people are updated
with relevant nutrition information.

Protecting and improving
« Our environment

How we align to SDGs: Aligring to our strategic prllars:

o
O
Reducing carbon emissions

In 2010, we commitied to reducing our carbon intensity by 35% by 2020,
We are proud to have achieved this target a year early We did so by
rationalising our estate, reducing business travel and building occupancy
supported by remote working technology, and improving fleet efficency.

We continue to procure 100% renewable energy and are worlung
towards the implementation of 150 50008 Energy Management System.
In FY 18/19 the Carbon Trust scored Mitie BI% for carbon management,
the highest mark within the UK FM sector.

Mrtie also completed a climate change risk assessment based on
guidance from Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD). We are working to establish future carbon reduction plans
and objectives. This includes setting a science-based target for carbon
reduction and working with key supply partners on innovatons

and reduction technology.
O,
3 7 %

0,
524
reduction in emissions intensity

reducrion in energy consumption
across Mitie escate since FY 09/10  since FY 09/10
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Social value continued

Managing fleet impact

13.9% 35+

reduction in fuel reduction in fuel
coNsuUmMpLIon since consumption intensity
FY 09/10 since FY 09/10

Mitie's vehicle operations accourt far over 20% of our total carbon
emissions. Through our fleet committee’s low carbon fleet strategy
we have reduced our total emissions footprint year-on-year.

Low carbon solutions

in FY 18/19, we signed up to the Clean Van Commrtment and were
accredited as 2 Go Ultira Low company. Following successful trials
of hydrogen and electric vehicles, we committed to 20% of our
small vans and cars being fully electric by 2020.

Sometimes an EV is not the best commercial or operational

dacision, in which case we will source the most efficient diesel vehicle.
Through our great supplier relationships we are kept informed of market
progress, meaning we can take advantage of new technology when it
becomes available. An example of this is the new model of the Vauxhall
Vivaro, which brings 15% CO, and fuel savings over the previous model.
QOwver a seven-year period, the Vivaro's efficiency has improved by 26%,
creating significant erwvironmental and financial savings,

Restricting vehicle selection

Mitie vehicles typically operate on a rolling four-year contract

hire agreement from our strategic fleet partrer, Lex Autolease.

By outsourcing fleet management, Mitie aims to take advantage

af the most efficient techneology when it becomes available. All of

our non-commercial vehicles are restricted by a sell-imposed vehicles
ermissions cap of 130g/km CO;,. In 2018, our commercial vehicle modeis
were on average 10.5% more efficient in terms of carbon emissions
tompared to 2014, and the phasing out progess tontinues 1o yield
carbon and fuel savings. Our Vauxhall Astra estate models generate
10% less emissions, and by changing Vauxhall Vivaro vans from 2.0L
1o 1.6L engines, plus Adbilue, stop/start technology to cut idling.

we have restricted carbon emissions by 11% and NOx emissions

by 72% on average, ensuring compliance witt EUROG emission
standards and significantly reducing fuel costs.
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Telematics

All our commercial vehicles are fitted with telematics. Non-conformance
10 our driver expectations, such as speeding, idling or substandard
driving, is escalated accordingly. During 2019 we will continue to work

on better telematic information and data for faster real-time reporting.

Permit to Drive

‘We launched Permit to Drive in August 2018 as part of our
commitment to road safety, driver wellbeing and environmental
protection, Gur annual e-leaming awareness traming and assessment
scheme has seen 3,505 drivers complete Permit to Drive so far,

We believe our driver awareness campaign and fleet risk reduction
plar will bring down the number of road traffic inadents and improve
fuel efidency. The combined impact of our measures, including
technology, has seen 2 13% reduction in vehicle accidents from

the previous year.

Mitie electric vehicle project

In the face of rising fuel costs, stricter emissions targets and a need

to address climate change. fleet electrification marks a dramatic step
towards reducing the financial and environmental cost of doing business.
In December 2018, M became the first major UX FM provider to
faunch an electric vehicle (EV) fleet. By 2020, 20% (717) of our compact
vans and cars will be fully electric.

With a total fleet of 5.107 vehicles. Mitie’s diesel cars, vens and trucks are
a familiar sight on UK roads. Due to significant developments in battery
technology and driving range, electric vehicles represent an exciting and
wiable alternative to traditional cars and vans.

Mitie has ordered vehicies with a long range and fast charging capabilties.
The Volkswagen e-Golf, Hyundai Kona, Renault Zoe and Kia e-Niro will
join the Miue leet n coming months, alongside fully electric vans tike

the MNissan eNV-200.

Charging infrastructure

Mitie is investing in appropriate charging infrastructure to ensure
aperational success of our electric vehicles. \We are partnenng with
a renowned charging suppher to install over 800 charging points
across the Mitie estate and at employee homes. We will also build
an relationships with dients who have EVs in their fleet to offer
Mitie colleagues the opportunity to use their charging sites.

We kook forward 1o supporting current and future customers

who share our passion for innovative and sustainable mobility.

Key benefits

Eleciric vehiclas produce no CO; when they are being driven,
This is good for the planet and good for the pocket — electric
vehicles attract a fraction of the company car tax of their fossi
fuel counterparts. Electric vehidies are also less expensive to run
due to significantly reduced fuel costs, which means we can keep
operational costs to a minimum,

Teraining and telematics

Mitie has developed a suite of training courses for drivers of its electric
vehicles to ensure that they are used safely and with maximum efficency.
By partnering with the manufacturer. we can guarantee training 1s
relevant 1o the vehicle modei at hand.

Tapping into clean water

Gather & Gather's supplier is Lifewater, a British brand that partners
with the charity Drop4Drop 1o fund dean water projects around the
globe. So far 14 pumps and wells have been built i needy communities
across India and Africa thanks 1o LifeVWater purchases at Gather &
Gather. The most recent was in the village of Bejiman, Mzimba District,
Malawi. Water sources funded through Gather & Gather currently
benefit over 18,000 people and all feature a plaque bearing our catering
arm's distinctive logo.



Promoting social
« innovation

How we align to 5DGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

Supporting women

The Mrtie Foundation has supported the build of a mini-retail park
inside HMP Foston Hall, a wornen's prison in Derbyshire. Mitie
employees have worked in parinership with female prisoners, teaching
the skills of landscaping, groundworks, bulding, electrical, solar panels,
ranwater harvesting and work ethics. When the park is complete,
female prisoners will be trained to run their own micro-retail business,

supporting them with new skills and experience to build upon on release.

Partnership with Well Grounded

Gather & Gather has been working with social enterprse Well
Grounded to hefp a broad spectrum of young Londoners into work

as baristas. In FY 17/18, this induded a cohort of nine tranees, who
attended a full-time, four-week course at Well Grounded's East London
academy. Upon traning completion, they completed four weeks' work
experience with Gather & Gather and successfully took up positions

as baristas post graduation.

Mitie continues to work with Well Grounded to assist these who
have struggled to find employment. The second cohort of 10 Weill
Grounded banstas began training in FY 18/19,

Volunteering days
in FY |8/19, 15] Mitie collezgues volurteered to assist in a range
of education and community events.

We coordinated 4| careers and World of Work days held in schools
and colleges. Mitie colleagues volunteer 1o assist, providing positive
business role models and giving students the skills and knowledge to
raise their aspirations and broaden their career horizons, In addition to
this, Mitie Landscapes tearns supported the annual Manine Conservation
Society Great British Beach Clean, voluriteering to remove litter and
plastic from the UK shoreling; and working with Keep Britain Tidy,

Mitie volunteers attended Saturday morning litter picks to remave
rubbish from the countryside.
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Our people

Our promise
to our people

Mitie's people are our strength. As a major
UK employer with 52,500 colleagues, we
take our responsibility towards our people
seriously. Improving our Employee Value
Proposition has been a key focus in FY 18/19
as we look to consolidate our position as
one of the UK's most dynamic, forward-
thinking and sustainable FM companies.

We have been busy developing a range
of initiatives to make Mitie a 'Great Place
to Work' and an employer of choice.

Upload survey

Listening to our people 15 as important as listening to our customers.
We launched the Upload survey in Apnil 2018 to ask our people
how they feel about working at Mitie, and what improvements could
be made. This was followed by the "You Said, We Did’ campaign

to demonstrate actions undertaken in response to feedback,

There were five key priority areas for improvement:

* Reward and recognrtion:

* Enabling infrastructure;

¢+ Senior leadership;

* Employee brand; and

+ Autonomy and empowerment.

Qur 2018 Upload survey proved a wtal tool in benchrmarking employee
engagement. We relaunched the survey in March 2019 to measure
progress. Follawing our improvements and our "You Said, We Did*
campaign, we have seen employee engagement rise by 12%. In

addition to overall engagement increasing, we have seen perceptions
of leadership improve by +17% and employee brand improve by +12%.

Although we have made significant progress, the results show
that there are still areas where we can improve. The results will
be followed by another “You Said. We Did' campaign in 2049,
We plan to continue to measure engagement annually.

28% 45% +12%

Upload Engagement improvement int
response rate score engagement score
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‘You Said, We Did’ campaign
Listening to our pecple Jed to the introduction of the folkowing initiatives
n 2018:

Mitie Stars

The Mitie Stars scheme is our way to reward and recognise those
who have gone above and beyond for our customers and colleagues
By engaging and thanking our people. we are helping to make Mitie
a great place to work. Our colleagues up and down the country
proudly display their badges on their lanyards

Feel Good Fridays

Feel Good Friddays is a new recognrtion scheme that gives Mitie people
the opportunity to thank and recognise colleagues for delivering ‘the
exceptional, every day. Nomunations are made via MiNet and thank yous
are published online each Friday.

Long-service awards
We launched the long-service award scheme to cefebrate and mark
oneg, five, 10, 20, 30, 40 and S0 year service milestones with Maie,

Enhanced maternity policy

In October 2018, we introduced an enhanced maternity package for all
eligible salaried employees. with an additional ‘return to work bonus’
to encourage mothers back after maternity leave. it demonstrates

our commitment o gender equality, our efforts to rae the number
of wornen in the workforce and our intention to becorme an empioyer
of choice for women in FM, The package is detailed below.

* 10 weeks' pay at full pay inclusive of Statutory Maternity Pay (SMP) -
increasing from the previous allowance of statutory payments only
(six weeks at 90% of average eamnings):

* A further 29 weeks at the applicable SMP rate; and

* A return to wark bonus’ equivalent to two weeks' full pay.

We are also ntroducing enhanced adoption pay arrangements for
those taking adoption leave. An adjustment to paternity provision
is due to be reviewed.

IT improvements

‘We have invested £1.5m n new laptops for our people, replaced

a significant number of mobile phones, and rolled out a company-wide
upgrade 10 Windows 10. This has enhanced cur cyber security as welt
as increased connectivity and collaboration.

The Mitie Roadshow

Mitie’s Executive Leadership Team held nine Roadshows across five
tocations in the UK, engaging over 2,000 managers to update on our
transforration journey and listen to our people’s views.

Back to the floor

To increase visibility of cur senior leadership team, we have refreshed
the popular ‘back to the floor” initiative. This fs an opportunity for
mernbers of the Group Leadership Team (GLT) to et to gnps with
what our frontfine people experience every day. Each GLT member
is required to complete two back to the floor wisits each year. Besides
assisting with the work, they provide our colleagues with support.
listening events, and recogmise and celebrate teams delivering

The Exceptional, Every Day’"

These inftiatives represent a huge step forward as we seek to engage,
reward, recognise and retain our pecple.



Vision and values

Embedding our values into cur DINA is enabling a successful
cuttural transformation.

During 2018, we articulated a new set of behaviours that

bring our values to life with help from our Mitie Exceptionals.

a group of values champions fromn every corner of our business.
They were nominated because they ‘live’ cur new vision 50 we
asked them to help us articulate how you deliver our new vision
of The Exceptional, Every Day, every day.

These behaviours now form the basis of all our people policies
and processes. from recruitment and onboarding. through to
performance reviews. The Upload survey 2019 shows that 69%
of our respondents have a good understanding of our values,

Gender pay gap report

Mitie Group is required to publish data on two legal entites,

Mitie Limited and Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, compared
to the 15 legal entities reported in 2017,

As at 5 April 2018, Mitie Group had a mean average gender pay gap of
13.8%. which was lower than the 16.0% gap reported as at 5 April 2017,
The mean bonus gap was 47.3%, which was considerably lower than the
71.0% reported in 2017.

We have made a number of significant changes to reduce the gap.
which include introducing a new people systern 1o enable better
gender and job level reporting, enhancing our maternity pay offering
and setting the strategic objective to increase the number of women

entering sdence, technology. engineering and mathematics (STEM) roles.

While our gap has improved, we still have work to do in FY 19720,

$2.2% $23.7%

pay gap bonus gap

Since June 2017, we have welcomed four women to our Board of
Directors (women: 4; men: 4). Wormen account for 11% of our
Executive Leadership Team (womarn: | men: 8} and 24% of our
Group Leadership Team (women: |8; men: 57) as at 31 March 2019,
Across Mitie Group female employees account for ¢ 32% of our
workfarce (womern: 16,800; men: 35,700).

L ]

We are One Mitie

We are built on integrity and trust

We go the extra mile

Our diversity makes us stronger

Our customer’s business, is our business
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Living Wage Foundation

We want our people to feel valued and engaged and recogrise

that wages play an important part in this. Our goal is to become a
Recognised Service Provider with the Living Wage Foundation by 2020,
and we are already paying employees working in Mitie offices the real
Living Wage.

Diversity and inclusion

At Mitie, we are very proud of our rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds — it creates ideas and insights. We believe everyone
should have opportunities to progress, whether that is through working
with amazing customers or individual learning and development.

This year, we were immensely proud 10 be recogrised as [7" on the
Inclusive Top S0 UK Employers list.

Qur employee networks help support our agenda by allowing
members to discuss issues affecting thern with key decision makers,
assist in formulating new and reviewing existing policies and procedures,
prowvide a safe space for members 10 raise their concerns ina
confidential environment. and provide an opportunity for members

to update each other on local and national policy and developments.
Each network is sponsored by a member of the Executive Leadership
Team who is a role model for diversity and indlusion and champions

the agenda across the Group.
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Our people continued

Diversity networks
Mutie's employee diversity networks are designed to support and
champion the following minority groups:

Enable network, disability awareness and support ~ sponsored by
Simon Venn, Chief Government & Strategy Officer.

Engender network, gender equality -- sponsored by Carlo Allar,
Managing Director. Engineering Services.

Generations network, age awareness — sponsored by Peter Dickinson,
General Counse! & Company Secretary

Kaleidoscope network, ethric minorities, particularly BAME
{Black, Asian and Minorty Ethnic) — sponsored by Matthew Thompson,
Maznaging Director, Cleaning & Environmental Services.

Proud To Be network, LGBTQ awareness — sponsored by
Allister Richards, Managing Director, Gather & Gather.

A new start for our new starters

First impressions last. and in FY 18/19 we overhauled the onboarding
process. The purpase is not only 1o provide an exciting introduction
to their new role at Mitie, but te highlight the opportunities open to
colleagues in the UK's leading FM organisation. For the first time, we
have a ‘One Mitie' approach to induction, providing clear and easily
accessible information on our company structure, what we do, our
values, leadership, benefits, tools and systems. All new starters are
required to complete a series of learning modules via our e-learning
platform, the Learning Hub.

Temporary resourcing

Every year. Mitie engages with a significant number of suppliers to find
people required on a temporary basis. The opportunity to reduce cost
and complexaty was clear, and to this end in Cctober 2018 we launched
a temporary resourcing team in ¢collaboration with our recruitment
partrer, Retinue. Working together, both teams manage the recruitment
of ternporary staff across Mitie. The benefits are dear and numerous:

* Simple and fast process via a new technology platform - it takes
52 seconds to raise a job, 64 seconds to book a fully-compliant
candidate and 18 seconds to approve a tmesheet,

Mobile app to use on-the-go, providing quick access to manage
requests and approve timesheets;

Ensures afl suppliers are compliant with right to work and
pre-empiayment screening checks, providing a clear audit trail
for each worker;

Consolidated invoicing reduces the time spent on administration,
taking us from 37.000 invoices to one per week per business unit; and
Reduced costs and consistency of terms.

Permanent resourcing

The next step in our HR transformation is our permanent resourcing
salution, the Talert Hub, launched in earty 2019. VWe are ceeating an
industry-leading talent and resourcing function to attract, recruit,
develop and retain the best people at all levek.

We will use the best technology in the market to mine new taient and
fill opportunities quickly. Our new Talent Hub platform also allows us to
grow our employer brand and raise awareness of internal career paths.

Apprenticeships

As a major UK ernployer, Mitie provides a wealth of appreriticeships
taking an ‘apprentice first' approach to training. We paid £4.7m into
the Apprenticeship Levy schema in FY 18/19.

660 apprentices are working across our portfolic of contracts.

Our apprenticeship strategy continues to evolve, and we are partnering
with a number of specialist providers to ensure we deliver learning that
meets the needs of the individual as well as the business We have
ambitious plans to increase apprenticeships by over 100% by 2020.

We recognise the Government's target of 2.3% apprentices across

the worklorce: a target we are set 1o exceed.
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Learning Hub

At the core of our Learning and Development transformation
is our Learning Hub, an online portal through which employees
can access online development material relevant to thesr role,
mandatory material, our mducuon, a weakth of self-selected
development material, as well as health and wellbeing modules.
The Learning Hub is Cloud-based and can be accessed on any
device connected to the internet. allowing colleagues to access
courses and content at a tire and place that suits them. In the
five moniths since launch in October 2018, Mitie colleagues
comnpleted 40.000 Learning Hub courses. There are 2.500
instructor-led courses as well as 200 Learning Hub activities
available, which range from informative documents and

infographics to eight-hour seminars.
40,000 2,500 900

courses completed  courses activities available

Sales Academy

January 2019 marked the beginning of an exciting new era for Mitie's
Sales community; the launch of the Mitie Sales Academy. The first
cohort of 12 colleagues began a year-long apprenticeship that culminates
in Level Four sales certification from the Asscdiation of Professional Sales
{APS), Apprenticeship Levy funding has enabled us to create our first
professional Academy which creates an Academy blueprint for other
professional apprenticeship programmes to be lunched in 2019,

LiveSafe

We are constantly striving 10 develop a zero-harm workplace.
Coordinated by Mitie's Quality, Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE)
team, our LiveSafe programme launched in December 2018 in order to
consiantly improve Quality and HSE performance across the business.

LiveSafe is underpinned by a set of principles and rules that will help us
keep ourselves, our cotleagues and those affected by our operations safe.

Extensive supporting material is available on the designated LiveSafe
intranet page, and a series of workshops has been rolled out across
the country.



People Hub

Launched in October 2018, the People Hub s a
one-stop-shop for all things related to the employee lifecyde.
ht provides colleagues with 24/7 access to their personal
employee profiles, allowing them to manage everything from
viewng payslips, to requesting and approving leave requests.
The People Hub is paperless and all new employees are
onboarded electronically with DocuSign. For the first

time at Mitie, cur organisational hierarchues are visible.

2417

People Hub provides colleagues with
24/7 access to their personal profite

G

Our promise to our people
is to create a place where
they can thrive and be their
best every day.

Jo Davis,
Group HR Director
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Awards

Mitie’s far-reaching efforts to improve our employee value
proposition have not gone unnaticed and we were the
only FM pravider to be recognised by two prestigious
awarding bodies:

+ |7th place on the Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers list,
the definitive round-up of UK organisations promoting
diversity and inclusion across disability. gender, age,
LGBT and race.

= Certfied a 2019 Top Employer by the Top Employer
Institute Certification Programme. The award is made
to employers who lead the way in forward-thinking,
people-first HR practices.
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Employee involvement in Company performance

Mitie encourages the involvernent of employees in the Company’s
performance through the annual bonus scheme and various share
schemes. During the year, invitations to join the Company's Save As
You Earn share option plan were distributed to all eligible employees.
Employees can also participate in a Share Incentive Pian.

Engaging with our people

As part of our ongong commitment 1o improving employee
engagemernt, we have implemented a new employee communication
channet strategy which includes addrional channels promoting direct
engagement between managers and their teams and encouraging regular
employee feedback. These include the monthly Mitie Download, our
team briefing document for managers, and weekly Recap news email,
These are supported by digital engagement channels including Yammer.

Qur aim i$ ta ensure our employees are fully aware of and feel
supported through our transformaticn journey, We prowide regular
updates on financial and economic factors affecting our comparny's
performance, and the important role each employee plays in Mitie’s
future success, Qur speafic focus is on our frant-line workforce,
and we will be implementing several new digital channels as we
continue to improve how we engage with our people.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Effective risk
management

Our risk management approach
Qur approach to risk managemert is
regularly reviewed by the Board and
Executive Leadership Team and continues

to evolve in Ine with our business structure
and risk profile. We recognise that to have
an effective risk management framework,
we need to develop appropriate risk
management culture, controls and supporting
processes. Our 'One Mitie’ Vision and Values
and Enterprise Risk Management policy have
an wnpoetant roke 1o play in this regard.
further information can be found in the
Board report on pages 56 to 6.

Risk management structure

Our risk management structure is designed
10 ensure a consistent approach to the
identification, assessment, monitoring and
management of risks across the business.
This is set out in more detail below and

in the Board report on pages 59 and 60.

Areas of focus

Our focus during the year has been on
standardising and simplifying processes,
procedures and associated [T systems
in the Group, including:

* Simplification of the

organisational structure:

Clarity of reporting ines for

central functions; -

IT. financial and operational systems

improvements across the business,

* Improvements to cyber security controls

across all systems and infrastructure;

Deployrnent of an improved

incident recording, monitoring and

reporting system;

Deployment of a new HR resourcing

system across the Group;

Launch of online training and

development hub;

Simolified approach and consistent

process 10 both temporary and

permanent recruitment;

Outsourang of back-office finance

transactional processes to Genpact; and

+ Qutsourcing of applicaton mantenance
IT processes to Wipro.

L]

Qur risk management framework

Top down
Strategic risk management

* Review external erwironment
* Robust assessment
of principal ricks
* Set nsk appetite
and parameters
* Deterrune stratege
action paints

* identify principal risks

* Direct delivery of strategic
actions in kne with risk appetite

* Monitor key risk indicators

* Execute strategic actions
* Report on key risk indicators
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Bottom up
Operational risk ag

* Assess effectiveness of
risk management system
* Report on p_nr}cipal risks

Board/Audit and uncertainties

Committee

« Consider comgleteness of
identified risks and adequacy
Executive of matigating actons
Leadership * Consider aggregaton of risk
Team exposure across the business

.

* Report current
and amerging risks
Divisions s Identify, evT!rt:t; and mw:gzte
in risk register



New and emerging risks

We continuously monitor our internal and external ervironment o
ensure that any new or emerging risk is identified in a timely manner
and responded to appropriately. As a resuli of the Principal Risks
assessment, new risks relating to structural complexity, market share
and incident at client site have been dentified.

Risk management structure

Board and Audit Committee

! !

Executive Leadership Team K 4 Interna! Audit

mitie
@ Our strategic piliars @

Responsibiticy Process

* Vision and Values staternent and Code of Conduct approved by the Board and communicated
to employees — setting tone at the top.

* Review of the Group's strategy by the Board and the setting of risk appetnte for the Company.

* The Board through the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal controt and
risk management framework on a yearly basis.

* The Board set the frequency and scope of its discussion on strategy, business maodel and risk.
* The Board reviews prinapal risks on a yearly basis.

* The Audit Committee, which comprises independent Non-Executive Directors, reviews
internal audit reports on a regular basis

Executive Leadership Tean Mitie's focus is to operate a ‘three lines of defence’ mode for effective nsk management
3 - and monitoring.

First line of defence

« Care set of business poliaes available on the Company’s intranet — setting out
management’s expectations.

* Maintenance of risk registers at business unit and function level. Risk registers are also
maintained for major contracts.

Second line of defence

* Enterprise Risk Management policy is in place and availlable to employees.

* Enterprise Risk function is in place

* QHSE compliance funcion operates to ensure adherence with the Company’s QHSE policies.

* Formation of audit and nsk committees operating at business unit levels.

Internal Audit Third line of defence

Intermal Audit is res g Internal Audit acts as a third ine of defence.

* The Head of Imternal audit reports functionally to the Chair of the Audit Committee.

* The Internal Audit function targets its work at areas of the business where risk management
and internal controk are suspected of requiring improvement. In addition. the Internal Audit
plan 15 inked with the Principal Risks to ensure adequate coverage of the risk areas.

« The in-house Internal Audit team uses Grant Thorntan te support its work, where appropriate.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

(D political

Potrtical and economic ungertainty in the UK

may adversely affect our customers’ approach to
outsourcing decisions and our ability 10 plan and
imvest. The lack of clarity of the timing and impact
of Brexit adds further uncertainty.

@ Health, safety and environment 4 »r
Failure to maintain appropriately high standards

in health, safety and environmental management

may resuk in harm to employees, dient stafi or

members of the public. and consequential fines

and reputational damage.

A loss of market sharethrough competitors
improving their offering and price, and potentially
targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrants deployng new business modeks, could have
a significant impact on our revenue ang profit.

@ Structural complexity New risk @ Incident at client site New risk
Mitie has historically operated using complex manual A high-profife incident or accident occurring at
processes and an organisational madel wath a high an FM chent site, or a location operated by our
and misaligned cost base, rather than leveraging its Care & Cus(ody business, as a result of neghgent
technology. If we do not address these issues we staff actions, inconsistent vetting or ineflective
will be unable to execute dient contracts efficently. traming and communications for stafl, could
resulting in sub-optimal customer expenences and have a sigrificant impact on our reputation and
erosion of sustained profitable growth, current and future contracts
@ Cyber v @ Data management 4 »r
Failure of critical infrastructure, including through a Ineffectre processes and controks to manage our
cyber-attack, could affect client delivery operations data and custorners’ data may result in a major
" and cause critical delays in internal processes. data breach leading te fines, remediation costs
and reputational damage.
@ Funding 4 > Employees v
Inability 1o maintain access to and renew suftable Inability to recruit, retain and reward suitably
sources of funding due 1o a perceived risk in both our talented employees, as well as failure to implement
business and the sector as a whole, may impact our appropriate development plans, smple consistent
ability to maintain profitable business performance. processes across the business and a One Mitie
approach, could negatively mpact our operationat
and financial performance.
@ Legal 4 ) @ Market sentiment A
Falure to comply wrth applicable laws and MNegative sertiment towards the outsourcing
regulations may lead 1o fines, prosecution sector could lead to fewer opportunities, including
and damage to our reputation, reduced IFM volumes, and chailenges to our
business moget and profit growth.
(&) Market share New risk (12) Contract losses 4 >

If we do not ensure that we produce bids for
contracts which are competitive, finanaally viable
and have a balanced approach ta risk, and/or fail

to deliver on our contract obligations, we may
damage our dient refationships. which may lead to
cancellation of contracts resulting in finandal losses.

40 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



OQur strategic plilars Change In year

00, Customer: build market-teading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P> Suyed
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A  Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology inte the heart Viability

of aur offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

(O Political

Palitical and economic uncertainty in the UK may adversely affect our
customers’ approach to outsourcing decisions and cur abllity to plan
and invest. The fack of clarity of the timing and impact of Brexit adds
further uncerraincy.

Impacts on: Change in year:

HOBD© 4

As the vast majority of Mitie's client base 15 within the UK, we are
particularly exposed 1o uncertainties in the UK's paktical and economic
landscape A major aspect of this uncertainty continues 1o be the ongoing
negotiations for the UK to leave the European Union (Brext), This may
result in changes to the regulatory framework, as well as restrictions in the
supply of ibour and matenals.

Political and economic factors also influence the dedsions taken by both public
and private sector clients on which actvities shauld be outsourced and the
amount of discretionary spend available for outsourcing activities. This may
result in fewer opportunities for Mitie and have a consequential negative
impact on our finanoal performance.

It is important that we are able to offer competitive, innovative and high-quakity
solutions to dients, and dernonstrate the value we bring to them. We also need
to ensure that we carefully monitor and identify the most appropriate
opportunities in both the public and private sectors.

* Manntain blend of public and
private sector dients

* Appoirtment 10 the Crown
Commercial Services Framework

* Appaintment of Chief
Government & Strategy
Officer and team

* Regular reviews of sales
opportunities by all business
sales leaders

* Dedicated account managers
to focus on integrated
strategic accounts

* Focus on high-margin opportunities

* Drive for greater customer
retertion through improvements
in the value we defiver

* Development of new and
innovative service offerings

¢ Ensure the focus on strategic

accounts generates growth

opportuniues

Maintain dialogue with key public

and private sector clients to

demonstrate the value we offer

* Leverage the rmost appropnate
oppertunties through the Crown
Commerdal Serices Framework
o increase public sector contracts

@ Structural complexity

Mitie has historically operated using complex manual processes and an
organisational model wich a high and misaligned cost base, rather than
leveraging its technology. if we do not address these issues we will be
unable to execute client contracts efficiently, resulting in sub-optimal
customer experiences and erosion of sustained profitable growth,

Impacts on: Change in year:

CIIGIIOR TS

Mitie's business and organisational model has evoived with a large number
ol unnecessary complexities, including multiple and nconsistent processes,
isolated IT systems, and unclear organisational and reporting structures.
These complexities have required a disproporbonately high cost base in
order to maintain them.

The business transformation project (Project Helix). and a number of other
improvement inrtiatives over the past two years, have made substantial
progress, but further work 1s required to smplify and standardise these
undertying processes and to ensure that we are able to deliver acceptable
margins and growth from our business

We are continuing to address internal costs by leveraging the opportunities
from outsourcing back-office functions, induding in Finance and IT. In addition,
we are investing in [T systems improvements across the business, notably

in Engineerng Services, HR and Finance, We will also continue to simpiify
end-to-end processes and the structure of the organisation.

Mitie 15 now embracing technology to defiver a digital experience to both
internal ang external users. if we fail to do this we could be unable to deliver
profitable growth. our opportunies to invest in new technology and offerings
could be limited and our bids could be uncompetitive

= Successful delivery of Project
Helix and other improvement
and simpification miliatives

* IT, finandial and operational systems
improvements across the business

* Outsourang of back-office
functions in IT and Finance

= Smplfication of the business
structure into drvsions

= Charification of accountabilities
and responsibilities, particularly
for strategc accounts

* Focus on sourcing and
procurement processes 1o
simplify supplier base and
leverage cost opportunities

* Use of digital technologies for
customers and ermployees

Successfully complete
improvement projects for IT
systems in Engineering Services

A comprehensive review of
end-to-end processes across the
busingss to improve efficdency

and control, remove unnecessary
tasks and reduce costs. A Dignal
Trarsforrnation Officer has already
been appointed who is responsible
for this invtiative

* Legal entrty rationalisation

Finance moderrusation programme
* Commence a further
transformational review

to simplify the business
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Cyber

Failure of critical infrastructure, including through a cyber-attack,
could affect client delivery operations and cause critical delays
in internal processes.

impacts on: Change in year:

OO v

The refiability and effectveness of our technology s vitally important to
ensure that we can meet our contract obhgations, deliver improvements
in operational processes, generate meaningful management information
and help detiver valse for aur dients. In eany cases clients cely upon us
to look after their eritical data and infrastructure,

‘We are continuing to invest in technology 1o simplfy our business, as wel

as improving resiience and security to protect against systems failure or a
cyber-attack. During the year we have commenced an upgrade programme
10 ensure we meet the Government's Cyber Essentials Plus requirements.
This has involved a substantial programme to upgrade and replace computers
within the organisation. We have also delivered a number of system
improvements in the year including People Hub, a standardised and
integrated HR sohon

We have also outsourced our rovtine [T operations to a partner which will
help improve effidency and eflectiveness and build in greater resilience to
fallures. This also allows us 1o focus on higher value technology developrments
for clients. We will continue to invest in Systems and technology 1o replace
the legacy estate. automate processes and ensure the smooth and efficent
operation of cur business. It is also important to have effective business
continutty and disaster recovery plans, and this is another key focus.

* Clear strategy to invest in
technology improvements, bath in
internal systems and client offering

» Outsourcing of routine IT
operations to partner orgarusation
0 improve resilience and comrols

* Upgrades 1o legacy systems to
reduce complexity and improve
management information

* Rauonalisation of ERP systems
and infrastructure

* Leveraging new technologies
such as Al and big data

* Mainterance and testing of
effectrve disaster recovery plans

* Improvernents to Cyber security
controls across all systems
and infrastructure

+ Dedicated IS PMO 1o ensure
all projects with an S element
are managed effectrvely and
nisks are minmised

* Upgrade to the Engineering
Services aperational and finangcial
systems tO improve security
and efficency

* Look for opporiunities to

the outsource partner’s
development capabilities

@ Funding

Inability to maintain access to and renew suitable sources of funding
due to a perceived risk in both our business and the sector as a whole,
may impact our ability to mai profitable b performance.

impacts on: Change in year:

HO®©» >

In order to be able 1o meet our finandal commitments, we need to hawe access
to a numnber of affordable sources of finance, Our core debt facilities incude

a revolving credit faakty and private placement loan notes. We need to have
suffident liquidity to be able to pay supphers and staff, whikt ake investing in
the business and ensuring that we have enough options for profitable growth.

In the past few years there has been significanL concern abaut the finandgal
strength and viability of companies operating in our sector. This has conminued
dunng the year with a number of high-profile incidents occurring refating to
our competitors. Any actual or pecceived weaknesses in our financial position
could restrict our access to fnance or attract high interest rates.

‘We have been focused on maintaining strong financal disophne in the
management of our working capital and investment decisions and on
minimising our levels of debt. This has included working with our back-office
process outsource partner to improve processes and efficency.

= Regular forecasting of cash
flow and net debt

+ Therough focus on working capital
cydes with a dear set of KPis

+ Mairtenance of strong banking,
debt and equity refationships

* Strong focus on and monitoring
of cagh collection

* Regular reviews of payment terms
with customers and supply chain

* Continue to work with a
range of finandial institutions to
ensure we can access affordable
finance sources

* Focus on working capital
processes to reduce cycle
times and average net debt

* Improve accrued income and
billng processes
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Our strategic pillars

Change in year

@ Customer: build market-leading positions in higher ¥  Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
Peaple: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Suyed
for our empioyees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability
@ of our offeringour offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions

@ Legal

* Regular monitoring of legal * Introduction of further mandatory

and regulatory changes by traning courses to relevart
Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may lead co fines, Group Functions induding employees wa our Learning Hub
prosecution and damage to our reputation. Company Secretariat, Legal *'Ongoing review of BMS to update

. and Quiality, Health. Safety i d

fmpacts on: Change in year: and Envirg'lment (QHSE) poficies and procedures
@ @ ‘ } * Code of Conduct communicated

to all employees
Qur business is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations. Given : Group-u::ehasol ::'s updated for d
the nature of our business, these ndude, amongst others, health & safety, nE:s ned in the oﬂregdguﬂm an
employment, anti-bribery and corruption and statutory wage requirernents. rna' A ! n 5 ?;15)5'"&
Failyre to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in * Regular and thorough external
prosecution andfor significant fines, and, from a reputational perspective, regutatory audns
could darmage our relationships with dients and our ability 10 win work. * Training and awareness material
We may also face debarment from public sector contracts. communicated to employees
We continue 10 ensure that we have eflective governance and oversight and monttorng of completion
of our compliance with applicable laws and regulations and continuously performed .
assess the impact of changes in relevant legsiation. It s also important that * Externally hosted whistieblawing
we provide appropriate communications and training for our people to service available
ensure that they are aware of their obligations, and that regular monitoring
of compliance is undertaken.

* Continued focus on simphfying * Deployment of strategic account

@ Market share business processes and structure managers for key contracts

A loss of market share through competitors improving their offering and
price, and potentially targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrants deploying new business models, could have a significant impace
an our revenue and profit.

Impacts on:

SISO,

In the recent past, many companies in our seclor have experienced financial
and operational difficulties, and as a resull there has been a strong focus on
strategy. costs, investments and business structure. For those organisations
that have successfully addressed their issues there may be opportunities

to increase market share through more competrtive or innovative offerings,
which may impact our ability to retain current clients and win future business.

Change in year:

New risk

Addrtionally, there is also the possibility of a new entrant disrupting the market
by deploying a new low-cost business model for FM, potentially through

a technology platform, which would challenge the structure and approach

of the exssting arganisations, inchuding Mitie. This could also potentially
significantly erode our market share and decrease new opporiunities.

It is important that we continue to prioritise the transformation of our
business, particularly through improving processes and simplifying business
structure, focusing on minimising costs and developing innovative solutions
for dients, such as the Connected Workspace. In this way, we will be able
to defiver genumne value for current and future clients.

* Investment in new and innovative
technologies — induding
Connected Workspace

* Focus on client relationships
and Net Promoter Score

* Reguiar reviews of sales
opportunities ansing

* Replacing and upgrading
operational and finandal systems

» Standard processes and tools
for sales and CRM teams

* Complete Project Forte
launched to improve IT
systems in Engineering Services
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks apd uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Health, safety and environment * A comprehensive QHSE * Bulld on the principies of LiveSafe

strategy has been developed and ensure regular communicetion
Failure to maintain appropriately high standards in health, safety and * Major cuttural HSE programme, and engagement with staff
environmental management may result in harm to employees, client scaff LiveSafe, launched in the year, with o Transtion from OHSAS heatth
or members of the public, and consequential fines and reputational damage. dlear rules and training for staff and safety "a nagement
Impacts on: Change in year: * Regular trairng andf to ISC4500

i .y geIn ye communication delivered

@ @ ‘ ’ throughaout the company, in

accordance with LiveSafe principles
As 3 company we are committed to maintatning the highest levels of health, * Cerufied H8S management
safety and environmenta! {HSE) standards. The services we deliver could systems to OHSAS 18001
potentially present an increased risk of a health and safety incident involving ;‘?ngw system

our employees, client staff or even members of the public, Our activties also
carry a sk of damage to the environment it is essential that we manage these .

Deplayment of an improved

risks in a hughly diligent and effective manner. lar:dnuu recording, monkoring
repor 1 m
Az all levels in the arganisation, safety is our number one pricrity and we . RegularHSEgrzs:\emconducted
ensure that all risks are property assessed and managed, cur employees at divisional and Geoup level
are trained, our expectations of how they perform their work are dearly + Clear and fisad KPls
explained, and adherence to health and safety standards is regularly monitored. N 10 monitor
If we do not manage these risks appropriately, it could lead to harm to and. nroduced progress
individuals and damage to the environment, and consequently prosecution, improvements )
fines and significant damage to our reputation. * Targeted QHSE procedural audit
prograrnme introduced

+ Custodial operations worki . Re !
(®) Incident at client site Neisaiabiond Operatons - ;ﬂ%ﬁnﬁ'ﬁ g
A high-prafile incident or accident occurring at an FM client site, Procedures (SOP), bespoke response plans.
or a focation operated by our Care & Custody business, as a result o each site for Care & « Transition from OHSAS health
of negh seaff I i vetting or ineffective training Custody business and safety management system
and communications for stafi, could have 2 significant impact on » Contingency plans are regularly to 1504500+
our reputation and current and future contraces. tested and compliance to
Impacts on: Change in year: Cae & C sites

* Health and safety strategy —
@ @ @ New risk LiveSafe programme launched
We deliver services to ¢iients at a number of impartant and high-profite sites this year 2spart of the strategy
across the country. These include locations with substantial histarical and + Certified HBS management
cuftural significance and high level of scrutiny by gavernmental bodies, media systems ta GHSAS 18001
organisations and the general public. If a major incident occurred at one and emironmenttal system
of these sites, whether through the negligent or defiberate act of Mitie toiSO14001
employees, it could attract a large amount of publidity and have a highly * Comprehensive training plans
negative impact on our reputation. It would also be likely to limit our on safety, security and risks
chances of winning future contracts and potentially retaining current chents. * Regular updates to employees
In order 10 make sure we manage this risk, it is important that we have mmm
appropriate polices and processes in place, which dearly set out the « Imternal and external
expectations of cur employees. We aiso need to communicate these compliance audits
eflectively and debver regular and relevant traiming to employees. In addrion, . Efleet )
itis important that we ensure our employees have been appropriately Effective vetting programme
vetted to determine wha is efigible to work on particular contracts and sites, tailored to the individuat risks
50 that we are able to meet the specic réquirements of our dients. of each client and site

* Tested business continuity and
It 1s also necessary to have eflective business continuity plans in place for crisis response plans
our operations, so that we can continue to deliver a high-quafity service « Standard omprehensive
to clients in the event of a disruptive incident. Shoukd an incident oceur. 3 mmﬁ\d ﬁ?:o;

comprehensive and tested anisis response plan is essential to ensure that
we would be able to minimise the impact on our employees and clients,
the public and the environment.

44 Mitle Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Our strategic pillars Change in year
o) Customer: build market-leading positions in higher v Decreased
growth segments and increase custormner NPS
People: create 3 “Great Place to Work' 4 P Swayed
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability
of our offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Data management

Ineffective processes and controls to manage our data and customers’
data may result in a major data breach leading to fines, remediation costs
and reputational damage.

Impacts on: Change in year:

SO, «»

One of the most important assets we have 1s the data we hold, which includes
information concerning our business operations, employess, dients, supplers
and others. This information is vital to enable us to run our business efficently
and profitably. We need 1o maintain adequate controks to mitigate risks
assocated with loss or theft of data which woulk] damage our reputation

with clierts and potentially expose us to significant fines from regulators.

in order to ensure confidential and sensitive data (s processed, transmitted
and stored securely. we have implemented formal technical and procedural
controls These controls are deployed across our IT systems and are subject
10 regular review and testing. Effective informaton securtty procedures help
1o prevent or minimise the impact of any breaches of secunity.

We have an ongoing programme of work to ensure we are compliant with
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

* Centralised information securty
team in place

* Regular reviews of information
management to ensure

« Informabon Security Management compliance with GDFR
System {15MS) in place and * Expansion of dedicated data
certified to ISOAEC27001:201 3 privacy team
for key information assets * Ensure seamiess transbon to

* [T security controls in place to IT outsource partner with data
proactively test, monitor, identify standards mairttained
and respond to cyber threats * Worling towards achievng

* Information security cyber essential phus accreditation
requirements established on
all new projects, including
outsouncing of routine operations

* Cyber essential accreditation
* Cyber insurance poticy

Employees

Inability to recruit, recain and reward suitably calenced employees, as
well as faillure to implement appropriate development plans, simple
consistent processes across the business and a One Mitie approach.
could negatively impact our operational and financial performance.

impacts on: Change in year:

WO v

H 15 important for the success of our business that we continue to recruit,
develop, motivate and retain talented individuals. If we are unable to do so
there would be an adverse impact on the profitable and successful delivery
of our contracts, and we would be kmited in our ability to win future
opportunities and grow the business

We need to have the right level of experience and expertise avalable and be
able to develop a culture of high standards of achievement, compliance to the
Mitie values and good governance and control. In order to achieve this, we also
need to provide development opportunities for our employees to enable them
1o reach thew full potential

In addition, it 1s important that we mairtain a stability and consistency in our
senior leadership team to prowde high-quality direction for the business and
deliver our strategy.

An important elernent of the culture 15 ensuring that we have a One Mtie
way of operating and collaborate effectively across the business. This will
give greater consistency in processes and controls and allow for seamless
movernent of staff across the Group

* Further enhance online HR
and training systems
* Launch of new inducton

programme, mandatory for
new starters

* Salary bendhmarking
*+ New competency framework
10 be developed

'+ Deployment of new HR resourdng

system across the Group

* Launch of online training and
development hub, People Hub

* Simplified approach and consistent
process to both temporary and
permanent recrutment

* Regular communications from
leadership team — including ELT
country-wide rcadshow

* Specatfic plans developed to address
results of employee survey

* Competitive remuneration,
terms and conditions

* Training and developrent
programmes for senior leadership

* Regular employee offers

* Developed talert
identification, management
and development plans

* Succession plans are in place
for critical roles, especially for
the senior leadership tearm

* Clear parformance
management framework
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Market sentiment

Negative sentiment cowards the outsourcing sector could lead to fewer

oppartunities, including reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to our
business model and profit growth.

Impacts on: Change in year:

CIOIONEE

In the past two years, the actrvities and resuits of a number of companies
operating in our sector have generated significant negative pubkcity, which
potentially affects Mitie’s reputation and raises concerns with current and
future dlients. Ths has included the liquidation of Carillion and the

adrministration of Interserve. The viabilny of outsounced faciities management
companies to deliver operational performance to sufficiently high starclards,
whuist also managing costs appropnately, has been the subject of much scrutiny.

In particular, the opportunities for itegrated facliues management contracts
may decrease in both the public and private sector, as organisations look to

spread the risk of these services amongst a greater number of providers.
In order to address these concerns, it is /mportant that we are able to

consistently defliver a hugh-quality and valued service on our existing contracts
and demonstrate this to potential new clients, We need to ersure that we

develop and mamtain a business model and offering wiuch can successfully

deliver profitable growth and exploit new opportunities as they arise, whilst

adapting to the needs of the market.

* Inclusion and maimtenance
on Crown Commercial
Service Framework

* Dedicated management
of strategic accounts

* Reguilar financial
perforrance reviews

= Focus on improving Net
Promater Score

¢ Strong relationships with
finandal institutions

* Further improvernent and
transformation opportuniies

@ Contract losses

If we do not ensure that we produce bids for concracts which are
competitive, financially viable and have a balanced approach to risk,
and/or fail to deliver on our contract obligations, we may damage our

client relationships, which may lead to cancellation of contracts resulting

in financial bosses.

Impacts on: Change in year:

HQO®© «»

In order to deliver consistent and profitable growth, it is important that

we continue to bid for and secure contracts at acceptable margins. it is akso

essential that we successfully mobilise and deliver our comracts. In order

1¢ achieve this, we must menitor and control costs, deliver on the contract

obligations and meet dient expectations.

We need to develap competitive bids, which provide a fair balance of risk and
reward that is properly reflected within the contract terms and conditions.

Our offering needs ta be compelling and innovative and provide a balance

between cost and margin pressure, which s a key feature of the sectorin -

which we operate. It is also important to make sure we have the skills and
resources available to execite on our contracts successfully.

Once we have mobifised the contracts, we need to monitor a relevant set
of Key Performance Indicators (KP1s) 1o ensure that we are delivering on

the obligations to which we have agreed and communicating with clients to
understand ff they are satisfied with our performance. it is also important to
assess and agree any vaniations 10 the contract services and terms and amend

the KPls accordingly.

W we are unabie to delver the services as agreed in our COMracts, it could
negatively impact our customer relationships and reputation and lead to

legal disputes and termination of contracts. This could then lead to potentaily
failing to retain existing clients and secure new contracts, with a detrimental

effect on our linandgial performance.

* Bid Committee approvel
for complax bwds

* Detailed contracting guidelines
developed and rolled out

¢ Clear delegated authorities regster
* New Sales and CRM teams in place
* Use of spedalist mobilisation teams

for complex contracts

* Strategic account management

* Risk registers in place for
farge-scale contracts

+ KPYSLA formal reviews
with customers

*+ Improved CRM capabilities with
aciive relationship management

* Fogus on Net Promoter Score

* Launch of Sales Academy to
train sales teams -

* Appoirtmert of Chief
Government & Strategy Officer
to coordinate all interfaces with
the Cabinet Office

» Post sales review of loss-making
contracts 1o ensure we idertify
and apply lessons jearned for
our future ids .

46

Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Viability statement

Viability
statement

-
ol
o]
G
[
i~

o
Eo
o

=
~
—
=]
v

The Group's strategic report (pages | to 48) contains information on the Group's strategy (pages |1 to 13),
business model (pages 8 and 9} and market review (page 10). as well as principal risks and uncertainties
(pages 38 to 46). The key factors affecting the Group's prospects are:

*+ Mitie 15 the leading UK FM business with 4% of the market;

+ The outsourcing market is relatively insensitive to economic cycles:

+ The Group has a diverse portfolio of blue-chip and public sector clients, the largest of which
constriutes <10% of revenue,

* We have a clear vision for our technology centric growth strategy: and

* We are making good progress in our transformation programme.

Governance

The Directors believe that a three-year period s appropriate for their viability assessment as 1t is
supported by the Group's strategic, budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the duration
of existing contracts with customers which is around three years on average. It therefore represents

a timeframe over which the Directors believe they can reasonably forecast the Group's performance.

In making ths staterment, the Directors have carried cut a robust assessment of the principal risks facing .
the Group. including those that would threaten rts business model, future performance, solvency or

liquidity. This includes the availability and effectiveness of mmigating actions that could realistically be taken

to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the underlying risks. In considening the likely effectiveness

of such actions. the conclusions of the Board's regular menitoring and review of risk management and

internal control systems, as described on pages 59 to 61, are considered.

In undertaking its viability assessment, as a base case, the Board has used the agreed budget for FY 19/20,
which includes analysis of the forecast performance of the Group's existing contract base, expectation
for future growth including sales targets and expected win rates, and overhead cost base, Based on this
budget, further projections for viability purposes have been made using prudent assumptions for

* Modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY19/20;

= No major changes in working capital,

Invoice discourting continuing to decrease over time;

Future dividends in fine with current policy.

Settiement of existing prowisions according to best estmates together with funding costs for ongoing
transformation activities;

No changes 1o group structure; and

No additional capital beyond current committed debt facilities.

The resulting financial model assesses the abiiity of the Group to remain within the financial covenants and

liquidity headroom of the existing committed debt facilities. During the forecast period, £40m of the US

Private Placement notes mature and the model assumes these are not refinanced. The £275m revolving

credt facility also matures in the forecast period and the Directors consider it reasonabie to assume this S~
will be refinanced on materially similar terms. The Group akso utilised £73m of inveice discounting at 31 ot
March 2019, which the Group 15 not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant comphance or \g‘ability-‘.(c . ey i
purposes in the base case scenario.

Financial statements

.

.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 47



Viability statement continued

A range of scenanas that encompass the principal risks were applied to the base case and are set out
in the table below. The analysis also considered a reverse strass-test scenario to iflustrate the working
capital outflow required to cause a breach of leverage covenant, in combination with the reduced
revenue scenario.

Scenario Prncipal risks
i Loss of major contract - kost revenue and operating profitin all 1.2.3. 12
future periods
2 Magor client insolvency — lost reveniue, operating profit and cash flow, )
plus one-nff costs equivalent to thiee months' revenue
3 Major working capital outflow ~ £100m 4
4 10% revenue reduction 1.2,3.5,6,7.9 11,12
5 Margin erosion .ooLrrann
6 Reverse stress test — revenue loss and working capital outllow in N/A

combination te covenant breach

In each of scenarios 1-5, the Group would be able 1o continue operating within debt covenants and
liquidity headroom, and maintain dividends in line with currem policy. Scenario 6 required such an
extreme set of factors in umison that it is considered to be a very remote likelihood and therefore
does not represent a realistic threat to the viability of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be employed to counter the negative effects
of the crystallisation of each of these risks. The main actions induded the short-term scaling down
of capital expenditure. asset disposals, reductions in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
10 continue n cperation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the three-year period considered.

The strategic report on pages | to 48 of Miie Group plc. company registration number SC019230
was approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 5 june 2009

It was signed on its behalf

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer l
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Exceptional,
every day
for our

environment

In FY 18/19 Mitie signed the Clean Van
Commitment which builds on our promse to
ensure 20% of our small van and car fleet is
electric within the next two years. We also
ordered 400 electric vehidles to support the
fight against cimate change ard air pofiution.
Mitie, which has a fleet of 3,500 compact vans
and cars. will run more than 700 electric
vehides by the end of 2020.

Mitie has also been accredited as a Go Ulltra
Low company, under a scheme jontly run
by Government and vehicle manufacturers,
which has 160 signatories. Mitie joins

other companies that have committed to
increase the number of electric vehicles

in their fleets.

(®) Read more on PG 31-32

;2% ?7%

reduction in energy reduction in
CONSUMPLION across emissions intensity
Mirie estate since FY 09/10

since FY 09/10
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Board of Directors

An experienced
Board of Directors

Derek Mapp
Non-Executive Chairman

Board Commiittees
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
9 May 2017

Other current appaintments

Derek 15 Chair of Informa pk and prwvate
companies: Imagesound Limited and Salmon
Developments Limited Derek also has several
other private business interests.

Past roles

Derek was Chair of Huntsworth plc from

December 2014 to March 2019, He was also

previousty Chief Executive Officer of Tom

Cobleigh plc and Chair of Leapfrog Day

Nursenes Limited, East Midlands Development

Agency. Sport England and British Amateur

Boxing Assodation Limited.

Skills and experience

* Experigncad chairman and entrepreneur;

* Extensive career in ownership, managerial,
operational and commereial roles in
service industries;

* Wealth of commerdial and governance
experience within vanous sactors; and

* Promotes robust debate and an open and
engaged cufture.

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment to the Board
1 November 2016

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Phil was Group Chief Executive Officer of Cable
& Wireiess Communications pk from fanuary
2014 until its sale to Liberty Global picin May
2016. Prior to this he was a member of the
board of Centrica plc from 2000 to 2013 whilst
also Managing Director of British Gas from 2007
1o 2013, Maraging Director, Europe from 2004
to 2007 and Group Financé Director from 2000
to 2004. Phil's prior non-executve directorships
include IMi plc from 2012 to 2014 and Kingfisher
ple from 2002 to 2010.

Skills and experience

* Executive and non-executive expenence with
FTSE 100 companies for over |8 years;

* Sigruficant strategic and commercial expenence
at both national and global level;

* Extersive executive and leadership expenence
from across industry;

* Extensive linancial, audit and risk rnanagement
systerns experience; and

* Accountant by profession, with a master’s
degree from Oxford University and an MBA
from INSEAD, Fortainetleau.
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Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment to the Board
13 November 2017

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Paul was Chief Executive Officer of Virgin Active
Health Clubs from September 2013 to March
2017 and Chief Financial Officer from January
2013 to September 2043 Prior 1o that he was
Chief Financial Officer of Jadks Wills, Group Chief
Financial Officer of Birds Eye Iglo Group and
Chief Financial Officer of the Automobile
Association.

Skills and experience

* A highly-regarded leader with experience
zcross a broad range of industry sectors,

* A proven track record in operational, finandal
and strategic oversight and execution;

* Extensive turnaround expenence; and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree from Oxford University in Philosophy,
Pofitics and Economics.



Nivedita
Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Commnttee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
b June 2007

Other current appointments

Nrvedita is Chief Executrve, Infrastructure
Servces & Cloud Services UK, Europe at
{Capgemini SA, a French publicly hsted
mulunational corporation. She is also a member
of its UK management board.

Past roles

Nivedita was Head of Enterprise Solutions,
EMEA and Head of London Development
Centre at Infosys Technologies Ltd from 1998 to
2010. Prior to this she was a consultant in the
corparate finance dvision at KPMG India.

Skills and experience

* Significant international management.
experience having worked across the UK,
Europe, US and India;

* Vast experience in advising clients on
technology solutions with a view to enabling
them to increase shareholder value;

* Several years of [T consulting and [T
outsourcing experience managing large
complex contracts,

* Strong sales onentation having sold global
tachnology and digital solutions te global
clients;

* Deep PAL management with focus on top and
bottomn hne; and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree in Economics.

Jennifer Duvalier
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committes

Date of appointment to the Board
26 july 2017

Other current appointments

Jennifer is Non-Executve Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee of Guardran
Media Group plc. and Non-Executive Director
of NCC Group plc. She is also Director of The
Cranemere Group Limnted and a member of the
Coundit of the Royal College of Art, where she is
also Chair of the Rermuneration Commitiee.

Past roles

Jennifer was Executive Vice President, Peaple, for
ARM Holdings plc. a global tachnology business,
from September 2013 to March 2017, She was
also an executive committee member with
responsibiity for people and internal
communications activity. Prior to this, jennifer
was Group People and Cutture Director at UBM
plc from 2007 to 2013 and Group HR Director at
Emap plc from 2003 to 2007,

Skills and experience

¢ Leadership development, talent acquistion and
management and succession planning:

* Mentoring and coaching,

* People strategy, orgamisation development and
change management; ,

* Employee engagement and internal
communications;

* Corporate soacal responsibilty and
partnerships;

* Executive remuneration and performance
management;

* Executive team and Board effectiveness, and

* MA (Hons) from the University of Oxford i
English and French

Philippa Couttie
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Cormmmtes
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
15 Navember 2017

Other current appointments
Philippa is a member of the House of Lords and

party whip.

Past roles

Philippa led Westminster City Council from 2012
to 2017. She joined the Coundl in 2006 and has
previously served as Cabinet Member for
Finance, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Deputy Cabinet Member for Chikdren’s Services,
Phitippa wvas alse a member of the Polling and
Digital Media Select Commwttee from 2017 1o
2018.

Prior to progressing her career in public service,
Philippa was a director at Crigroup following its
takeover of Schroders, where she headed up its
principal finance business, She was also previously
Chief Executve of Cornerstone
Communications.

Philippa has served as a non-executive director
on several boards since 2006, induding Royal
Parks and the London Local Enterprise
Partnership. She was also prewicusly Chair of the
‘West End Partnership and Counal Member of
Imperial College, where she was also Chair of
the Audit Commiittee.

Skills and experience

* Extensive expenence in both public and
private sector at the most senior level;

* Ennobled and joined the House of Lords
n 2016; and

* A degree from the University of St Andrews
in Psychology.
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Board of Directors continued

An experienced
Board of Directors continued

Mary Reilly
independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committeas

Chair of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

‘Date of appointment to the Board
| September 2017

Other current appointments

Mary is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Essentra plc, an
internaticnal suppler of specialst plastic, fibre,
foam and packaging products. She is also
Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee of Travelzoo. Her current
trusteaships include the lrwvictus Games
Foundation and PDSA.

Past roles

Mary was Non-Executive Divector and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Ferrexpo plc, aniron
ore mining compary, from 2015 to 2019, She was
also Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit & Risk Committee of the JK Department
of Transport and of Crown Agents Liméited, an
international development company, from 2013
to 2017, Prior to this Mary was Non-Executive
Director of Cape plc, a global industrial services
compary, from 2016 1o 2017. She has served as a
non-axecutive director on several other boards
since 2000,

Mary was a partner in Defoitte LLP (and

predecessor firms) for over 25 years. Mary was

an Audit Partner in the UK spedialising in

manufacturing, uxury retait and business

services. She also headed a unit offering

outsourcing capabiifty.

Skills and experience

* Accounting, linance and international
management experience; and

* Chartered accountant. with a degree from
Uruversity College London in History.

Roger Yates
Senior Independent
Director

Board Committees

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
| March 2018

Other current appointments

Roger 15 Non-Executive Director of Jupiter Fund
Management plc and Senior Independent
Director of St [ames's Place pic, where he 1s also
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset management at
GT Management in 198) and held positions of
increasing seniority at Morgan Grenfell, LGT and
Invesco. He served as Chiel Executive of
Henderson Graup plc from 1999 to 2008 and as
Chief Executive of Unicredit's asset management
arm, Pioreer Invastments.

Roger's non-executive roles have included F&C
Investments, IG Group plc. Electra Private Equity
plc and JPMorgan Elect plc.

Skills and experience

* Substantial board experience;

* Strong business track record; and

+ Extensive knowledge of the finance and
irvestment community.
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Peter Dickinson
General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Board Committees
Nane

Date of appointment
6 March 2017

Othaer current appointments
None

Past roles

Peter was a partner at global law firm Mayer
Brown International LLP {and its predecessor
firmj) from 1995 to 2017, During vs tme at
Mayer Brown, Peter was also Co-Head of the
Global Technology Transactions practice from
2G15 to 2017, Co-Head of the Global Corporate
practice {with spedfic responsibility for strategy)
from 2008 to 2015, and Head of Corporate
practice in London from 2005 to 2015,

Skills and experience

* Substantial experience in corporate advisory,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and
other significant commerdal transactions
including large scale mutti-jurisdictional
eutscurding projects; and

*» Qualified solicitor, with a degree from
Southampton University in Law.



Corporate governance

Chairman’s introduction
to Corporate Governance

The Board ts continually seeking 1o adapt and respond to meet
its responsibilities to shareholders and wider stakeholders for the
Group's activities and rts long-term success.

The Board is kept up to date on all matters of key governance by way of
comprehensive reports prepared by the Company Secretary for each
Board meeting. Between meetings, the Company Secretary and wider
team are available if required, and the Board has access to an electronic
board portal whuch s kept up 1o date with the latest governance-related
information and guidance.

Statement of compliance with the Code

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we are reporting against the

April 2016 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the

Coda) and | can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Company

has complied throughout the year with all the principles and the relevant
provisions. The Code can be found on the Financia! Reporting Council's
website at www.frc.org.uk.

Detads of how we have applied the principles and complied with
the provisions of the Code are explained throughout the Annual
Report and Accounts. In the following sections. we explain how the
Code is implemented via Mitie's governance framework.

The Financiat Reporting Council published an updated Code in July
2018, which applies to the Company from t Apnl 2019. As a Board,
we have spent time reviewing the Company's governance processes
in preparation for reporting under the updated Code and we are
_confident we will be able to confirm full compliance for FY 15/20.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board acknowledges the importance of forming and retaining
sound relationships with all stakeholder groups. Effective engagement
enables the Board to ensure stakeholder interests are considered
when making strategic decisions.

Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and discussed the Group's

key stakeholders along with the engagement mechanisms in

place 10 ensure they support effective, two-way communication,

This information has been collated into a stakeholder engagement
‘map'which will be considered regularly by the Board to ensure it
remains fit for purpose. The map will also be used to support the
Board's reporting requirements under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006. More details on stakeholder engagement can be found

on pages 26 and 27,

(6

As a Board, we are committed
to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

To further enhance our extensive employee engagement activities,
Jennifer Duvalier has been appointed as the Group's designated
Non-Executrve Director to oversee Board engagement with our
workforce. Jennifer is committed to understanding the views of
our workforce and will ensure those views are incorporated into
the Board’s decision making processes,

Board composition

In July 2008, Larry Hirst retired from the Board with Roger Yates
succeeding Larry as Senior Independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down fram the Board in July 2018, with Mary Reilly assuming
the role of Chair of the Audit Committee.

As announced in August 2018, Jack Boyer stood down from the Board
with effect from 3t August 2018. jennifer Duvalier succeeded Jack as
Charr of the Remuneration Committee.

Diversity and inclusion

During the year, the Board adopted a Board Inclusion Policy which sets
objectives for the Board in terms of diversity and inclusion. See page 69
for further information.

Board effectiveness

The performance of the Board, its Committees and its individuat
Directors is an essential component of the Cornpany's success. During
2019, | led an internal Board evalation, which involved cne-to-one
meetings with each of the Directors faclitated by a questionnaire
completed by each Director in advance. As Senior Independent
Director, Roger Yates led the review of my performance as Chairman.

Regulatory update

On 26 june 2018, the Comparty was advised by the Financial Conduct
Authonty (the FCA) that the investigation intc the Company in
connection with the timeliness of a prefit warning announced by the
Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner and preparation
and content of the Company's financial information, posttion and
resutts for the period ending 31 March 2016, which was inivated on
25 August 2017, had been discontinued.

In conclusion

The Board remains dedicated to achieving the highest levels of
corporate governance to underpin the delivery of shareholder
value in the years ahead.

Derek Mapp
Chair
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Governance at a glance

Overview
of our governance

Governance Shareholdars

The Board is collectively responsible and accountable

fram ewo rk to shareholders for the sustainable long-term

success of the Company.

The Board

The Board provides teadership and direction to management within

a framework of controls enabling risk to be adequately assessed
and managed.

(® Read more on PG 56-61

The Audit The Nomination

Committee Committee
The Audit Committee provides effective The Nomination Committee evaluatas
governance of the appropriateness of the composition. diversity, experience,
the Group’s financial reporting and the knowledge, skills and independence of the
performance of both the Internal Audit Board and its Committees.
function and the external auditor.
@ Readmore on PG 6267 (® Read more on PG 6869

The Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committee
determines the framework or

broad policy for remuneration and sets
the remuneration for the Chairman,

the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive
Dhrectors and senior management.

(@® Read more on PG 70-81

The Executive Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team includes members from each
business unit and central group function ensuring accountability
across the business.

Our range of services
Engineering Security Professional Cleaning &
Services Services Environmental
Services

Board activities

Members of the Board attended April 2018
a number of stakeholder

lated events during the year. Mornthly Cabinet
re| events during the year. Office attendance
Items discussed at Board i the capacrty of
meetings during the year are strategic supplier
included on pages 56 and 57. to Government
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Catering Care &
Custody

August

Annual General
Meeting {offsite)




Gender diversity Roles Director age range
@ Female 4 @ Chairman 1 @ 41-50 years 1
@ Male 4 @ Executive Directors F @ 51-60 years 3
@ Non-Executive Directors 5 @ 61-70 years
Table of meetings
Nomination Audit Remuneration

Paosition Name Board Committee® Committee Committee
Chairman Derek Mapp 7 242 - -
Board members Phit Bentley 7 22 - -
{Executives) Paut Woolf 7 22 - -

Nivedita Knshnamurthy Bhagat  7/7 2/2 67 -

Jack Boyer' 212 00 - 33

Philippa Coutte? w7 22 6% -
Board members  Jennifer Duvalier w 42 - /5
{Non-Executives)  (arry Hirst? 212 0/ - n

Mark Reckitt’ 22 0/0 414 -

Mary Reilfy* . 77 42 ur uz

Roger Yates* 7 U2 3 Fiz

|. Jack Boyer resigned on 31 August 2018,

2
3
4
5.
6.

The Gathered Table
~ Launch event

. Phikppa Couttie joined the Audit Committee on 22 May 2018,

. Larry Hirst retired on 31 july 20t8.

. Mark Reckitt resigned on 31 July 2018

. Mary Redly joined the Rermuneration Cammittee on 31 August 2018,

. Roger Yates joined the Autfit Cornmittee and Rermuneration Cornmittee on 3§ july 2018,
* Phil Bentley and Paul Woolf stood down from the Nomination Committee on 31 March 2019,

September

| |
Employee roadshow
(five locations across | roadshow (UK}
the UK attended
by over 2,000
employees)

l October ! November

invastor
roadshow (LIS}

December

|

Finance leadership
team forum
{The Shard)

L January 2019 L February

Supplier conference

{The Shard)

Mayor shareholder
dinner {offsite}

Cliert dinner

‘| {The Shard)}
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The Board

Board report

Chairman  Derek Mapp
Executive  Phil Bentley
Directors Paul Waolf
Non- Nivedita Krishnarmurtihy Bnagat
Executive Jack Boyer umd 31 August 2018
Directors Phiippa Couttie
lennifer Duvabier
Larry Hirst until 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt until 31 july 2018
Mary Reilly
Roger Yates

@ Full biographical details can be found on PG 50-52.

Purpose of the Board

The Board is responsible and accountable o shareholders for the
sustanable long-term success of the Camparry. The Board leads and
directs managemerit within a framework of controls enabling risk to
be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group on an
annual basis and reviews aspects of strategy at Board meetings during
the year. When setting Group strategy, the Board considers a wide
range of matters including, but not limited to:

+ Finance:

+ Shareholder returns,

+ Corporate structure;

+ Market trends;

» Competitive environment;

« Private/public sector approach;

* International aspects of the business and opportunities, and
= People and talent.
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Board Committees
The Board has four formal Committees:

* Audit Committee;

* Nomination Cormnmtiee;

* Remuneration Committes; and
+ Duscdosure Committee {ad-hoc)

Details of the purpose and activities of each Committee are set out
on pages 62 to Bl.

The Board also has an informal Bid Committee comprised of the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, General Counse!
& Company Secretary, Chief Government & Strategy Officer and
members of the sales team. The Bid Committee meets weekly to
consider any material bids being submitted,

Board activities

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year. Indwvidua!
Drrector attendance at each meeting and a tmeline setting aut
stakeholder related events attended by members of the Board can
be found en pages 54 and 55. QOther Board actvries during the year
include those set out below. in undertaking their duttes, the Directors
actin a way they consider, in goog faith, will be most likely to promote
the success aof the Company for its shareholders as a whoie, having
regard also to other stakeholders.

Activities

Strategy

Offsite strategy day Al Directors attended the Board's offsite
strategy day 1 September. On the day.
the Board discussed the Group's stratepic
methodology and recommendations, target
operating madel and éxecution rsks.

Chief Executive At every Board meeting the Chief Executive

Qfficer's update Officer presented to the Board on topics

such as:

* Financial highlights:

* Business development:
* Sector considerations;
» Customers;

» Sales; and

* Divisional updates,

Corporate transactions  The Board debated and approved the:
*+ Acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited;
* Sale of Mitie's Sacial Housing business: and
* Sale of Mitie Pest Controi Limited

Finance
Chief Financial At every Board meeting the Chief Financal
Officer’s update Officer preserted a paper to the Board
covering topics such as:
+ Financial performance of the Group;
+ Finance structuring review: and
* Finance modemisation,
Budget The Board reviewed and approved the Groups
annual budget.
Results and dividends The Board reviewed and approved the

half-yearly financial report and Annual Report
and Accounts. and assodiated dividends.




Governance and risk

Share dealing procedures An external review of Mitie's Market Abuse
Regime compliance policy was undertaken
during the year. The Board subsequerntly
adopted updated documentation.

Company secretarial At every Board meeting the General Counsel
and legal updates & Company Secretary presented a paper
covering topics such as:
* Whistleblowing:

* Material ltigation;

* Modern Slavery Act Statement;

GDPR;

July 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.,
Companies Act 2006 Section |72
considerations; and

* Other governance and regulatory highlights

Peaple and culture

The Board receved and discussed the results
of the annual employee engagemerit survey,
Upload, and agreed actions to be taken. Actions
included the creation of the "You Said, We Did’
campaign which was launched during the year

Employee engagement

Culture The Board received regular updates on:

* The roll-out of Mitie’s vision and values;

+ Mitie Excepticnals, an employes champions
network to embed new compary behavicurs:
and

* LiveSafe, the safety culture development
programme aligned to Mitie's vision and
values, launched i December 2018.

Stakehaolders and society

Stakeholder The Board discussed the results of a formal
engagement ‘map’ review which was undertaken during the
year to identify:
* Key stakeholders,
+ Their ‘owners' withinthe business:
Reasons for engagement:
Engagement mechanisms; and
Important issues for each stakeholder.

L]

Investor relations, At every Board meeting a report from the
carporate affairs Head of Investor Relations was presented
and Internal covering topics such as:

communications + Share price performance;

Shareholder engagement;

Share register analysis;

Sector news;

Investor feedback;

Media coverage: and

Internal communications.

. ke

Net Promoter Score The results of a Net Promoter Score survey
were presented to the Board in March 2019
along with an action plan to embed more of
the right behaviours going forward. The survey
involved 250 dients being asked how likely
they were to recommend Mite to a friend

or colleague. Mitie's Net Promoter Score
improved 22 points from the prior year,

Director induction process and training
On joining the Board, all Directors receive a personally talored induction
which includes:

« Meetings with Executive Directors, the General Counsel & Company
Secretary, and other members of senior management;

* An overview of the Group's governance policies, carporate structure
and business functons;

* Details of risks and operating issues facing the Group:

* Visits to divisional offices and key client sites: and

* A briefing on key contracts.

Mrtie 1s commutted to the continual professional development of its
Directors. In 2018, all Directors attended an externally faciltated traning
session on director duties, stakeholder engagement and the July 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have access to Mitie’s Board Handbook which includes:

* Board and Commuttee terms of reference,

» The Company's Articles of Assocation:

* Guidance on directors statutory duties;

+ An overview of the Group's directors' and officers’ liability insurance
arrangements;

+ Delegated authories register:

+ Share dealing procedures;

» Corporate governance and regulatory guidehines; and

« Key corporate documents and policies.

The Board Handbook is subject to regular review and was last updated
in earty 2019.

Briefing notes on changes in the regulatory and governance environment
are circulated to Directors on an ad hoc basis.

Oniline traning 15 also avaikable to all Directors on topics such as the
Bribery Act, GOPR, Criminal Finance Act 2017 and anti-slavery.

Visits to different business sites and offices are arranged for Directors
to facilitate a deeper understanding of the business.

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company's Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject 10 election or re-election by shareholders.

At the 2018 AGM each Director in post at the time (except for Larry
Hirst and Mark Reckitt) stood for election or re-election and was
appointed or re-appointed by sharehclders, Larry Hirst and Mark
Reckitt departed the Board following the 2018 AGM. All Directors

will stand for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Terms of appointment for Non-Executive Directors and service
contracts for Executive Directors are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office and head office, and will be available at
the 2019 AGM.
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The Board continued

Responsibilities of the Board

Mitie maintains a formal schedule of matters reserved for the

Board which can be viewed at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance. The schedule was last reviewed and
updated in March 2019 following the introduction of the july 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code. The schedule detarls key matters
and responsibilities that are to be dealt with exclusively by the Board.

These include to:

* Approve the Group's long-term objectives and commercial strategy:

Establish the Group's purpose and values and be satisfied that these,

its strategy and culture are algned;

+ Review performance in light of the Group's strategy. objectives,
business plans and budgets;

« Approve the half-yearly financial report and the Annual Report

and Accounts;

Review the effectiveness of the Group's risk and control processes;

Approve all material acquisitions, material disposals, material

rontractual and other operational matters;

Ensure adequate succession planning for the Board and

senior management;

WUndertake a formal and ngorous review annually of its own

performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors; and

+ Make arrangements for dialogue wrth shareholiders, canvassing
shareholder opinion and engagement with shareholders in relation
10 any shareholder resolution which is opposed by more than 20%
of the votes cast.

Division of responsibilities
Directors have certain responsibilities in ine with their rote, including
those set out below.

The Board continues to support separation of the roles of the

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, A more detailed document
setting out their responsibikties is available at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Chairman

+ (hair the Board, Nomination Committee and shareholder
general meetings; :

£nsure effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, including

the regularity and frequency of meetings:

* Set Board agendas, taking into account the issues and concerns of

all Board members;

Ensure appropnate delegation of authonity from the Board to

executive management;

+ Manage the Board to ensure sufficent time is allocated to promote

healthy discussion and open debate, supported by the right level and

quality of information to assist the Board in reaching its decisions;

Facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors

and encourage active engagement by all members of the Board;

Ensure constructnie relations between the Executive Directors

and Non-Executrve Directors:

Hold meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the

Executive Directors present;

Ensure that new Directors participate in a full, formal and tailored

induction programme,

Ensure that the performance of the Board, its Committees and

individual Directors is evaluated at least once a year and act on

the results of such evaluation;

Maintain sufficient contact with major shareholders to

understand their issues and concerns: and

Ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to

the Board.
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Senior Independent Director

= Act as a sounding board for the Chafrman,

= Serve asan intermediary to other Directors when necessary;

+ Conduct the Chairman’s annual performance evaluation and

lead the appoirntment progess for ary new Chairman,

Act as chairman of the Board in the absence of the Chairman; and
Be avaitable as an alternative point of contact for shareholders if they
have cancerns which have not been resolved through the narmal
channels, or for which such contact is inappropriate in the
drcumstances.

.

Non-Executive Directors

= Exerdse independent skil and judgement,

+ Constructively challenge proposats based on relevant
individual experience, knowledge and skills,

+ Contribute 1o the formulation and development of strategy;

* Monrtor corporate reporting to ensure integrity of
financia! information;

* Oversee the Group's principal risks and assurance in place relating
to those risks, including internal audit programmes;

* Play a key role in determining the rernuneration policy for the
Chairman, Executive Directors, General Counsel & Company
Secretary and members of senior management: and

¢ Hold a prmary role in Board succession planning.

Chief Executive Officer

* All aspects of the operation and management of the Group within
the authorities delegated by the Board;

+ Develop Group objectives and strategy, having regard to the

Group's responsibilities to its shareholders, customers, employees

and other stakeholders:

Successful achievement of objectives and execution of strategy

following presentation to. and approval by, the Board;

* Recommend to the Board an annual budget and long-term business

plan and ensure their achievernent following Board approval;

Optirnise the use and adequacy of the Group's rescurces,

Recommend to the Board acquisitions and disposals, and ensure

their execution following Board approval,

Manage the Group's risk profile, including the health and salety

performance of the business; and

Make recommendations to the Remuneration Committee on

remuneration policy, executive remuneration and terms of

employment of the senior executive team.

Chief Financial Officer

* Lead, direct and oversee all aspects of the finance and accounting

functions of the Groug;

Evaluate. approve and advise on the finarxial and commercial impact

of material contracts and transactions {including mergers and

acquaisitions), technology investments, long-range planning assumptions,

investment return metrics, risks and opportuntties and the impact of

changes in accounting standards;

* QOversee and direct the Group's Risk, Insurance, Pensions and Internal

Audit functions, :

Manage relationships with the external auditor and key financial

nstitutions and adwisors;

Ensure effective internal controls are in place and compliance with

appropriate accounting regulations for financial, regulatory and tax

reporting: and

* Provide an underpin 1o af aspects of the Group's governance
framework, the application of its delegated authorrties and its
investment activities,



Board effectiveness

In accordance with the Code, the Board carries out annual performance
evaluations. These are externally led every three years and internally

led in other years. In FY 18/19, the Board evaluation was internally led by

the Chairman for the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors.

and facilitated by the Senior Independent Director for the Chairman.
The Board's evaluation of its own performance provides an cpportunity
1o enhance its effectiveness and 1dentify any areas for improvement.
The Board evaluation process followed in FY 18/15 is set out below.

Identify areas of focus

Circulate questionnaire

One-to-one meetings

Anonymise meeting notes

Produce findings and actions

Board discussion

The Chawrman discussed the outcomes of the evaluation wrth the
Board at its meeting in june 20[9. Details will be set out in the next
annual report,

Board accountability and assurance

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has cortinued to oversee the improvements
being implemented by the management team to reflect the more
structured approach to governance, risk management and internal
control first adopted following the FY 16/17 comprehensive review of
the Group's balance sheet. These have induded simpiification of the
organisational structure, clarity of reporting lines for the central
functions, notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the ‘Mitie Model’
arrangements, outsourcing of the back-office finance transactional
processes to Genpact, the outsourcing of application maintenance IT
processes to Wipro and continued standardisation and simplification
of processes and procedures in the Group. In FY 17/18, a Group-wide
delegated authority register {DAR) was deployed which clanfies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on speafic matters
within defined financial limits, at levels from the Board te divisional
leadership. This helps to disserninate the Board's nsk appetite. At the
same time, authorily registers were also implemented in each division,
which follow the same principles as the DAR, This structure should
ensure a consistent approach 1o acceptance and management of risk
across the business. ’

The whistleblowing line, provided by an external party, was launched
in FY 1718, with all reports being raviewed and inveshgated. This also
enhances the identification of risks. Improvermnents in IT systems

have continued to bring the business onto consistent platforms, with
improwng management information and visibility of common risks and
effectiveness of controls. The Internal Audit function has targeted rts
work at areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls are suspected of requiring i/mprovement, which has heiped
to improve the risk and control frameworks.

in addttion, a new Bid Committee has been established, the key
members of which comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, General Counsel & Company Secretary and

Chief Government & Strategy Officer. The role of the Committee

15 to consider all bids the aggregate value of which exceeds £3m pa..

to deterrmine whether such bids meet the Group's financial. commercial
and legal objectives.

The Group's approach to risk is set out in more detail below. The
approach to risk management is regularly reviewed by the Board and
Executive Leadership Team and continues to evolve in line with the
business structure and risk profite. The Board understands that effective
risk management and a sound system of internal control are essential

10 the achievement of the Group's strategy and supporting objectives.
The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its review of the risk
management framework 10 increase its understanding of the nature

of the risks faced by the Group and how they are addressed.

Risk culture

It is recogrused that the risk management culture within the business
is equally as important as an eflectrve risk management framework.

In support of this, the ‘One Mitie" Vision and Values have an important
role to play As well as helping to achieve common ways of working
and darity of approach for customers and employees, they also

help set out, together with the code of conduct {One Code). the
framework upon which Mitie's risk culture is buitt. Emphasis is placed
on the importance of embedding risk management into all key
decisions. such that opportunities to grow the Group are effectively
balanced with effective risk management dectsion makng, This means
that opportunities may continue to be exploted, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or. in some
cases, potential opportunities are dedined if they sit outside the
Group's risk appetite.
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The Board continued

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chain partrers and establishes zero tolerance in specific areas as
part of an established ethical business framework. The Group continues
to review and reaffirm its code of conduct with employees and supply
chain partners 10 ensure awareness of the vision, values and expected
behaviours is maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group's risk management framework prowides a flexible and
adaptable approach to the identification of risk across all areas of
the business, to meet the demands of the dynamic and fast evolving
environment in which the Group continues 10 operate. Ultimate
responsibility for risk management lies with the Board, delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer, who further delegates it ta the Executive
Leadership Team, with accountability and responsibility assigned to
specific risk owners. The Group risk profile is reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel &
Compary Secretary in advance of formal review and approval by the
Board. This information is captured in risk registers at business and
functional level, as well as for large contracts, which are subsequently
consolidated into strategic, operational, financial and regulatory risk
categories within the overall Group risk register maintained by the
Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achievement

of the Group's strategy. the Board takes both internal and external
perspectives into account 1o ensure a thorough identification process
occurs. The internal view takes into account factors such as the changing
and developing business profile, operational processes, technology and
people, while the external view includes the economic erwironment,
pdlitical factors and sector and geographical risks. A top-down and
bottom.up approach ensures the systematic identification of significant
risks to the business, Once identified, risks are assessed using standard
impact and likelihood ratings to quantify the risk to the achievement of
business gbjectives. The Group empioys risk management software 1o
help deliver its enterprise risk management agenida as well as enhancing
risk reporting and oversight. Risk registers are formally reviewed twice a
year and approved by business unit Managing Directors.

Risk assessments are based on a '5 x 5' scale ranging from minimal to
catastrophic, with any risks faling into the Group's upper limits having
mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these risks are
managed down to acceptable levels.

Risk mitigation

Each iderdified risk has a defined controf owner wha is responsible for
developing and implementing a risk mitigation plan. As part of the risk
review process, each controt is required 1o be reviewed and formaily
assessed for its eflectiveness in mitigating risk. In order to strengthen
the oversight of risk management and internal control, audit and risk
governance meetings accur at a business unit level.

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are

aligned with the Audit Cormittee’s objectives, The agenda requires
business units to review their top-level risks and the progress of
associated mitigation plans as well as assess any changes to the external
environment and their consequent impact on business units' risk profile.
In addition, reports from the Internal Audit function and other internat
or external assurance providers are discussed, with the objectives to
share best practice and identify common or emerging risk thernes.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment is
undertaken 2t both business and Group level, with the Audit Committee
formally raviewing performance throughout the year and advising on the
eflectiveness of the risk management system in place.
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Risk monitoring and review

Principal risks to the business and associated mitigation plans
are presented 1o the Audit Committee and are monitored on
an ongong basis.

The risk management framework 1s designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the rek of failing to achieve the objectives and strategies

of the Group and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material risk and ioss. The Board. through
the Audit Committee, considers the nature and extent of significant
risks in settung the Group's strategy. Details of the principal risks of
the Group are set out on pages 38 to 46. tt should be noted that other
risks are cdentified as part of the risk management process, but these
do not have a material impact an the Group's averall ability tc achieve
business objectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
management process.

The Audit Commuttee confirmns that this risk management process has
been in place throughout the reporting year and remains in place up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. However, as
described, the process 15 continuing to evalve and will be subject to
review and improvement.

Whistleblowing

Since September 2017, Mitie has operated an independent
whistieblowing serwice to enable employees, suppliers and third parties
to report any concerns or wrongdoing anonymously without any fear of
retaliation. The service, which is managed by an independent service
provider, can be accessed via a freephone numbey, a free online app or
through the service provider's website.

Details of the service are made available to employees via Mitie's Code
of Conduct and are displayed on Mitie's intranet and workplace posters.
Details of the service are also communicated to suppliers via Mitie's
sourcing portal and to other third parties via www.mitie.com.

The service and related internal procedures are structured to ensure
that all reports are reviewed and investigated independently from the
area of the business to which they relate, thereby minimising the risk of
conflicts arising.

All reports are copied to the Group Legal function, which is intended to
ensure transparency and enable any trends across different divisions and
functions to be identified and addressed. An update on whistleblowing
activity is provided 16 the Executive Leadership Team as appropriate
and to the Board at each Board meeting.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaning an efective mternal control
framework, Mitie's system of internal control consists of financial,
operational and compliance controls.

The systern covers both entity level and monitoring and oversight
controls, comprising business leadership review and direction, and
detailed process controls and control activities, which are embedded
in business processes. During FY 18/19. a comprehensive exercise was
commenced to review, improve and docurment internal controls across
the Group.

Mitie's policies and procedures are documented in the Business
Managernent System (BMS) and are available to management and
employees through an intranet portal. Divisional and functional
leadership teams ensure that cantrols are operating within the processes
and procedures, and that risks are being appropriately managed.



The Audit Committee conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal controt annually. This review i supported by a report
fram the Head of Internal Audit and includes a control assessment
exercise undertaken by Internal Audit in conjunction with the business
leadership teams. The review focuses on the key internal controls which
manage the risks faced by the business. The Committee also considers
the results of the work completed by Internal Audit, which are reported
to it in regular updates, There has continued te be a significant number
of internal control weaknesses reported to the Audit Committee in
reports produced by the Internal Audit team. This is because the internal
audrt work plan s targeted at areas known. or suspected to have, weak
or ineffective internal controls. Remedial action plans developed by
management to address any control weaknesses found are monitored
by the Audit Committee to ensure timely closure of the actions.

Further detail on this can be found in the Audit Committee Report

on page 66.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audtt function’s autharity and responsibilities are defined

in its charter. which is reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit function operates independently and reports directly
to the Audit Committee administratively to the Chief Financial Officer).
This reporting line offers independence from audited activities and allows
the Internal Audit function to achieve cbjectivity.

The work of the Internal Audit function helps to provide assurance

over the effectiveness of the Group's governance, risk and control
frameworks. The Chair of the Audit Committee oversees the
appointment and removal of the Head of Internal Audit and assesses
the function’s performance against internal audit objectrves. The annual
internal audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee. All amendments
1o the approved annual internal audrt plan are communicated to the
Audit Committee through periodic update reports. The results of

each internal audit are documented in an audit report for internal
distribution and action.

The Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s external auditor,
BDO LLP have access to all internal audit reports issued dunng the year.
The Audit Commitiee also receives a quarterly report on internal audits
completed in the period, and reports from BDO LLP arising from its
audn work. These pravide an independent perspective on the Group's
internal financial control systems.
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Audit Commiittee report

Report from the
Audit Committee Chair

G

The current financial year has
seen further improvement in the
internal control and financial
reporting environment.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

As Charr of the Audit Committee | am pleased to present my first
report to shareholders. | was appointed Chair of the Audit Committee
n July 2018, having been a member of the Commttee since Septernber
2017. | would fike to thank my predecessor, Mark Reckitt, for his
leadership of the Committee and work with the Group during what
had been a difficult period with a number of complex and challenging
matters being presented for the Committee’s consideration

It is gratifying to report that continued further improvements have been
made by the Group te strengthen the intemnal control environment,
improve the accuracy of financial reporting, and ensure consistency of

Audit Committee members

Mark Redkitt was the Chairman of the Audit Committes from

Juty 2015 untdd july 2018, Mary Reilly succeeded Mark as Chair of

the Audit Committee on 3t July 2018, having been a member of the
Commitiee since | September 2017. Mary has a weahth of experience
as a non-executive drector and chairing audit and risk committees.

She has extensive relevant and recent accounting, finance and
management experence. Mary's full biography can be found on page 52.

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises independent
Non-Executive Directors who are all considered appropriately

experienced to fulfil their duties. application of accounting policy across the Group, including:
- * An appropriate risk managerment and internal control culture is
Chair ::Z 2:'2{'“ m g: Jluiy %g:g being successfully embedded in eadh division through divisionai audit
uty committees which are attended by the division's Managing Director
Committee Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat and Finance Directov, the Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financal
members  Philippa Couttie from 22 May 2018 Controller, and other representatives or specialists as required. Going
Roger Yates from 31 July 2018 forward each division will present its key risks and mitigations along

with the status of ary follow-up actions to the Audit Committee for

Frequency of Audit Committee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2019. the Audit Comrnittee met seven
times. For the Drrectors’ attendance, see table on page 55. Invitations to
attend meetings are normatly extended 10 the Group's external auditor,
the Charman. the Senior Independent Director, the Chief Exacutive
Officer. the Chief Financial Officer. the Director of Group Finance, the
Group Financial Controfler, and the Head of Internal Audrt.

The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditor and the
Head of internal Audit without the Executive Directors present.
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review at least once each financial year and more frequently should
circumstances require;

The strengthening of the Group finance function s now largely
cornplete, this has become a function which 1s capable of setting and
monitering financial and accounting policy as well as supporting the
commerdial and financia objectives of each dwision and the Group

as 2 whole; and

The size of the Internal Audit team has been increased through
external recruitment bringing new external perspectives alongside
additional capacity. A comprehensive risk focused programme of
work has been successfully delivered in FY 18/19, and a simidar
detailed plan for FY 19720 has been developed by the Head of Internal
Awdit in consultation with management and the Audit Committee.
The outsourcing of the finance back office to Genpact was completed
durng 2018: a second phase of work is now underway to rationalise,
smplify and standardise processes across the Group to promote
efficiency and improved financial control. A key enabler of this phase
will be to move the Engineering Services dwision from a legacy finance
system onto the Group's SAP platform as well as more general
improvements to accounting and control processes.



Having joined the Board n September 2017, | saw the scope and impact
of many of the issues identified during FY 16/17. It is encouraging to see
the substantial progress that has been made since then and in particular
o note that in the main the matters presented for consideration by the
Audit Committee, while ofien stil complex and judgemental, are more
in the nature of those which would typically arise in a group of this scale
and with this mix of businesses and contracts.

In addition to fulfilling its normal programme of activities this year the
areas of focus for the Audit Committee have been:

* Ensuring the continued development of the Internal Audit function
by supporting recruitment and challenging the audit plan to ensure
maximum impact throygh atignment of audits with the risks faced by
each division and the Group more generally:

Assessing the judgements made by management in respect of

the acquisition and disposals made by the Group. In particular the
Audit Committee has assessed management's approach to and
assumptions made in respect of the valuation of intangible assets
associated with Vision Security Group as well as the associated gain
on purchase, the gains and losses on disposals included i the income
statementt in respect of the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limnted
and the Social Housing business. and the provisions made for legacy
kabilities retained by the Group as part of the dsposal of the Social
Housing business;

Evaluating the approach taken by management 1o support the
going concern and viability statements set out on pages 86, 87

and 47 respectively:

Considering whether the Annual Report and Accounts prowide
sufficient information to understand the financial position and
prospects of the Group; and

Following the successful early adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
contracts with custormers!, considening the process followed by
management 1o assess the impact of IFRS 9 *Financial Instrurmnents’
and to embed the accounting requirements of this standard and
IFRS 15 into the Group’s monthly accounting progesses.

@ Further detail regarding the Audit Committee and its work can be
found on PG 64-67.

In conclusion, the Audit Committee can provide positive assurance to

the Board, that the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole,

1s faw, balanced and understandabie, and provides shareholders with
sufficient and appropriate information to enable an assessment of the
Group's pasition and performance, business model and strategy.

As Chair of the Audit Committee, | will be available at the 2019 AGM
o answer any questions about the work of the Audit Committee.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

oy 228
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Audit Committee report continued

Key purpose of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee prowides effective governance of the
appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting and the
performance of both the Internal Audit function and the external
auditor. The Audit Committee also supports the Board in meeting rts
respongibilities in respect of overseeing the Group's nternal control
systerns, business risk management, and related compliance activities,

@ The Audit Committee's Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitle.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The role of the Audit Committee in relation

to financial reporting

The primary role of the Audit Committee in relation to financial
reportng & to review with both management and the external auditor
the appropriatenass of the half-yearly financial report and Annual Report
and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst other matters:

* The consistency of, and any changes to, significant accourting policies

and practices both an a year-on-year basis and acrass the Group;

The clarity and completeness of disclosures and the context n which

statements are made;

The methods used 1o account for significant or unusual transactions

where different approaches are possible; and

* Whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is far,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from the
Chief Financial Officer and also reports from the external auditor on
the gutcomes of the half-year review and year-end audit.

.

*

Significant issues considered by the

Audit Committee during the year

The Audit Comnmittee gives attention to matters it considersto be
important by virtue of their size, complexity, level of judgement required,
ar potential impact on the financial statemenits and wider business
madel, and matters pertaining to governance. identification of the issues
deemed to be significant takes place following open. frank and challenging
discussion between the Audit Corsmittee members, with input from the
Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor, the Head of Intermal Audit,
the Group Financial Controller. and other relevant Mite employees.

The Audit Committee considered the significant matters set out
below during the course of the financial year. In all cases, papers were
presented to the Audit Committee by managernent, setting out the
relevant facts, matenal accounting estimates, and the judgermnents
associated with each item. The external auditor provided a paper
setting out its views on each area of judgement.

The Audit Committee discussed the papers with management and
sought the views of the external auditor on each matter. For each
area of judgement. the Audit Committee concurred with the
treatment adopted and any relevant disdosure presented in the
Annual Repart and Accounts.
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Revenue recognition

The Group adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
from | April 2017. While this standard has in general reduced the level
of judgerment required in respect of revenue and profit recognition,

the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
setting out the engoing activity 1o embed this standard into monthly
reporting and contract performance measurement processes as well as
the approach taken to judgemental areas such as contract modifications,
mabilisation costs, pre-contract costs, and the recognition of revenue as
performance obligations are achieved,

Provisioning for legacy contractual liabilitles

Under the terms of the disposal of the Social Housing business the
Group retained liability for certain contractual issues for completed
cartracts Management has made judgements to arcwe at the provisions
recorded in the finandial statements. The Audt Committee has
considered papers prepared by management setting out the basis

for these judgements,

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired

During November 2018 the Group concluded the acquisition of Vision
Security Group Limited and its subsidiary companies. As required by
iFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ the Group has carried out work to
assess the fair value of the consideration paid, and the assets and labilities
acquired. Such an assessment includes the evaluation of intangible assets
which were not previously recognised by the acquired entities.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the process, assumptions, and methodology applied to assess
the fair value of those intangible assets, the value of the consideration
and the resulting income statement credit of £8.8m representing a gan
on bargain purchase.

The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment made by
management in respect of these matters.

Assessment of the ne of pletion settle ts
During the year the Group has completed the dispasal of Mitie Past
Control Limited and the Sacial Housing business and the acquisition
of Vision Security Group Limited. All these transactions include a
completion accounts process for the final determination of the
consideration due.

These processes are ongong and so the Audit Committee has
considered papers prepared by management detailing the current status
of each negotiation and management's assessment of the likely outcome.



Adoption of IFRS 9 and the potential impact of IFRS 16
The Group adopted IFRS $ ‘Financal instruments’ from { April 2018
and will be required to adopt IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ for the year ending

31 March 2020.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
n respect of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9, the potential impact
of IFRS 16, and the disclosures made in Note | 10 the consclidated
financial statements.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the disclosures made within the
financial statements in respect of:

+ IFRS 9 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the impact
on the Group of the changes in the measurement and disclosure
of finandial instruments brought about by the adoption of thrs
standard, and

* IFRS 16 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the substantial
change in the presentation of the Group’s income staternent and
balance sheet which will arise when this standard s adopted for the
year ending 31 March 2020.

Valuation of goodwill

The Group has made a number of acquistions in previous periods
and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on rs balance sheet in
respect of the businesses acquired (see Note 12} to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group ¢onsiders the carrying value of all goodwill on at least

an annual basis, or when an indicator of impairment has occurred.

The valuation and mpairment review of goodwill 15 assessed for each
individual cash-generating unnt (CGU)) and considers the balance sheet
value of the goodwill compared to the net present value of the post-tax
cash flows that are expected to be generated by that CGU. The
approach involves an estimation of the future cash flows expected to be
derwved from each CGU and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
which are then applied to the cash flows to cakculate a net present value.

The assumprtions underpinning the review of the carrying value of
goodwill were considered by the Audit Committee. The cash flow
forecasts used in the review were derwed from the most recent CGU
budgets which have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the
long-term business plans of the Group.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the assumptions and methodology applied to assess the carrying
value of goadwill. The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment
made by management in respect of this matter.

Other material accounting judgements

Management has continued to operate the structured process, first
ntroduced in September 2017, for the identification of material
accounting judgements made in arriving at the results. The judgements
with a significant actual or potertial impact upon Group results are
presented to the Audrt Committee for corsideration.

The Audit Commuttee has considered papers prepared by management
in respect of the following matters:

* The recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income;

= Drsclosure of contingent liabilities related to the Group's participation
in mult-employer pensicn schemes;

* Disclosures in respect of other contingent liabilities:

* Provisioning for commercial settlements. disputes and other
contractual liabilities;

* Provisions related to the indemnity provided as part of the disposal
of the Healthcare business during FY 16/17, and

» The need for provisions in respect of potentially onerous contracts.

The Audit Commuttee has reviewed the mformation provided by
management as well as the views expressed by the external audrtor.
The Audit Committee concurs with the jJudgements made by
management in respect of the accounting for and disclosure of
these matters.

Use of Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)
The Company's performance measures continue to include some
measures which are not defined or specified under IFRS.

. The Audit Committee has considered presentation of these addrtiona!

measures In the context of the guidance rsued by the FRC in relation
to the use of APMs, challenge from the external auditer. and the
requirement that such measures provide meaningful insight for
shareholders into the results and financial posrion of the Group.

The Audit Comimittee concurs with the judgements made by
management in respect of the presentation of the APMs. Furthermore,
the Audit Committee concludes that clear and meaningful descriptions
have been provided for the APMs used, that the relationship between
these measures and the IFRS measures is clearly explained, that the
IFRS measures are afforded equal prominence to the APMs, and that
the APMs support understanding of the finandial statemerts.

A reconciliation of the APMs to the IFRS measures is provided in the
Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165,

Review of the Group’s going concern and

viability statements

The Audit Committee has considered the evidence that supports the
Directors' conclusion that the Group has adequate financial resources
to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can therefore
prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis,

The Audit Committee considered papers detailing management's
assessment of the prospects and performance of the Group induding:

* The future business plans of the Group;

* The potential impact of acquisiilon or disposal activity and possible
changes to the composition of the Group;

+ The projected future cash flows of the Group;

* The availability of core and ancillary financing facilities and compliance
with the related covenants;

* The projected drawn positions and headroom avalable on the core
committed financing faclities; and

+ Those matters reviewed in connection with the Viability Statement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and considered the disclosures
related to going concern and wability in the Annual Report and Accounts
and considered them to be appropriate.

Details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in relation to
preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis can be found
n the Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 86 to 87, as can the
details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in assessing the
viability of the Group.

The more detailed assessmerit of the Group's long-term viability is set
out in the Viability Statement on page 47.
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Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit development and review of findings

During FY 17/18, the Audit Committee requested that Internal Audit
expand its scope of work to include greater coverage of the commercial
risks and issues faced by the Group and the associated mitigating
processes and controls. Additionally. 3 focus on the effectiveness and
consistency of controls comtained within Group-wide processes was
agreed. Following this request the size of the Internal Audit team was
increased. The Group continued to make use of Grant Thornton to
support the delivery of the Internal Audit plan, utilising spedialist
resource to assist sn certain areas, notably (T audits.

The Interna! Audit programme during FY 18/19 has included:

* A review of the programme by the IS and Legal functions to ensure

that the Company is compliant with the new data privacy (GDPR)

regulations, and how this has been embedded into the ongoing

activities and business units; '

A comprehensive audit of the processes and procedures to bring

new employees inta the Company, incduding the relevant security

and vetting assessments and induction processes:

An audit of the effectiveness of the controls and risk managerment

processes in the mobilisation of the new Detantion & Escorting

Services Home Office contract within the Care & Custody

division; and

* Areview of the projects business within the Engineering Services
division, which has undergone significant change during the year,
having absorbed the roofing and painting businesses from the former
Property Management division,

The Head of Internal Audit reviews the content and focus of the Internal
Audit plan throughout the year to ensure it reflects the risk profile of
the busmess, resulting in a number of amendments to the plan originally
presented to the Audit Committee in March 2018. This has, in part, been
due to the sale of the Social Housing and Pest Control businesses and
acquisition of VSG, as well as the significant amount of pracess and
organisational transforration affecting both the risk and control
processes. Al of the changes to the Internal Audit plan were
communicated to and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviewed the updates provided by the Head
of Internal Audit at meetings throughout the year, which induded
developments in the internal control environment, highlighting
improvements and areas requiring greater focus. During the year,
there comtinued to be 2 number of audits rated as unsatisfactory or
requiring improveraent, which is reflective of the targeting of internal
audit actvity to processes and areas where internal controls are
suspected to require improvement.

The Audit Committee alse monitored the status of the actions
undertaken by management to address the findings from internal audit
reports, Whilst the number of actions completed after the original
planned closure dates has not ingreased, there is still more work to

be done to ensure that sufficient time and resource is assigned to
completing actions. The Audit Committee contiues 1 montor the
closure of actions closely and challenge management to ensure they
are addressed on a timely basis.
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Tax strategy

The Chief Financial Officer presented a paper to the Audit Committee
detailing the Group's tax strategy and associated gaovernance, planning
and attitude to risk. The Audit Commvttee considered this paper and
was satisfied with the approach being taken by the Group.

External audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performarce of the
external auditor 1 respect of audit related services and non-audit
services and is committed to ensuring the independence, effectiveness
and objectivity of the external auditor.

External auditor eflfectiveness
The Audit Committee monitored the conduct and eflectiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of:

+ The experience, expertise and perceptiveness of the auditor:

+ The plarming and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit reports: and

* The conduct of the auditor including the Audit Committee's
experience of interaction with the auditor.

In addition to receiving written reports from the audrtor and

from management. the Audit Committee also conducted private
meetings with the external auditor and separately with management.
These meetings provide the opportunity for open discussion and
feedback on the audit process, the responsiveness of management.
and the effectiveness of both internal and external audtt teams.

Non-audit services provided by the external auditor
The Audit Commitiee has approved a non-audit services policy that
ensures the external auditor remains independent and objective
throughout the provision of ts ndependent audit services and
when formutating its audit opinion. In order to retain the flexibility
of utilising the external auditor to prowde non-audit services, the
following critera must akso be met,

These are such that the external auditor does not:

* Audit its own work;

+ Make management decsions for the Group,

+ Create a conflict of interest; or

* Find itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the various types of

non-audit services which might be required and determines the
analysis to be undertaken along with the level of authority required
before the external auditor can be considered for such work. Further.
the policy is consistent with the Financial Reporting Council’s ethical
standards policy.

When considering the appointment of the external audror for
non-audit services, the following factors are taken into account:

= The quality of work provided by the external auditor;

« Representations provided by the external auditor regarding

independence and objectivity, along with internal controls

implemented when providing non-audit services;

The level of the external auditor’s understanding of the Group:

* The nature of the work being performed, and

* The commercial and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required.



A summary of the fees paid to the external auditor is given in Note 6 10
the financial statements. The only other service provided to the Group
for the year ended 3| March 2019 was the review of the interim financial
staternents. The Audit Committee considered reports from both
management and the external auditor, none of which raised concerns
abaut auditor independence. The Audit Cornmittee confirms that the
requirements of the non-audst services policy have been met throughout
the year.

Appointment and reappointment of the external auditor
The Group undertock a competitive external audit tendering process in

2017 and BDO LLP was selected as the Group's auditor with effect from

19 September 2017, replacing Deloitte LLP.

Scott McNaughton is the lead partner on the audit for the year ended
31 March 2019 and was the lead partner in the previous year.

" The Audit Committee considers annually the need to tender the audit
for audit quality or independence reasons. There are no contractual
abligations n place that restnct the Group's choice of statutory auditor.

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group is in compliance with
the Statutory Audnt Serwices for Large Companies Market Investigation
(Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

Assurance

In accordance with Imternal Control: Guidance for Directors and section
C.2.3 of the Code, the Board performs a formal annual assessment

of the operation and effectiveness of the system of internal control,
covering all material controls induding financial, operational and
compliance controls, and updates this assessment prior to the sgning

of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are maonitored at executive leve! to ensure that control
changes are implemented appropriately and that they are effective.
The Head of Internal Audit oversees the application of control
environment improvements and attends Audit Commitiee meetings
to provide regular updates on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls and the results of the internal audit process.

Features of the internal control and risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and refiability of financial reporting indude:

* A culture of good governance. integrity. competence, fairness
and responsibility,

+ Group policies and procedures to support the business by
providing an operational internal control framework: and

= Clearty defined responsibilities, delegated in accordance with the
Group's delegated authorties and authorsation registers.

Accountability for internal controt and risk management systems is
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses wrthin divisions
are investigated and resolved. Management and the Committee seek to
ensure that their cause is understood, and mitgating actions are taken
to limit the potential for recurrence. [n view of the work of the Internal
Audit function, managemertt and the external auditor, i is considered
unlikely that a weakness within a particular division would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Review of whistleblowing processes

Part of the Audit Commtiee’s role 1s to ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place in relation to whistleblowing and to review
on an annual basis the Group's whistleblowing policy. The Group

has continued 1o operate its "Speak up’ service via an independent
third-party provider Reporting of matters raised through this service
is to the Board of Directors.
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Nomination Committee report

Report from the Nomination

Committee Chairman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chairman  Derek Mapp
Committee Phil Bentley untdl 31 March 2019
members Pyl Woolf untit 31 March 2013
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Jack Boyer untik 31 August 2018
Philippa Couttie
Jennifer Duvalier
Larry Hirst until 3t july 2018
Mark Reckitt until 31 July 2018
Mary Reilty
Roger Yates

Frequency of Momination Committee meetings
Ourmng the year ended 31 March 2019, the MNomination Commitiee
met twice, For the Directors' attendance, see table on page 55.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code),
membership of the Committee comprises a majority of independent
Non-Executive Directors. all of whom are considered to be
appropriately experienced to fulfil their duties. Phil Bentley and Paul
Woolf stood down from the Committee on 31 March 2019, -

Key purpose of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee evaluates the composition, diversity.
experience, knowledge, skills and independence of the Board and its
Committees. This allows appropriate balance to be maintained and
ensures the continued effectiveness of the Board,

The Committee considers the length of service of the Board as a whole
so that the membership of the Board is regularly refreshed, taking into
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group, and the skills,
expertise and diversity required far the future,
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Key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The key responsibilities of the Nomination Commrttee include.

* To identify and nominate candidates to fill board vacancies as and
when they arise;

To ensure plans are in place for an orderty succession to Board and
senior management positions and oversee the development of a
diverse pipeline for succession;

To keep under review the number of external dwectorships held by
each Non-Executive Director;

To review the results of the Board performance evaluation process
that relate to the compesition of the Board: and

To keep the Board Inclusion Policy under review to ensure its
effectiveness and alignment with best pracuce.

.

@ The Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.comfinvestors/corporate-governance.

Key activities during the year

Composition

As indicated in last year's report, Mark Reckrtt and Larry Hirst stood
down from the Board on 31 July 2018. As anncunced in August 2018,
Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August 2018,

As it does annually, and in light of the above changes, the Nlomination
Committee reviewed the composition and leadership of the Board and
each of its Commitzees. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
Board's composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout the
year, having regard in particular to the integrity, skills, knowledge and
experience of its Directors and the size and nature of the business.

A skills matrix can be found on page §9.

In accordance with the Code, all Directors will stand for re-election at
the 2019 AGM.

Succession planning and talent development

The Board recognises the importance of planning for the future and
the succession planning process. During the year, the Nomination
Committee considered the ongoing succession planning and refreshing
of the Board,

The Committee also reviewed the work undertaken within the business
during the year to identify, develop, engage and nurture talent across the
Group and in particular at the level immediately below the Executive
Leadership Team, the Group Leadership Team.

During the year, a ful! talent review was conducted, and work continues
to identfy personalised development plans for those recognisedas
having the highest potential. The Committee also considered the work
underway o increase the performance and capability of the Group's
senior leaders. Firm foundations are now established within Mitre to
build a more visible talent and succession process.



Director time commitments

Buring the year, the Committee reviewed the time commitments for
each Non-Executive Director to ensure there are no concerns regarding
overcommitment. The review considered the number and scope of
appointments, as well as the size and type of company in which roles are
held, the views of major shareholders and current published guidelines
and recommendations.

The Committee noted the significant vote against the re-election of
Mary Reilly at the 2018 AGM and the Company’s update statement
published on 3| January 2019 which can be found at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance,

The majority of the votes recerved against Mary's re-election were
attributable to one of the Company’s major shareholders whose policy
15 not to support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit committee are also

not expected to hold more than one other position. !

Members of the Board have met with the major shareholder and have
scught to prowide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate
1o her duties. Director ume commitments also formed part of the
discussion held with major shareholders at a shareholder dinner held

in March 2015.

The Board remains confident that all Board members have sufficient
time to dedicate to their duties.

Board diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equality. Diversity and Inclusion Policy that
clearty states its commitment to the indusion and diversity of all
employees at all levels,

As an extension to the Group-wide policy, during the year the Board
adopted a Board Inclusion Policy, which recognises the importance of
Board membership reflecting diversity in its broadest sense and sets
objectives for diversity at Board level.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, is committed to:

Ensuring its membership reflects a combination of demographics,
skills, experience, race, age, gender, educational and professional
backgrounds which provides a range of perspectives, insights and
chalienges needed to support good decision making and reflects the
diverse workforce at Mitie;

With regard to gender diversity, the Board mantains a balance so that,
as a mintmum, 30% of the Directors are women provided that this
remains consistent writh the skills and diversity requirements when
seeking a new appointment to the Board; and

Supporting and monitonng activiuies to increase the percentage of
senior management roles held by women and other
under-represented groups across Mitie.

The Committee is pleased to report that as at 31 March 2019,

50% of the Board is femnale. 1t is the Board's intention that female
representation on the Board will be maintained at a level higher than
that recommended by the Hampton-Alexander review, although it 1s
recognised that there may be periods of time when the balance falls
below during the search and recruitment process.

Across the Group female employees account for €.32% of the
workforce, |1% of the Executive Leadership Team, and 24% of the
Group Leadership Team are female.

During the year, Phil Bentley set a strategic objective to increase the
number of women in science, technology, engineering and mathematics
(STEM) roles across the Group. To support this objective, the Group
has joined the WISE campaign which enables and energises people in
business to increase the participation, contribution and success of
women in STEM. The partnership will help us to generate and share
fresh nsight and knowledge about the causes of and solutions to gender
imbalance in STEM — from classroom to boardroom. It also cements
our commitment to making Mitie a great place to work, demanstrating
our value of 'our diversity makes us stronger”.

Further detaiks of the Group's commrtment to diversity and the diversity
of Miie’s people can be found in the sustainability section of our website
at www.mitie.com,

Derek Mapp
Chairman of the Nominatign Committee

Disclosure Committee

Overview and purpose

The Disclosure Committee assists and informs the decsions of
the Board concerning the identification of inside information and
makes recommendations about how and when the Company
should disdose that information in accordance with the
Company's disclosure policy.

The Chairman of the Disclosure Committee s the Chief
Executive Officer and the other members of the Committee
are the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Financial Officer,
the General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Group
Legal Director.

The Committee met once during the year to approve the
announcement relating to the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited.

Derek Phit Paul Nivedita Philippa ennifer Mary Roger
Skl Mapp Bentley Woaaoll K Bhagat Coutte wvalier Reilly Yates
Leadership and business operations <1 & & & & & < <9
Strategy development < <4 & & < &
Corporate governance <4 & ] “ & & @ 14
Audit/risk management and assurance & (4 & & <]
Remuneration/HR <] &
Commercial 1< & <4 & & & &
Tachnology/digital « &
Finance & <] & < & &
Investment community & «
Public sector experience & &
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the

Remuneration Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors'
remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

| was pleased to be appointed as Chaw of the Remuneration Commitiee
from 31 August 2018. My thanks go to Jack Boyer, who served as Chair of
the Cormmittee from October 2014, for his support when | took over
the role.

The report s split into three main parts:

Executive remuneration at a glance. This sats out a summary of
our approach, indluding how we intend to operate under our policy
and rermuneration cutcomes during the year;

* The Annual Report on Remuneration. This provides more detall
on the above, as well as setting out other remuneration-related
disclosures;

Summary of our policy. Our existing policy was approved by 99.7% of
shareholders at the 2018 AGM and | would like 1o thank shareholders
for their continued support. (Na changes are propesed to our policy
this year and a sumnmary of the policy has been included on pages 71
to 73. The full Policy approved at the 2018 AGM is avaiable on our
website (www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance) and in
the Annual Report and Accounts 20(8.

The Rermuneration Committee has addressed a number of issues during
the year. | have described below the approach the Committee has taken,
together with the context in which key decisions were made.
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We are committed to
providing remuneration that
is both fair and reflective
of Company performance.

Jennifer Duvalier
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

With regard to fixed pay. it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors will not be increased for FY 19720 and so will remain
£900,000 for Phil Bentley (since appoirtment in November 2018} and
£430,000 for Paul Woalf (since appointment in November 2017).

FY 18/19 bonus

The Committee assessed outcomes aver the period with respect to
operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonuses
of 794% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bentley
and Paul Woeolf respectively. Achievernent against these measures is
described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
Furthermore, the Committee challenged itself to ensure that these
bonus outcomes were appropriate in the round and was comfortable
that these bonus levels are commensurate with strong organisational
and individual performance.

2016 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received a Long Term incentive
Plan (LTIP) award in Novernber 2016. This award vests subject to the
extent 1o which the annual bonus targets that apply for FY 1718, FY
18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and 2 bonus paid. in the event Phii earns a
bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award vests, with 67% vesting if
a bonus is ezrned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned
in all three years. In any event. no vesting will actually occur until 2020.
The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY {8/19 are deemed to
have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been
achieved to date.

Incentives approach for FY 19/20

For FY 19120, ncentive opportunities will rernain the same for Phil
Bentley and Paul Waooll. For bonus, this will be 160% and 120% of salary
respectively. For LTIP, this will be 200% and 150% of salary respectively,
For the FY 19720 bonus, we will have the same split of financial and
strategic targets. The mix of measures will be as follows: 35% organic
revenue growth; 35% operating profit: 10% on receivables; 10% on
individual objectives: and (0% on other strategic targets. For the LTIP. we
will continue 1o use 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion targets.



The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all Non-Executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Committee met
five times. For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55.

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration

of Mitie's Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking mte account the
need to ensure Executive Directors are properly incentivised to perform
in the interests of the Company and its sharehalders. The Committee is
akso responsible for setting the remuneration for other senior executives,
induding at least, the Executive Leadership Team.

@ The Cammittee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The Committee regularty consults with the Chief Executive Cfficer
and the Group HR Director on various matters relating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors,

However, the Chief Executive Officer and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own remuneration
are discussed. This 1s also the case for other executives attending
Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chief Executive Officer and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governance developments

The Committee noted with interest corporate governance
developments during the year. In particular, the updated July 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code ntroduced a number of requirements
which apply to the Company from | April 2019. We are very mindlul of
these developments and will report to shareholders in our 2020 Annyal
Report on Remuneration on our approach and policies {e.g. pension
provision and post-cessation shareholding requirements).

Conclusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors remuneration report
(advisory vote) at the 2019 AGM | welcome your views and feedback
on the report.

Jennifer Duvatlier

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
jenniferduvalier@mitie.com

UerrllPrtinir

Key features of our remuneration policy

GG

Our philosophy — The Committee believes in an approach to executive pay
which is commensurate with value creation for shareholders

The table below highlights the key features of our policy and our approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangernents with the shareholder experience. The full policy can be found on our website at www.mitie.com.

@ Track record @ Shareholding
in taking a guideline of
responsible 200% of salary

in conjunction
with enhanced

and appropriate
approach to pay

(e.g. exercise malus and
of negative clawback
discretion) provisions

@ Bonus deferral @ LTIP holding
— 50% of the period of two
bonus deferred years after
into shares vesting —
for at least five-year
two years time horizon
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration

at a glance

Key principles of the policy

Mitie's remuneration policy is based on a number of principles:

@ Reward should be
aligned with the
shareholder experience

The performance-related incentive
arrangements are designed to align the
interests of Executive Directors with
those of shareholders and 10 promote
the Group's long-term success.

. @ The majority of the
package should be
performance-related

The majority of reward opportunity
for Executive Directors is provided
through performance-related
incentives inked to the Group's

(3) The policy should
be comprehensive
and simple
The overall remuneration policy
is designed to be comprehensive
without becoming overcomplicated
and 10 encourage Executive Directors

Summary of remuneration policy

Executrve Directors’ remuneration is made up of the following elements:

strategic goals and taking account to concentrate on profitable growth,
of the Group's attitude to risk. reward
under these incentives 1s linked to both
individual and Group performance.
Variable

/H i H\/ H

N\

+ °

Executive incentives and link to strategy

The foliowing table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY 19/20 support the Group's strategy and KPls.

Sustained and Serong cash-
renewed profit growth Quality client base generative b Individual obj Ozher strategic targets
Annual & 35% operating & 35% organic & 10% reduction in & 10% indidual & 10% other strategic
n bonUS profit revenue growth receivables objectives targets
LTIP & 50% adjusted EPS & 50% cash conversion
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All employee incentive arrangements
The Company also operates SAYE share option and Share Incentive Plan arrangements, allowing employees to participate in share ownership and
to share in corporate success over the medium term, .

Summary of how we intend to operate our policy for FY 19/20
This table summarises the approach for remuneration arrangemenits for Executive Directors {(Phil Bentley as CEO and Paul Woolf as CFO) for
FY 18/19 under the policy approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply our policy in FY 19/20.

At a glance FY 18/19 FY I9/20
CEO: £900.000 CEC: £300000
Base Sa!ary CFO: £430.000 CFQO: £430,000

Maximum bonus
opportunity

CEQO: 160% of salary
CFO: (20% of salary

CEO: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary

Bonus deferral

50% of borws deferred into shares which
vest after at least two years

50% of bonus deferred inte shares which
vest after at least two years

Bonus performance
measures — mix

70% financial, 30% strategic

7086 financial, 30% strategic

Bonus performance
measures — metrics

Francial: orgarue revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: Net Promoter Score (INPS), employee
engagement, indlividual

Mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. and 10% each on customer NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Financial: organic revenue growth. operating profit
Strategic: reduction in recesvables, individual, other
strategic

Mix 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. 1% reduction in receivables and 103 each
on individual objectives and other strategic targets

et EFS: 1ocn ot iy RO, 150 o iy

LTIP performance 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash corwersion 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion
measures

LTIP holdlng period of Shares released after at least five years Shares released after at least five years

two years after vest

(vesting afier three years plus two-year
haolding penod)

(vesting after three years plus two-year
holding period)

Share ownership
requirements

200% of salary

200% of salary

Malus and clawback
provisions

As per policy approved by shareholders at 2048 AGM  As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration
at a glance continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ended 3| March 2019
The following prowdes a surnmary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of rernuneration for Executive Directors. Full details can be found
later in our Annual Report on Remuneration,

Annual bonus in respect of FY 18/19

The Committee assessed outcomes over the period with respect to operating profit, arganic revenue, Net Promater Score (NPS), emplayee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonuses of 79.4% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bentley and Paul
Woolfl respectively. Achievement against these measures is described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneratian. Furthermore, the
Committee challenged rsell to ensure that these bonus outcomes were appropriate it the round and was comfortable that these bonus levels are
comnwnsurate with strong organisational and individual performance. Please see table on page 76 for further detail.

2016 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Beritley received an LTIP award in November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY (8/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years and fult vesting if a banus is earned in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually
occwr until 2020. Paul Woolf does not hold any 2016 LTIP awards, The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to have been
met and therefore a bonus in twe of the three years has been achieved to date

Single figure for FY 18/19
The table below reports a singte figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 3| March 2019 and their
comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Phil Bentley

£ 1019 £ 0i8
@ Salary 900,000 @ Salary 00,000
@ Benefits 25,406 @ Benefits 22549
@ Pension 180,000 @ Pension 180,000
@ Bonus 1,143,542 @ Bonus -
Total 1,248,948 Total 1,102,549
Paul Woolf
£ 019 £ prie]]
@ Salary 430,000 @ Salary 166,136
@ Benefits 1716 @ Benefits 686
@ Pension 43,000 @ Pension 16614
@ Bonus 404,809 @ Bonus -
Total 879,315 Total 183436

Note: Paul Woolf joined the Col and Board as Chief Financial Officer on 13 November 2017 and the miormation abave for 2018 comprrses his earmings from that date 1o
31 March 2018, Both Phil 2entley and ;aulWoolfwarved their FY 17/18 bonus and there were no LTIP pay-outs (or them in 2018 and 2019,

Further information on the above is provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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Annual Report
on Remuneration

Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Year Salary Benchits Pension Annual bonus LTIP Total
Phil Bentley 201% £900,000 £25,404 £L180,000 £1,143,542 - £1,248,948
2018 £900,000 £22549 £180,000 - - £1,102.59%
Paul Woolf 2019 £430,000 LL71é £43,000 £404,60% - £879,3125
w018 £166,136 L6B6 £16664 - - £183436
Total 201y £3,128,273
018 £1.533,216

Notes:

Paul Wooll joined the Board as Chief Financal Officer on |3 Novernber 1017, The wformation in the table for 2018 above conlirms his earnings as an Executive Divector lrom that date.
The diﬁerenczg ;\ the totals for 2018 is attributable 10 earnings for former Executve Director, Sandip Mahajan, between | April 2017 and his resignation (rom the Board on 13
Novermber 2017,

Benefits relate to the cost 10 the Group of private medical cover, car allowance and linancal/tax planning adwice,
The pension benefit disclosed above comprises cash allowances in lieu of pension contributions for Phd Bentley of 20% of salary and for Paul Woolf at 10% of salary.

Bonus payable in respect of the financal year indudes any deferred element at face value at the date of award. Further information about how the level of the award for the year
ended 3| March 2019 was determined is provided on pages 76 and 77.

For any new Executive Director appointments, the Remuneration Committee will consider the alignmnent of pension arrangements with the
wider workforce.

Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)

The fees for the Non-Executive Directors for the finandial year ended 31 March 2019 and their comparative: figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 are set.
out below:

2049 2018
4000 €000
Derek Mapp' 225 201
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat ~ * 52 43
Jack Boyer? 5 23]
Philippa Couttie 52 20
Jennifer Duvalier? 57 35
Larry Hirst* 20 59
Mark Reckitt® 10 0
Mary Reilly® 57 30
Roger Yates” 59
Total' 547 575

Notes:

*  Allamounts were paid in cash and no other benelits were recetved in the year. The difference in the total for 2018 is attributable to fees for former Non-Exeastive Directorn,
Roger Matthews, between | April 2017 and his stepping down from the Board on 26 July 2017.

Derek Mapp (oined the Board on 9 May 2017 as Chairman-elect and took over as Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee at the AGM on 26 July 2017,
Jack Boyer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018.

Jennifer Duvaber assumed the role of Chair of the Remuneration Committee upon Jack Boyer's resignation

Larry Hirst retwred from the Board on 31 July 2018

Mark Reckitt resigned from the Board on 3| July 2018.

. Mary Reilly assurned the role of Chair of the Audt Committae upan Mark Redett’s resignation,

. Roger Yates assumed the role of Seror Independent Dhrector upon Larry Hirst's retirement

N WA W —
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Directors' remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commenxing | November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020. the annual base salary for Phil Bentley is £900,000.

Commencing |13 November 2017, and reviewed in Apeil 2018, the annual base salary for Paul Woolf was €430,000. The review of Paul Woolf's base
salary in April 2019 resuited in no change in base salary.

Benefits are as described in the notes to the Executive Director remuneration table on page 75. No changes in benefits are planned for the year ending
31 March 2020.

A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2019 which resufted in no change to fees.

2019 2018
2’000 £000
Chairman fees? 228 P21
Non-Executive Director core fees’ 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior Independent Director : 7 7
Chair of a Committee 8 8
Notes:

| The core fees of £52.000 per annum paid to each Non-Executive Director (inckudin theChumgg&wiltocaIQl!,ODOforﬂ:e r ending 31 March 2020 Total fees mduding
additional dutses are expecied to amount to £508,000 for the year ending 31 March (LS67 actuai for the year ended II“Iarch%l?).

2. The Chairman's fee i inclusive of the Non-Exacutive Director core fee and no additional fees are paid to the Chamman where he is chairman or a member of ather Committees

3. For Non-Executive Directors, individual fees comprise the core fee and additional supplemental fees for the Senior Independent Directar and for chairing Commuttees 1o reflect
the greater responsibifty and time commitment required.

Annual Bonus Plan
Annual Bonws Plan awards were made i respect of the year ended 31 March 2019. Phil Bentley was efigible for a maximurm bonus opporturity of 160%
of base salary and Paul Wooll was eligible for 2 maximum bomus opportunity of 120% of base salary.

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets

(the remaining 30%). At the threshold level of performance for financial targets, 25% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 50% of the maximum
bonus opperiunity s due at the target level and |00% at the maximum level. Between these points the out-turn is determined on a linear sliding scale
basis.

As the finantial per formance ranges exduded the impact of IFRS 15 and acquistions and disposals during the year, the performance ranges have been
adjusted for these impacts and the out-turn has been assessed by comparing the reported FY 18/19 results after the impact of IFRS 15, acquisitions and
disposals with the adjusted performance ranges:

Performance Adjusted
measure Weighting performance range Out=turn
Operating profit' 5% of the award £795m threshold The out-turn was £88 Im resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
£83.7m target far this element, being 35% of the maximum bonus oppartunity.
£879m maximurn '
Revenue? 35% of the award £2,15bnthreshold The out-turn was £2.27bn resulting in an outcome of 41.2% of the masarmum
£2.26bn target for this element, being 14.4% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
£2.37bn maximum
Customer Net 10% of the award + Ipts threshold The out-turn was +22pts resulting in an otutcome of 100% of the maximum
Promoter Score + 3pts target for this element. being 10% of the maxirum banus opportunity.
+ Spts maximum
Employee engagement 10% of the award + Ippts threshold The outturn was +|2ppts resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
+ Ippts target for this element, being 10% of the maximum bonus opportunity
+ Sppts maximum
Individual strategic 10% of the award nia The Committee considered performance against the strategic objectives set
objectives out below and determined that the cut-turn was 100% and 30% of the
maximum for the CEO and CFO respectively, being 10% and 9% of the
maximum bonus opportunity.
Notes:

|. Operating profit belore cther tems from continuing operations.
2. Ravenue (rom continung operations.
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The individual strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows:
CEO

Strategic objectives

Strategy Drive business development agenda, with a focus on exiting non-core businesses and adding technology capabiiity:
Strengthen balance sheet to reduce average net debt; and
Head external messaging for Connected Workspace demonstrating its value to chents.

Customers Champion the embedding of unitary account managernent; and
Retention of top accounts

People Ensure leadership team stability and upgrade talent; and
Increase women recruited inta Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) roles.

Shareholder refations Maintain core shareholder support.

CFO

Strategic objectives

Costs Increase cash from the ‘order to cash’ working capital cycle and reduce finance costs from the organisation as part of Finance
transformation.

People Upgrade finance talent measured by an increase in the number of GLT/high-potential employees.

Customer/Technology Implement standard chart of accounts and unitary account management for Mrie's top 50 integrated accounts.

The bonus structure and assessment was as follows:

Financial performance Non-{financial performance Total bonus payable
% of % of %ol % of %ol Bof
salary salary salacy *of satary salary salary % of Total Deferred
payable at  payable at  payable at salary payableat  payableat payable at salary bonus Cash shares
threshold target  maximum payable threshold target  maximum payable €000 €000 L1000
Phil Bentley 8% 56% 2% 79% 0% 24% 48% 48% 1,143,542 571771 571,771
Paul Woolf 21% 2% 84% 59% 0% 18% 36% 35% 404.609 202305 202304

The Annual Bonus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2020. Phil Bentley's maximum bonus opportunity for FY 19720 will
remain at 160% of base salary and Paul Woolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference to performance against a blend of financial
{70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However. if none of the financial targets have been achieved. no bonus will be
payable by reference only 1o the strategic targeis. 50% of any bonus entitlement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercially sensitive and
50 are not disclosed in this report. However, as above, details of the targets will be disdosed in next year's report.

LTIP awards granted in 2018 (subject to audit)
Qn 2 August 2018, the following conditional LTIP awards were granted io the Executive Directors:

Number  Face value Performance Performance % vesting
Award Type of shares' (£'000) % ofsatary conditions period at threshald
Phil Bentl 11 7 1,800
il ey Performance Nit-cost 18032 B 200 Pe,-;ormge finandi
LTIP Aug 18 options conditions are . 25%
Paul Woolf Performance Nil-cost 422950 645 1509 setoutinthe 31 Mt 2027
L1P Aug 18 options table below

Nates:
1. Numnber of shares was calculated based on the average closing share price for up 1o five business days preceding the date of grant ging a share price of 152 50p

LTIP awards granted in 2018 were simplified to two performance measures, adjusted EPS and cash conwversion, These awards will vest in 2021
condrtional on performance against the following measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance pericd three years ending 31 March 2021}

Earnings Per 50% of 5% — 12% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Commitiee as appropriate, is lass than 5%
Share {EPS) the award pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 8.5% pa, 70% of the award will vest. If EPS growth of 12% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 8.5% and 8.5% and 12%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be deterrmined on a finear sliding scale basis,

Cash conversion  50% of 75% — 85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion 1s less than 75% pa. At 75% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves B0% pa cash conversion. Full
vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between 75% and
80% and 80% and 85%. the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear
shiding scale basis.

To reflect the impact of any changes in or adoption of new IFRS accounting standards, the Committee will consider adjusung financial targets
appropriately for subsisting LTIP awards. ensuring that they are not materally easser or harder to satisfy than the original targets Any amended targets
determined by the Committee will be disclosed to shareholders n the next Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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Directors' remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

The grant of 2019 LTIP awards to the Executive Directors will be made in due course. The performance condrions that apply to the awards follow
the same construct as in 2018 with two measures: (i) EPS: and (i} ¢ash conversion, each accounting for 50% of the award with the following
performance conditions:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance period three years ending 31 March 2021)

Earnings Per 50% of 5% - 10% pa 2Zero vesung if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee s appropriate, is less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. If EPS growth is equal 1o 5% pa. 25% of the award will vest If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 7.5% pa. 70% of the award will vest. If EPS growth of 10% pz or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 7.5% and 7.5% and 10%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Cash conversion  50% of 80% - 90% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 80% pa. At 80% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves 85% pa cash conversion, Full
vesting for this portion will occur if 90% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between B0% and
85% and 85% and 90%. the proportion of awards vesting will be detarmined on a knear
sliding scale basis.

Details of July 2016 LTiP awards vesting in July 2019
The Committee assessed the outcome of the July 2016 LTIP awards (based on FY 18/19 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted under the plan
against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesung of portion of the award
measure ‘Weighting Performance range (performance penod three years ending 31 March 2015)
Earnngs Per 25% of 3% —8%pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate. is less than 3%
Share (EPS) the award pa. if performance 15 equal to 3% pa. 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 8% pa, all the awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear siding scale basis.
Relative Total 20% of Outperfortmance Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth is less than the median of the index. if Mitie's TSR
Shareholder the award against the Business growth is equal to the median of the index. 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds
Return (TSR} Support Services subsector the index median TSR by 10% pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two
of the FTSE 350 points the propartion of awards vesting will be deterrmuned on a inear siding scale basis.
Support Services index An underpin condition for underiying finanaal performance also applies.
Strategic 25% of Zero vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight line vesting between zero
objectives the award and maxamum based on Remuneration Committee assessment of performance against
objectives,
Cash conversion  30% of 75% ~ 85% pa Zero vesting if cash corversion 1s less than 75% pa. At cash conversion of 75% pa, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves cash conversion of 80% pa

Full vesting for this portion will eccur i cash conversion of B5% pa is achieved. Between
75% and 80% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards veshng will be determined on a
linear skding scate basis.

Following a review of actual performance, under a formulaic outcome, there would have been no vesting under the EPS, TSR and strategic elements, and
some vesting under the cash conversion element. However. the Committee exercised negative discretion and determined that these awards granted to
senior management should lapse in their entirety. No current Executive Director has July 2016 LTIP awards.

Details of November 2016 LTIP award vesting in 2020

Foliowing his appointment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP award in November 2016. This award vests subject o the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY |7/18, FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years arx full vesting if a bonws is earned in alt three years. in any event. no vesting will actually
occur until 2020. The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three
years has been achieved to date.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

As set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018, Sandip Mahajan ceased tobe a Dnredor of Mitie Group plc and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation Officer on 13 November 2017, Full details of Sandip's departure terms were disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts and a
summary made available on the Compary's website in the relevart Section 430(2B) Companies Act 2006 statement.

Sandip left the employment of the Company on 12 November 2018 as indicated.
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Payments to past Directors (subject to audit)
There have been no payments to past Directors during FY 18/19 that relate to their period of employment as a Director.

Change in CEO pay for the year compared to UK salaried employees
The 1able below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Mitie's UK salaried non-contract population, which is considered
the most appropriate group for companson purposes.

] Salary EBenefits Bonus
Chief Exeautive Officer 00% 4.25% nm?
Ayverage pay based on Me’s UK salaried non-contract employees! 783% 17.87%2 194.26%
Notes:

| Reflects the change in average anmual pay for salaried non-contract UX employees employed throughout the two financial years ended 31 March 2019. Salaried non-contract
employees are those wha are emplayed directly by Mitie Group and whose roles are not dedicated to the provision of chent services.

2. Includes caccar aliowance, private medical benefit and private fuel.
3 Phil Bentley voluntarily waned the bonus payable in FY |7/18,

Relative spend on pay
The table below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with dividends distributed.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

im m Charge
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,244 1,119 11.2%
Equity dividends 14 5 180.0%

Assessing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive Officer’s single figure remuneration over the past ten years. as well as the pay-out and
vesting levels of variable pay plans in relation 1o the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical TSR perfarmance over the same period.
These indices (FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350} have been chosen as they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of
these indices during the period:
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2017
Ruby 2017
M McGregor- Phil
2010 201 0012 2013 2014 1015 2618 Smuth' Bentley! 118 019
Single figure
remuneration £0,70303F £2324443 £2431.773 £2105131 £1447.266 £1525824 £2448,161 £530628 £479073 £1,102549 £2,248,948
Annual bonus
element (actual
as a'% of max) 100% 100% 100% 85% 0% 50% 73% % waved waived 7%
LTIP element
{actual vesting
as a % of max} 10056 100% 872% 572% o 5% 695% 0% nfa nfa wa
Note

1. Ruby McGregor-Smnh stepped down as Chiel Executve Officer on 12 December 2016. Phil Bentley poined the Board on | Navember 2016 and assumed the postuon of
Chiel Executive Officer on |2 December 2016. The figures above include Phil Bentley's remuneration from | November 2016
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Share ownership (subject to audit)

Number of Percentage Percentage
shares Value of sakary of target
owned as at of target Target heldasat  gchieved asat Compliance with share
31 March 2019 holding shareholding 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 ownership guidefines
Phil Bentley? 1.999.749 £1.800.000 926328 432% 216% Actyeved
Paul Woolf 48967 £850000 552841 18% 9%  Notachieved but compfiant

Notes'

|, includes shares cwmed by connectad persans,

2. Value of target holding 15 200% of base salary for Phil Bentley. in accordance with Phil Beritley's serwce contract, he acquired shares worth 400% of salary on 21 November 2016,
His target shareholding is the value of has target halding drvided by the share price of 194.3p on 21 Novernber 2016,

3. In accordance with the Company’s share cwnership policy, Paul Wooll is required 1o bulld and maintain, through the r ion of vested share options, a shareholding of 200% of
ase sakury. His target shareholting i taloulated usng the average dosing share pnce of 155.6p for the five business Says prior 10 the start of the financal year ended 31 March 249,

Directors’ outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
The following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors.

Directors’ interests granted under the LTIP

Options Options
outstanding Exercsed outstandin,

Year of asat3) March Granted in Lagsed nyear asat3l Mar Exercise  Earbest normal
grant 2018 year’ inyear 201% price  exercise date®

Phil Bentley Nov 2016 875,077 - - - 819,077 Nil-cost May 2020
ol 20V 663393 - - ~ 669,393 Nicost 2020

Aug 2018 - 1,180,327 - - 1,180,327 Nil-cost Aug 2021

Paul Woolf Nov 2017* 143,269 - - - 143,249 Ni-cost Nov 2020
Aug 2018 - 422950 - - 422,950 Nilcost Aug 2021

Notes:

| The parformance criteria applicable to the November 2016 award run are iinked £o the achisvernent of a bonus payment in the three financial years ending 31 March 2026
IfPhiIurnsabomsmoneoﬁhee;urs25%dthemrdvsls.67xmifabomsiswnedmtwoo(m=yeanmdIOO%muHabonusuwnednalthreeyurs.
The bonus targets that applied for FY17/18 and FY18/19 are deemed to have been met and therefore a bonus 1 two of the three years has been achieved 1o date.

1. The performance criteria applicable to the 2017 awards were disclosed in the previous Directors’ Remuneration Report

3 The performance criteria applicable to the 2018 awards are provided on page 77.

4. The market price of the Company's shares as at 31 March 2019 was 149 2p. The highest and lowest prices duning the year were 196 8p and 105.8p respectively.
5. Awards are subject 1o an addiional two-year holding period.

Directors’ share ownership

Number of ordinary shares beneficlally owned Number of ordinary shares beneficially owned

as at 31 March 2049 (or date of cessation if earlier) as at 31 March 2018 (or date of appointment if later}
Executive Directors
Phil Bentiey 1,999,749 1,852,656
Paul Woolf 48,967 48967
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp 140,000 140000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Shagat [} 0
Jack Boyer! 5,000 5000
Philippa Colsttie [ ] o}
Jennifer Duvalier 18,469 18,469
Larry Hirst? 25,000 25000
Mark Reckitt? 4,000 4000
Mary Reilly 11,708 o]
Roger Yates 50,000 a
Notes.

{, fack Boyer resgrad from the Board on 1t August 2018,
2. Larry Mirst retived from the Board on 31 july 2018
3. Mark Rackitt resigned from the Board on 31 july 2018,
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidetines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee schemes and 5% in
respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company allocates available headroom on a ten-year flat-line basis.
making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

LTIP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group plc Employee Benefit Trust. The potential
dilution of the Company's issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last ten years under the Company’s equrty-based
incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotment of new shares or treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2019

. Diution
Al share plans (maximum 10%) 57%
Drscretionary share plans {maximum 5%) 23%

Shareholder voting

Mitie remains committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes, Where there are substantial votes against
resalutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for any such vote, and will detall here any
actions In response to it

A resolution to approve the Directors’ remuneration poticy as set out. in the Annua! Report and Accounts 2018 was passed at the Company’s 2018 AGM.
At the Company's 2018 AGM, a resolution was passed to approve the 2048 Directors' remuneration report (excluding the summary of the Directors
remuneration policy). The results of the votes on these resclutions were as lollows:

Votes in Votes
Number of votes favour against Withheld'
2018 Drectors’ remuneration policy — 2018 AGM 2768m G8m 0.lm
997% 0.3% -
2018 Directors' remuneration report — 2018 AGM 2458m 310m 099m
88.8% 11.2% -

Naote:
I Votes withheld are not counted m the cafculation of the proporuion of votes for or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors
The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

In Septermber 2017, following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mities auditor, the Committee appointed Deloitte LLP as
ndependent remuneration advisors. The advisors attended Committee meetings and prowided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During
their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Comparty (save in relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans)
and also comply with the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consutants. The advisors' total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £57.950
(such fees being charged in accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the adwisars and was satisfied that the advice the Committee receved from them was objective
and independent, given that they provided no other services to the Company.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures

Directors’
report

The Directors present their Annual Report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group, for the year ended
31 March 2019,

The Directors’ report required under the Companies Act 2006
comprises the corporate governance statement on pages 53 1o 65.
with both the Directors' remuneration report on pages 70to 8l
and Strategic report on pages | to 48 incorporated by reference.
The corporate governance statement on pages 53 to 69 fulfils the
requrement under Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority (DTR) 7.2.1.

For the purposes of DTR 4.1 B8R, the management report for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comprises the Strategic report and this Directors’
report.

Listing Rule (LR) 9.8.4

The information required to be disclosed by LR 9.8.4 can be found in the
following locations:

Page referance

Directors’ remuneration report on
pages 70 to 8] and Note 3| to the
consolidated financial statements
Directors’ report: other disdosures
on page 86

Details of any long-term
incentive schemes

Shareholder waiver
of dividends and
future dividends

No shareholder is considered a contralling shareholder as defined in
the Financial Conduct Authority Handbook.

The rernaining disclosures required by LR 9.8.4 are not applicable to
the Comparvy,

Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group and its principal
activity s to provide management services to the Group. The Group's
activities are focused on the provision of strategic outsourcing
services. further details of which can be found on pages 4 and 5 of
the Strategic report.

The Company does not have any branches registered overseas, but

the Company’s subsidiaries have registrations/branches across the United
Kingdom, Repubic of lreland, Guernsey, jersey, Belgium, Finfand, France,
Germany, Ghana, Kenya, the Netherlands, Nigeria, Norway. Poland,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Swrtzerland and the Unaed Arab Emirates.
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statemerts.

Given the mature of its activities, no material research and development
work is carried out by the Group.

The Board's view on the likely future development of the Group 1s set
out in the Strategic report on pages | to 48.  °
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Board of Directars
The names of all persons who served as Birectors of the Company at
any time during the year are set out on page 56.

Full biographical details, including Committee membership and external
appointments, are set out on pages 50 to 52

- The Board considered the independence of all Non-Executive
Directors during the year and determined that, as at 31 March 2019,
all Non-Executive Directors continued to be independent in mind and
judgement, and free from any material relationship that coutd interfere
with their ability to discharge their duties effectively.

Director appointments

The rules governing the appointment and replacervent of Directors are
set out in the Company's Articles of Assotiation (the Artides), the Code,
the Companies Act 2006 and other related legisfation.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Articles, the Board has a policy on the declaration
and management of Directors’ conflicts of interests. Any potential
situation or transactional conflict must be reported as soon as possible
to the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel &
Company Secretary. Where a potential conflict is authorised under
statutory powers and powers granted under the Articles, such conflict

is kept under ongoing review,

Executive Directors are permitted to accept appontments outside

the Group provided that permission is sought from the Chairman

and Cheef Executve Officer and that the additional responsibilites

do not interfere with the Director’s ability to discharge histher duties
effectively. Executive Directors are entitled to retain fees earned from
any external appaintments, Nerther Phul Bentiey nor Paul Woolf held
any external positions during FY |8/19. External positions held by the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are detailed in their biographies
on pages 50 to 52.

Indemnification of Directors and insurance

The Directors and the Company Secretary benefit from an indemnity
provision under the Articles. In addition, all Directors and the General
Counsel & Company Secretary have been granted a qualifying
thirg-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, which has been in force throughout the year
and rernains in force as at the date of this report.

Certain subsidiary directors have aisc been granted a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision which has been i force throughout
the year and remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance which
provides appropriate cover for any legal acton brought against the
Group's directors andior officers.




Avrticles of Association

The Articles were adopted at the 2017 AGM. Any future amendment
to the Articles must be made in accordance with their provisions, the
Companies Act 2006 and related legislation, The Articles are available
at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Share capital

The Group & financed through equity share capital and debt instruments,
Details of the Company's share capital are given in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of the Group’'s debt instruments
are set outin Note 22 10 the consolidated financial statements.

The Comparny has a single class of shares divided into ordinary shares
of 2.5 pence each (Ordinary Shares). The Ordinary Shares are entitled
to one vote each per share at general meetings and have no right to any
fixed income.

In accordance with the Articles, holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled
to participate in any dividends pro-rata to their holding. The Board may
propose and pay interim dividends and recommend a final dwidend to
shareholders for approval at an AGM. A final dividend may be dedared
by the shareholders at an AGM by ordinary resolution, but such dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

Powaers of the Company to issue or buy back

its own shares

The Company did not allot any Ordinary Shares during the year,
undertake any market purchases of its own shares or distribute any
shares from treasury, Exercisable awards under the Mie Group plc 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and Mitie Group plc 2001 and 2011 Executive
Share Ogption Schemes were underwater during the year, and no awards
were exerased. The total number of Ordinary Shares held by the
Comparty intreasury as at 31 March 2019 remained unchanged at
7.748.108 (representing 2.1% of the issued share capital of the Company).

At the 2018 AGM, shareholders avthorised:

* The Directors to allat Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate nominal
amounit of £914,842.64, representing 10% of the issued share capital
(excluding treasury shares) as at 12 June 2018;

+ The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to an

aggregate nominal value equal to £457421.32, equating to 5% of Mitie's

issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued

share capital including treasury shares, each as at 12 June 2016;

The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to

an aggregate nominal value of £457421.32, equating to 5% of Mitie's

issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued

share caprtal induding treasury shares, each as at 12 June 2018, 0

connection with the financing (or refinancing, if the authority is to be

used within soc months of the original transaction) of an acquisition or
specified capital investment; and

* The Company to make market purchases of s own shares up to
atotal of 36,593,706 Ordinary Shares (representing 10% of the issued
share capital as at 12 June 3018 (excluding treasury shares)).

These authorities will expire on the earfier of 30 September 2019 or
the conclusion of the 201% AGM., A renewal of these authorities will
be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM. Further details can be found
in the notes to the relevant meeting notice which can be found on
Mitie’s website.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

The Cormpany is not aware of any agreements between holders of its
securities which may result in restnctions on the transfer of securties
or voting rights. Nlo person has any special rights of ¢ontrol over the
Company's share caprtal.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding or
on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the prowvistons
of the Articles,

Certain Ordinary Shares previously issued in consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority shareholders

in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Model have contractual
restrictions placed upon them. These restrictions prevent recipienits
from selling those Crdinary Shares and/or attach clawback provisions,
which typically apply for a maximum period of two years from allotment.

Under Mitie's Rules on Share Dealing, persons with access to certan
confidential company information or inside information are required

to follow a clearance to deal procedure and may be restricted from
dealing in the Company's shares. Persons subject to these requirements
are netified individualty and appropriately informed of the rules.

Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2019 the Compary had been notified of significant
hokdings of voting rights in its Crrdinary Shares under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rufes as set out below.,

% of share

capital at the

MNumber of date of

Ordinary Sharas notification

Silchester International Investors LLP 62210238 17.00%
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pic 53,532,509 14.63%
MR LLC 19717936 538%
Harris Associates LP. 18393003 5.12%
Brandes Investment Partners LP 18117242 5.05%
Hercnbridge 183656,728 500%

that occurred between the end of the pericd under review and
S June 2019. the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report,
are set out below.

% of share

capital at che

Number of date of

QOrdinary Shares notification

Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen plc 56,214,197 1536%

Directors' interests in the Compary’s share capital are set out in the
Directors’ remuneration report on page 80.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board is committed to ongoing and proactwve dialogue with
shareholders. A (ull programme of formal and informal events,
institutional investor meetings and presentations is held throughout the
year. This programme of shareholder engagement aims to ensure that
the performance, strategies and objectives of the Group are ciearly
comumunicated to the investiment community and provide a forum for
nstitutional sharehalders 1o address any corporate governance issues.
The programme is led by the Executive Directors with support from the
Investor Relations team. The Chairman 1s responsible for ensuring that
the Board is made aware of any issues and concerns of major shareholders.

The Company acknowledges that there was 3 significant minority vote
against one resolution at the 2018 AGM which related to the election

of Mary Reilly as a Non-Executive Director. 76.26% of votes cast were in
favour of this resolution. The majority of the votes received agamst were
attributable to one of the Company's major sharehalders whose policy
is not 1o support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit committee are also not
expected to hold more than one other position. Mary Reilly currently
holds external appointments as set out in her biography on page 52.
Members of the Board met with the major sharehoider and have sought
to provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her
duties. The Board., through the Nomination Committee, regularty
reviews and considers the time commitments for each Director to
ensure there are no concerns regarding overcommitment. The Board
remains configent that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her duues.

The Board is regularly kept informed of any investor feedback,
stockbroker updates and detailed amalyst reports. The Head of lnvestor
Relations also ypdates the Board at every Board meeting as set out
under Board activities on page 57.

The Chairman and Senior independent Director are available to meet
with shareholders upon request. Al Oirectors were present at the 2018
AGM and will attend the 2019 AGM.

Mitie has a specific area dedicated to investor relations on rts

website (www.mitie.com) where the items below are made available
o sharehclders:

= Latest Group information;

* Finandal reports;

* Corporate governance and sustainability matters:

* Half-year and full-year results presentations;

* Major shareholder information; and

* All regulatory announcements.

Annual General Meeting

Shareholders are invited to attend Mitie’s 2019 AGM, which will be held
on 30 july 2019 at 1t 30 am at Linklaters LLP, One Sik Street, London
EC2Y BHQ.

Employee involvement
Details of how Mitie encourages employee involvement can be found n
the Strategic report on pages 34 to 37,
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Diversity and inclusion

The Board is responsible for driving the diversity agenda throughout

the Group. During the year the Board adopted the Board Inchssion Policy
as an extension to its existing Group-wide Inclusion Policy. The Board
Indusion Policy includes a commitment to maintaining 2 minimum of

30% female representation on the Board as recommended by the
Hampton-Alexander review, provided that this remains consistent with
the skills and diversity requirements when seeking a new appaintment to
the Board, Femaie representation on the Board increased from 36% at
the start of the year to 50% as at 31 March 2019.

The Group's approach to business is underpinned by a belief that

all individuals should be treated fairly and have access to equal
opportunities To attract, recrurt. develop and retain the very best
people at all levels, Mitie is committed to respecting and embracing talent
and working to support a culture that is indusive and reflective of Mitie’s
visions and values. Objectives of Mitie's Group-wide Inclusion Palicy
include that:

« Na job applicant or employee will receive less favourable treatment
on the grounds of sex, race, age, ethnic origin, marital status,
pregnancy and matemity, civil partnership status, any gender
re-assignment, religion or beliel, sexual onentation, disability or
part-timefixed-term work; .

Inclusion, equality and diversity will be promoted within the
workplace; and

An gnvironment will be created where anyone believing they have
been subjected to discrimination, wictimisation, bullying or harassment
in the workplace, is entitled and feels safe to raise such concerns.

Inimplementing the policy, Mitie:

* Ensures that all policies, processes, procedures and practices underpin
delvery of the Inclusion Policy;

+ Cascades lessons learned and shares best practice throughout the
business; and

* Identifies key issues and recommends any changes.

During FY 18/19 five diversity networks were established. The networks

host a vanety of face-to-face and virtual events and contnbute to online
platforms designed to interact and share ideas.

Divarsity networks

Enable Raises awareness of disabiity-related topics across
the business, while offering support and guidance to
colleagues and line managers

Engender Works to engender equality for men and womien

at Mitie
Supports Mitie’s age-diverse workforce
Ensures an indusive working environment for people of
all ethnicities. and above all, encouraging Mitie's BAME
(Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) talent across the
business to succeed
Is all about educating, informing and inspinng Mitie

ployees 1o be themsebves by promoting an inclusive
cutture in the workplace, particularly around LGBTQ

Generations
Kaleidoscope

Proud To Be

In connection with the Group's wider diversity initiatives and Inclusion
Palicy, Mrtie is cormnmitted to:

* Giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment
by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities;
* Continuing the employment of, and arranging appropriate training for,
employees who have become disabled during their employment: and
* The training of, career development and promotion of
disabled employees.

In recognmon of Mitie's diversity-related inrtiatives, Mitie was named
17th in the Excellence in Diversity Awards Inclusive Top 50 UK
Employers in Novemnber 2018,



Culture

The ‘Mitie Way' of doing business and ‘One Mitie’ unttary approach of
working with clients continues to be advanced. The Mitie Way has many
elements to it including purpose, vision, cutture, values and branding, and
covers all aspects of the business, from 'who we are’ 1o ‘what we do’ and
‘how we do it

Greenhouse gas emissions

Mrte is commuitted to reducng its carbon emissions and environmental
mpact and has been actively recording and managing greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG) since 2010, when an ambitious target to reduce
Scope | and Scope 2 carbon footprint intensity by 35% was set.

Absolute emissions

The Group continues to report total GHG emissions annually using the
financial control approach. The methodalogy used aligns with Defra’s
Environmenal reporting guidelines and uses the Government's GHG
reporting converston factors to quantify emissions.

For the year ended 3| March 2019, Mitie had reduced its emissions
intensity by 374% against its FY 09/10 basetine and 4.1% against FY 17/18.

Absolute emissions have also decreased by 19.5% against the FY 09/10
baseline and 3.8% against FY 17/18.

Change Change
FY 09/10 inst ilfamsl
Emiggiong (baseling) FY |78 Fr 1819 baseline % FY 1718%
Total Scope | (t€CO,e)* 41,14} 35,974 35,230 -14.8% -LI%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40277 35272 ' 34,688 -139% -17%
Ernussions from gas combustion at occupied builldings {excluding landlord sites) 1,066 702 542 -49.2% -22.8%
Total Scope 2 (¢CO.e) : 3,490 1,524 857 -75.4% -43.8%
Emussions from the purchase of electricity across occupied buidings
{exduding landlord srtes) 3490 1,524 857 -754% -438%
.Total Scope | & 2 (tCO,¢) 44,833 37,498 36,087 -19.5% -3.8%
Intensity
Change - Change
FY 0s8/10 against against
Emsaions rabo (baseline) FY 17h8 FY 18/19 baseline % FY 175?3%
tCO effm revenue (Scope | & 2) 26.07 17.02 16.32 =3T7.4% =-4.1%

* Refrigerant data has been excluded due to difficulties obtaining accurate data on bindiord rmanaged sites: however, this data s not considered material.

Mitie's efforts to reduce its carbon emissions focus on reducing the impact of its fleet, which contributes 96% of its tatal Scope | and Scope 2 footprint.
Mitie has pledged to run at least 20% of its company small van and car fleet using electric vehicles by 2020. A fleet transformation project is underway to
standardise current vehicles with newer, more efficient vehicles. Part of this project has been 1o ensure that all commerdial vehides are installed with

telematics to improve driver behaviour.

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG methodology statement available on our website www.mitie.com.

Environmental data

Further details on the Group's environmental performance can be found in the table below:

Change Change
2009010 against against
(baseline) Wi7e 2018119 baseline % previous year %
Eviergy
Electricity consumed across occupied buildings (kWh) 9031,141 5,540,051 3417254 -624% -383%
Gas consumed across occupied buildings {(kwh) 7980537 4543461 3,261,106 59.1% 34.1%
Fuel used by fleet for business travel (kWh) 184,088,382 154,681,158 148488776 -193% 40%
Total organisational energy consumption (kWh) 201,150,080 165,070,710 155,167,138 -22.9% -6.01%
Water
Water consumed across occupled buildings (m) 29306 40012 28.106 -“41% -298%
Waste
Total waste to landfill {tonnes) 989 336 Bi -76.6% -31.2%
Total waste recyded (tonnes) 447 541 371 -17:0% -31 4%
Total waste generated across occupied buildings (tonnes) 1,436 877 602 -58.1% -31.4%
Recycling rate 3% 62% 61% +31 ppts -
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Political donations

Mrtie has a long-standing pohicy of not making any polrtical donations.
However., t is possible that certain routine activities (including charitabie
donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally fall within the wide
definition of payments constituting political donations and expenditure
as set out inthe Companies Act 2006. At the 2018 AGM shareholders
granted the Compary and its subsidianies authonty to make pofitical
donations up to a total aggregate cap of £50,000 until the 2019 AGM.

A renewal of this authority will be put to sharehaolkders at the 2019 AGM.

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements with provisions that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of cordrol of the Company, such as bank
facility agreemenits and other financial arrangements and employee share
schemne rules. None of these are considered to be significant in terms of
their likely impact on the normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company and
its Directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of
office or emplayment that occurs solely because of a change of control,

Financial results

A detailed commentary on the operational and finandial results of the
Group for the year is contained within the Strategic report, including
the Finance review on pages 22 to 25.

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations for the
financial year was £36.4m {2018: £15.4m ioss).

Dividends

An interm dividend of 1.33p per Ordinary Share (2018: 1.33p) with
a total value of £4.8m (2018: £4.Bm) was paid to shareholders on
12 February 2019.

The Directors recommend a final dwidend of 2.67p per Ordinary Share
{2018: 2.67p) wrth a total value of £9.6m (2018: £9.6m) based upon the
number of shares in issue as at 5 June 2019, Subject to approval at the
2019 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 9 August 2019 to
shareholders on the register as at close of business on 28 June 2015.

The final dividend of 2.67p per share recommaended by the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2018 was repfaced by an interim dividend of
2.67p dedlared by the Directors on 31 july 2018 as the Notice of 2018
AGM omitted a resolution seeking shareholder approval of the final
dvidend.

The total dividend per Ordinary Share for the year ended 3] March 2019
will be 4.0p (2018: 4.0p).

As at 31 March 2019, the Company hagd distributable reserves of £64.6m
(2018: £117.5m).

Mitie operates a Dividend Re-Investmerit Plan (DRIP) which allows
shareholders to use their cash dvidend to purchase additional Ordinary
Shares, Further detail on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply
can be found on page {66 and are available from Mitie's Registrar. Link
Asset Services.

The trustees of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust waived dividends
payable during the year and have agreed tc waive future dividends.

In aceordance with Section 726 of the Companies Act 2006, no
dividends are paid on shares heid in treasury.
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include bank borrowing facifities,
finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement locan notes and
derivatives which are used to manage interest, currency and other
risks when necessary or material.

The principal objective of these instrumants 1s to rase funds for general
corporate purposes and to manage financial risk, Further detalls of these
instruments are given in Note 23 1o the consolidated financial statements,

Statement of the Directors in respect of the

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy. When arrrving at this position the Board was assisted
by various processes including the following:

* The Annual Report and Accounts is drafted by senfor management
with overall coordination by the General Counsel & Company
Secretary 1o ensure consistency across the relevant sections,

* A review is undertaken 1o assess whether the Annual Report and

Accounts it fair, balanced and understandable using 2 set of
pre-defined indicatars (such as consistency with internally reported
information, investor commurications and relative performance in the
industry);
* Comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and Accounts
arg undertaken by the Executive Directors and other senior
management; A .
An advanced draft 1s reviewed by the General Counsel & Company
Secratary and external advisors; and
The final draft is reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to
considleration by the Board.

Details of the basis on which the Company generates and preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company's
objectives are set out in the Strategic report.

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Council's ‘Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporung’ issued in September 2014. The Directors have considered
principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group which are described
on pages 3810 46,

The Directors have considered the Group's finandal position which
incorparates the Parent Comparyy with reference to latest forecasts and
the actua! performance for the penod. The Group benefits from a
well-diversified portfolio of service offerings and has a broad, diverse
customer base.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed funding lines. These include £191.5m of
US Private Placement debt maturing in December 2019, Decernber
2022 and December 2024, The Group also benefits from a committed
multi-currency revolving credit facilty of £275.0m, which will mature in
July 2021, Together with the US$ Private Placements, this gives the Group
total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawn at
31 March 2019.



The Group's LS Private Placement and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net debt to £8ITDA and
EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a rolling
12-month basis as at the March and September reporting dates.

At 31 March 2019, bath covenant tests were passed. The Group is
forecasting 1o remain within its banking covenants over the next
twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations for reasonable
possible adverse variances in trading and cash performance.

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statemenis. Accordingly, the Group and Parent Company
continues to adopt the going concern basis of accourting in preparing

the consolidated financial statements,

Viability statement
This statement is detailed in full on pages 47 and 48.

In accordance with the Code, the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year peried to 31 March 2022 taking into
account the Group's current position and the potential impact of the
principal risks set out in the Strategic report. Based on this assessment
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is and will
continue to be viable.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director n office as at the date of this Directors’ report
confirms that.

* So far as hefshe is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and oG
* Hefshe has taken all the steps that hesshe ought 1o havetaken as a; -
Director to make himselfherself aware ofarfy élevant. = %
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware
of that information.

This staterment is given, and should be interpreted in accordance with,
Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

Peter Dickinson
General Counsel & Company Secretary
5 June 2019

S
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Directors’ report: statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect

of the Annual Report, the remuneration repart and

the financial statements

The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal statements for
each finangal year. Under that law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Finandal
Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the European Urmion and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Unrted Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under comgany law, the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that these give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or
loss for the period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to.

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable,

relevant, reliable and prudent;

For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the

financial statements;

For the Company financial statements, state whether applicable

United Kingdom Accourting Standards have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the

financial statements,

Prepare the financal statements on the going concern basis unless

t is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Company will

continue in business:

+ Prepare a Directors’ report, a Strategic report and Directors’
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and exphain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable acouracy at any timne the financial position of the
Campany and enable them to ensure that its finandal statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsiole for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
postion and performance, business mode! and steategy.
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Website publication

The Directars are respansible for ensuring the Anqwual Report and
the financial statements are made avaitable on a website, Financial
statements are published on the Company's website in accordance
with legislation in the Unrted Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staterents. which may vary from legislation
in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company's
websrte 1s the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors’
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial
statements contained therein.

Directors’ responsibilities pursuant to DTR4.1
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

* The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation and give a
true and far view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
and loss of the Group; and

* The management report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the finandal position of the
Group and the Company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertanties that they face.

By order of the Board

Phil Bentley Paul Woolf

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
5 jJune 2019 S june XN
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Mitie's people are our most critical asset.
As a major UK employer with 52,500
colleagues, we take our responsibility
towards our people seriously,

Improving our employment offer to our
colleagues has been a key focus of the
past year as we look to consolidate our
position as one of the UK's most dynarmic,
forward-thinking and sustainable facilities
management companies. In FY 18/19 we
launched People Hub — a single source for
all people-related matters — and Learning
Hub to further our colleagues’ careers.

(®) Read more on PG 34-37

Nol7 5

top 50 UK core values that
employers drive our business
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Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Mitie Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the finandia! statements of Mitie Group plc (the Parent Compary) and its subsidianes (the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2019
which compnse the Consolidated Incarme Statement, the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parert Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Companty Staternents of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiowsand the Notes

o the financial staterments, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group finandial staternents is applicable law and International Financial Reportng Standards (JFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. The finandial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and
Unrited Kingdom Generally Accepted Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disdosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial staterments:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 ang of the Group's profit for the
year then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

s the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting
Practice; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006; and. as regards the Group financial
statements, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (154s (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further desaribed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finandal statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group and the Parent Cornpany in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
induding the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to fisted public imerest entities, anx we have fulfified our other ethical responsibliites in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bass for our apinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the annual report, in refation to which the ISAs (LK) require us to report to you
whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

. thedssdosuresunﬂweanrualreportsetoutonpags]&to%ﬁutdsmbeﬂwepnncnpalnslsandemlwnhowﬂweyarebemgnunagedormmgated;

» the Directors’ confrmauonsetoutmpage47nnﬂnmnudmpmﬂutﬂ1eyravemrmdmnambustmdﬂepmcpalndafaangﬂle
Group, induding those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

» the Directors’ statement set out on page 88 in the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going
corcern basis of accounting in preparing the financel statements anxd the Directors’ identification of any naterial uncertairties to the Group and
the Parent Comparyy’s ability to continue to do so over a peniod of at least twelve manths from the date of approval of the financial statements;

* whether the Directors' staternent relating to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materialiy
inconsistent with cur knowledge obtained in the audit, or

» the Directors’ explanation set out on pages 47 and 48 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, induding
any related disdosures drawing attertion to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Key audit matters
A summary of our key audit matters and the assessment against prior year i as follows:

Appropriateness of revenue recognition Yes — incorporates compliance with IFRS |5 in current year
Contractual matters and provisions Yes — with spedfic contractual matters being considered in each year
Recoverability of trade receables and accrued income Yes

Acquisition of Vision Security Group New risk following current year acquisition
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The prior year key audit matters also induded the transition to IFRS |5, presentation of other iterns in the consclidated financial statements and

impairment of goodwill in the Property Management divsion.

Whilst compliance with IFRS |5 remains a sk in respect of revenue recognition, following adoption in the pricr year the key audit matter in respect
of transition is na longer applicable. In addition, the Social Housing business within the Property Management division has been disposed of in the year
and therefare impairment of goodwill relating to the division i no longer considered to be a key audit matter.

With the exception of a £200m provision being required in respect of a Section 75 pension liability (see Notes 4 and 32), the quartum of amounts
recorded as ather iterns and the level of judgament reduced, this is therefore no longer considered to be a key audit matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audt of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed rsks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified including those which
had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial staternertts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinton on these matters.

Appropriateness of revenue recognition
Key Audit Matter

Hicrar wee addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

Following the adoption of IFRS 15 in the prior year, the level of

;udgawﬂapphedbymanagermntm respect of revenue and profit
recogniton has significantly reduced

There remains however an assessrment of new and modified contracts to
ensure compliance with IFRS 15 as well as the cut-off risk in respect of
recognition of accrued income. Unbilled accrued income at the year-end
totalled £|32.6m (see Note 15).

The accounting policies and critical udgernents applied are disdosed in
Notes | and 2.
judgements include:
* Interpretation of contract terms;
* Assessment of revenue recognised in respect of projects with an
over time revenue recognition requirement;
. Mobﬂlsauonandpre{ontractmgpableofbeargmprtalsectand

* Assessment of revenue recognition based on performance obligations
being achieved

We completed the following audit procedures

+ Reviewed the basis of revenue recognised against the
requirernents of IFRS |5 and challenged and where necessary
corroborated to undertying audit evidence the key judgements
made by management;

» Tested a sample of new and modified contracts in the year to
confirm revenue recognition in accordance wath IFRS 15;

» Obtained a sample of contracts to confirm that fixed revenue
had been appropriately recognised induding recalculating the
expected revenue for the year;

» Tested a sample of comract related assets to supporting
documertation to ensure revenue had been recognised in line
with IFRS 15;

* For specific divisional revenue streams we tested the operating
effectiveness of cortrots induding the testing of [T controls over
key ing systerns; and

¢ Tested a sample of accrued income balances to supporting
docurmerttation, which induded procedures such as: assessing
proof of works; confirming customer acceptance; reviewing
customer correspondence; and ensuring cut-off had been
appropriately applied.

Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income
Key Audit Matter

How we addressed the Key AucEt Matter in the Audic

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain outstanding for
more than three months as resolution of open issues remains ongoing on
various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of recoverabity,
parmdarbwvheretlnrevsdrsagreementordsmte

Trade receivables and accrued mcomearedlsdosed in Note 15 to the
financal statements. Credit risk associated with trade receivables is disclosed
in Note 23 to the finandial statements.

In addition, in the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Finandal
Instruments’, which includes the requirements to determine the provision
for expected aredit losses. This has resulted in a pre-tax adjustment to
opening reserves and receivables of £2.5m.

There is significant management judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability of these balances, taking into consideration the Group's
contractual rights, available evidence of work performed, as well as the
status of ongeing commerdial negotiations.

Thus judgement is compounded by systern limitations within the Engineering
division which require a manual ageing of unbilled acarued income balances,
increasing the nsk of error.

For a sample of these balances we have challenged the validity
of the recorded debtors and accrued income as well as the
completeness of provisions and expected aredit losses by a
number methods induding:

« Where possible, confirming aged balances to
post year-end cash receipts;

+ Examining dlient approval of works orders or
contractual comnmitrments;

* Reviewing evidence of werk performed and status
of negotiations;

» Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade receivable and
accrued income (induding the manual ageing requirement
in the Engineering division);

» Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports for any
material disputes;

*» Scrutinising the methodology and assumptions used in
cakulating the expected credit loss provision; and

» Analytical procedures to consider consistency in the
provisioning methodeology to the prior year.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

9t

Strategic report

Governance

"
=
b=
£
<
put
[
-
th
=
=
c
2
=
i




Independent auditor’s report continued

Contractual matters and provisions
Key Audit Matter

Herw we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

Under the terms for the dispasal of the Sodial Housing business the
Group retained specific contractual fiabilities and provided certain
indernnities to the buyers relating to closed contracts.

Whilst certain liabilities have aow been settled in full there remain
contractual matters that require significant judgernent in estimating the
quantum of provisions required.

There is a risk that the provisions induded as contract specific costs and
disposal indemnities in Note 19 and also disclosed within other items in
Note 4 are not complete.

We examined the Sodial Housing disposal docurmentation and held
disaussions with in-house legal counsel to confirm the contractual
liabilities retained and indernnities given,

We have read internal and external documentation to evaluate the
provisions recorded to ensure they are materially complete and
correctly calculated.

For all matters we have reviewed the disclosures included in the
financial staternents to ensure that they are complete and also fair,
balanced and understandable.

Acquisition of Vision Security Group
Key Auit Maer

Horw we addressed the Key Aucit Matter o the Audi

During the year, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited for net

consideration of £8.2m

There are several judgemental areas in the accourting for the acquisition

induding

* Fair value of consideration, specifically related to an adjustrment of
£5.28m being recorded prior to reaching a final agreement of the
completion accounts with the sellers;

* Fair value of the opening acquisition balance sheet assets and liabilities;
AdoptnonoﬂFRS‘)arﬂ 15 into the opening acquisition balance
sheet: and

* Valuation and the useful economvic life of the separately identifiable
customer relationship intangible asset.

In determining the completion accounts adjustrents and arriving at

their best estimate, management have obtained third-party accounting

and legal support.

The transaction resulted in a gain in bargain purchase of £8.8m which has

been recorded as a credit within the income statement.

The Group's accounting policy for business combinations is disdosed 1n

Note [, the judgements made in Note 2 and further detail concerning the

transaction within Note 30.

Qur audit procedures included:

* With the support of our internal specialists we assessed
the fair value of consideration, spedfically in respect of the
completion accounts adjustments made by management.
This included reviewing managernent papers and judgements,
the sale and purchase agreements, correspondence with the
vendors and third-party reports obtained by management to
support their assessment;

¢ Substantively audited acquesition net book values of assets

and liabilities and resulting fair value adjustments including the

adoption of IFRS 9 and 15; and

With the support of our internal valuation spedialists we

challenged the key inputs, assumptions and methodology

used by management in determining the fair values of

rtangible assets acquired.

In kight of the assessed gain on bargain purchase we challenged

managemertt on its recognition.

We have also reviewed the relevant disclosure in the financial

staternents to assess compliance with the requirements of IFRS 3

and akso the discosure in Note 2 of the significant estimates and

judgements made.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider materiality
to be the magnitude by which misstaternents, induding omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the
bas's of the finandial statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as imenatenial as we also take account
of the nature of idertified rmisstaternertts and the particular dequrnstances of their ocourrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial staterments

as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financial staterments to be £3.8m and for the Parent Company to
be £2.9rn. Performance rmateriality, based on our assessment of past misstatements and the control environment was calculated based on 70% of

our matenality.

The materiality we applied in respect of the Group financial statemerts equates to 5% of continuing profit before other items and tax. Parent Company
materiality was set at 1% of net assets, and capped at 75% of Group materiality.

We consider the use of 5% of continuing profit before ather items to be the most appropriate performance measure for the basis as it removes the
impact of certain one-off or exceptional items iImpacting the underiying profit of the Group and & also a key measure for stakehoiders. Other items are
detailed in Note 4 to the Group finandial statements.

We set component materiality between £0.9m and £2.6m based on the overall size arxd respective fisk of each component.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £190,000 as well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we
idertified when assesang the overall presertation of the finandial staternents,
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates through a number of legal entities, which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent with the
segmental analysis as disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements with the exception of Vision Security Group which is treated as a separate
componert for audit purposes but forms part of the Security division within the segmenttal analysis. Al companents were subject to full scope
audns with the exception of certain overseas entities which were disaggregated from the division and were subject to desktop review procedures.
All audrts and desktop review procedures were completed by BDO LLP. :

The audit procedures were carned out over 95% of Group revenue, profit before cther iterns and total assets.

@ Full audit
@ Desktop reviews

2019 2019 2019

Total revenue Profit before Total assats
other items

The Group audrt team set component materiality levels as detailed above with work on all componerts being performed by the Group auditors under

the direction and supervision of the Group engagement partner. With the exception of the non-significant cormponents, the Group engagement pariner
visited all component locations and attended various telephone conference meetings through the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audit.

We also gained an understanding of the legal and regulstory framework appiicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates, and considered
the nsk of acts by the Group that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We designed audit procedures at Group and
sigrificant component level to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud s higher than the risk
of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive deliberate concezlment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through callusion. We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements, including, but ot
limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules and tax legisiation.

Crur tests included agreeing the financial statement disdosures to underlying supperting documentation, enguiries with management and enquiries of in-
house legal counsel. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures desaribed above and, the further removed non-carmpliance with Laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less lkely we would become aware of t. We did not identify any
key audit matters relating to wregularities, induding fraud. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controks,
including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due

to fraud.

Other information

The Dwectors are resporsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information inchuded in the annual report, other than the
financial staternents and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the finandal statements does not cover the cther information and, except to the
extent atherwse expliitly stated in our report, we do not exprress any form of assurance condusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informaation is materially inconsistent
with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstaternert in the financial staternents
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
cther information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard,

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to spacifically address the following ftems in the other information and to
report as uncorrected material misstaternents of the other information where we conclude that those itermns meet the following conditions:

= Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 86 —the statement by the Directors that they consider the annual report and financial statements
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and prowde the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance,
business model and strategy. is materially incorsistent with our knowledge cbtained in the audit; or

* Audit Cormemittee reporting set out on pages 62 to 67 —the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

+ Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 53 — the parts of the Directors” statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Comparny's compliance with the UK Corporate Gevernance Code containing provisions specified for review by
the auditor In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant prowision of the UK Corporate

e Code.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be audited has been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opimon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statemerts; and
* the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accondance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowiedge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audtt, we
have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followng matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in

U Opirion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches
not visited by us; or _

e the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreennent with the accounting
records and returmns; or

* certain disdosures of Directors’ remuneration spedfied by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibifities statement set out on page 88, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statemnents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal cantrol as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternerts. the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the: Parerit Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disdosing, as applicable, matters related to gong concern and wsing the going concern biasis of accountting unless the Directors either imend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no reafistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements )

Qur obyectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finandial statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exdsts. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedsions of users taken on the
basis of these financial staternents.

A further description of our responshbilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Coundil's website at:

www frcorguk/auditorsresponsibiltties. This descnption forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address .

Foliowing the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Audit Committee on 19 September 2017 to audit the financial
statemertts for the year ending 3| March 2018 and subsequent finandal periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagernent is two years, covening
the years ended 3| March 2018 and 31 March 2019.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we remain independent
of the Group and the Parent Company in conducting our audit.

Qur audit opinion 15 consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 1o the Parert Company's members, as 2 body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part | 6 of the Comnpanies Act 2006.

Our audit wark has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them

in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Parent Company and the Parert pany’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

2/.

Scott McNaughton (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDCO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
5 June 2019

BDO LLP is a limvted liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 xig?

Before Other Before Other g
other items items’ Total ather rerns rems’ Tom! g.
Notes tm tm e fm em &m )
Continuing operations §
Revenue . 3 2,221.4 - 2,221.4 20306 - 20306 3
Costof sdles (1.913.9) - (1,921.9) (1.7628) - {1.7628)
Gross profit 2975 - 975 2678 - 2678
Admunistrative expenses (209.3) (38.0) (241.3) (1848) ®21) (2667)
Operating profit/{loss) 36 88.2 (38.0) 50.2 832 8L 11
Firance income 0.2 - 0.2 0.l - [+ 3] g
Finance costs 8 (14.0) - (14.0) (166 - (168) s
§
Met finance costs (13.8) - (13.8) (165) - (165) é
Profit(less) before tax 3 744 @an 36.4 667 21 (154)
Tax 9 (11.9) 74 6.4) (1 100 (.1}
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations after tax 60.6 (30.6) 30.0 556 a2 (165)
Discontinued operations @
Profiti(loss) from discotinued operations 5 R a.2) 0.9 56 (15.1) ©5) g
Profit/(loss) for the year 63.7 G28) 309 612 872) (260) §
Attributable to: é
Equity holders of the parent 61.7 (¢2.8) 30.9 80.1 (872} Q7.n i
Non-controfiing interests - - - I - bl
63.7 (312.8) 30.9 61,2 (87.2) (260)
Earningsi(loss) per share (EPS) attributable to
equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations.
Basic 1 16.8p 8.3p 15.2p “9p
Diluted ) i 16.7p 8.3p 15.1p “9p
From cominuing and discontinued operations:
Basc T 17.7p 8.6p 168p . aep
Diuted I 17.5p 8.5p 167p @&
Notes:

| TherptusadoptaleRS?m;lAprﬂowm-ngme m;mmmhbhnhmﬁdﬁd@g“mnmﬂmmmwm%mnﬂdmdm
appiation, Under ths option, the comparative nformition & not

1 Re-presentad to dasafy the Pest Controt and Sadal Housing busk a wed operations. See Note 1.
3 Other terrs are as described in Note 4.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

01y 2018
. Notes £m m
Profit/(loss) for the year 30.9 (260)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension kabiity 32 (13.9) 197
Income tax credit/(charge) relating 1o items not reclassified $ 24 2
(11.5) 163
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {0.3) Q.1
Gains on hedge of a net investment taken to equity 0.4 04
Net gains on cash flow hedges arising during the year 7 .2 ol
Incorme tax (charge)/credn relating to items that may be reclssified 9 (0.3) ot
1.7 07
Other comprehensive (exp i for the fi ial year (9.8} 170
Total comprehensive i H{expense) for the financial year 21,0 o0
Attribytable to;
Equey holders of the parent . (W
Non-controling interests - R
Nove:

|. The Group has IFRS 9 qarting | Apri 2013 using the transition option availaible in the standard by disclosing the impact 3 an adjustrnent 10 Opening retansd eamings at the date of initial
apphacation. Uinder comparative information is not restated.

s opion, the:
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 3| March 2019

2019 2018

Notes m im 'S
[~

Non-current assets E
Goodwill 12 191.8 3096 §°
Other inangible assets 13 50.7 383 S
Property, plant and equipment 14 290 116
Interest in joint ventures and assodates - 08
Derivative financial instruments 3 16.4 &l
Contract assets 16 45 1.8
Deferred tax assets ' 20 8.7 367
Total non-current assets 433.1 4269
Current assets b
Invertories 5.4 69 é
Trade and other receivables 15 435.2 3860 §
Contract assets 16 l.& - 04
Current tax assets o
Cash and cash equivalents ) ,:‘2« ; Ay -Closz(“‘ ‘s 599
Total current assets V4 550.3 4554
Total assets 9831.9 8863
Current tiabilities g
Trade and other payables . 17 (532.9) {496.8) E
Deferred income ) 18 (54.9) (46.2) ;E
Current tax liabiities {0.3) - §
Financing habiities n “o.7 ©8) £
Provisions 19 (50.6) (25.2)
Total current liabilities . (680.4) (569.0)
Net current liabilities {129.6) {108.8)
Non-current liabflities
Deferred income 18 (18.4) (188)
Financing kabilities 2 (224.8) 2585)
Provisions 19 (6.0) ©3)
Retirement benefit kabilites 32 {63.8) {56.8)
Deferred tax liabilities ' 20 2.9 08
Total non-current liabilities (315.9) (3413)
Total liabilities (996.3) (103)
Net liabilities (2.4} (240)

Note:

I 'I'I'EGfmphmadapteleRS9sw‘ug | Aprl 2018 usrg the transition option avalable n the standard by distdosing the vTipact as an adjustment to opering retaned ezmings at the date of inftia!
application, Under this option, the comparative nformation 0ot cestated,
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
Asat 31 March 2019

2019 018

Pates £m fm
Equity
Share capdal 28 93 33
Share premium account 2 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 29 104.2 1042
Own shares reserve 29 @e.h) (434)
Other reserves 2] 10.3 113
Hedgirg and translation reserve pLJ (5.6) 3
Retained tosses (223.1) @287
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (12.4) (240)
Nare:

1 m&mmwxedlmvm' | 2018 using the transition option avaiable in the standard by disclosing the mpact adisTNent 1o opening retaned eamings at the date of intial
2pphcation. Under mﬁnmwmﬁamsmrmﬁm & =

The consolidated financial statements of Mitie Group pk, company registration number SC0I%230 were approved by the Board of Directors and
autharised for issue on 5 june 2019. They were signed on its behalf by,

[

Phil Bentley .tt‘% Paul Woolf

Chief Executive Officer _ Chef Firancial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 3| March 2019

Share Own Hedgng and ] ”
S T mEL T e Tmme e Tow Crmes ey 8
£m £m m m €m m Im m im E
Adjusted balance at | Apri 2017 92 1306 S8 (422 103 ©0) Q124 (20.7) 23 (18.4) &’
Loss for the year - - - - - - @5y @y Ll (26.0) g
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 07 163 7.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive exp - - - - - 07 (o8  (10.1) LI (9.0)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (48) (4.8) - (4.8)
Share-based payments - - - 69 10 - 03 8.2 - 8.2
Acquisitions and other moverments
in non-controling interests i - 124 ®.1) - - (1.0) 34 G -
At 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 13 73 (@87 (24.0) - (24.0)
¥
At | April 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 13 73 Q@17 (24.0) - (24.0) E
Impact of change in accounting polic? - - - - - - @n an - @.n g
Adiusted balance at | Aprl 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 13 7» (@08 (26.1) - Q26.1) v
Profit for the year - - - - - - 309 30.9 - 309
Other comprehensive {expense)/income - - - - - 1.7 (115 (%.8) - {9.8)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 17 194 1.1 - 24.1
Dividends paid - - - - - - (144)  (14.9) - (14.9)
Share-based payments - - - 53 (10) - 09 5.4 - 5.4
Other mavements - - - - - - '8 1.8 - 1.8
At 3 March 201% 93 1306 1042 (@8.) 103 G6 BN (2.4 - (12.4)
MNotes:

1. Other reserves indude the share-based payments reserve, the revaluation reserve anc the caprtal redemption reserve. See Note 29,

2 The Group has adopted [FRS 9 starting | Aped 2018 using the transition opuon vaitable n the sandard by disdosing the as an adusment to retaned atthe date of mitial
Srtion Uncler the optian, the ey ot mpacts operang earrungs
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2019 2018
MNotes &m £m
Continung operations — operating profit before other items' 88.2 832
Continuing operations — other iterms' 4 (38.0) ®2.1)
Discortinued operations — operating 105 after cther items’ (2.0) {949y
Adjustments for;
Share-based payments expense . 3l 5.0 46
Defined benefit pension costs 32 L8 31
Past service costs and curtadments 32 1.6 19
Defined benefit pension contributions . R {118 @7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 116 128
Amortisation of intangible assets i3 9.0 135
Amortisation of contract assets 16 08 0.
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodates 5 {0.5) (08}
Impairment of goodwill ' 12 - 346
Impairment of intangible assets 13 " 104
Gain on bargain purchase 30 (8.6) -
Gain on disposa! of property, plant and equipmert 0.8) .4}
(Gain)oss on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (17.9) 02
Gther . - {©1)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 395 872
Dedrease/(increase) in inventories 0.4 [OXD]
Increase in receivables (18] (43.2)
Increase in contract assets 4.7 (23)
Increase/{decrease) in deferred income 5.1 (128)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 33.4 QLY
Increase in provisions ) 255 4s
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 7 415 79
Incorrve taxes received 4.7 e
Inerest paid (12.4) (135)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 398 (9.8)
Investing activities
Acqpisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired? 30 (7.3) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed® 5 s ©on
Dividends received from joint vertures and assocates - 06
Interest received 0.2 02
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 14 (2.1) (158)
Purchase of other intangible assets 13 (nr2) [elv)]
Disposal af property, plant and equipment 4.7 1.6
Net cash generated fromi(used in) investing activities 25.) arn
Notes:

| Re-presented to dawify the Pest Control and Soda) Housing businesses as discontiued operations. See Note |
2 Disposal of subsidianes, net of cash disposed of £528m for the year ended 31 March 2019 s stated net of £5.3m of transaction costs (see Note 5). The net cash inflow from acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries was £40.9m (2018: £9.7m outiow) nduding costs of £2.6m related to the VG acquistion (see MNote 4).
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2019 018 e
Notes im £m g_

Financing activities E

Increasel{repayments) of ohiigations under finance leases 27 0.2 (.5) ¥

Private placement notes repaict and assocated hedges séttied - (602) 5

{Repaymerits of)/proceeds from bank loans 27 2.y 383

Proceeds from re-ssue of treasury shares 9 - 34

Purchase of non-controlling interests 30 - 30)

Equity dividends paid 10 (14.4) (48)

Net cash used In financing activicles ’ (16.3) (27.8)

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalerts 48.8 (69.7)

Net cash and cash equivalerits at beginning of the year 59.8 125.1 g

Effect of foreign exchange rite changes - 04 E

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 108.4 598 §

The above staternert of consclidated cash flows indudes cash flows from bath continuing and discontinued operations. Further details of the cash flows
relating to discontinued operations are shown in Note 5.

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movements in net debt Nates 1‘:::: 10':':

Cash drivers

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cath equivalerts 486 (69.7)
Decrease/(increase} in bank loans 7 2.1 (@83)

Private placemertt notes repaid and assodated hedges settied - 602 ‘é
(Increase)/repayments of abigations under finance leases 27 ©.2) 15 £
Non-cash drivers E’
Non-cash movernent in bank loans 27 (0.2) o7 g
Non-cash movernent in private placement nates and associsted hedges 7 22 03 £
Effect of forsign exchange rate changes 7 0.3 04
Decrease/(increase) in net debt during the year 52.8 (46.3)

Opening net detx (193.5) (147.2)

Closing net debt 26 (140.7) (193.5)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2G19

l. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(2) Basis of preparation
The Group's financial statements for the year ended 3| March 2019 have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore the Group's financial statements comply with Artde 4 of the EU 1AS Regulation.

The Group's financial staterents have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instrurments which are required to be
measured at fair value.

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Counal’s ‘Guidance on Risk Management, internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting issued in September 2014, The Directors have considered principal risks and uncertairties affecting the Group which are described on
pages 38 to 44.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants associated with its committed funding lines. These indude £191.5m (being the
repayment amourtt based on the original dollar exchange rates when issued) of LIS Private Placerment debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and December 2024 and a committed multi-currency revolving credit fadility of £275.0m which will expire in July 2021. These fadlities give the
Group total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawn at 31 March 2019.

The key ratios in these financial covenants are net debt to covenant EBITDA and covenant EBITDA 1o net finance costs. These covenants are tested on
arolling |1 2-month basis as at the September and March reporting dates. At 31 March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is forecasting
1o remain within its banking covenanis uver the next twetve months and has stress-tested these calavations for reasonable possible adverse variances
in trading and cash performance.

Supported by the liquidity provided by committed banking fadilities, notwithstanding the Group & in a net current kability position, the Directors

have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the Group corttinues to adopt the going congern basis of accourtting in preparing the condensed consolidated financia! statements.

Discontinued operations

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (Pest Control) which previously formed a separate major line
of business of the Group as part of the Cleaning & Environmental Services division. As a result of the disposal, the results of the Pest Cortrol business
have been dassified as discortinued operations and comparative information has been restated.

On 19 November 2018, the Group ertered into an agreement to sell Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited, together

the Social Housing business, which previously formed a separate major line of business of the Group as part of the Property Managernent division.

As a result of the disposal, which was completed on 30 November 2018, the results of the Socal Housing business have been dassified as discontinued
operations and comparative information has been restated. The remaining roofing and painting activities of the former Property Management division
have been integrated into the Engineering Services division.

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

With the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9 which s discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are effective for the first time
this year have had a material effect on the Group.

IFRS 9 Finandial instruments’ became effective for the Group starting | April 2018 and replaces the requirements of IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
recogrition and measurement’. The main changes introduced by the new standard are new dassification and measurernent requirements for certain
financial assets, a new Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the hedge accounting moded, and
amendiments to disclosures. The Group elected, from | April 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting guidance in IAS 39 ‘Financial instrumerts:
recognition and measurement’.

With respect 1o loss allowances for trade recevables, IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in LAS 39 with an ECL model. The Group, from | April
2018, measures loss alkwances for trade receivables and accrued income at an amount equal to lifetime expected aredit losses using both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group's histoncal expenence and forward-laoking information, The Group has determined that
the transition to IFRS 9 resutted in an additional loss allowance for trade receivables and accrued income as at | Apeil 2018 of £25m and gave rise to a
tax credit of £0.9m. The additional koss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to opening retained earmings at | April 2018 and therefore, the
prior year comparative information is not restated.

Other than as stated above, the accounting policies and methods of calculation adopted in the preparation of these Group consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018,
which were prepared in agcordance with FRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted by the ELL

102 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group
With the exception of IFRS |6 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are not yet effective are expected to have
armaterial effect on the Group.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ becarme effective for the Group from | Apnl 2019 and replaces the requirements of 1AS (7 ‘Leases’ An asset representing the Graup’s
right as a lessee 10 use a leased itern, and a lability for future lease payrments, will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited exemptions for short-
term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the consolidated income staternent spiit between depreciation of the
lease asset and a finance charge on the lease liability. This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under [AS 17, but substantively different 1o the
accounting for operating leases (under which no lease asset or lease liability was recognised and rentals payable were charged to the consolidated
income staternent on a straight-fine basis).

During the year, management set up a project team to review the Group's leasing arrangements in light of the new lease accounting rules in IFRS 16.
At 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of £72.0m (see Note 25). Of these commitments, £1.4m relates to
short-termn leases and £0.Im to low-value leases which wilt be recognised on a straight-fine basis as an expense in the consolidated income statement.
For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise, at | April 2019, right-of-use assets in the range of £820m to £87.0m, and lease
liabilties in the range of £8 | .0m to £86.0m (after adpustments for prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised as at 31 March 2019). Overall
net assets will be in the range of £4.0m lower to £60m higher and net current fiabilities will be higher by between £21 0 and £26.0m due to the
presentation of a portion of lease liabilities as a current liability.

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March 2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between £nil and
£3.0m. Operating profit is expected to inarease by between £24.0m and £29.0m as the operating lease rentals payable which were previously induded
in operating profit are excluded, with thes increase being offset by additional depredation of between £22.0mand £24.0m as the right-of-use assets are
depreciated, n ackdition, operating cash flows are expected to increase by between £24.0m and £29.0m as repayment of the lease fabiltties is reclassified
as cash used in financing activities.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and therefore, there is no significant impact from these actvities on the consolidated finandal
staternents as a result of adopting IFRS 16 However, certain additional disclosure may be required in the notes to the consolidated finandal staternents.

(b) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's IFRS financial information are set out below.,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staternents cormprise the financial statements of Mitie Group pic and all its subsidiaries. The Parent Company has applied
FRS 10| 'Reduced disclosure framework' in the preparation of its individual finanaal statements. FRS 101 applies IFRS as adopted by the European
Urion with certain disclosure exernptions.

Subsidiartes are consofidated from the date an which control 15 transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabilies of jomt ventures and assodates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, Where necessary, adiustments are made to the financial staternents of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the Group.

Allinter-company balances and transactions, induding unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated in full

Interests of non-controfling interest shareholders are measured at the non-contralling interest's proportion of the net fair value of the assets and
labiltes recognised. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for within shareholders’
equity. No gain or loss s recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any difference between the change in the non-controlling
interest and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recogrised directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parent.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financal staterments contain all the inforrmation and disclosures required by the refevant accounting standards and regulatory obligations that apply
to the Group.

In the financial statements, the Group has elected to provide some further disdosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before other iterms),
in order to present its financial results in a way that demonstrates the performance of continuing operations,

Other items are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income staternent to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. The Group separately reports the impairrment of goodwill, the cost of
restructuring programmes, acquisition and dispasal costs inchuding the write-off and amontisation of acquisttion related intangible assets, the results of
and costs assodated with disposals, and ather exceptional items and their related tax effect as other terms. Should these items be reversed, disdosure of
this would also be as other items.

Separate presentation of these itemns is intended to enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group in the period and the extert
to which results are influenced by material unusual andior non-recurring iterns. Further detail of other iterns is set out in Note 4

In addition, following the guidelines on Altarnative Performance Measures (APMs) issued by the European Securities and Markets Authorities (ESMA,),
the Group has included an APM appendix to the finandal staterents on pages 163 to 165.

Revenue recognition policy

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its service lines, so a range of methods is used for the recognition of reverwe
based on the principles set out in IFRS | 5. Revenue represents income recogrised in respect of serwces provided during the period based on the
delivery of performance abligations and an assessment of when contro! is transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all sales contracts 2s outlined below. It is based on the transfer of control
of goods and services to customers and replaces the separate models for goods, services and construction contracts

Step | — Identify the contract(s) with a customer

For all contracts with customers, the Group determines if the arrangement creates enforceable rights and obligations. This assessment results in
certain Framework arrangements or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of contracts under IFRS 15 unless they specify
the minimum quantities to be ordered. Usually the work order and any change orders together with the Framework or MSA will constitute the
IFRS |5 contract

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic annual renewals,
andfor termnination for convenience and break causes that could impact the actual durstion of the contract. As the termn of the contract inpacts the
period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may be recognised, the Group applies judgement to
assess the impact that such dauses have in determining the relevant contract term In forming this judgement, management considers certain influencing
factors induding the amount of discourt provided, the presence of significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience
and performance of contract delivery with the customer and/or the wider industry, in understanding the likefhood of extension or termination of the
contract.

Contract modifications

The Gronip's contracts are froquently amenled for changes ta customer requiremnenits such as change orders and variations. A contract modification
takes place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the existing price or scope (or both) of the cortract, and
the modification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral agreement, or impled by customary business practices.

If the parties to the contract have not approved a contract modification, revenue is recognised in accordance with the existing contractual terms.

If a change in scope has been approved but the cormesponding change in price is stil being negotiated, the Group estimates the change to the total
transaction price.

Contract maodifications are acoounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or services and
the change In contract price reflects the starddalone selling prce of the distinct goods or senvices. The facts and circumstances of any modification are
considered in isolation as these are spedific to each contract and may result in different accounting outcomes.

Step 2 — Identify the performance obligations in the controct

Performance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a custorner. For arrangements with multiple
components to be defivered to customers such as in the Group's integrated faalities management contracts, the Group applies judgernent to consider
whether those promised goods or services are:

i.  distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations;

i. combined with other promised goods or services urtil a bundle is identified that is distinct; or

iii. part of a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the sarme and have the same pattern of transfer over time ie. where the customer
s deermed to have simuttanecusly receved and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the life of the contract, the Group treats the
series as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 — Determine the transaction price

At contract inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount 1o which the Group expects to be entitied and has rights under the

contract. This indudes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration, up or down, resulting from eg, discounts,

rebates, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the expected value method and is only recognised to the extent it is

highly probable that a subsequent change in fts estimate would not result in a significant revenue reversal.

Step 4 — Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction price to the idertified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone seffing prices. This is
predominantly based on an cbservable price or a cost phus margin arrangement.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its perfarmance obligations

For each performance obligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point an time. Where revenue is recognised
over time, the Group applies the relevant output or input revenue recognition method forrneaumngpmgr&ssmdeprctsmcGroups performance
in transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

CertamTong-temcorm*actsuseoutputrnethodsbaseduponwmysofpefmnceca@etedappmwkdremmw\med.anﬂswnsmached
which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred
to date relative to the remaining goods or services under the contract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion 1o costs incurred where the transfer of control is most
dlosely aligned to the Group's efforts in delivering the service.

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within IFRS 15, allowing revenue to be recognised at the amount which
the Group has the right to invoice, where that amount corresponds directly with the value to the austomer of the Group's performance obfigations
completed to date.

If performance obligations do not meet the critena to recognise revenue over time, revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the
goods or services passes to the customer. This may be at the point of physica! delivery of goods and acceptance by a customer or when the customer
obtains cortrol of an asset or service in a contract with custormer-specified acceptance critena. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and control has passed to the custorner.
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Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly integrated facilities managerent arrangemenits. Typically, these
contracts involve the provision of multiple service lines, with a single managemnent teamn providing an integrated service, Such contracts tend to be
transformational in nature where the business works with the customer to idertify and implement cost saving initiatives across the life of the contract.

The Group considers the majorty of services provided within integrated faciities managemenit contracts meet the definition of a series of distinct goods
or services that are substartially the sarme and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes services provided in distinct time
increments (eg. monthly or quarterly) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

The Group also delivers major project-based services under long-term complex contracts that indude performance obligations under which revenue
is recognised over time as value from the service is transferred o the customer. This may be where the Group has a legally enforceable right to
remuneration for the work completed to date, and therefore revenue will be recogrised in line with the associated transfer of control.

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundled contracts)

The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangemerts where repeat services meet the definition of a series of distinct services that
are substantially the same (e.g the provision of deaning, security, catering, waste, and landscaping services). They have the sarme pattarn of transfer of
value to the customer as the series constitutes core services provided in distinet time increments (e.g monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats
the seres of such services as one performance obligation.

Short-term service-based arrangements

The Group delivers a range of ather short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certain reporting
segments for which revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the custorner. This ray be at the point
when the customer obtains control of the service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria eg the delivery of a strategic operating
model or report

Other revenue
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effectrve interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finandal asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Contract costs

The Group incurs pre-cortract expenses (eg legal costs) when it is expected to enter into a new contract The mcremental costs to obtain a contract
with a customer are recognised within corttract assets if it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a contract that would have
been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the pericd.

Contract fulfiilment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropriate organisational, operational and technical lnfrastructures.andmedwamm\sm
place to enable the delivery of full services under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract fulfilment costs, Only costs which meet
all three of the cnteria below are included within contract assets on the balance sheet

i. the costs directly relate to the contract (eg. direct labour, materials, subcontractors);

ii. the Group is building an asset that will subsequently be used to deliver contract outcomes; and

iii. the costs are expected to be recoverable ie. the contract is expected to be profitable after amortising the capitalised costs.

Contract fulfiment costs covered within the scope of another accounting standard, such as inverttories, intangible assets, or property, plant and
equipment are not capitalised as contract fulfilment assets but are treated in accordance with the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets
The Group amortises contract assets (pre-conbract costs and contract fulfilment costs) on a systernatic basss that is consistent with the entity's transfer
of the related gooads or services 1o the custormer. The expense is recognised in the income statement in the period.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fulfilment cost is derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic benefits are
expected 1o flow from its use.

The Group is required to determine the recoverability of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exists if the carrying amount
of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods and services, less the
remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevart contract. In detenmining the estimated amount of
consideration, the Group uses the same principles as it does to determine the contract transaction price which indudes estimates around variable
consideration. An impairment is recognised immediately where such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income
The Group's customer contracts indude a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term contracts

under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at a point in time may
be at the delivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Where revenue recognised at the period end date is more than amourts invoiced, the Group records accrued income for the difference.
Where revenue recognised at the period end date is less than amounts invoiced, the Group recognises deferred income for the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers include a contractual obligation to make redundandes for which the Group is reimbursed for the costs
incurred. Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. Instead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the pericd they are inqurred and
any reimbursement credit is matched against the assocated cost induded in the Incorme staternent up to the value of the redundancy cost incurred.
Any cash payments received from the custormer in excess of the associated cost of redundancy are deferred over the contract term and urwound
in line with the other services being delivered.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 105

Strategic report

Governance

@
4]
=
e
£
o
g
I
S
»
=
=)
c
<
R=
e

W



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

i. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Where price step-downs are required in a contract and output is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from initial periods to subsequent periods
in order for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for a customer to obtain extension periods or other services at a significant discount may lead to a separate performance obligation
where a material right exdsts. Vhere this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the original contract to deferred income
which is then amortised over the discounted extension period or recogrised immediately when the extension right expires.

Foreign currency

The financial statements of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business. Transactions in currendies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currendes at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevalling at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currendes are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair valve
was determined. Non-monatary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary ftems, are induded in the Income statemert
for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are induded i peafit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and kosses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised directly in equity.

On tonsolidation, the assets and fiabifibes of the Group's foreign operations, induding goodwill and fair value adjustrnents arising on their acquisition, are
translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the halance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated into sterling at average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising are recognised directly in equity in the Group's hedging and transiation reserve. On disposal of a foregn
operation, the deferred cumulatve amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.
Finance costs

Finance costs congist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are recogrised in the income
staternent in the penod inwhich they are incurred, mhhfmdwgsrdmngtoﬁ\ecﬁrenmstofdebtmsprudwﬁmpamdw
redemption using the effective iInterest method.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

The tax cwrrently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because
it excdudes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in ather years and it further exckides itenns that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated Using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities in the finandial
statemermandﬁreoorrespondlngtaxbassusedm‘&\ecomptmnonoftambbeproﬁtarﬁlsaccwnledformngthebalancemmbtlrlymethod
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable terporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is

that taxabie profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabiiities are not recognised
if the ternporary difference arises from goodwill or from the: initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accourting profit.

Thecanwgmmtofdeferredtaxassetssre\newedateachbahrvcesheetchteandreducedtoﬂwea«emmmmmbngerpmbabbﬂmwffrem
taxable profits will be available to altow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Oeferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settied or the asset is realised, based upon tax
rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Ceferred tax is charged or credited in the income
staternent, except when it relates to ftems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is diso dealt with in equity.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax fabilities; or when
they relate to inoome taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition rmethod. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange. of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instrurnents issued by the Group in exchange for contrdl of the acquiree.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, fiabilities and contingent labilities that meet the conditions for recognition are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are dassified as held for resale In accordance
wrth IFRS § ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontirued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell

Goodwill arising on acquisition i recogrised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent fiabilities recogrised. Negative goodwill representing a gain from

a bargain purchase, is recognised directly in the income statement.

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition includes any assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangemertt, measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they result from additional
information, ootained within one year from the acquisition date, about facts and droumstances that existed at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassrf'edasanasetorllaballtyare recognised in the income statemnent, in accordance with IFRS 9.
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recogrised.
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Any business combinaticns prior to | April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place pror to the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which
differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs; contingent consideration was
recognised if, and only f, the Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estirmnate was determinable;
and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for

as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amounit by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss s recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between: (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (1) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Allamounts previousty recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
1o that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary i.e. redassified to profit or
loss or transferred 1o another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable [FRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when cortrol is lost is regarded as the fair value on initia! recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable,
of an investrent in an assodiate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the wentifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is nitially recognised as an asset at cost and s subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. it is reviewed for impairment
at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement for the period and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impainment testing, goodwall is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment anrwally, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is alkocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount

of each asset inthe unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the attnbutable amourt of goodwill is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets
Other intangble assets identified In a business acquistion are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisiion.

Customer relationships are amortised over their useful fives based on the penod of time over which they are articipated to generate benefits.
Other acquisition related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised over their useful lives.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset if the asset created can be identified, f it s probable that the asset created
will generate future economic benefits and if the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Software and developrment expenditure
incdudes intermally generated intangible assets and is amortised over its useful life once it has been brought into use.

Following initial recognution, the carrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accurnulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment anrually, or more frequently when there is an indication that they may be impaired.
Amortisation expense is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over its usaful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accurmulated depreciation and any impairrnent in value. Depreciation s charged $o as 1o write off
the cost less expected residual value cf the assets over their estimated useful lives and is calculated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Frechold buildings and long leasehold property . 50 years
Leasehold improvernents period of the kease
Plant and vetudes 3-10years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. if any such indication exdsts, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determmine the extertt of any impairmert foss.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estirmates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to thewr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amourtt of the asset (or CGL) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of #ts recoverable
amount, but 5o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woudd have been determined had no impairmertt loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

l. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Joint ventures and associates

The Group has an interest in joint ventures which are entities in which the Group has joint corirol The Group also has an interest in associates which
are entities in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accournts for its interest in joint verdures and assodiates using the equity method. Under the equity method the Group's share of the post-tax
result of joirt ventures and assodates 1 reported as a single line item in the consolidated income statement.

The Group's interest in joint ventures and associates is carvied in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of net assets.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represent materials, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present condition and focation.

Net realisable vakue is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and estimated selling costs. Provision
is made for obsclete, slow moving or defective dems where appropriate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and finandial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument The Group derecognises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and obligations are transferred, discharged or expire.

Financial assets comprise trade and cther receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The dassification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based
on the business rodel in which a financial asset is managed and its contractuzl cash flow characteristics. All of the Group's cash flows from custamers are
solely paymentts of principal and interest, and do not contain a sgnificant financing component. Financial assets generated from all of the Group's revenue
streams are therefore initially measured at their transaction price (as defined in IFRS 15) and are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost. Cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The assessment of impairment of trade receivables and accrued income from | April 2018 is in accondance with IFRS 9. The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on all receivable balances from customers subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the ‘simplified
approach’ permitted under IFRS 9. In the prior year under IAS 39, appropriate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts wers recognised
induding where there was objective evidence that the asset was impaired,

The Group uses a non-recourse customer invoice discounting faciity (CID fadlity) under which certain trade receivabie balances are sold to the Group's
reationship banks. The arrangement with the banks is such that the customers remit cash directly to the Group and the Group transfers the collected
amounts to the banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance is derecognised,

Financial liabilhes comprise trade payables, financing liabilities. bank and other borrowings, deferred considerstion and contingent consderation. These
are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost with the exception of contingent consideration which is measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of transaction costs. Finance
charges, induding premiums payable on settlemernt or redemption and direct issue costs, are accourted for on an accruals basis in the income statement.

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance are amounts relating to payments due to UK suppliers which make use of bark prowded supply
chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment by the bank. Amounts are settied by the Group in accordance with each supplier’s normal
payment terms and payrents continue to be dassified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any additional guarantees and
does not pay any interest in relation to these amounts.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue tosts,
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses dernvative financial instruments, including cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, to manage the
Group's exposure to financial risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative finandial instrurnents are initially recognised at fair
value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to therr fair value, determined by reference to market rates,
at each balance sheet date and included as finandial assets or liabilities as appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
immedhately unless the dervative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income
statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Group may designate certain bedging instruments inchuding derivatives as either fair value bedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments
in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitrnents are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its
risk management objectives and fts strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged tem.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the income staternent refating to the hedged iterm. Hedge accounting is
discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relatiorship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, tenminated, exerdsed, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accourtting The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk 15 amortised to the income
staternent from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are dassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated

with either a recognised asset or habiity o a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity within the Group's translation and hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statemertt.

Arnounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated In equity are reclassified to the income statement in the periods when
the hedged item is recognised in the income statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that s
hedged results in the recognition of a non-finandial asset or a non-finandial liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred
from equity and induded in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. Hedge accounting is discontinued when
the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrumentt expires or is sold, terminated, exerdsed, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recogrised in other comprehensie iIncome at that time is acournulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction &
ultimately recogrised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to ocour, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges are dassified as net investrnent hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes in the Group's share in the net assets of
aforeign operation. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effectve portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the Group's translation and
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recogrised immediately in the income statement. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity are redassified to the income statement in the same way as exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substartially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased itern or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Caprtalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payrmenits are recognised as an expense in the income statementt on a straight-fine basis over the lease term. Any lease incentives are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease the asset. together with any further terms for which
the Group has the option to continue to lease the asset if, at the inception of the lease, it is judged to be reasonably certain that the Group will exerdse
the option.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation
Whera the Group expects some or all of a prowsion to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract. the reimbursement is recognised

as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the tme value of money is material, provisions are deterrmined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks speific to the fiability.
Where discounting is used, the inarease in the prowsion due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a borrowing cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
fFor the year ended 31 March 2019

t. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavordable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration expected to

be received. Unavoidable costs include total contract costs together with a retional allocation of shared costs that can be directly linked to fulfilling
contractual obiigations which have been systematically allocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers, except where this is impracticable and contract
revenue is used as a proxy for activity. The provision is caloulated as the lower of the termination costs payable for an early exit and the expected net
cest to fulfil the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where a customer has an option to extend a contract and it s fikely that such an extension
will be made. the expected net cost arsing during the extension period is included within the calculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably
expected in the extension period, no credit is taken on the basss that such profits are uncertain given the potential for the customer to either not extend
or offer an extension under kower pricing terms.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a rwmber of executive and employee share option schemes. Equity-settied share-based paytnents to employeds are measured 2t
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value exdudes the effect of non-rmarket based vesting conditions. For grants of share
options and awards, the fair value as at the date of grant is cafculated using the Black-Scholes model, Monte Carlo model or the share price at grant date,
and the corresponding expense is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually
wvest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate: of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market based vesting condiitions. Save As You Earn (SAYE) options are treated as cancelled when employees cease 1o contribute to the scheme,
resulting in an acceleration of the remainder of the related expense.

Restricted shares are issued as part of the cnnsideration for acquisitons made by the Curmpany attached wrth a condition that the relevant recipient
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions witl remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
empioyment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares. The fair value of the restricted shares is the share price at the
date the acquisition agreement was signed.

The credits in respect of the amounts charged are induded within the share-based payrnernt reserve in equity until such tirme as the vesting periods
or share restrictions expire.

The own shares reserve in equity indudes the shares owned by the Employee Trust, treasury shares and restricted shares issusd as part of the
consideration for acquisitions. VWhen shares are transferred to employees upon exerdse of options and awards or when restricted shares held

by employees are released from their restrictions, the own shares reserve is reduced by the relevant cost ar value.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group gperates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. Paymentts to the defined contribution
and stakeholder pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

In addrtion, the Group operates and partidpates in a number of defined benefit schemes. In respect of the schemes in which the Group makes
conttributions under Admitted Body status to clients’ defined benefit schemes in respect of certan employees who transferred to the Group under
TUPE, the Group accounts for its legal and constructive obligations aver the period of its participation which is for a fixed period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations, the return on scheme assets (excluding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if applicable) are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Defined benefit pension costs (induding mrlzﬂments)arerecogmsad In the income statemert, in either administrative expenses or ather items,
whilst the net interest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement benefit liabifity recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair
valueofschemase&%ymtr&ﬂungfmﬁsa@!ahonslmﬂedtom present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

The Group partucupates|nfournulbernployerdeﬁnedbmeﬁtpens'onschenuForﬂveeofthsesd\emesﬂ-eGoupsshareofﬂtassetsand
liabilities 5 minimal. The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scherme), a funded mutti-
employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with ¢irca 400 remaining.
Historically, the size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and liabiities of the scheme
which are atinbutabie 1o the Group. The Group has recently received a Section 75 employer debt notice in respect of the partiapation of Robert
Prettie & Co Limited in the Plumbing Scherne (refer to Note 19 and Note 32). One Group company, Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues
o participate in the Plumbing Scherne, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this company is available and consequertly,
the Group accourts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficent information is not available to use defined benefit accounting. no liability is recognised on the balance sheet, however,
the cbligations are disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 33.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The preparation of consalidated financial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assurnptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The judgermerts and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported result for the year ended 31 March 2019 and upon the carrying
value of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 Manch 2019 are described below.

Revenue recognition
The Group's reverue recognition policies, which are set out under Revenue recognition in Niote |, are central to how the Group measures the work
it has performed in each financia! year.

For certain contracts, key judgements were made concerning contract exdensions and amendments which, for exarmple, directly impact the timing
of revenue recognition in addition to the phasing of upfront paymers to, or from customers which are deferred to the balance sheet and unwound
over the expected cortract term. The Group has deferred pre-contract costs of £2.2m to the balance sheet within contract assets following its
assessment of contract modifications durng the year (refer to Note 16). Management considers this to be an area of judgerment due tothe
determination of whether a modification represents a separate contract based on fts assessment of the stand-alone selling price. rather than a
termination of the existing contract and establishment of a new contract for which the revised contract price would be recognised from the date

of madification.

Profit before other items

‘Other itens’ are items of financial performance which the Group befieves should be separately identified on the face of the income statement 1o assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item should be classified within other iterns
requires judgement as to whether an item is or is not part of the undertying performance of the Group.

Other iterms after tax of £32.8m (2048: £87.2m) were charged to the income statemmertt for the year ended 31 March 2019, An analysis of the amourts
ncluded in other iterns 1s detailed in Note 4.

Recoverability of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amourtts of billed and unbilled work outstanding at year end as outlined in Note 23. Where balances become subject to dispute,
the risk of recoverability increases. As a consequence, there s significant management judgemnent involved in assessing whether these balances have been
eamed and in assessing the recoverability of these balances which involves consideration of the Group's cortractual rights and work performed as well
as the status of ongoing commerdial negotiations. The judgement as to whether an amount has becorme imecoverable is an assessment made by the
Directors in the determination of the total expected credit loss recognised by the Group under IFRS 9. The Group has recognised a total loss allowance
of £192m (2018: £173m) in respect of both aged and disputed trade and other recetvable balances at 3| March 2019

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Revenue recognition, contract assets and contract liobilities

Cue to the size and complexity of the Group's contracts, management is required to form a number of key judgements and estimates in the
determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and refated balance sheet items such as contract assets, accrued income and deferred
income to recognise (refer to Note 1). This indudes an assessment of the costs the Group incurs to deliver the contractual commitments ang whether
suth costs should be expensed as incurred or capitalised. These judgements are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the
achievement of contractual performance targets and planned cost savings or discounts. The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable
change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group's finandal statements.

Provisions and contingent assets ond liabilities

The Cornparyy and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and daims that are in the ordinary course of business.
Judgements are required In order to assess whether these legal proceedings and claims are probable and the liability can be reasonably estimated,
resulting in a provision or, alternatively, whether the items meet the definition of contingent fiabilities.

Prowisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in making a refiable estimate of the quartum and timing of kabilities judgernent
is applied and re-evaluated at each reporting date. The Group recognised provisions at 31 March 2019 of £56.6m (2018: £31.5m) Further details
are induded in Note 19,

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance daims and recourse to suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
(refer to Note 4} incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodal Housing property maintenance contracts, incuding the £12. 1m recorded
in prowisions (refer to Note 19), are recovered. The amount and timing of any recoveries is yet to be determined.

Measurement of defined benefit pension obigations
The net pension liability at 3| March 2019 was £63.8m (201 8: £56.8m).

The measuremnent of defined benefit cbligatiors requires judgernent. it is dependent on materal key assumptions induding discount rates,
life expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. See Note 32 for further detalls and a sensttivity analysis for the key assumptions.

The Group also participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, induding the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). A provision of £20.0m has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of
Robert Prettie & Co. Limrted in the Plumbing Scheme. The Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 employer delbits in respect of the
participation of Mtie Property Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been disclosed as a contingent fiability due to the inherent
uncertainty regarding the amount of any liability.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 1

Strategic report

Governance

“
4]
<
3]
o
2
a
-
rd
=
o
c
&
e
.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Gain on bargoin purchase

The Group has recognised an £8.8m gain on the purchase of Vision Security Group Limited. The value of this gain is subject to the assessment of the far
value of the acquired assets and Habilties and the finalisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the completion accounts with the
seller of the business. See Note 30 for further details.

The fair value of the acquired assets includes £14.9m repraentingtﬁe value of intangible assets associated with customer relationships acquired.
This valuation 1s based upon forecast cash flows which are subject to significant management judgement and estimation.

Allocation of goodwil to discontinued operations

The Directors have made 2 judgement 1o determine the allocation of goodwill to the discontinued operations to armive at the gainvloss on disposal.
This allocation was carried out with reference to the forecast performance of those activities compared to the forecast performance of the cash-
Esnerating units the activities were previously part of, ’
Gain/(loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

The Group has recognised a gain of £26.7m on the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limited and a loss of £11.7m on the disposal of the Socal Housing
business, refer to Note 5.

The value of these gains and losses 1s subject to finalisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the completion accounts with
the purchasers of these businesses. The Directors have made a judgement as 1o the Ykely outcome of each completion accounts settlement.

Deferred tax asscts
The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of £38.7m (2018: £36.7m), refer to Note 20. The Directors have assessed recovery of these assets

with reference to the Group's medium-term forecasts. Recovery of these assets is subject to the Group generating taxable profits in future years.
Impairment of goodwill . ) )

in assessing the key sources of estimation uncertainty, the Directors no longer consider impairment of goodwill as a key source of estimation.
The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on a serace division bass, At 31 March 2019, the Group has six strategic divisions which are its reportable segments
and the information, as reported, is consistent with information presented to the Board, Revenue, operating profit before ather items and operating
profit margin before other iterns are the primary measures of performance that are reported to and reviewed by the Board, which is the Group’s
chief operating decision maker.

The nformation preserited for the year ended 3| March 2018 has been restated to reflect the changes in management reporting, implermented in the
year ended 3| March 2019, of certain business unit activities transferring between Engineering Services, Professional Services and Corporate centre,
the integration imto Engineering Services of the rocfing and painting activities which previously formed part of Property Management, and the
classification of Pest Control and Social Housing as discontinued operations.

01y 2018
ERY o RS o
before margin before before other. margh bafore
Revenue  otheritems?  other items? Ravenue iterns? ather items*
fm £m % im m %
Engineering Services 905.7 56.7 6.5 8863 541 6.l
Security ‘536.5 30.7 5.7 4320 75 64
Professional Services ‘ 1314 5.8 4.3 131.2 56 43
Cleaning & Ervironmental Servces 404.4 17.5 4.3 384.1 196 S
Care & Custody 107.3 3.9 36 589 19 32
Catering 136.1 5.2 38 137.1 58 4.1
Corporate centre - (33.4) - - @B -
Tatal from continuing operations 2,221.4 88.2 4.0 20306 832 44
Pest Control 1.9 24 202 213 26 17
Socia! Housing 89.1 1.6 1.8 1508 38 25
Total from discontinued operations 101.0 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Total 23224 922 4.0 22037 896 4.1

Notes

I MCru.w?nsadxmleRS?mniglApriDI&@QMWMhMWWMMhpn:mmmmmiudmmﬁ\emdhﬁl
application, Undear this option, the comgarative information is not '

1 Cher items are as desarbed in Note 4,

3. Nosinge customer accounted for mone than (0% of exterral revenue in 2019 or 2018,

A reconcikation of segment operating profit/(loss) before other items to total profit/(loss) before tax is provided below:

019 w018
Erm £m
Operating profit before other tems 88.2 832
Other items? ’ (38.0) E21).
Net finance costs . ’ (13.8) (165)
Total from continuing operations 364 (154)
Operating profit before other items 4.0 6.4
Other tems? (6.0) {158)
Net finance income . [ K] Ql
Total from discontinued operations .9 (2.3)
Profit/{loss) before tax - 345 4.7

Notes

1. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 startirg | Apeil 301 8 using the transition option availabte in the standard by disdlosing the impact as an adiustrnent 1o opening retained eamings at the date of initial
applicanon. Under the apbon, the comparatve information 15 not restated
1 Other tems are as desaribed in Motz 4.

IFRS 8 requires that a measure of segmenit assets should be disclosed only 1f that amount s regularty provided to the chief operating decision maker and
consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Geographical segments
2y 018"
Operati K omﬂ’l. st Operaurg
Revenue x%;z oﬂle?:wn;‘ Revenue m%é MLE
&m im x im €m %
Unrted Kingdom 2,1222 B5.8 4.0 19206 829 43
Other countries 9.2 .6 2.6 1100 03 03
Continuing operations 22214 88.2 410 20306 832 4.1
United Kingdom 101.0 4.0 4.0 1731 64 37
Other countries - - - - - -
Discontinued operations 1010 4.0 49 1731 64 37
Total 23124 2.2 4.0 22037 8%.6 4.
Nates:

|. The Group has adopted [FRS 9 starting | Aprl 2018 using the tramiliun option available n the standard bry disclosing the smpact as an adusiment to openng retained eamings at the date of nmal

the option, the comparative information i not restated.

2 Other items are 2 destribed in Note 4.
Supplementary information

019 208
on —
I TRl CTEES  gee TR TR TR o
equipment assets asgets iterns’ equipment assets assets ams!
tm m [ tm m £m £m m
Engineering Senvices a.9 05 - 6.2 12 25 - 37
Security . 15 0.2 - 1.4 18 Q9 - 04
Professional Services 0.2 ol 0.2 08 03 07 - 06
Cleaning & Erwironmental 41 .0 - 2.0 40 03 - X
Services
Care & Custody [ X ) - 0.6 0.1 03 - ol 0l
Catering 1.0 0.1 - 0.1 15 02 - -
Corporate certre 32 7.0 - 272 12 86 - 762
Continuing operations 1.3 89 08 380 123 132 0! 821
Healthcare - - - (2.0) "o - - -
Pest Cortro! 0.1 - - (27.6) 02 0l - -
Social Housing 0.2 ol - 35.6 03 02 - 158
Discontinued operations 03 o.1 - 8.0 05 03 - 158
Total 1.4 9.0 0.8 44.0 128 135 [+1] 979
Note:
1, Onher items are as described in Note 4.
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Disaggregated revenue v
The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-government) and by contract duration (contracts e
with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than two years). The Group befieves this 4
best depicts how the nature, timing and amount of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following table includes a §
recondfiation of disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable segments. g
1019 »
Contract duration for timing of revenue
Sector' recognition
Non- Less than More than
Government  government Total 1 years 2 years Total
&m im im &m om tm
Engineering Servces 34683 5374 905.7 1224 7833 905.7
Security 88.3 448.2 5365 80.1 456.4 5365
Professional Services 218 10%.9 1314 54 126.0 1301.4
Cleaning & Environmental Services 109.2 195.2 404.4 - 404.4 404.4 g
Care & Custody 107.3 - 107.3 - 107.3 107.3 g
Catering 5.7 130.4 136.1 174 118.7 136.1 §
Continuing operations 700.3 1,52L.1 2,214 2253 1,996.1 22,2214
Pest Control - 1.9 1.9 - 1.9 1.9
Social Housing 89.1 - B9.1 54.1 5.0 8.
Discontinued operations 89.1 1.9 101.0 54.0 469 101.0
Total 789.4 1,513.0 2,3214 14 2,043.0 2,224
Note
L :cwrisdel'mdbyﬂiemosthmawmmteg{WGupsamwavafwhdeapﬁm&mummm.ldbemmd .
o]l ] é
Sector! Cortract duration for timing of revenue recognition 2
T T T -
&m m m m m m E
Engineering Services 3684 5179 BB63 1374 7489 8863 I.%
Sequrity 839 348.1 4320 557 3763 4320
Professional Services 138 174 1312 89 1223 1312
Cleaning & Enviranmental Services g9.8 2943 3g4.1 - 384.1 3844
Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 599 599
Catering 46 1325 137.1 16 1355 1371
Continuing operations 6204 14102 20306 203.6 18270 20306
Pest Control - 223 223 - 23 223
Socal Housing 1508 - 1508 %6 592 1508
Discontinued operations 1508 23 1731 9.6 815 173.)
Total 772 14325 22037 2952 15085 22037

Nate
f Smak&frmdby&emdoﬂmmﬁm:gf&&mmkammammbn company for the buiiding of a public hospital, then the contract would be dastiied
2s government.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The table below shows the forward order book for each segment at the reparting date with the tme bands of when the Group expects to recognise
secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured revenue corresponds to fixed work contracted with custormers and excludes the impact of
any antiapated cortract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

2019 2018

Total Total

Less than More than secured Less than More than secured

1 year 1 year revenue 1 year 1 year revenue

im im £m im m im

Engineenng Services 3604 1,442.3 1,807 3907 1.6485 2039.2
Security 478.3 493.2 715 300.1 3407 408
Professional Services 9.7 572 869 458 9.1 1443
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 275.5 387.8 863.1 2760 3803 6563
Care & Custody 100.8 4958 596.6 1008 5693 670.1
Catering 7.2 19.3 265 8.2 265 347
Continuing operations 12519 2,895.4 4,147.3 11216 30644 4,1860
Pest Cortrol - - - 30 200 50
Social Housing - - - 763 2280 3043
Di i oper -~ - - 793 2300 3093
Total 1,251.9 2,895.4 4,147.3 12009 32944 44953

4., Otheritems

Omerma'nsareitmofﬁmmjalpafomwncemmﬂ\e&apbdievsm#dbesepamelyide:rﬁﬁedonthefaceofﬂ\eincotrestatmtoassst
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes, acquisition and dispesal costs including the write-off
and amartisation of acquisition related intangible assets, the results of and costs associated with disposals, and other exceptional itemns and their related

tax effect as.other items

2019

lr:};alrmtm Restructure Aqd:d:nl‘ Gain on Gall txcq:g:‘n:
goodwill costs  related costs bargain on items Total

Cortirung operations £m . tm im  purchase [ Em £m
Administrative expenses - (15.1) (8.7 8.8 - {23.0) (38.0)
Other items before tax - (s ®n L% 3 - (13.0) (38.0)
Tax - 2.8 0.6 - - 4.0 7.4
Other items after tax - (32.3) 8. 88 - (19.0) (30.4)
Discont .
Other items before tax - 0.8) - - 179 3.1} (6.0)
Tax - 02 - - {0.9) 45 38
Other items after tax - (0.8) - - 17.0 (18.6) @
Total - 12.9) (e.1) 88 17.0 (37.8) (32.8)

(1) Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



t
2018 g
— 3
rment Restructure d’spc:! Ganon mm o
?:clndd costs refated costs disposal ftems Total o
Continuing operations n m m €m im £m g
Adminstratve expenses . z7n (470) 84) - (40) (82.1y “
Other items before tax @n (470) (84) - (4.0) (821
Tax - 87 04 - 09 100
Other items after tax @n (383) (80) - an 721
Other items before tax L) ©3) - - (36) (158)
Tar - 0.l - - 06 07 @
Other itams after tax ., (19) ©2) - - Go) (5.0 g
Total 046 085 (80) - © ®72) v
Impairment of goodwill

No charges in respect of the impainmertt of goodwill bave been made in the year ended 31 March 2019,

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors assessed the recoverability of the goodwill allocated to the former Property Management CGU
and recorded an impairment charge of £34.6m. Following the disposal of the Social Housing business, the remaining goodwill of the roofing and painting
activities previously reported in Property Management, has been integrated into the Engineering Services CGU. See Note 12

Restructure costs

The restructure costs relate 10 costs of organisational change associated with the Group's Project Helix transformation programme induding the £
transition costs associated with the outsourang of certain back-office transactional processes. £
These costs are analysed below: §
019 018 =]
c
T e el e e [
&m tm m fm £m m
Redundancy payments® (4.2) (0.5) “wn (45) ©03) (48)
Cost of change team® ©.n - .7 ©n - ©n
Expenditure and provisions in respect of property dasure® 0.2) - ©0.2) 48) - (4.8
Expenditure: in respect of Project Helix transformation activies® (10.0) - (10.0) @266) - (26.6)
Experditure in respect of other transformation projects - (0.3) 0.3 - - -
Impairmertt of intangible assets® - - - (104) - (104)
Restructuring costs (1s5.1) (0.8) (15.9) 47.0) ©3) 473)
Taxation 2.8 0.2 10 a7 0. 88
Restructuring costs net of taxation (12.3) {0.8) {12.9) (383) 02) (385)
Notes

| Includes £13.5m (2018, £348m) in respact of the Project Helbx transformation activives,

2 Costs in respedt of roles made redundant as a resukt of the Proect Helix transformation and other projects to restructure the Group's activities.

3. Inaremental costs of tearns mvoived in the Management of Project Helix transformation activities

4 gs:rhrspectofpmpertydihpxhﬁwubnmmmwmmmumﬁedfmmmmmdwm'spropemesaspaﬂofﬂ\emlﬁq'ectHdu

5. Expenditure in respect of Project Helix transitemavon projeass indudes £03m (2018 £0.6m) of recrutrmest costs in respect of achieving the new operating model. £1.6m (2018: £8.2m)
rela‘ledtodml(mwgim Mhmdwmarmssmgmem or of the wmn\alafbad(?famsr mammdmmﬂyiﬁm BEﬂ.&n)deonrmwmpctm
costs, n respect Mobilsaton £nil) and £nd (2018: £13.0m fessonal fees in activities associated with
devery costs, £1.8m 1 respect of Cenpact (018: £ni) o } of pro respect consuttancy the desgn

[} hwms:efmr@blemremsmsﬁmwmm“mmwumwm&wsmw\gmwmdwmm:ewm
processes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

4. Other items continued

Gain/(loss) on disposal
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group completed the sale of the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses. See Note 5 for further details.

Acquisition and disposal related costs

Acquisition and disposal related costs from continuing operations indude the impairment and amortisation charge for acquisition related intangibles
£1.5m (2018: £2 &), the charge for restricted shares issued per Note 31 of £3.9m (2018: £3.4m), costs of £2.6m (2018: £nil) related to the VSG
acquisition, costs of £04m (2018: £nil) related to the settierment of clainns assoaated with previous acquisitions, costs of £0.3m (20(8: £2.2m) relating
to the aborted disposal of the former Property Management division, and £nil (2018: £0.2m) related to the disposal of the Healthcare division.

Gain on bargain purchase

A credit of £88m (2018: £nil) representing a gain on bargain purchase in respect of the acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited (VSG) has been
recognised from continuing operations, See Note 30.

Other exceptional items
Other exceptional ftems are analysed below:
2019 2018
Coarming  Discomtinued Tosl  cpemit  Cormee Toal
im m én £m im m
Ragulatory irvestigation' (1.1 - .0 @3) - 23)
IFRS 9/15/1 6 adoption project® .n - .7 (08) - 08)
Casts incurred and provision for settlement of contractual disputes’ - (20.5) (20.5) - (33) (33)
Prowision for indemnified costs® - (2.6) (26) - - -
Contract termination receipt® - - - 20 - 20
Pension scheme past service costs {induding curtaiiments)* - - - &) - (9
Cost of equalising Guaranteed Minimum Pensions’ i {1.6) - (1.6) - - -
Persion scheme Section 75 debt* (20.0) - (20.0) - - ~
Gain on dosure of Mitie Reinsurance’ 04 - 0.4 - - -
Property diapidations™ _ _ - (1.0) (03) .3
Other exceptional items (23.0) (23.1) (448.1) (4.0) (3.6 7.6)
Taoation 4.0 a5 8.5 09 06 15
Qther exceptional items net of taxation {19.0) (18.6) (37.8) [cH)] {3.0) (&.1)
Tm and professional costs of £1.fm (201 B: £2.3m) have been ncurred in respect of the dlosed FRC & ito the G Jstr of healthcare goodwil and accrued indome

Carrpm{aﬁﬂmfwhnuﬂedﬂﬂmhﬁl&hdmadﬂnmnmmwmda Company on

|9Sepm-rbu- |&demuﬂmdh&mv%rw\:ﬂﬂmmrﬂmﬁsfahwﬁﬁ}wmmmmw&]hwsm
investigrtion into the same miztters, facts and dreurrstances which were subject to FCA and FRC investigation.

1 Professional fees and interim saff acsts of 0.7 (201 B: 40.8m) have been inourmed in respect of the proects w adopt IFRS 9 Financial instruments’, IFRS | S ‘Revenue from contracts with
astomers. and IFRS 16 Leases. @

3 TheﬂOSm fnrmeymrmdadBIMud120|9(ml&ﬂjm)rehnsmh50cﬂkhsr‘b\mmdr\d.dsa«n n respect of the settlement of a corwmckpme.élslmform

rectification works and legal advice associated with cectain of the Groug's propesty maintenance contracts, of whidh £12 im s incuded in provisions & 31 March 2019, and

(lhfw&vwﬂrﬂﬂ%ﬂumsmmﬂymwhm&mmmmurmmmmrmmdm

4. The £26m charge for the year ended 31 March 2019 represents the estimated costs anising from certain ndenmnities proded in relation to the disposal of the Socil Housing business.
This amount & induded in provisions at 31 March 2019

5. The loss of two major contracts in the year ended 31 March 2018 resulted in a one-0fT tenmination receipt amountng to £2.0m. These amounts are disclosed sepaately due to the size of the
payments received and the fact that the loss of contracts of this sze & an unusual event for the Group.

6 Asaresuh of the dosure of the Mive Group plkc Persian Scheme to future aooruat from October 2017, a past service cost (induding curtaiiments) of €1.9m was nasred in the ended
3lWﬂ\20l8.SeeNm=32forﬁ.rmer¢:ﬂ§ past ¢ ) i

7. Following mndby\hethCMmZéchberlDIBnﬂ'\em Group of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMF) the Group has
et o e lshie o e St francil brpocs o1 1 g s e oy . e e of G P b g 6 b
muapﬁnmud\a@ been included within cther iterms due 10 the size and hon-recurring nature of the amount. Ses Note 32 for further detaik,

8. Estenated Section 75 debt in refation 10 the participation of Robert Prettie & Co Limited in the Phambing & Mechanal Sesvices (UK) Industry Persion Scheme. See Note 32 for further detais.

9. D.nmgﬂ.\emgﬂedﬂ("hrd‘\ZOl9ﬁ\eGru.pWBWMWW&MWMMhaMMdQMMﬁMM
cutstarding kabilities.

10, As part of the rationalisation of the Group's property portiolio a review ol the potential Rabimes for leasehold property diapidxtion costs was aastied cut and resuted in a one-off £1 3m charge
nthe year anded 31 March 2048
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

£
]
On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (Pest Control) for cash consideration of £40.0m before tax ?
and transaction costs. The results of the Pest Control business have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been %
restated. The Group recognised a net gain on disposal of £26.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recogrised in other iterms -
(see Note 4). &
On 19 Novermber 2018, the Compary signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Managementt Limited and MPS Housing Limited {together
the Social Housing business) and this transaction was subsequently completed on 30 November 2018. The resuls of the Social Housing business have
been classified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated. The Group has retained liability, and made provisions where
appropriate, for certan legacy contracts of the Sacial Housing business so these are not induded within liabilities hetd for sale. The Group recognised
anet loss on disposal of £1 |.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other itemns (see Note 4).
The Group has determined that the Healthcare Indemnity provision should be partly refeased by £2.0m. This has been recorded as a gain on disposal.
The results of these discontinued operations are detaded below. '
There were no disposals in the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
Income statement of discontinued operations g
09 E
Pest Control  Soclal Housing Total g
im &m fm o
Reverue e ay.1 101.0
Cost of sales (%)) 729) (79.6)
Gross profit 52 162 2.4
Admirestrative expenses (2.8) 5.1y (7.9
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodates ’ - 0.5 0.5
Operating profit before other items' 24 L6 4.0
Other tems’ - (23.9) (23.9) g
Net finance income [ A] - 0.1 %
Profit/(loss) before £ax 25 (22.3) 19.8) =
Tax ©y 4.0 7 =
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 1 (18.3) {16.1) E
2018
Reverue 23 1508 173.4
Cost of sales (i62) {1158) (1320)
Gross profit [y 350 411
Adminstrative expenses 35 (20) 355)
Share of profit of joint vertures and assodates - 08 08
Operating profit before other items? 26 38 64
Other items® . ©.n (s7 (15.8)
Net finance income 0l - 0l
Profit/(loss) before tax 26 (19 (?3)
Tax ©5) 03 02
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 21 (116) (95)

Notes:

1. The £1.6m operating profit before other iterns in Social Housing for the year ended 31 March 2019 inchudes a ). 4m loss in respect of a contract which has been terminated and £2.6m
of recharges m respect of Group central services.

2. The £3.8m operating profit befure other iterms in Socal Housing for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes an increased debt provision of £1.2m in addition to €2.3m of recharges n respeat
of Group central services.

3 Orher tems are as desaibed in Nate 4.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued
Gain/(loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

w019 018
Healthcare  Pest Control' Social Housing Totad Healthcare?
fm &m im im m
Total consideration . - 38.4 15 60.9 02)
Net assets disposed . . - @6 aLy Qaen -
Release of ndemnity provision 2.0 - - 20 -
Teansaction costs - {1.2) a.n 5.3y -
Total gain/{loss) on dispasal before tax 2.0 216 awn 17.9 ©2)
Twation - ©9 - - 0.9 -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of disconti d operati 1.0 267 (N 17.0 02)
Note:
|, Total consideration of £392rn has been received in cash, but £0:8m & expected to be returmad through agreement of the cormpletion actounts with the purdhaser of the business.
2. Deferred contribattion of £0.2min the year to 31 March 2018 was payable to the purchaser
3 thudes poodwil of £3.3m relating o Pest Control and £12.5m relatng 80 Socal Housing and cash batances of £34m.
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
2019 w8
im m
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (18.1) 95)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 17.0 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from di: i d operati (% J {9.5)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year from discontinued operations
2009 w18
£m im
Equity holders income/{expense) 0.9 {95}
Cash flows from discontinued operations
019 2018
im £m
MNet cath used in operating activities (9.4) G0
Net cash generated from investing activities 52.6 02
Net cash generated from financing activities - 13
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 432 (7.5)
Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operations
wr X8
P P
Basic earnings before other items per share' 0.9 1.6
Basic eamings/(loss) per share 0.2 @n
Diluted earnings before other items per share' 0.9 1.6
Diluted earmings/{loss) per share 02 an
Note:
1. Other ters are as described in Note 4,
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Joint ventures and associates of discontinued operations

£
The Social Housing disposal group induded a 30% interest in an assocate, Pyvamid Plus South LLP, a limited lability partnership registered in the e
United Kingdom. The Group's interest in the assodiate was accourted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. E
The summarised finangial information set out below for the year ended 3| March 2019 has been taken from unaudited management accourtts ¥
of the associte. g
w
2019 2018
£m £mn
Revenve 93 122
Operating profit 1.8 26
Group's share of profit of associate in discontinued operations 0.5 08
2019 2018
im m g
[ =
Current assets - 38 g
Current abilties - (12 H
Net assets - 26 v
Group's share of interest in associace - 08

During the 2019 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of £nil 2018 £0 6m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(loss) has been armived at after charging

2009
£m

2018

Continuing and discontinued aperations £m
Depredation of property. plant and equipment (Note 14) 1.8 128
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note 13 9.0 15
Amortisation of conitract assets ’ 0.8 0.1
Impairmert of goodwil {(MNote 12) - 346
Imparment of other intangible assets (Note 13) LI 104
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (0.8) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 5) 7.9 -
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (Note 23) v 13
Impairment (gans)flosses recognised on accried income (Note 23) (1.6) 20
Operating lease rentals 26.5 2.1
Note:

1. The has IFRS 9 i 201 B using the transtion aption avadable in the standard the © retaned pngs at the date of intial
Growp Tﬂ:ﬂmmﬂmsmr&m?m by disclosng the mmpact as an adiustment to openng earnings

A detalled analysis of auditor's remuneration is provided below:

2019 218
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts — 8DO LLP 40 40
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its assodates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legidation - BDC LLP 1,520 1161
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its assodates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legistation ~ Deloitte LLP - 87
Total audit fees 1,580 1,288
Other audit related services to the Group - BDO LLP 127 93
Tax services — BDO LLP - &
Total non-audit fees 127 99
Total 1,687 1387
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7. Staff costs
The average number of people employed during the financial year was:

Nusber of people 2018 018"
Engineenng Services 8,711 8,900
Security 15,011 14804
Professional Services 1,059 1029
Cleaning & Environmental Services 20,301 21,706
Care & Custody 1,976 1,051
Catering 2,384 2505
Corporate cemre a8 37
Continuing operations 49,480 50032
Pest Control 190 198
Social Housing 737 831
Discontinued aperations 927 1,029
Total Group 50,407 51061
Nate:
e A ey e ke i i sy e

The number of people employed at 31 March was:

201¢ 2048
Continuing operations 52,492 47394
Discontinued operations - 1.632
Total Group 52,492 49026
N—— W
‘Wages and salarfes 1,125.4 10207
Social secunty costs "898 77
Other pension costs 236 170
Share-based payments {Mote 31) [ 1.2
Share-based payments acquision related costs {Notes 4 and 31) 39 34
Total 1.243.8 11194
Details of Directors' remuneration is provided below:
01y 2018
[ £m
Directors”emoluments 37 1l
Share-based payrments 0.8 06
Total 4.5 7

None of the Directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scherme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 3} March 2018, Details of loss of office payments (subject to audtt) are disclosed in the remuneration report on page 78.

The total amount payable to the highest paid Director in respect of emoluments was £2.2m (2017 £4.1m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

8. Finance costs

— o
Interest on bank facifities - 4.2 32
Interest on prvate placement loan notes 7.8 9.1
Bank lees 0.5 20
Interest on cbiigations under finance leases o.d -
Unwinding of discounts on prosisions 0. 02
Loss ariang on fair value hedges - Lol
Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets and kabities 1.3 20
Total 140 166
9. Tax

1019 2018!
Contrwing and discontinued operations m m
Current tax' 34 {56)
Deferred tax (Mote 20) 02 69
Tax charge for the year 3.6 13
Continwing operations 64 e
Discontinued operations . (2.8) 02
Tax charge for the year 34 13
Noge:
R L s S e et e

Corporation tax is calculated at 199% (2018: 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year A reconciliation of the tax charge to the elements of profit
before tax per the consolidated income statement elements is as follows:

2009 2018
Wm ::‘t:‘ Total w-erai.r: On::s‘ Total
Cartinuing and descontnued operations tm tm tm £m €m £m
Profit/(loss) before tax 78.5 (44.0) 345 732 979 o2 Xy]
Tax at UK rate of 19% 2018 19%) 149 [CE}] 65 139 (i8.6) An
Reconciling tax charges for: X
Norrtax deductible charges 0.9 - 0.9 05 11 1.6
Share-based payrents 03 0.7 1.0 .1 - ©on
Gain on disposal of businesses - (4.0) (4.0) - - -
mpairrment of goodwill - - - - 66 66
Overseas taxrates - (0.2) - {0.2) {03) - {03).
Impact of change in statutory tax rates 0.4) 0s 0.] 01 02 03
Prior year adpustrnects @0 = .7) aun - b
Tax charge/(credit) for the year 14.8 (11.2) EX 120 (10.7) 13
Effective tax rate for the year 18.9% 155% 104% 16.4% 109% G.5%

I The has FRS9mmrgI e mnwmnoptmmihblemmemndmd the as an adjustment to retained at the date of nitial
Gmup admed N:ri! using by disclosng the impact opening eanings
2 Od'zrmarusdaubeanm4

In addition to the amounts charged to the consolidated income statemnent, tax refating to retirement benefit costs amounting to a £2.4m credit
(2018: £3.4m charge) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.3m charge relating to share-based
payments and hedged items (201 8: £0.|m credit}.

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 19% to 17% from | April 2020. This will reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly.
The LK deferred tax assets and liabilibes at 31 tMarch 2019 reflect this change. A currerst tax. provision is recognised when the Group has a present
ohligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
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10. Dividends

£
019 018 Q
m £m &
" Amounts recogrvsed as distriubions in the year: . iﬂ
Second mnterim dandend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 2.67p (2017 fina! divdend: nil) per share' 9.6 -~ :_-‘.’,
]
Interim divdend for the year ended 3| March 2019 of 1.33p (2018 133p) per share 4.8 48
Amounts paid in 2019 and 2018 4.4 48
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 2.67p (2018: 267p) per share 9.6 9.6
Note:
1. On7 june 2018, the Company announced s final results for the year ended 31 March 201 8. The announcement induded a recommendation by the Board of a final dividend of L67p per share
payable an & August 2018, On 28 june 20| 8 the Company diraulated its INobee of 2018 Arrial General Meeting (the Notce). The Notice omitted a resolution seeking sharehokder approval
ofmermltiﬁdmd.hnrderforﬂedi\ndmdwhmwmmﬁmmlsnmmwpmmmmnm‘zolsﬂegmrddechredam\d
iterwn dividend of 167p per share in place of the proposed final dividend.
v]
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

11. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated in accardance with 1AS 33 ‘Earnings per share’
The calcutation of the basic and diluted EPS is based on the following data:

2019 2018
From continuing operavons tm [}
Net profit before other tams attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.6 545
Other items net of tax* . (30.6) @2
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 30.0 (178)
0i% 218
From contrnuing and discontiwed operations. &m fm
Net profit before other ftems attnbutable to exuity holders of the parent 6.7 0.1
Other terms net of 1 (32.8) 872)
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent - 30.9 272.1)
2019 2018
Number of shares million milion
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 360.8 3579
Effect of difutive potential ordinary shares: share options 2.2 19
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpese of diuted EPS 363.0 3598
2019 018'
|4 P
From continuing operations:
Basic earmings before other tems per share? 168 152
Basic earmings(oss) per share 83 “9)
Diluted earmings before other items per share? 16.7 15.1
Diluted earmings/(loss) per share 83 {45)
From tinuing and discontinued operations:
Basic earmings before other tems per share? 17.7 168
Basic eaminge/(loss) per share 8.4 @8
Diluted earnings beflore other iterms per share? 17.5 167
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 85 @)
Notes
1. The Group has adapted IFRS 9 starting | Aprd 2018 using the transhon option avallable in the standard by disclosing the mmpact as n adjustiment (o opering retaned eamings at the date of iital
applicabion. Under this option, the comparatave information is not restated.

1 Orher items are as described in Note 4
The weighted average nurmber of ordinary shares in issue during the year exdudes those accounted for in the own shares reserve (see Note 29},

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instrumerts that could patertially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, such as share options,
The loss for the year ended 3| March 2018 means that the identified potentially dilutive shares are anti-dilutive for the purposes of calcylating diluted
earnings per share.
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I2. Goodwill

I

£m 2
Con 5
At Apri 2017 1589 &
Impact of loreign exchange | . 03 §
Ac31 March 2018 3592
Disposal of subsidiaries (329)
At 3t March 2019 3263
Accumulated impairment losses
At | April 2017 150
Impairment of property goodwill 346 °
AL31 March 2018 496 g
Disposal of subsiiaries a7 §
At 31 March 2019 325 )
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 1938
At31 March 2018 3096
At | April 2017 ) 3439

Acquisition of Vision Security Group

On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). There 1s no goodwill recognised on acquisition as the consideration
paid was less than V5G's net assets at the acquisition date, gving nise to a gain on bargain purchase, see Nate 30,

Disposal of Social Housing

On 19 Novernber 2018, the Compary signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Managernertt Limited and MPS Housing Limited (together,
the Social Housing business). This transaction completed on 30 Novermber 2018 and the associated carrying amount of goodwill of £12.5m has been
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

Disposal of Pest Control

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (PestControl) and the assodated goodwill of £3.3m has been
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

©
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Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGLs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

Goociwill has been allocated to CGUs, which align with the business segmentts, as this is how goodwill is monitored by the Group intermally. The £23.1m

ret carrying value of goodwill associated with the roofing and painting activities which previously formed part of Property Managernent has been
transferred into the Engineering Services CGLL

The Group tests goodwill at least annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill ray be impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

12. Goodwill continued
A summary of the goodwill balances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each CGU are as follows:

dicoumrase discouniras oIy o

x * im ém

Engneering Services' 10.1 9.3 130.9 1309
Security i0.1 93 101.7 QL7
Frofessional Services 133 103 15.7 157
Cleaning & Environmental Services iy 9.3 29.8 I3
Catering 121 9.8 15.7 157
Social Housing - 125
Total 2938 3096

Note:
| The information presentes for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated to reflect the integraton vl Engneesing Services of the roofing and painting acthntes prewously reported
'\Pmlyl'hmlﬂ‘-

Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value in use which is dertved from discounted cash flow calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes 1o reverue and direct costs
during the forecast period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks spedific to the CGUSs. The long-term growth rates are based on forecast inflation. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
performance and expectations of future changes in the market, operating model, and cost base.

Growth rates and terminal values
For all CGUs the Group prepares cash fiow forecasts derived from the most recent budgets for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the Group
medium-term plan te 31 March 2024 which have been approved by the Board, and a terminal value using along-term growth assurnption of 1.5%.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from CGUs are derived from the Company's post-tax Wesghted Average Cost of
Capital, which was 8.8% at 3| March 2019 (2018: 7.7%), and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being assessed and the market in which
the CGL) operates. All CGLs have the same access to the Group's treasury functions and borrowing fines to fund thesr operations.

Sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis has been performes and the Directors have conduded that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key assumptions would result
in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group's CGUs.
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13. Other intangible assets p
Acquision related 2
Total Software and E
Customer acquisition development - ‘B
refationships Orher related experxiiture Total [
€m fm im £m tm g
vy
Cost
At | Aprd 2017 B84 109 99.3 973 196.6
Additions - - - 90 %0
At3l March 2018 B84 109 9.3 1063 205.6
Additions - - - 112 1.z
Acquisbon of subsidiaries 149 - 14.9 - 14.9
Disposats - - - (313) 313)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (60} (6.0) o
At 31 March 2019 1033 109 114.2 802 194.4 é
Amortisation ©
At | April 2017 B34 96 93.0 504 143.4
Charge for the year 22 04 2.6 109 135
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 856 100 95.6 71.7 167.3
Charge for the year 1.2 03 1.5 75 2.0
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 11 1.1
Disposals - - - G13) @1.3) g
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - @ (24) &
At 31 March 2019 868 103 7.1 466 143.7 z
2 [x]
Carvying amount =
At 31 March 2019 1es 06 (XA 336 50.7
At 31 March 2018 8 09 37 36 3183
At | Aprl 2017 50 I3 63 469 53.2

Customer relationships are amortised over their useful lives based on the perod of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.

These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisition related irtangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised
over therr useful lives which currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs are amortised over their useful Iives of between
five and ten years, once they have been brought into use,

During the year ended 3| March 2018, the Group impaired £104m of software and development expenditure related to intangble assets with the
impairment recogrised within restructuring costs in cther iterns (see Note 4).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
Far the year ended 3i March 2019

14. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Lezsehold

properties properties m Tota!
m m m im

Cost
At | April 2017 13 168 715 89.6
Addtions ’ 02 49 107 158
Redassifications within property. plant and equipment. - 02 {02) -
Disposals (.2 ©8) @4 (4.9
AL 31 March 2018 03 204 796 101.0
Additions - 41 80 120
Redassifications within property. plant and equipment - 0.3) 03 -
Disposals - (6.5) {173} (23.8)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries - - 02 0.2
Disposal of subsidiaries 03) (X)) 24 (3.9
At 31 March 2019 - 177 684 86.1
Accumulated depreclation and impairment
At | April 2017 04 106 463 5§13
Charge for the year - 7 1 128
Reclassifications within property, plant and equiprent - 02 02 -
Disposals ©3) ©3) (1]} @
At 31 March 2018 Q. 122 55.0 67.4
Charge for the year - 08 108 1.6
Redassifications within property, plant and equipment - ©.1) [ 1] -
Disposals ’ - @n (172 (19.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries n 0.2) (1.7 {2.0)
At 31 March 2019 ; - 100 47. s7.1
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 - 77 213 19.0
At 31 March 2018 02 BY 245 33.6
At | April 2017 09 62 k2 323

The net book vahue of plant and wehides hel under finance leases induded above was £0.7m (2018: £0.7m).
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15. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
im im
Trade receivables 2336 2050
Accrued income 132.6 1314
Prepayments . 274 213
Other receivables? 419 283
Total 435.2 3860
Induded in current assets 435.2 3860
Induded in non-current assets - -
Total 4352 3860
Notes

. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 starting | April 2018 using the transition oprion avaizhle in the standard by disclosing the impart as an adiustment to openng retaned eamings at the date of nutia)
apphcabon. Under this aption, the comparative information i not restated.

7_\Mﬂmmtzrra:embufortl!yaarmdedllf“hrdlZOI?sﬂ!lmmhmgtomeaqmofVSG(:eNmz This balance represenis amounts expectad ta be recovered following
finalisation of the consideration to be paxd, and is subject to agreement of the completion acacunts with the seller of the business,

The Group makes use of a non-recourse custormer invoice discounting faclity under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Group's
relatiorship banks. As these trade receivables are sold without recourse, the Group has derecognised thern, and so they are not induded within trade
receivables The Group has reduced the amount of invoice discounting from £76.3m as at 31 March 2018 to £73.2m as at 31 March 201 9.

The Directors consider that the carrying amountt of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.,

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and its loss allowance against the balance of trade receivables and accrued income, is provided
inNote 23,

16. Contract assets

Contract
P i Totas
ém £m im
At | Aprl 2017 - - -
Additiors - 23 2.3
ised i the period - ©n .1
AL 3t March 2018 - 22 2.1
Additions 22 25 4.7
Amortised in the period - 08 (0.8)
At 31 March 2019 22 39 6.1
Induded in current assets o7 09 1.6
Indudad M non-current assets 15 30 4.5
Total 22 39 6.1

Contract assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract life which is consistent with the transfer of services to the customer to which
the asset relates, Managemnent has determined that no impairment of contract assets is required as at 31 March 2019.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

17. Trade and other payables

2019 018

im £m

Payments received on azcount ' 0.6 02
Trade creditors 160.3 1913
Crher taxes and sodial security 97.1 7”9
Crther creditors 450 »z
Accruals 2309 1962
Total 533.9 4968
Indduded in current Babiities 5339 4968
trchuded in non-currertt liabiities - -
Total 5339 4968

Trade creditors at 31 March 2019 represents 50 days credit on trade purchases (2018 restated: 58 days).
Included within the Group's trade creditors balance is £20.0m 2018 £45.Im)relati-ghoﬁayrwﬂsmetoUKmpplierswhlmmakeuseofbank
ided supply chain finance arrangements, During the year ended 31 March 2019 these arrangements were used by 200 suppliers, with a maximumm
facility available of £50.0m. The Group settfes these amounts in accordance with each supplier’s agreed payment termvs.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.
18. Deferred income from contracts with customers

The significant changes in deferred income are as follows:

10‘::‘ 20[::

ALY Apri 650 0.4
Revenwe recognised that was included in the deferred income balance at the beginning of the year (44.9) {159)
Increase due 10 cash received, exchuding amounts recognised as revenue durng the year 50.0 508
Acquisition of subsidiaries 49 -
Disposal of subsiciaries .n -
At 3 March 733 650
201¢ 2018

im £m

induded within current liabilities 54.9 462
induded within non-current fiablies 18.4 188
Total 733 650

Deferred income relating to customer contracts mobilising in the year amounted to £5.8m (2018: £2.6m). For any amounts which do not relate
1o spedific contractual performance cbligations, the income is deferred to the balance sheet and amortised over the period to which the contracted
services are delivered to the customer.
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19. Provisions

:

»

Lega Desposal cu‘\tnga‘twem lnsurance m y

costs  mdemnibes  Restruchsing  consideration  reserve wsts  PErSOn  Diapdations Total g

€m &m m fm m £n £m m i v
At Aprl 2017 0 60 - 03 125 58 - - 16.6
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet - - - - - - - 34 34
Amaounts recognised in the income statemert. 32 - 12 - 40 (1.3) - - 7.1
Utiised withwn Captive nsurance subsidiary - - - - ©n - - - (0.1
Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - 02 0.2
Utilised in the year [{N)] (r.0 - {03) {n [eA) - - N

At 31 March 2018 4.1 49 12 - 153 24 - 36 31.5 o

Amourts recognised in the rcome statement 02 08 - - 25 (s 200 - 14.8 ‘é

Lhilised within captive insurance subsidiary - - - - ©rn - - - {0.1) ]

Urwinding of discourt - - - - - - - al 0.1 g
Utlised in the year {40) ©2) ') - 83 ©6) - 04 .0
Redassificztion - - - - 06 06) - - -
At 31 March 2019 03 53 - - 150 Y27 200 33 56.6

200

Induded in current kabilities 03 53 - - 90 127 33 50.6
Induded in nor-current kabilities - - - - 60 - - - 6.0
Total 03 53 - - 150 127 200 33 56.6

The provisions balance includes the following items:

The legal costs provision relates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settiement of outstanding dlaims against the Group.
The utilisation of the provision represents the settlement of a contractual claim related to a contract of the now discontinued Social Housing business.

The disposal indernnities provision relates to indemanites promded following the disposal by the Group of the Healthcare and Social Housing
businesses. The amount recognised in the income statement represents a £2.6m charge in respect of Social Housing net of a £2.0m release in
respect of Healthcare.

The restructuring provision relates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation programme induding
the transition costs associated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes.

The insurance reserve provides for the self-nsured element of fleet and liability caims that wall typically settie over three to five years. This indudes
a prowision for claims that are expected but have not yet been reported.

The contract spedific cost provisions relate to various cbligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with commercial contracts.
The £11.5m charge for the year ended 31 March 2019 indudes the £12.1m estimated costs of rectification works assocated with certain property
maintenance contracts of the now discontinued Sodal Housing business, all of which are induded within other fterrs. Refer to Note 4 for further details. -

The pension provision relates to the Section 75 ernployer debt labilties of Robert Prettie & Co Limited as a result of that company’s participation in the
Plumbing Scheme. This liability is expected to be settled during the year ended 31 March 2020. See Notes 32 and 33.

The prowision for dilapidations relates to the legal obligation for leased properties to be returned to the landlord in the contracted condition at the end
of the lease period. This cost would indude repairs of any damage and wear and tear.

Contingent asset

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance daims and recourse to supplers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
incurred in respect of rectification works for the Social Housing property maintenance contradts, induding the £12.1m recorded in provisions above,
are recovered. The amount and timing of any recovenies is yet to be determined.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

20, Deferred tax

The folksving are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recogrised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
period:

Retrement Intangible Short-term
e " Sepretin Preirel e e Tota

&m m ém fm m ém £m
At Apdl 2017 58 €5 126 oy 07 16 46.1
{Charge)/crediit to income 70 03) 03 03 ©n ()] (6.9)
{Charge)/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - 34) - or - 3.3)
At31 March 2018 188 62 95 (08} o7 L5 359
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 03 - @5) - 02 @0
[Dwsposal of subsidanes - 03) - 05 - ©2) -
(Charge)/aredit to income (15) (1.2) 23 ©.i} 04 o ©.2)
Credit/(charge) to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - 24 - 03) - 2.
At 31 March 2019 173 50 142 29} 08 14 iss

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The folowing i the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting
purposes

2019 218

m m

Deferred tax assets 38.7 367
Deferred tax habsfities (2.9) (0.8)
Net deferred tax asset 5.8 339

The Group has unutilised income tax losses of £1023m (2018: £112.8m) that are available for offset against future profits. In addition, the Group has
£08m (2018 £0.8m) of capital losses. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £92.8m (2018: £102.7m) of losses to the extent that

it is probabie that taxable profits will be generated in the future and be available for utifisation. Deferred tax has been calculated using the corporation
tax rate disclosed in Note 9.

21. Cash and cash equivalents
2009 018
ém €m

Cash and cash equivalents 108.4 59.8

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturty of three months or less.
The carrying amount of the assets approximates their fair value.

Included in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £nil (2018: £0.4m) held by the Group's insurance subsidiary, which are not readify available
for the general purposes of the Group. The Group's insurance subsidiary was liquidated during the year.
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22. Financing liabilities

2019 2018

&m im

Bark loars — under committed facilities 52.0 543
Private placernent notes 2119 2038
Qbiigations under finance leases (Nate 24) 1.5 13
Total 245.5 2594
Inchuded wy current Kabdres 40.7 08
Included in non-current fiabilities 224.8 2586
Total 2655 2594

The £275.0rm bark fadlity and the private placement notes are unsecured but have financial and non-financial covenants and obligations commonty
associated with these The final maturity dates of all facilities remained unchanged. The Group was in compliance with these cavenants
as at 31 March 2019 and hence all amounits are dassified in line waith repayment dates

Included in current finanding liabilties are £0.7m (2018; £0.8m) of obligations under finance leases (see Note 24).

With the exception of derivatve financal instruments, all finanding habilities are held at amortised cost Dervative financial instruments are indially
recognised at fair value at the date the contract is entered nto and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value through profit or loss untess they
are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied (see Note 23).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had avalable £221.9m (2018: £219.3m) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met. The faciities have an expiry date of July 2021. The loans carry interest rates which are currently determined at |1.0% over
the applicable LBOR.

Details of the Group's contingent Rabilities are prowded in Note 33.
The weighted average interest rates paid during the year on overdrafts and loans outstanding were as follows:

019 218

% %

Overdrafts 2.7 20
Bank loars 1.8 15
Private placement notes 4.1 is

Private placement notes

Following the issue: on |6 Decamber 2010 of USE96.0m and £400m of private placement (PP) notes in the United States Private Placement market,
the Group issued a further US$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes on |3 Decernber 2012, The PP notes are unseaured and rank pari passu with
ather senior unseoured indebtedness of the Group. In order to manage the risk of foreign currency fluctuations and to manage the Group's finance
costs through a mex of fixed and variable rate debt, the Group has entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the
same duration and other crtical termns as the borrowings and are considered to be highly effective. US$96.0m of these PP notes were settled in
Oecember 2017 upon maturity, along with the associated swaps which had been designated as fair value hedges. The amount, maturity and interest

terms of the remaining PP notes are shown below.

Trarche Mawrity date Amount Interest termrs Swap interest
9 year 16 Decernber 2019 £400em £ fixed at 4.38% na
10 year 16 December 2022 US$760m US$ fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10 year i6 December 2022 US$770m US§ fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 402%
10 year 16 December 2022 £250m £ fixed at 3.87% na
12 year 16 December 2024 £300m £ fixed at 4.00% nfa
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

23. Financial instruments

Classification
The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative finandial instruments. VWith the exception
of derivative financial instruments, all financial assets are held and measured at amortised cost.

The Group's pincipal financial liabilities are trade and other payables and financing liabilities. All financial liabilties are held and measured

at amortised cost

Derivative finanaal instruments are measured initially at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value through the incore staternent unfess they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (induding the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and expense) for each class of financial asset, financia! liability and equity instrument are disdlosed in Note |

Risk management objectives

The Group's treasury depariment monitors and manages the finandial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks include those arisng
from interest rates, foreign currendies, liquidity. credit and capital management. The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by wsing effective
<ontrol measures and, where appropriate, derfvative financial instruments 1o hedge certain risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed
by Group policies and reviewed regularly. Group policy is to not trade in finandial instruments. The risk management policies remain unchanged from
the preveous year.

Interest rate risk
The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of interest rates. The Group's treasury function reviews its risk management strategy on a regular
basis and will, as appropriate, enter into derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The interest rate sensitivty has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the
batance sheet date. Al financial liabilities, other than financing liabilties, are interest free.

If underlying interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year ended
31 March 2019 and reserves would decrease/increase by £0.8m (2018: £0.7m).

Forelgn currency risk

The Group has kmited exposure to transactional forsign currency risk from trading transactions in currencies ather than the functional currency of
individual group entities and some exposure to transiational foreign currency risk from the translation of its foreign operations. The Group considers
the need to hedge its exposures as appropriate ard will enter into forward foresgn exchange contracts to mitigate any significant risks.

In addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placement riotes into sterfing using cross-currency interest rate swaps
(see Hedging activities below).

At 31 March 2019 £9.2m (2018: £9.3m} of cash and cash equivalents were held in foreign currendies. Included in bank loars were £13.1m
{2018: £15.7m) of loans denominated in foreign currency.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection model which considers the maturity of the Group's assets and liabilities and the
projected cash flows from operations. Bank loans under committed faciities, which allow for approprate headroom in the Group's daily cash
movements, are then arranged Details of the Group's bank facilities can be found in Note 22
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The tables below surmrnarise the maturity profile (incuding both undiscounted interest and pnncipal cash flows) of the Group's finandal liabilities.

Within  In the second After

one year  to fifth years fve years Total
Finandial kabitibes at 31 March 2019 £m im £m £m
Trade creditors 160.0 - - 160.1
COther crediiors 409 - - 40.9
Financng llabilives 102.0 162.6 309 295.5
Financal Rabiites' 303.0 162.4 30.9 496.5

Within In the second Afer

Fnancat Sabdites at 3| March 2018 mﬁ toﬁﬂ.hyem r“mﬁmrs Tﬁ
Trade creditors 1913 - - 1913
OQther creditors 292 - - 292
Financing kabilities 856 1983 315 2960
Financial habiities' 286.1 1989 315 5165

Note
| fl-_'nanr:\alhbuiu_srrw'uyprdie'sexdwvedd'\e£I&4rn().0l8.mlm)mmmmmmoﬁmummdhmmmmn

francing Eabilties.
Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterly. The value of business placed with finandal institutions
is reviewed on a daily basis.
The Group's credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instrumertts is limited because the external counterparties are barks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and are managed through regular review.
The Group's credit nsk s pnmarily attnbutable to its receivable balances from austorners. Before accepting a new austormer, the Group uses external credit
scoring systems to assess the potenitial customer's credit quality and define an appropnate credit imit which is reviewed regularly.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables and accried income at the balance sheet date is the fair value of trade receivables
and accrued income. The Group's customer base is large and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit
risk with any one counterparty or group of courtterparties.
The amounts presented in the balance sheet n relation to the Group’s trade receivables and accrued incormne balances are presentad net of koss
allowances. The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLS) using both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group's historical experience, and forward-looking information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019
23. Financial instruments continued

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs against customer balances as at 3| March 2019
under IFRS 9:

2019
£m
Gross Net
Trade recenvables at 31 March 2019 ‘.‘m"Zu‘"ni -Ilcw::: m
Currert (not overdue) 210.3 (11.9) 198.4
$-30 days overdue 26.4 (1R )] 245
31-60 days overdue 65 .5) 6.0
61-90 days averdue 1.3 {0.3) 14
More than 90 days overdue 7.9 (4.6) 33
Total 2528 (19.2) 233.8
Trade recenvables at 31 March 2019 represents 29 days revenue (2018 restated: 26 days).
The following table provides infarmation about the ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 under I1AS 39:
2018
im
Neither impaired nor past due 163.6
Not impaired and less than three months overdue 374
Not impared and more than three rnonths gverdue 213
Provision for doubtful debts (17.3)
Total 2050
Note:
A ngﬁ'ﬂmﬁﬁwﬂ‘Mﬁmﬁwah“WWmhm""'ﬂmﬁmmmwﬂﬂmd“‘”
The following table provides the movement in the allowance for innpairment in respect of trade receivables and accrued income:
2019 2018
im im
Trade Accrued Trade Accrued
brabl [ receivables intome
At 1 April . ) 17.3 65 162 45
Impact of change in accounting policy 1.5 1.0 - -
Impairment losses/(gains) recognised LI (1.8} 23 20
Amounts written off as uncollectable (1.5) - 12 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1.9 a.i - -
Disposal of subsiaries an ©9 - -
At 31 March 19.2 56 173 65
Noae:
1 mm&wm;ﬂmlmmaﬁgq:m able i the standard by disclosing the impact as an adjustment to opening retaned earnings at the date of inital
Capital management risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entrties in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt per Note 26 and equity
per the consolidated staternent of changes in equity.

The Group is nat subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements.

138 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Hedging activities
Cash flow hedges
The Group holds a number of cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Bianral fixed interest

cash flows denorminated in US dollars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placernent market are exchanged for fixed
interest cash flows denominated in sterling. All cash flow hecdges were assessed as being highly effective as at 31 March 2019.

Hedge of net investment in foreign operations

Included in bank koans at 3| March 2019 was a borrowing of €3.5m (2018: €9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net investiment in the
Republic of Ireland business of Dalkia FM, and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on this investment. Gains or losses
on the translation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the translation of the net investment.

Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of derivative financial instrumertts at the balance sheet date were as follows:

m (1]
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes' 1564 61
Total 164 &1
Included in current assets - -
Induded i non-curment assets 164 4.1
Total 164 6.l
Note:

1. Derwatve financial wistrurents hedgng prvate placement notes comprise aross-aurency Interest rate swaps designated as cash fiow hedpes.

Derivatve financal instruments are measured at fair value.
Fair value measurements are classified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

¢ Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabifities;
* Level 2 fair value measurements are those dertved from ather observable inputs for the asset or liabiity; and
¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techriques using inputs that are: not based on observable market data

The Directors consider that the Group's derivative financial instruments fall into Leve! 2 There were no transfers between levels during the year. Fair
values of these instruments are calculated based on a discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the
instruments. All contracts are gross settled.

24. Obligations under finance leases

Minimum lease payrments
1009 018
m £m

Amounts payable under finance leases: .
‘Within one year 0.7 o8
In the second to fifth years mdusive 08 05
1.5 13
Present value of lease obligations 1.5 13
Less- amount due for settiement within 12 months o7 ©8)
Amount due for settlement after 12 moniths ) 0.8 05

The average remaining lease term is 18 months (2018: 20 months). For the year ended 31 March 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.8%
(2018; 1.4%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rertal payments. All lease obligations are denominated in sterling,

The fair value of the Group's lease cbligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group's obligations under finance feases are protected by the
lessors’ nights over the leased assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019
25. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding aggregate cornmitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leasas, which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

im &m

‘Within one year 25.) 37
In the second to fifth years indusive 414 392
After five years 53 132
Total . 720 76.1

Operating fease payrments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other equipment.
These leases have average durations ranging from three 1o ten years. No arrangementts have been entered into for comingent rertal payments.

26. Analysis of net debt

20109 2018

&m ém

Cash and cash equivalents {Note 21) 108.4 528

Bark ioans (Note 22) (52.1) (543)

Private placemen notes (Note 22) @y (2038
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes {Note 23) 164 &l

Net debt before obligations under finance leases (139.2) (1929

Obligations under finance leases (Note 24) (1.5) (13)

Met debt (140.7) (1935)

Net debt exdudes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred to in Note 15 and amourtts in respect of supply chain financing
referred to in Nate (7.
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

€
2009 2018 %
Continuing  Di t d - Drscontinved W
i Tm e v Rk
Cash conversion vs.
Operatng profit/{loss) . 50.2 2.0) 48.2 1Ll %4) (83)
Deprecation 1.3 0.3 1.6 123 05 128
Amortisation 9.7 0.1 v.8 132 03 135
Impaimment of goodwill and intangible assets LI - 1.1 330 19 450
Earmungs before interest, tax, depredation and amortisation 723 (1.8) 70.7 597 33 630
(EBTDA)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 56.9 (9.4) 415 Ll (90} 79) 8
Free cash flow . E
Cash generated from/{used n) operations . as 79 z
Purchase of property, plant and equipmest (ran) (15.8) ©
Purchase of other intangible assets (1.2) 20
Disposal of property, plartt and equipment 47 : 1.6
Income taxes recewed - 4.7 Iné
Interest received 0.2 02
Interest paid (12.4) (135)
Free cash flow 214 (328)
wie E
Other non- *E
Opening Total cash Reclassification Fair value Other FX cash Closing =
balance  movermnents  of senior debt changes movements  Mmovements balance 'S
Cash flows Non-cash changes E
Longterm borrowings — bank loans (54.3) 21 - - 0.3 (0.2) (52.1) ’
Long term borrowings — private placement (203.8) - 40.0 8.1 - - {71.9)
loan notes
Short-term borrowings — private placement - - (40.0) - - - (40.0)
loan notes.
Finarce lease cbligations {1.3) (0.2) - - - - (1.5)
Finanang kabities (259.4) 1.9 - s.n 0.3 {0.2) (265.5)
Derwvative financial instruments 8. - - 10.3 - - 16.4
Net financing liabflities (253.3) Ly - 12 0.3 {0.2) {249.1)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

28. Share capital

Number

Ordinary shares of 2.5p million m
Allotted and fully paid

At April 2017 3691 92
Issued for acquisitions 456 o]
A3l March 2018 3737 93
Issued for acqusitions i - -
At 31 March 2009 3737 %3

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4.6m ordinary shares of 2.5p were allotted in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests at an issue
price between 266.3p and 278.8p ghving rse to share premium of £nil and merger reserve of £124m.

29. Reserves

Share premium account
The share premiurm account represents the premium arising on the issue of equity shares.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents amounts relating to premiums arising on shares issued subject to the provisions of Section 612 of the Companies Act
2006.

The merger reserve increased by £124min the year ended 31 March 2018 as a resutt of the issue of 4.6m ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquisition
of nor-controlling irterests.

Own shares reserve

The Group uses shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group's LTIP, CSf* and DBP share schemes and
shares held in the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the SIP scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.3m (2018: 0.7m) shares at a cost
of £0.8m (2018: £1.6m) to satisfy awards under those schemes.

The Company uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group’s ESOS and SAYE share schemes. No Treasury shares have been issued
1o satisfy options under the Group's share schemes in the year. During the year ended 31 March 2018, proceeds from the issue of 1.5m Treasury
shares to satisfy options under these share schemes were £3.4m at a cost of £4.3m, with the foss of £0.9m being recognised in retained earmings.

The own shares reserve at 31 March 2019 represents the cost of 127m (2018; 13.0m) ordinary shares in Mitie Group pic held for the purposes of
the share schemes, with a weighted average of 13.8m (2018: 13.8m) shares during the year, as well as the £26m (2018: £7.1m) vakse of the remaining
restricted shares fssued as consideration to acquire non-controlling interests that is required to be treated as remuneration.

Inthe year ended 31 March 2019, the £53m (2018: £6.9rm) movement indudes £4.5m {2018: £1.0m) which has been released against the share-based
payments reserve following the expiration of the required continuing employment pericd in relation to restricted shares and £0.8m (2018: £5.9m) for
the cost of shares distributed to satisfy awards under the Group's share schemes. The £8.1m credit to own shares reserve in the year ended 31 March
2018 represented the restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of non-controfling interests.

Other reserves
Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £9.4m (2018: £10:4m), the revaluation reserve of £(0.2)m (2018 £(02)m),
the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2018: £0.2m) and other reserves of £0.2m (2018: £0.2m).

The share-based payments reserve represents credits in respect of the vesting peridd of equity-settied share-based payment transactions (see Note 31)
and credits in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of non-controliing interests.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and transiation reserve of £(5.6)m (2018. £(7.3m) indudes balances in respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 23}, A net cash
flow hedge credit during the year of £2.2m (2018: £0.1m credit) is included within other comprehensive income. The hedging and translation reserve
also indudes balances arising on translation of the Group's foreign operations and in respect of net investment hedges of which the combined
maovement was a charge of £0.2m during the year (2018: £0.5m credit}. An income tax charge of £03m (2018: £0.1m credtt) has been recognised

on these movemends.

Other movements in reserves
Amovement of £1 8m (2018: £nif} has been reflected in retained earnings representing the recovery of consideration for the purchase of certain
non-controlling interests in the year ended 31 March 2017,
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30. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions — purchase of Vision Security Group
On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired a |00% shareholding in Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). VSG is a leading security services provider
offering integrated security systems, manned guarding and key holding services, with a tear of approximately 6,000 employees serviang more than
1,400 guarding locations and over 5,000 systerns locations across the UK and Ireland.
The acquisition of VSG further strengthens the position of Mitie's Total Security Management business (Mitie TSM) as one of the leading providers of

integrated and risk-based security services in the UK In particular, the combination will offer opportunities to accelerate the growth of Mite’s premium

technology-enabled and inteffigence-led security solutions.

Corsideration of £12.7m (on a debt free, cash free basis) was paid in cash at completion, and funded through Mitie’s own cash resources. £4.5m of the
cash consideration paid is expected to be to be returned through agreement of the completion accourts with the seller of the business.

The Group's provisional assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition has been based on total
consideration of £8.2m following expected adjustments to the completion accounts The purchase price allocation is as follows:

Provisional (ar

Bockvalue  value aciustment Fair value

m m im

Software and development expenditure Gl ©1I -
Property. plant and equipment as (03) 0.2
Customer relationships - 149 14.9
Current tax assets 05 - oS
entories 07 02) e5
Trade and other receivables 415 (4.2) 373
Cash and cash equivalents 16 - 1.5
Trade and other payables (298) {1.2) (31.0)
Deferred income from contracts with customers A0 - 09 {4.9)
Current tax kiabilives. o.n - ©.1)
Deferred tax labikties - 20} x.9)
Net identifiable assets acquired 1o &0 17.0
Less: bargain purchase in other tems (8.8)
Consderation 8.2

The Group conduded that the value of the order baddog and the customer relationships to drive renewal of the contracts held by VSG was
an intangible asset which has been valued at £14.9m at acquisition and has been recorded as a non-current intangible asset under the caption
‘Custorner relationships’. The asset will amortise to the income staternent in line with the forecast expiry of the undertying custorer relationships

over a 10-year period.

The Group has recorded a bargain purchase gain of £8.8m in the consolidated income statement within other iterns. This represents the excess of net

identifiable assets acquired of £17.0m over the corsideration of £8.2m.
Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables was £37.3m. The gross contractual amount for trade and other receivables due was £39.3m,

against which £2.0m is the expected credit loss.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of £79.6m and net profit of £1.4m to the Group for the pened from 26 October 2018 to 31 March 2019

if the acquisition had occurred on | Apnl 2018, consolidated

pro-fanma revenue and profit before tax for continuing operations for the year ended

31 March 2019 would have been £2.332.Im and £31.9m respectively. These amounts have been cakulated using the subsidiary’s results and adjusting

them for:

« Differences in the accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary, and
* The additional deprediation and amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets had applied from | April 2018, together with the consequertial tax effects.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

30. Acquisitions continued

Purchase consideration ~ cash outflow
Cutflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired:

01y

Ln
Cash consideration 1.7
Less. cash balance acquined (1.6)
Less: recovery of consideration' {1.8)
Net outflow of cash — investing activities 9.3

Nete:
1. Recovery of consideration amounting to £1.8m was in respect of the purchase of certain non-corirofing interests in the year ended 31 Marah 2017, See Note 28.

Acquisition related costs
Acquisition related costs of £2.6m are induded in administrative experses and recognised in other iterms (see Nate 4) in the income statement and
in operating cash flows in the staternent of cash flows.

Prior year acquisitions - purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 july 2017, the Company purchased the minority 49% shareholding in Source Exght Limited, The consideration paid was £4.0m, satisfied with
£3.0min cash and £] Om in unrestricted shares. A further £5.1m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing
employment. Regarding shares issued, 2 196,708 ordinary shares were issued, with a nominal value of 2.5p per share in Mitie Group pic (Mitie shares)
at a fair value of 278 8p, of which 1,838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing

In addition, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remaining minority sharehokdings in five Mitie Model companies. The consideration paid
was £3.4m, satislied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to
continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,396,381 Mitie shares were issued at a fair value of 266.3p, of which 1,139,697 Mitie shares were
subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment. The sharehoklings purchased, primarily hekd by certain of the employees and senior
management of the relevant subsichary companies, are detaled below:

* Mitie Care and Custody Limited (MCCL) - 6.86% of the issued share capital, comprising 42,505 B ordinary shares of €001 each, for a consideration
of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of |69,328 Mitie shares;

» Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limited (MELSL) - 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each,
for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 144,555 Mitie shares;

+ Mitie Facilities Managerment Limited (Ireland) (MFML) — 5.63% of the issued share capital, comprising | 46,000 B ordinary shares of €0.01 each,
for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Catering Services Limited (MCSL) - 18.55% of the issued share capital, comprising 333,677 D ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration
of £29m satisfied by the issue of {07241 6 Mitie shares; and

= Mitie Waste & Environmental Services Uimited (MWESL) — 27.7 1% of the issued share capital, comprising 332,500 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each,
for a consideration of £2.5m satisfied byy the issue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

Theaboveacmlsmonshavebeencompletedbasadon‘b"ansferofcmstdemnonofﬂ'\efa:rwlueofﬂ’lesharel'loldu'gsofﬂ'\erspemvemtmgsAspa't
of the abave transactions Mitie Group issued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the relevant
recipient continues in ernployment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient
feaves emnployment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions cuthned above Mitie Group owns 100% of the issued share capital of all of the above entities.
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31. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes. The Group has also awarded performance-related bonuses for Executive Directors which are
deferred in condtional shares under the Mitie Group plc 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBFP) and are accounted for as a share-based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group plc Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007 and renewed in 2015. The conditional awards of shares or rights to acquire shares (the awards) are offered toa
small number of key sentor management. Where offered as opbons the exerase price is £nil. The vesting period is three years, although for awards
granted in 2015 and subsequently some are subject to a holding period of up 10 a further two years. If the awards remain unexercised after a period
of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. Before the awards
can be exerdsed, performance condrtions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a range of market and non-market measures over

a three-year period.

The Mitie Group plc 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares over the five-day period immediately preceding the date of grant.

The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire.
Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

The Mitie Group pic 201 | Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal 1o the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration Committee
dedides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting period is three years. If the
options remain unexendsed after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves
the Group. Before options can be exercised, a performance condition must be satisfied; the performance condition is linked to the percentage growth
in eamings per share over a three-year period.

The Conditional Share Plan (CSP)

The CSP was introduced in 2014, The conditional awards of shares or the nghts to acquire shares (the award) are offered to a smail number of key
senior management. Where offerad as options the exerase price is £nil. The vesting period is determined at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee and is generally two or three years. If the awards remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the awards expire,
The awards may be forfeited f the emplayee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic 20{ | SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme is open to eligible UK resident employees. The exerase price 15 not less than BO% of the market value of the shares determined using
either: the share price preceding the date on which invitations 10 participate in the scheme are issued or an average share price over five days preceding
the invitation date The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of six months from the date of vesting the options
expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The SIP was introduced in 201 | and is open‘to all eligble UK resident employees. Under the scherne, eligible employees are invited to invest in
partrership shares which are purchased in the market on their behalf and held in a separate UK trust. One conditional matching share is awarded

for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding period of three years. Matching shares are funded by way of market purchases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3{ March 2619

31. Share-based payments continued

Restricted Shares .

In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to individuals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the relevant recpient
centinues their employrment with the Group for a fixed vesting periad of tme. Restnictions will remain attached to the shares if the redpient leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

Details of the awards and share options outstanding are as follows:

2019 W 01¢ 2018

Number of Nomber of Weighted ‘Weghtad

conditional conditional Number of average Number of average

share awards share awards  share options  exercise price share options exarcse price

(million) (erdfion) (rnillon) ) (milion) )

Outstanding at 1 April 8.1 90 8.2 247 19 258
Granted during the year 7.8 43 4.3 137 27 229
Lapsed during the year (2.8) (45) (4.0) 243 (49) 267
Exerased during the year (0.3) N - - {45 39
Outstanding at 31 March 2.8 81 8.5 i%0 82 47
Exerdsable at the end of the year 20 249 32 240

The Group recogrused the following experses related to share-based payments:

2019 2018

im £m

Discretionary share plans 0.2 02
Non-discretionary share plang (X ] 10
Share-based payrnents acquisiion related costs 39 34
50 46

The movement on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statemert for the year of
£50m (2018: £4.6m). This comprises: 1) £3.9m in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the acqussition of minorty interests;
and ii) £1.1m of equitysettied share-based payment transactions. The share-based payments charge for the year is net of income staterent credits of
£2 Im relating to changes in assumptions relating to the likelihood of options vesting.

In addition, there has been: i) a release of £4.5m agairst the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrichions attached to restricted shares issued; and i}
a release of £0.8m to retained earnings regarding share options that were previously exerdised, lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exerdse for awards and share options exerdsed during the year was 139 (2018: 252p).

The conditional share awards and share options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had exerdse prices (other than nil in the case of the LTIP. CSP, DBP
and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from | 37p - 256p (2018 212p — 256p) and a weightted average remaining contractuai iife of 3.6 years
(2018: 3.6 years). In the year ended 3| March 2019, options were granted in respect of the SAYE, LTIP, CSP and matching shares under the SiP.

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of those options gramted was £14.0m (2018 £10.6m).
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The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Mante Cario maodels.
The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

2049 2018
Share price (p) : 258~ 118 258-318
Exerdise price (p) 0-1260 0-260
Expected voltiity (%) 23.-29 23-29
Expected ke {years) 3-4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) ’ ©3)-1.1 ©3-1
Expected dividends (%) 1.6=47 16-47
The inputs into the Mornte Carlo model are as follows:

2019 2018
Share price {p) 180 - 267 180 - 267
Average cormetation with TSR benchmark (%) 23-27 73-27
Expected volatility (%) ' 34-37 34-37
Expected bfe (years) 3 3
Risk-free rate (%) 0.22-0.68  022-068

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatiity over the expected life of the schemes. The expected life is based upon historical data and has
been adjusted based on management’s best estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exerdse restrictions and behavioural considerations.

32. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

» Defined contrbution schemes for the majority of its employees; and
¢ Defined benefit schemes which include a group scheme and other smaller schermes.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schermnes for qualifying emplayees. The Group has a defined benefit pension scheme
called the Mttie Group pk Pension Scherme (Group scherme) where Mitie Group ple is the prindpal employer, The Group participates in a rumber
of ather defined benefit schemes (Other schemes) in respect of certain employees who joined the Group under the Transfer of Undertalangs
(Protection of Employment) Regutations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scherne is a pension scheme under which the Group pays contributions to an independently administered fund, such
contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions

to the fund once these contributions have been paid. Members' benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid, together with investment
returns earned on the contributions arssing from the performance of each indimdual’s chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses
to take at retirement. As a result, actuarial risk (that pension will be lower than expected) and investment risk (that the assets invested in do not perform
in line with expectations) are borne by the employee.

The Group's contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which is closed to new menmbers; a seff-invested personal
pension plan, which is dosed to new members; and a group personal pension (GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payable to each on a matched
basis requiring employee contributions to be paid. Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary sacrifice arrangernent. The scheme used
1o satisfy auto-enrolment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension.

Duning the year, the Group made a total contribution to the defined contribution schemes of £8.0m (2018: £9.0m) and contributions to the auto-
enrolment scheme of £8.6m (2018 £4.3m), which are induded in the income statement charge. The Group expects to make contnbutions of a similar
amount in the year ending 31 March 2020.

Defined benefit schemes

Group scheme

The Group scheme provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits provided depends
on members’ length of serce and therr final pensionable pay.

The Group scherne closed to new members in 2006, with new employees able to )om one of the defined contribution schemes. The main Group
scheme was closed with effect from October 2017.

Pensions in payment are generally increased in line with RPl inflation, subject to certain caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death and other events
such as withdrawal from active service.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

The Group scheme is operated under the UK regulatory framework Benefits are paid to members from the trust-administered fund, where the
Trustee is responsible for ensuring that the scheme is sufficiently funded to meet current and future benefit paymertts. Plan assets are held in trust and
are governed by pension legislation. If investrment experience is worse than expected or the actuarial assessment of the scherne's llabilities inareases,
the Group's financial obligatiors to the schere rise.

The nature of the relationship between the Group and the Trustee 1s alsa governed by regulations and practice. The Trustee must agree a funding plan
with the sponsoring company such that any funding shortfall 1s expected 1o be met by additional contributions and investment outperformance. in order
1o assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the scheme’s obligations measured using prudent assumptions
(which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme actuary). The most recent triennial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017
and was conduded in March 2019,

The Trustee's other duties incude managing the investrment of the schemne’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exerdising of discretionary
powers. The Group works dosely with the Trustee to manage the scheme,

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schemes are a number of schemes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’
(generally local government or government entities} defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to Mitie under TUPE.
The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schermes, which are largely sections of the Local Government Pension Schesne, the Group will ony participate for a finite period
up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group is required to pay regular contributions, as decided by the refevant scheme actuaries and detailed

in each scheme's Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial valuation. In a number of cases contributions
payable by the employer are capped and any excess 15 recovered from the entity that the employees transferved from. in addition, in certain cases,

@t the end of the contract the Group will be required to pay any defict (as determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for its notional section
of the scheme.

Multi-employer schemes

As a result of historic acquisttion actwity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four mutti-employer pension schemes.
The total contributions to these schernes for the financial year ending 31 March 2020 are anticipated to be £0.1m. For three of these schemes,

the Group's share of the assets and liabilities is minimal.

The fourth scheme s the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (LK) Industry Pension Scherne (the Plumbing Scheme) a funded multi-employer defined
berefit scherne. The Plumnbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 emplayers, with drca 400 remaining, Historically, the size
and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee 1s unable at this time to identify the assets and liabilities of the scheme which are
attributable to the Group. The Group has recently received a Section 75 erployer debit notice in respect of the participation of Robert Pretue & Co
Limited in the Plurnking Scheme (refer to Note 19 and Note 33), One Group cornpany, Mite Property Services (UIK) Uimited, contirnes to particpate
in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this company is available and consequently, the Group
accounts for its contrnibutions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

The April 2014 valuation of the Purnbing Scheme indicated a surpius on technical provisions bass of £19.0m, on liabifties of £1.47bn. The Annual Member
update issued by the Plumbing Scheme in October 2018 stated that the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 showed a surplus on a technical
provisions basis.

As set out in Note 19, a provision of £200m has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co.
Limited in the Plumbing Scheme.

As set out in Note 33 the Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of Mite Property
Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been drsclosed as a contingent hiabflity.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes

The table below sets out the details of the latest funding valuation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 201 7.

Fallowing the €3.0m paid in November 2017, the Group paid additional comtributions of £10.5m to the Group schemne during the year ended 31 March
2019, induding amounts of £3.8m and £1.8m in respect of the disposals of the Pest Control business and Social Housing business.

Under the conchuded schedule for payrments, a further £64.8m is payable in instalments by 31 March 2025, which, if the assumptions above are I:;orne
out in practice, should efiminate the deficit by 31 March 2025.
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The Group made contributions 1o the Other schemes of £0.3m in the year (2018: £0.3m). The Group expects to make cortnbutions of around £03m
to the Cther schernes in the year ending 31 March 2020.

Details of latest funding valuation

Group scheme
Date of latest funding valuaton 3 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £1787m
Funding kabimes at valuation date £2527m
Defxit at valuation date €740m

The tostal contribution rate was set at between 40./% and 45.0% of annual pay for the remaining active: mermbers. The employer contribution rate is the
balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depernding on status and earnings. The total contribution exdudes any
allowances for expenses met by the scheme,

The following table sets out detalls of the membership of the Group scherne at 31 March 2017:

Group scheme
Actrve members — by number 182
Active members — by proportion of funding labily . 198%
Total persionable salary rollpa. - £8.4m
Deferred members — by number 853
Deferred members - by proportion of funding liability 539%
Total deferred persions pa (at date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Pensioner members — by number &40
Persioner members — by proportion of funding liability 263%
Total persions n payment pa. £2.7m

Accounting assumptions
The assumptions used in calaulating the accounting costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension schermes, as detalled below, are set after
consultation with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The discount rate used to determine the present value of the obligations is set by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds.

The assumptions for price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yiekis on longer-term corventional government bonds and index-
linked bonds. The assumption for increases in pensionable pay takes into account expected salary inflation, the cap at CPY, and how often the cap is fikely
to be exceeded.

AUKnghCou‘twdgrnerﬁwasissuedmZGOctoberZOISrelatngtoGuarameedMnmumPenﬂons (GMP). Aithough the ruling relates to

Uoyds Banking Group pension schemes, it is expected to create a precedent for other UK defined benefit pension schemes. The ruling requires the
equalisation of member benefits earned between 1930 and 1997 to address gender inequality in instances where GMP benefits are currently unequal.
Whilst there remains sorme uncertainty, the Group has made a provision for the estimated financial impact of this ruling on the Group scheme, based
on a comparison of the cumulative value of members’ benefits with the benefits of a notional member of the opposite gender (method C2 under the
terminology of the High Court Judgment). A past service cost of £1.6m based on the broad profile of the fund (ie. age profile, service profile and
GMP proportion) has been recognised within other iterns in the year ended 3| March 2019,

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with reference to the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuations, with a lower ‘best-estimate’
allowance for future improvernents to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme Other schemes
2019 2018 2019 018
* % x %

Key assumptions used for LAS 19 valuation:
Discount rate 240 260 2.40 260
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases k] 310 3.20 310
Retail price mflabon .20 30 3.20 3.0
Consumer price inflation 210 210 2.20 210
Future persion increases 1.50 340 3.50 340
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scheme:
2019 118
Years Years
Post retrement fife expectancy:
Current pensioners at 65 - male 8.0 830
Current persioners at 65 — fernale 8%.0 8%.0
Future pensioners at 65— male a9.0 830
Future pensioners at 65 - female 90,0 900
Life expectancy for the other scheres is that used by-the relevant scheme actuary.
The senstivity of defined benefit cbligatiors to changes in principal actuarial assumptions is shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
Impact on defined beneft obiigauons.
inereasef{decrease) Increase/(decrease)
Change in in obligat in obigations.
ASpmnpon %
Increase in discount rite 0.1% 0y% (49)
Increase in RPY nflation® o1% 08% 20
Increas in CPl inflation {exduding pay) 0% 07% 17
increase in saary prowth 0.i% oD% -
Increase in hfe expectarcy | yoar 40% 04

*  Including other inflauon-knked assumptions (CP nflation, pension intreasas and salary growth)

The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the results of the latest funding valuation
to the bafance sheet date.

Some of the above changes n assumplions may have an impact on the vakue of the scheme's investment holdings. For example, the Group scheme holds
a propartion of its assets in UKoorpaatebondsAfaln&edsoarﬁmﬁeasarujtdlouerLKcomaﬁebordyﬂ&mﬂdleadtoamnaeasemﬂ-.e
vaiue of these assets, thus mitigating the increase in the defined benefit obfigation to some extert.

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due, weighted by liability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme

Amounts recognised in financial statements
The table below cutfines where the Group's post-employmment amounts are induded in the financial statemerts,

019 018
m sdzz:: Total m womﬂ"lé Tow!

&m &m tm £m ém £m
Current service cost (0.4) 0.3) ©.n n ©3) Q0
Total administration expense . (LN - .y (.0 - (L)
Amaunts recognised in operating profit s o1 (1.8) 28 ©3) @0
Past service ¢ast (ndluding curtaiments) (1.6) - 1.8 s - 9
INet interest cost . (1.2) (0.1 (1.3) 9 ©.n Qo)
Amounts recognised in profit/{loss) before tax 4.3) (0.4 4.1) (66) (©4) 70

The past service cost (inchuding curtailments) in the year ended 31 March 2019 was the cost of equalising Guaranteed Minimum Pensions and in the year
ended 31 March 2018 was a result of an increase inliabities driven by the dosure of the main Group scheme.
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

019 018 %‘
STE WS tew SR wem o §
fm ém im &m &m m g
Actuarial (Josses)gars arising due to thangesin v
financial assumptions (13.6) ©9) (14.5) 86 08 24
Actuarial (Josses)igains arising from liability experence (1.3) - (1.3) (R} 08 (03}
Achuanal gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - o o 59 0.2 6.1
Mavement in asset celing - - - - {05) 05}
Returm on scheme assets, exchuding interest income 1.3 0.5 18 46 04 SO
13.6) 0.3} (13.9) 180 1.7 197
The amounts induded in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the Group's defined berefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows: §
2019 w18 g
Group Cther Group Oxher g
ni-ezl: uhen‘\:ns To‘;:l wﬂ: schen(ﬁ Tg“ai O
Fair value of scherne assets 1%0.5 13. 203.6 1823 [PA] 1944
Presert vakse of defined benefit obligations (251.9) (15.5) (2567.4) fexrA)] (14.0) (2512)
Net persion liabiity 6id) @4 (63.8) 548 (20) (56.8)

All figures above are shown before deferred tax.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligatiors in the year in respect of both the Group and gther schemes were
as follows:

019 2018 £
Group Other Group Other E
scheme schetmes Total wheme schemes Total ]
im im £m Zm an im =
At | Aprl 2371 14.0 251.2 2485 148 2633 E
Current service cost 0.4 0.3 07 7 03 20 =
Interest cost 60 0.4 6.4 65 04 69
Cortributions from scheme members - 0.l 0.1 ~ 0.l 0.l
Actuarial losses/(gans) arising due to changes in financial
assumptions 13.6 0.9 145 (85 ©8) o4
Actuana losses/(gains) arising from experience 1.3 - 1.3 LI (0.8) Q3
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - ©.1) 0.1) 595 ©n ®1)
Hovement in asset celling . - - - - 05 as
Benefts paid &H ©.2) 6.3 @n ©2) 83}
Past service cast (induding curtallments} L6 - L& 19 - 19
At 3) March 2519 15.5 267.4 371 4.} 25).2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are analysed by participant status as at 31 March 2017 below:

019

018

m m
Active " 514 483
Deferred 130 123.3
Pensioners 69.5 £5.5
At 31 March 2519 B
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2019 018
S e S 22w
Lm &m £m £m m £m
At 1 Aprl 1623 ()N 1944 1778 13 189.1
Interest ncome 48 03 50 46 03 49
Actuarial gans on assets 1.3 05 1.8 44 o4 50
Contribuytions from the sponsanng companies 113 03 1.6 44 03 47
Contributions from scheme members - [ A [ 3] - - -
Expenses paid Q.n - )] (19 - (19
Benefits paid @®.n ) (8.3) @&y D {83)
At 3% March 190.5 (kR 2016 1823 124 194.4
The history of experience adjustments is as follows:
! Group scheme
2019 p.o]1-3 2017 016 W15
tm im n fm £m
Fair vahse of scheme assets 190.5 1823 1978 1569 1622
Presem value of defined benefit obligations (251.9) (237.1) (248.5) 513) (197.1)
Deficit in the scherme (61.¢) (548) 7o 3449 (349)
Experierce (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities {1.3) (.n 08 3 12
Percentage of scheme Rabikities 0.5% 05% {03)% {1.6)% 0.6)%
Experience gains/(Josses) on scheme assets 1.3 46 18.7 {62 130
Percentage of scheme assets 0.7% 5% 10.5% 40)% B.O%
Crher schernes
101y 2018 07 06 2018
m £im m £m &m
Fair value of scheme assets 13.) 121 1n3 95 95
Present value of defined benefit obligations (15.5) (14.0) (14.8) (105) (104)
Deficit in the scherme (2.4) [do)] (3.5} (1.1 09
Expenence gains/(losses) on scheme fiablities - [o1] - - [GA}]
Percentage of scheme lizbilites - (6% - - 05%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assels oS 04 13 06 08
Perceriage of scherne assets 4.0% 33% V1 5% {6.1% 8.4%
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fair values of the assets held by the schemes were as follows:

1019 018

+ Group Other Group Other
scheme schemes Total scheme schemes Towd
fm £m &m m Im m
Equites 517 75 s9.2 663 70 733
Govemiment bonds 271 40 311 29 - 269
Corporate bonds 5Ly 0.1 52.0 20 38 258
Property 168 1.0 178 95 09 104
Diversified growth fund 310 - 370 456 - 456
Cash 60 0.5 65 120 04 124
Total far value of assets 190.5 13.1 203.6 1823 121 1944

The investment portfolios are diversified, investing in a wide range of assets, in order to provide reasonable assurance that no single asset or type
of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfolic. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a matching portfolio, which largely
consists of government and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movemnents in corresponding liabilities.

Around 56% (201 8: 67%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investrnent vehides which seek a higher expected level of return over
the long term.

The property assets represent quoted property investrnents.

Risks and risk management
The Group scheme, in common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways in which the Group has sought
1o manage them, are set out in the table below.

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitrnents of the Group, and from an accounting perspective,

Le. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group's finandal statements:

Risk Diescrption

Asset The funding liabiities are caloutated using 2 discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return to be generated

volatility from the investment portfoko. The defined benefit obligation for accounting is cakoulated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields.
The Group scheme holds a large proportion of s assets (56%) in equities and other returm-seeking assets {prindpally diversified growth funds (DGFs) and
property) The returmns on such assets tend to be volatiie and are not correlated to government bonds. This means that the funding level has the potential
10 be volatile in the short term, potentially resutting in short-term cash requirements or alternative security offers, wiich are acceptable to the Trustee and
an increase in the net defined benefit kability recorded on the Group's balance sheet. Equities and DGFs are corsidered to offer the best retums over the
long term with an acceptable level of nsk and hence the scheme holds a signifiant proportion of these types of asset. However, the scheme's assets are
well-diversified by investing in a range of asset dlasses, nduding property, government bonds and corporate bonds. The Group scheme holds 19% of its
assets in DGFs which seek to maintain high fevels of return whilst achieving tower volatikity than direct equity funds. The affocation te returmn seeking assets
is monitored to ensure it remains appropriate given the scheme's long-term objectives. The investment in bonds is discussed further below.

Changesin  Falling bond yiekds tend to ncrease the funding and accounting obirgations. However, the investment in corporate and government bonds offers a degree of

bondyekds matching. ie the movement in assets arising from changes in bond yields partially matches the movement in the funding or accounting cbligations. In this way,
the exposure to movements in bond yields is reduced.

tnflation risk  The majority of the scheme’s benelit obligations are knkad ta inflabon. Higher inflabon will lead to higher labilities (although caps on the level of inflationary
increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflabon). The majority of the Group scheme's assets are either unaffected by inflation (fixed interest
bonds) or loosely correlated with inflation (equities), mearing that an increase in inflation will also ncrease the defict.

Life The majortty of the scheme’s cbligations are to provide a pension for the life of the member, so increases in ife expectancy will result in an increase in the
expectancy  obligations.

Areas of risk management
Although investment dedisions in the scheme are the resporsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an active interest to ensure that pension plan
nsks are managed effidently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk where appropriate.

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are insured.

33. Contingent liabilities

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of business.

The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of any of these disputes will have a material adverse effect on the Group's finandal position,

other than as already provided for in the accounts. In appropriate cases, a provision is recognised based on best estimates and management
judgement but there can be no guarantee that these prowsions (which may be subject to potertially material revision from time 1o time) will result

in an accurate prediction, due to the uncertainty of the actual costs and liabilities that may be ncurred. The Directors will continue to monitor events
as matters progress.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3{ March 2019

- Contingent liabilities continued

In additicn, the Company and s subsidiaries have provided guarantees and indemnities in respect of performance, issued by financial institutions on
its behalf, amounting to £23.0m (2018; £21.7m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expected to result in any material finandial loss.

Multi-employer pension schemes

The Group participates in several industry multi-employer defined benefit schemes, induding the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) industry
Pension Scheme (Plumbing Scheme). The total contributions to these schernes for the financial year ending 31 March 2020 are antidipated to be
£0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scherne has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and fiabilites of the scheme
which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scherme.

‘When the Group (or a subsidiary of the Group) exdts such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any actve employees in the scheme), pension legislation
may require the Group to fund the Group's share of the total amount of net liabilities with a ore-off cash payment (a Section 75 delgt under the
Pensions Act 1995).

©On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plurnbing Scherne provided participating employers with a summary of the draft actuarial valuation of the
Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017, That summary detailed the results of the vahuation on three measures:

« technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scheme needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits in respect of past service as they
fall due, based on the scheme assets and the econamic position as at 5 April 2017, This measure showed 2 surphis of £45m on liabilities of £1.885bn;

* Pension Protection Fund (PPF) - the amournt used to set the Plumbing Schermne's PPF levies. The benefits under this basis are lower than the scheme's
own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator. This measure showed a deficit of £412m on liabilities of £2.342bn; and

¢ sobvency — this is an estimate of the cost of insunng all of the Plumbing Scheme's benefits as at 5 April 2017 with an insurer and & the basis required
for Sectron 75 debt caloulations. This measure showed a deficit of £658m on liabilities of £2.588bn.

On 23 Apnl 2019 the trustee of the Plurnbing Scherne issued a Section 75 debt estimate 1o Robert Prettie & Co Limnited. A provision for this debt has
been made. See Note 19.

The Group continues to have: an exposure to Section 75 debits in respect of the participation of Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited in the Plurnbing
Scheme, however no event has occurred to trigper this debt.

Employment claims

The Company and tts subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to employment disputes, claims, and other potential liabilities which arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Directors do not anticipate that any of the current matters will give rise to settiements, either individually or in aggregate, which
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position.

34. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are refated parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this Note.

During the year, the Group derived £0.5m (2018: £0.8m) of revenie from contracts with joint ventures and associated undertakings and received £nil
(2018: £0.6m} of dradends. At 31 March 2019 trade and other receivables from joint vertiures and assodates of £nil (2018: £02m) were outstanding
and loans to joint ventures and associates of £nil (2018: £nil) were induded in finanding assets.

Mitie Group plc has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, 2 charitable company. During the year, the Group made donations and gifts
in kind of £0-4m (2018: £0.3m) to the Foundation.

No rmaterial contract or arvangement has been entered into during the year, nor exasted at the end of the year, in which a Director had a material
interest.

The Group’s key management personnel include the Exacutive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Leadership team. Details of the
Directors’ rermuneration is included in Note 7. The undertying remuneration for other key management personnel, including the share-based payments
charge is £40m (2018: £44m).

lllglnf‘ anlr:
Short-term employment benefits 35 37
Pension 0.2 03
Share-based paymertis 3 G4
At 3I March 4.0 44

The Company's preferred supplier for deliverng apprenticeships to ltsemplcyeslsAspcreAchleveMvance Limted (3aaa). a company whase
chairrman 1s also Mitie Group pic’s Non-Executive Chairman. The Company pays into a government mandated Apprenticeship Levy Fund, and 3aaa
withdraw from that fund to provide the apprenticeship training. On || October 2018, the directors of 3aaa presented a petition to the Court for the
compulsory winding up of the company. This petition was accepted by the Court and the Official Receiver was appointed as kquidator on 24 October
20{8. During the year ended 31 March 2019, 3aaa withdrew £0.6m (2018: £0.2m) from the fund in respect of training provided or to be provided.
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35. Subsidiaries

The companies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2019

% voting r(ghuz:r'v: % norlz;lonI:l
Company Cousitry of ncorparation ownershlp interest value owned
Care & Custody {Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Mators Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativeverts mited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Oirect Enquiries Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviabon Security Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Miue Belgium BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Belgum Security BVBA Belgum 100% 100%
Mitie Built Ervroniment Liritedt Urnted Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitre Business Services Limrted United Kingdom 100X 100%
Mitie Business Services UK Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Care and Custody Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Catenng Services Limted™ United Kingdam 100% 100%
Mitie Clearung & Ermronmental Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Client Senrvices Limited Unned Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Company Secretariat Services Limited® Unted Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Compliance Ld* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Deutschiand GmbH Germany 100% 100%
Mitie Document Solstions Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mive Dormant (No, 1) Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Maie Engineenng Linuted* United Kingdom toox 100%
Mrue Engineering Services (Bristol) Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey) Limited Guemnsey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Northem Region) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limited® United Kingdom 100% too%
Mitie Engineering Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Ernvironmental Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Espaiia, SL. Spain 100% 100%
Mrbie Events & Leisure Services Limited** United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Facilities Managemertt Limited” Irefand 100% 100%
Mitie NI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite France SAS France 100% 100%
Mitie Group Pension Scheme Trustee Company Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Infrastructure Limitedt~ Untted Kngdomn 100% 100%
Mitie Integrated Facilties Management Limited¥ Untted Kingdom T 100% 100%
Mroe Internatonal imited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Iewestments Limited? United Kingclorn 100% 100%
Mitie justice Limited™® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Miie Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mive Local Servces Limited* United Kingdorn 100% 1e0%
Mitie Managed Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Nederland BV Netherlands 100% 100%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3] March 2019

35. Subsidiaries continued

% voting rights and % nominal
Company Country of inconporation owmership interest value awned
Mive Norge Akgeselskap Norway 100X 100%
Mitie PFI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Muti Polska Sp. z 0:0. Potand 100% 100%
Mitie Property Services (UK} Limited” Urnad Kingdom 190% 100%
Maie Resources Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schwez GmbH Switzertand 100% 100%
Mitie Scotgate Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mtie Security {London) Limited® Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Hokdings Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Linted United Kingdom 100% 500%
Miie Services (Retad) Limited? Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Suoms Cy Finland 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mitie T § Z Limited*~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Facilties Management Holdings Limitedf* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Faciities Management Limited United irgdom 100% 100X
Mitie They Roofing Limnted” United Kingdom (a0% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Uimtedt United Kirgdom 100% 100%
Mitie Treasory Management Limied* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Trustee Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Waste & Environmental Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
PMitie Work Wise Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Parkarsell Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procus Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Robert Prettie & Co Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management International Asia Padfic FTE. Ltd Singapore 100% 100%
Source Eight Limted™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
SourceB Africa Lirnited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria : 100% 100%
Source8 Services FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRES Uimited® United Kingdom 100%, 100%
Utityx Asset Maragement Limited? United Kingdom . 106% 0%
Utilyx Asset Management Projects Lirnited? United Kingdom 190% 100%
Utilyx Broking Linitec? Unsted Kingdom 100% 100%
\Utityx Hea'theare Energy Senvces Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Unityx Holdings Lirnited® United Kingdom 100% 100X
Utityx Lirmited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Risk Managemnent Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Vision Security Group Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Vision Security Group Systems Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Payrohl Services Limited® United Kingdom 190% 100%
VSG Staff Hire Livited® United Kingdom . 100% 100%
VSG Systemns Direct Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Limited® United Kingdom 100X 100%
. mammmm%mmzu March 2019 and wil ake the exemption from preparing and fing finandial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (by virtue of

4 These subadaries have taken advarttage of the audit exemption under Section 4794, of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2019. As such, Mitie Group plc has prowded a

gaarantee agaest all debits and Babiitics i? these subsdiaries as at 3) March 2019.

+ Held drectly by the Company.

% The Company hokls dinect minority interest in these companies.
-~ MWMMWJMMWMMMhaﬁdewﬁurmedeMm@dmm
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The registered office of all subsiiiares is The Shard, Level 12, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SEI 95G with the exception of

the following §_

Company Regstered office address ‘:':,

Mitie Belgium BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marce! Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5). [060 Brussels (Sint-Gillis), Belgium g

Mriie Belgium Security BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marces Broodthaersplen 8 (box 5). 1060 Brussels (Sint-Giis), Belgum d

. Mitie Deutschiand GmbH Melistetter Strafle 8, 70567, Stuttgart, Germany

Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey) Limited Martello Court. Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY | 3HB, Guernsey

Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited 13 Castle Street, 5t Helier, |E4 SUT, Jersey

Mrtie Esparia, S.L Qsborne Clarke, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Plarta 20, 08036, Barcelona, Spain

Mitie Facilities Management Limited 108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin |8, ireland

Mrte France SAS " 259 rue St Honore, 75004, Parss, France _

Mrtie NI Limited Clara House, Office BS. Dunmurry Office Park. 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Belfast, Northermn Ireland, @
BT 17 0AA, United Kingdom g

Mitie Nedertand 8V. ’ Hoofdweg 524, 3067 GH Rotterdam, P.O Box 8540, 3009 AM Rotterdam, 3009 AM Rotterdam, Netherlands E

Mitie Norge Akgeselskap Kongensgate 9, 0153, Oslo, Norway, Norway §

Mitie Polsia 5p. z 0.0 Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Poland

Mitie Schweiz GmbH Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzerand

Mrtie Suomi Oy ¢/o Ov Visma Services Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine B, 00160 Helsinki, Firdand

Mitie Sverge AB Kungsgatan 55 , 111 22 Stockholm, Sweden, Sweden

Serwce Manggement International 65 Chulia Street, #38-02/03, OCBC Centre, Singapore, 049513

Aga Padific PTE Ltd

SourceB Defivery (Nigeria) Limited 235 Ikerodu Road. lupeiu, Lagos. Nigena

Source8 Sernces FZLLC 17 The Indium Buiding, Um Suquesm Road, Al Barsha, Dubai, PO BOX 391 186, United Arab Emirates

No subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

36. Events after the reporting period
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There are no material post balance sheet evenits that require adjustment or disdosure in the annual report.
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 March 2019

1049 o8
i&m im

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 528.3 5570
Deferred tax asset 2.6 08
Total non-current assets 8309 5578
Current assets
Debtors 8a.4 58.2
Total current assets 884 982
Total assets 619.3 6560
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year {88.3) (674)
Provisions {10L.3) (148)
Total current Habilities (99.5) (82.2)
Net current liabilities (r2) 160
Net assets 5iv.7 5738
Capital and reserves
Share capstal 3 23
Share premium account 130.4 1306
Merger reserve 1043 1042
Own shares reserve (38.1) (434)
Other reserves 133 29
Retained earnings 1904 350.2
Equity shareholders' funds 519.7 5738

The Company reparted a loss for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of £45.4m (2018: £127m).

The financial statements of Mitie Group pic. company registration number SC0 19730, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised

for issue on 5 june 2015. They were signed on its behalf by:

BT T

Phil Bentley Paul Woolf
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2019 A

Share Profit

Share premium Merger Own shares Other and koss g

o e s e s Ton 3

At 1 Apri 2017 9.2 1306 91.8 422 253 3674 S8t §°

Loss for the year - - - - - 27 oan g
Share-based payments - - - 69 (24) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movements ol - 124 8.0 - - a4
Dhvidends paid - - - - - (48) (4.8)
A3 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 229 3502 573.8
Loss for the year - - - - - (45.4) (45.4)
Share-based paymerts - - - 53 04 - sy
Dnidends pad - - - - - (144) (14.9)

Ac 31 March 2019 93 1306 104.2 {8 13 2904 519.7 g

[}

Detals of dividends paid to shareholders are gven in Note 10 to the consalidated finandial statements. §
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

{. Significant accounting policies

{a) Basis of accounting

The separate finandal statements of the Company are presented as required by company law. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with apphcable United Kingdorn Accounting Standards and law. The financial statements have akso been prepared in
accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Campany has taken advartage of the disdosure exermgitions available urder that standard in relation to share-based
payments, financial instruments, presertation of a cash flow staterment. impairment of assets, standards not yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where refevartt, equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group accourts.

As more fully detailed in the Directors’ report, the Company's financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 requires management to make judgernents, estimates and assumptions

that affect amounts recognised for assets and fiabilities at the reporting date ang the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting
period. Actual results ray differ from these judgements, estirnates and assumptions.

The key area of judgement that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the review for impaimmentt
of investment carrying values.

(b) Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsifiaries are shown at cost less any provision for impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists, the investment's
recoverable arourt is estimated. An impairmnentt loss is recognised inthe income staterner whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settfe the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any prowvision is charged to the profit and loss account,
net of any reimbursernent, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the prowvision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have besn enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences that resutt in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax,
at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based upon tax rates and legiskation that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Ternporary differences arise from the indusion of items of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different
from those in which they are included in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not provided on temporary differences, or on unremitted earnings
of subsidiaries and associates where there is no commitment to remit these earmings. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded
as more fikety than nat that they will be recovered. Deferned tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Financial instruments

Intercompany loans are all assessed as being repayable on demand. The assessment of impairment of receivables from | April 2018 is in accordance
with IFRS 3. The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on receivable balances subsequently rmeasured at amortised cost,
using the ‘general approach’ permitted under IFRS 9. Inthe prior year under LAS 39, appropnate allowarxces for estimated irecoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit and kss account where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, nduding prerniums payable on
settiement or nedemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an acaruals basis in the profit and loss account and are added to the carrying amount
of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables are measured at amortised cost.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Finandial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual prowisions
of the instrument.
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Share.based payments .

Detais of the Group's share option schemes are provided in iNote 31 to the consolidated finandial statemertts. The costs of options and conditional awards
over the Company’s shares granted to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries are accounted for as a capital contribution within the carrying value of
investrments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions

The Company participates in the Mre Group plke Pension Scheme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined benefit schemne
in respect of their employees and as part of a group arrangerment one of the Comnpany’s subsidiares accounts for the other costs, income, assets and
liabifities of the schere. Nate 32 to the consolidated financial statements sets out details of the IAS |9 ‘Employee benefits’ net pension liability of the
scheme amounting to £61.4m (201 8: £54.8m).

2. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own staternent of comprehensive income
{incdluding the profit and loss account) for the year. Mitie Group plc reported a loss after taxation for the financal year ended 31 March 2019 of
£454m (2018 £127m).

The auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Company was £40,000 (2018: £40,000).
3. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

m
Shares at cost
At | April 2018 6165
Caprtal contribution re share-based payments 5.7
Disposals {27.0)
At 31 March 2019 595.2
Provision for impairment
At | April 2018 595
Charged to income statement 74
Disposals =
At 3] March 2019 6.9
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 528.3
At 31 March 2018 5570
A listing of subsidiaries 15 given n Note 35 to the congolidated financial statements.
4. Debtors
1019 N8
&m im
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 780 963
Other debtors : 0.3 I8
Prepayments and accrued income [-A] 0.1
Corporation tax 10.0 -
884 98.2

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates their fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Deferredtax

e

Losses P Towat

&m dm fm

Deferred tax asset at | April 2018 ) - 08 os

Credit to incorme statement 1.7 (03) 14

Deferred tax asset at 31 March 1019 13 05 12
8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2019 018

€m £m

Overdrafis 1.4 248

Trade credttors 4.0 44

Amounts awed to subsidiary undertakings ' $32 85

Corporation tax fability - 06

Other taxes and sodal securhty 0.4 02

Avccruals and deferred income 123 93

£8.3 674

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on dernand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors approximates their
fair value.

The Company's bank overdrafts are part of the Group's banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group. The Compary
has adequate iquidity to discharge all current obligations.
For details of Group barrowings, see Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

7. Provisions

2019 2018
&m m
Provsions 13 148

The movement in the prowvisions balance of £3.5m is due to amounts recognised in the income statement of £2.0m relating to the Healthcare
provision and €0.2en utilised from the provision, €£1.2m utilised in the year relating to the restructunng provision and other moverments of £0.(m.
Refer to Note |9 to the consofidated financial statements.

8. Contingent liabilities
Per Note 33 to the consolidated financal staterments, Mitie Group pic has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue
of Section 479A of the Cornpanies Act.

A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entities under Section 479C of the Companies Act:

9. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schernes as desaribed in Note 31 to the consolidated financiz statements.

The Comparny recognised an expense of £0.6m (018: £04m) related to the share-based payment charge for discretionary share option schemes.
The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo madels. The inputs into the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models
are as described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. Related parties
The Compary makes managernent charges to its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives dvidends from its subsidiaries,
according to their ability to remit themn. Other details of related party transactions have been given in Note 34 to the consofidated finandial statements,

The Directors are remunerated by the Company for their services to the Group as a whole. No remuneration was paid to them specifically

in respect of their services to Mitie Group pic for either year. Detailed disdosures of Directars' remuneration and share interests are given in the
audited section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 70to 81. The Company had no (2018; two) employees throughout year.

Under FRS 101 the Company is exemnpt from disckosing key management personnel compensation and transactions with other companies wholly
owned by Mitie Group plc There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: £nil).
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group presents varous APMs as the Directors believe that these are useful for users of the financial statements in helping to provide a balanced
view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial performance.

in assessing its performance, the Group has adopted certain non-statutory measures because, unlike its statutory measures, these cannat be derved
directly from its financial statements. The Group commonly uses the following measures to assess its performance:

Performance before other items

The Group adjusts the statutory income statement for certain other iterns which, in the Directors’ judgement, need to be disdosed separately by virtue
of their nature, size and inddence in order for users of the financial statemerts to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the
undertying performance of the business.

These cther items indude the impairment of goodwidll, amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, the gain or loss
on business disposals, the cost of restructuring programmes and other exceptional iterms.

Further details of these other iterms are provided in Note 4.

Strategic report

2019 2018
Operating profit/{loss) from operatons im im
Cperating profit from continuing operations Face of the consolidated income staterment 50.2 [N g
Adjust for: impairment of goodwil Note 4 - 07 E
Adjust for: restructure costs Note 4 15.0 470 3
Adjust for: 2oquisiton and dsposal related costs Note 4 8.7 84 ©
Adjust for: gain on bargain purchase Note 4 {8.8) -
Adjust for: other exceptional tems Note 4 23.0 40
Operating profit before other temns from continuing operations Performance measures 88.2 833
Operating loss from discontinued operations' . : (2.0) (54)
Adjust for: impairment of goodwill Note 4 - e
Adjust for: restructure costs ' Note 4 Y] 03
Adjust for: gain on disposal Note 4 [k 2] - ‘g
Adyst for: other exceptional tems Note 4 23.1 36 5
Operating profit before other items from discontinued operations. Performance measures 4.0 64 g
Operating profit before other tems — Group Performance measures 212 896 §
o g

1. Operating loss for distortinued operations compnses the loss before inance income and taox of £199m (201 8: £3.4m) and the gan on dpasal befare tax of £17.9m [2018: £nd). See Note 5.

Recondiiations are provided below to show how the Group's segmervtal statutory results are adjusted to exdude other iterns.

2019 0le

£m fm
Reported  Other items  Performance Reported Other fterve Performance
Operatng profit/loss) from operabons . . resuits (Note 4) measures resits (Noke 4) measures
Segment
Engineering Services 528 6.2 58.7 504 37 54.1
Security 29.1 L& 30.7 27! 04 275
Professional Services 4.8 08 5.6 50 04 56
Cleaning & Environmental Services 158 0 175 185 1.1 196
Care & Custody as 0.1 9 18 0l 19
Catering 5.1 [ B 52 56 - 56
Corporate centre (60.6) 272 (33.4) (1073) 762 @1
Total from continuing operations 50.2 38.0 88.2 ] 821 B32
Healthcare 2.0 (2.0) - - - -
Pest Control 30.0 (27.8) 24 26 - 26
Social Housing {34.0) 35.6 .6 (120) 158 38
Total from discontinued operations (2.0) 6.0 4.0 (34) _ 158 64
Total - Group 48.2 44.0 92.2 83) 979 89.6
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) continued

In line wath the Group's measurement of prafit/(less) fram aperations befare other iters, the Group also presents rts basic earnings per share before

other tems for continuing operations. The table below reconciles this to the statutory basic earnings per share.

. 2019 2018
Earrings per share P P
Statutory basic earnngsf(loss) per share Statutory reasures 8.6 {76)
Adjust for: losses from discontinued operations (0.3) 27
Statutory basic earnings/(Joss) per share from continuing operations 83 (49)
Adjust for: other items per share 8.5 20.1
Basi earnings per share before other iterns from continuing operatiors Perforrmance measures 168 15.2

Organic revenue and order book

The Group adjusts revenue and order book from continuing operations for the impact of acquisitions to show organic measures in order for users

of the financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the undertying movernents in these business measures.

2019 008
tm €m
Adjust for revenue

Oganic reveruue by segment for contining operations g osbondiin iyl aulonbiomiae fpioep
Segment

Engineering Services Note 3 905.7 - 905.7 8863

Security Note 3 5365 79.6) 4569 4320

Professonal Seruces Note 3 1.4 - 1314 1312

Cleaning & Environmental Services Note 3 a04.4 - a04.4 384.1

Care & Custody Note 3 107.3 - 197.3 599

Catering Note 3 136.1 - 1361 137.

Total for continuing operations 22214 19.6) 21418 20306

The Group's disclosure of its ander book is aimed to provide insight into its future revenue and performance. The Group's order book represents the
transaction price aliocated to the remaining performance cbligations on its contracts with custosmers, This secured revenue corresponds to fixed work

contracted with custorners and excludes the impact of any antidipated contract extensions, and rew contracts with customers.

2019 2018
m £m
Adjst for: _order book

Organuc order book for continuing operabons m s dﬂnn':f w m
Segment

Ergineering Services Note 3 1,801.7 - 1,8007 20391

Security Note 3 LB (209.0) 762.5 6408

Professional Services Note 3 86.9 - 86.9 1449

Cleaning & Ervironmental Services Note 3 ) 663.1 - 63.1 6563

Care & Custody Nate 3 596.6 - 596.6 670.

Catering Note 3 285 - 265 w7

Total for continuing operations 4,147.3 (209.0) 3,9383 14,1860
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Net debt

The Group indudes the carrying value of its derivative financial instruments in its balance sheet in ts performance net debt measure as this carrying value §_

represents the fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps on the USE private placement notes which form part of the Group's financing liabilities. E

The table below shows the reconcdiliation of statutory net debt to the performanice net debt measure. g"
mwis 018 §

Met debt £m &m

Cash and cash equivalents Note 21 108.4 59.8

Financing liabilities Note 22 (265.5) (259.4)

Net debt Statutory measures (I157.1) (199.6)

Denivative financial instrumenits hedging private placement notes Note 23 16.4 &l

Net debt Performance measures (140.7) (1935)

The Group uses an average net debt measure as this reflects its financing requirements throughaut the period. The Group calculates its average net

debt based on the daily dosing figures, induding its foreign currency bank loans transiated at the closing exchange rate for the previous month end. ]

In line with the performance net debt measure, the average net debt indludes the fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps on the US$ E

placement notes. This performance measure shows average net debt of £302.0m for the year ended 31 March 2019, compared with £286.1m %

for the year ended 31 March 2018. 3
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Shareholder information

Shareholder
information

Overview
HY 19/20 half-yearly results 2} Nevember 2019
Dividends
FY 18/43 imterimn dividend {1 33p pad) 12 Febnmary 2019
FY 18/19 final dividend (2.67p proposed):
T T Ex-dvdate 27 une 2019
~ Record date 28 june 2019
— Last date for receipt/revocation of
[DRIP mandate 15 paly 2019
- Payment date F August 2019
Annual General Meeting
2019 Annual General Meeting 30 py 2009

Registered office
Mitie Group plc

35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 1AU

Telephone: 0117 970 8800

Email: info@mitie.com

Website: www.mitie.com

Registered in Scotland under company number: SCGI9230
Registrars

Link Asset Services

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Backenham
Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone: 0871 664 0300*
Website: www.eitie-shares.com

* calls cost 12p a minute plus network extras,
lines aré apen 900 am ~ 5.30 pm Mon - Fr,
excluding bank holidays
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Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

Mitie has a dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) to enabie you to build
your shareholding by using your cash dividends under a standing
election to buy additional shares in Mitie. If you would like to receive
further information, including details of how to apply. please call Link
Asset Services on 020 8639 3402 or contact them by sending an
email to: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mitie online share portal
Mitie has a portal where shareholders can register and can then
login to:

Accass information on shareholdings and movements;

Update address details:

View dividend payments received and register bank mandate
ingtructions;

Sell Mitie shares;

Complete an online proxy voting form; and

Register for e-communtcations allowing Mitie to notify
shareholders by email that certain docurnents are available to view
on its website. This will further reduce Mitie's carbon footprint as
well as reduce costs.

W you wash to register, please sign up at
www.mitie-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downioaded in POF from the Mitie website,
which also contains additional general information about Mitie.
Please visit www.mitie.com



Cautionary statement
Certain statements contained in this document constrtute or may
constitute ‘forward-looking statements.

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by
the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms ‘believes,
‘estimates), ‘projects, ‘aims, ‘plans, ‘predicts’, ‘prepares, ‘anticipates.
‘expects, ‘intends’, ‘may’, ‘will' or ‘should’ or, in each case, their
negative or other variations or comparable terminclogy, or by
discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or
intentions. Such forward-locking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause

the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to

be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievemenits expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statemenits. Such forward-looking statements are based on
numerous assumptions regarding the Group’s present and future
business strategies and the environment in which the Group will
operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only
as at the date of this document Except as required by applicable

law, rule or regulation, the Group expressly disclaims any obligation
or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any
forward- looking statements contained in this document to reflect
any change in its expectabions with regard thereto or any change

in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement
is based. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future or are beyond
the Group's control. Farward-looking statements are not guarantees
of future performance. Mrtie's actual results of operations, financil
condition and the development of the business sector in which the
Group operates may differ materally from the expectations
disclosed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained

in this document. In addition, even if the Group's actual results

of operations, financial condition and the development of

the business sector in which the Group operates are consistent

with the forward-looking statements contained in this document,
those results or developmenits may not be indicative of results

or developments in subsequent periods. The forward-looking
statermerntts contained in this document speak only as at the date

of this document.

Designed and produced by MerchantCantos
www.merchantcantos.com



Mitie Group plc

Registered Office 4
35 Duchess Road '
Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 1AU

UK

Head Office

The Shard

Level 12

32 London Bridge Street
London

SEl 95G

UK

T: +44 (0) 330 678 0710
E: info@mitie.com
Registration number: SC19230

More information

Visit our corporate website:

Follow us on twitter:

@wearemitie
Visit gurLinkedIn page:

Watch our latest content:
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Anthony Stmallwaod. Telecoms Climtung
Engineer. Anthory is completing planned
preventative maintenance at height,
checking the integrity of the structure,
antennas anhd equipment,
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